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ABOUT FRASERS GROUP

Founded as a single store in 1982, Frasers Group
plc (Frasers Group, the Group, the business or the
Companyi is today the UK's largest sporting goods
retailer by revenue.

The Group operates ¢ diversified portfolio of sports, f
e - :

O
55 segments: UK Spor

liars - the brands we sell, our digital offering
> are supported by o set of enablers, focused or

TO SERVE OUR CONSUMERS
WITH THE WORLD'S BEST SPORTS,
PREMIUM AND LUXURY BRANDS.

BUT WORK TO ENSURE WE DELIVER SHAREHOLDER
VALUE OVER THE MEDIUM TO LONG-TERM, WHILST
ADOPTING ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES THAT ARE
CONSERVATIVE, CONSISTENT AND SIMPLE.

Printed on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Caplured thiagh the Woadland Trust, helping to ¢

£250M

Approx. £250rm paid
in staff share bonuses

25,000

Have o warkforce of
approx. 25000 people
worldwide, approx. 19,000
ich are in the UK

£2,100M
Contributed approx.
£2100m in VAT and Duty

£190M

Approx. £190m paid
in sales commission to
retail bonuses

£600M

ributed approx,
£600m in UK

1t wos the Agencies we were after’...
"We had to get you in order to get to
the agencies"

'TUESDAY 4 OCTOBER 2016 MR STEVE TURNER
ASSISTANT GENERAL SECRETARY UNITE UNIONY

2 UK

e new Bridish woodinnd across

FRASERS GROUP

OUTLOOK

The Group is continuing to invest in its
physical and digital elevation strotegy
and our omni-channal offering is growing

- in strength. Our stores in the UK have

reopened above expectatiens and our
online channel continues to significantly
outperform pre-Covid-19 periods. None
the less, management remains of the view
that there is @ high risk of future Covid-19
pandemic restrictions, likely to be over this
Winter and maybe beyond.

The board of Frasers Group has continued
to censider the probable return of
yestrictions during FY22, including within
its accounting judgements and estimates
for FY21. As the effects of the Cavid-19-
pandemic continue to cause future
uncertainty, including the Delta variant
surge we are currently seeing, the board of
Frasers Group considers it cannot currently
confirm with enough material accuracy
what the cutcome for FY22 will look like.

Based cn this we will not be giving

a projection to the market for F¥22
performance, Any projections produced
by third parties such as research analysts
are not produced on behalf of Frasers
Group plc and Frasers Group ple takes
no raspansibility for such projections.

As a result prospective investors and
other market participants should not
treat, and Frasers Group plc does not
intend to treat, the finoncial projections
produced by third parties as indicative

of the market sxpectations of Frasers
Group plc’s future financial performance.
We specifically note thot we are under
no obligation to correct estimates made
by financial analysts or to inform the
market should we come to believe that our
actual performance will differ from those
estimates.

We will review the current situation

again ot the half year and depending on
whether there is more certainty on further
restrictions or not we may be able to give
guidance at that point,

-
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GROUP AT
A GLANCE

UK SPORTS
RETAIL

54.3%

Totol Groups Ravenue

EUROPEAN
RETAIL

12.0%

Total Group Revenue

£1,968.5M

_, £615.2M

N —

10.7%

11.8%

UK Sports Retail includes core
sparts retail store operations

in the UK, plus all the Group's
sports retall online business
(exciuding Bob's Stores, Eastern
Meountain Sports and Sports
Direct Malaysicj, the gyms, the
Group's Shirebrook campus
operations, retail store opergtions
in Northern lreland, Evans Cycies
and GAME UK.

European distr

gium and Austria as
> tota

Gur store footprint is significont,
with 806 stores across the UK,
totalling approximately 6.5m
sqft, of retail space. The majority
of stores are operated under the
SPORTS DIRECT, USC, Evans
Cycles and GAME foscias,

consumer value propositions to
our local markets

4
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FRASERS GROWUP

20.3%

Torol Group Reverua

PREMIUM pwam—
LIFESTYLE 2

The Group’s Premium Lifestyle division offers a broad range of clothing, footwear and accessorias
from leading global contemporary and luxury retail brands through our fascias in the UK: Flannels,
Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Sofa.com and Jack Wills along with their related websites.
The majerity of these fascias operate 05 multi-brond premium retail destinations and are focused
on providing fashion conscious consumers with high-end and on trend products. The segment is
supported by our Group-wide centralisad commercial and support functions, giving the benefits
of scaie and operating efficiencies to each fascia. The segment is a significant part of the Group's
new generation retail concept and as such, in certain locations, Premium and Lifestyle stores

are co-located alongside our Sports retail stores to benefit from increased customer footfall and
operating synergies.

The total Premium Lifestyle store count is 17¢ stores and approximately 4.2m sq ft, of retail space,

REST OF
THE WORLD
RETAIL

Total Group Revenus

WHOLESALE &
LICENSING

The Wholesdle & Licensing segment opercdtes our globally renowned heritage Group brands
{such as Everlast, Lonsdale, Karrimor and Slazenger} and our wholesate, licensing and distribution
relationships across the world, as well as eur partnerships with third party brands that we
license-in to sell certain preducts, The Group's own brands are monaged both individually and
centrally within this segmient. This unique, integrated approach to brend management leverages
the expertise of aur pecple, encourages innovation, and ensures consistency.

4.3%

Bitssh woodiand across the LK
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

8.4%

Group revenue decreased
by 8.4%

Excluding acquisitions and

42.2% |

Group underlying EBITDA®
increased by 29.4% to
£390.8m

compared to £302.1m in the
prior period

Excluding acquisitions and ona
currency neutral bosis, underlying

FRASERS GROUP®P

- 18.5p

ona currency neutral basis, EBITDA increased 16.9% "

revenue decreased by 11.49%%™

Reported basic earnings per
share fell by 189.2% to a loss
Group gross of 16.5p, from a profit
margin increased to 42.2% of 18.5p
from 42,0% Underlying hosic earnings -~ per

share decreased by 204.9% to a
loss of 17.0p from a profit of 16.2p”

95.1%

Reported profit after
Jr tax was a loss of

£78.0m down 177.2%
177.2% | froma profit of
£101.0m

42.0% (16.5p)

£5.8M

Underlying profit before tax?
decreased by 95.1% to £5.8m
from £117.4m

Prrled on S 3 100% Recyclk o Carbon C




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPQRT - 2021

FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Reported profit bofore tox was
£8.5m, down 94.1%
from a profit of £143.5m

£427.8M

£248.9M

Net debt decreased to £248.9m
{£366.0m at 26 April 2020}

Group reported EBITDA
decreased by 2.6% to
£536.5m compared to
£551.0m in the prior
period.

UNDERLYING FREE CASH
FLOW (PRE-CAPEX)
INCREASED TO £427.8M
COMPARED TO £263. 1M IN
THE PRIOR PERIQD

niers 100% Re n Capturad thro

FRASERS GRQUP

11.8%

L

EUROPEAN RETAIL REVENUE DECREASED BY 11.8%, LARGELY DUE THE
TEMPORARY STORE CLOSURES CAUSED BY THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Excluding acquisitions and on a currency neutral besis, revenue decreased by 20.5%,
largely caused by temporary store closures due to the Covid-1% pondemic.

European Retail like-for-like gross contribution was down 15.0%™

Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% largely
A ° NO\ due to growth in our online

» (o] business, ond new store
openings

Excluding acquisitions,
revenue increassd by 1.4%°

Pramium Lifestyle [ko-for-fike gross
contribution was down 2.8%

UK Sports Retail revenue decreased by 10.7%, largely due the
temporary store closures caused by the Covid-19 pandemic,
offset by growth in our online business and pent up demand on
reopening stores

Excluding acquisitions, revenue decreased by M4.6% °, lorgely coused by temporary
store closures caused by the Covid-19 pandemic

UK Sports Retail like-for-like gress cantribution was down 13.4%




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 201 FRASERS GROUP

STRATEGIC AND
OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
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_um>_~_.mmm 000 10) | £1,000,000 m_._>zmm S WERE AT
, rﬁ LAUNCHED MW@ £500.000 26.8% CUIERERTP zmq>_ F

>._. YEAR END

L r
The scheme exists to reward our top 1000 parformers ‘\W@ mNmonooo v>=x
when cur share price reaches £10, for 30 camsecutive
trading duys. These top performers will be nominated by m\ K / mﬂNm-ooo i
25\
their colleagues for the embediment of our 3 core vahues: HUGO BOGS S
7/ ol Q
Think Without Limits, Don't Hesitute, and Own It. IEANTAN hm°-°°°

m=>mmm WERE AT wﬂwﬂ_@@& 8@ Fr
veREND £41750,000

2207 ELEVATION PURCHASE PRICE
PROGRAMME 5 /TS

R i:b;«...ﬁ»?u

u\x\ Ll .:..u.

2178 TOTAL APPLICATIONS

44%
MALE

55%
FEMALE

Frinted on Stenbeis 100° Recycled and Carbon Capiued through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Bnhsh wooddland across the UK
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FRASERS GROUP

OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, our highest
priority has been to protect the health, safety
ond wellbeing of our colleagues. This reflects
both aur duty to keep our people safe and

the business imperative: if we are not safe, we
connot trade.

Gur response has been based on a number of
key principles, in particular: .

= following Government guidelines and
exceeding them in certoin ospects;

= completing thorough risk assessments and
regularly updobing them; and

*  communicating effectively, sa our people
understand what we are doing and their
part in keeping themselves and their
calleagues sofe.

The standards we hove developed have been
shared and followed across the Group, except
where jocal legistation mandates o different
opproach,

The Group's senior management have been
closely involved in gur response, ensuring

the safety of cur people is put first and that
sufficient resources and equipment are
available. We have aise been supperted by an
independent health and safety consultant, who
is helping us to drive continucus improvement,
including in relation to our response to Covid-19,

Our Initicl Response To Covid-19

In lost year's report, we detailed the steps we
had taken across our warehouse, office and
stores in the first few months of the Covid-19
pandemic. These steps are summarised below.

Virtually ali furloughed colleagues received
100% of pay during the first lockdown, in excess
of the 80% guaranteed by the Goverament,
and we sent home on full pay ali colleagues
over 60, as well as those cotegorised as
vuinerable or at risk. Cther meosures we have
introduced included random tempercture -
checks for colleagues, strict protocals for
self-isolation after contact with  positive case,
encouraging regular testing and providing full

8

pay for people whao test pdsitive, while they are
ungbie to work.

In summory, in the early stages of the Covid-19
pandemic we: -

Warehouse

= Invited the local environmental health
officer and our independent consultant ta
review our controls and social distancing
measures

*  Reduced the amount of traffic in and out of
the building and in key areas, for example
by staggering start, finish and break times,
maving ogency staff to four-day weeks and
opening a new entrance to reduce traffic
through reception

+ Introduced seven-day health ond safety
coverage, to support the warehouse teams

+  Provided first aiders with advice and PPE
{personal protective equipment), to protect
them when first aid was needed

+  |mplemented hygiene statiens and created
a new role of "Secial Distancing Marshal®

+ Introduced 'no contact’ security checks
Oftfice

* Required colleagues to work at home
wherever possible and where they neaded
to shield

+  Communicated restart guidonce through
Slack {an internal messaging service
available to all head office colleagues)

*  Increased cfeaning, provided hygiene
stotions throughout and limited copacity in
key areas such as kitchens and lifts

+  Implemented protocols to ensure there was
no mixing between warehouse and office
staff in common areas such as canteens

* Allowed only authorised visitors and
encouraged meetings through digital
platforms

Stores

+  Created o retaii restart pacik for stores

reopening, including sighage, PPE, increased

cleaning schedules, lower store accupancy
levels, one-way systems in-store and
training documents for all new procedures

+  Reduced traffic in and out of the building
and in key oreas by staggering start, finish
and break times

» Revised delivery and processing procedures

to maintain social distancing

+  Added sanitisation stations throughout
stores and encouraged colleegues and
customers to use them

«  Used unannounced visits by the Health &

Safety team to ensure the retail restart pack

had been correctly implementad

Our approach was well regarded by local
authorities, with positive feedback following
unchhounced visits to our stores and
warehouse.

Adupting And Developing Qur Proced

P

Thraughout this financial year we have built
on aur initial actions, as we have updated our
risk assessments and adapted to changing
guidance. This hos enabled us to intraduce
new and stronger measures, in particulor as
the Covid-19 variant first identified in Kent
began to spread. Examples of our key acti
undertaken in the year are set out below.

«  August 2020, We d our warehouse
risk assessment and shared it with the
warehouse and agency teams. We started
weekly anti-viral fogaing’ of offices, sorters
and other areas ta supplement the regular
cleaning schedule, enhanced workstation
wlexi-scraens in the office to suppoart social
distancing and introduced maximurn
capacities for meeting rooms.

«  September 2020, We reviewed our
warehouse risk assessment and our first
aid guidance and introduced a screeriing
questionnaire for ol} visitors.

+  Octeber 2020, We introduced face shields

an dll sorting machines, as an additional
layer of protection.

+  November 2020. We reviewed and updated
our warehouse risk assessment and shared
it with the teams. Face coverings become
mandatary in the warehouse, and were
encouraged i offices (except for medical
and operationol exemptions), going beyond
Gevernment guidance. We issued guidance
ta all agencies and departments about
reporting Covid-19 cases, including follow-
up actions required. .

+  Pecomber 2020. We reviewed the head
office risk assessment and shared it with all
departments. To enhance sociaj distancing,
we closed 50% of shared work areas and
the office workstations used by people who
could not work from home, and further
reduced meeting room capacities. We
reviewed and communicated our contacts
guidance ond shielding requirements and
made fate coverings mandatory in head
office. All head office colieagues received
a Covid-19 controls review document,
requiring an electronic signature of
ceceptance.

+  Jonuary 2021, We reviewed the warehouse
risk assessment and issued a warehouse
working refresh. We produced risk
assessmerits for security, transport and

_training and shared them with the refevant
teams. Training started for ¢ll worehouse
management and supervisors, with
the "Covid Captain” role intreduced to
meonitor work areas. We increased anti-
viral fogging in all areas, ever and above
the manufacturers' guidelines, and issued
quidance on pre-shift cleaning,

+ Februory 2021. We further enhanced the

fogging procedures and produced a risk
assessment for the Personalisation team.

We believe our efforts have been highly
effective. For example, infection rates at our
Shirebrook campus have been consistently
below those in the local community. We

will continue to adapt our approach as
circumstonces change.

Qutside of the UK we have complied with

all local Covid-19 ‘aws and guidance which,

ct o rinimur, includes the same store and
warehouse measures as implemented in the UK.

1
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. bt debt 4B.9m {FY20: £386.0
ebt of £248.1M f i and running. Our objective is to populate the

{ntroduction Elevotion Without Litnits More underivingd nwas_ i mzmﬂ%a;as__,wc_” this crganisation with tigh calibre. high potential

. . N . . ) Annual Report an Accourks. The pightights el trained people wiho we intend 1@ be the

A..._m .ﬂosn‘...m pandemic conkinues to bed We continue to invest in ol orecs of the and explanations of these by segment is set out future _nnn.mwm ownsm Compant.

significant chaltenge far the coumtny, the rerail pusiness @ suppart our elevation stratedy. in note 4.

industry and for Frasers Group. Our stores were Our flagship sports Direct store o0 Oxfard Acquisitiont And Gtyutegic Investments

closed again in Novermber 2020, tollowed by @ Street re-opened in Juné 2021 ot a cost of Our Pacple

significant closute in the week petore Christmas approxiately £10m to the Group and we hove ) During the year We increcsed our investments in

which then led o the third lockdawn in January received averwhelming endarsements from ouf Our Qm.on._m are ocq.m_:mmﬂ respurce and we ar¢ Hugo Boss and Mulberry and we also acquired

2021, These lockdowns resulted in vittuolty ot of customers and ok prand partners such as Nike n.m:%.:ﬁmn__ to treating ofl of au¢ colieagues with the DW Sports and Citress business. These

our UK stores being closed for opproximately and Adidas. dignity ond res! act, Throughout the mosaﬂ;n jewestments are consistent with our strategic

six months in EY21. Our European stores Ouw Bl s busi " . éw%anﬂm _.\Mnn nMﬁM@MMmm“M%@me MMNSH.WEQ o_u,_mnwzmmn:n align with our elevation strategy-

1 uy annels usiness <On inues o 9o update ¥ leqs ro [a] .

“ﬁwmom_”%n_mﬁmnwnwmnﬂwﬂmwmwWAHHM__% ﬂomqﬂmwmﬂx frarn strength 0 strength since we taok full weltbeing support where people needed it. As at pericd end, we held numﬁx_:,.n,mz

business. ownership during 2017 and has revenue CAGR Frasers Group cotleagues 6T¢ rolented, foyal 16 A% directly and :..a..qmn.nz i Hugo Boss. We
§rom the end of FY18 1@ FY21of approximnotety and resilient. 1 ave been very jmpressed how consider this strak=gc investment in HUga Boss

| am proud of how our calleagues have 40%. We have o ambition to reach they have found creative Wars of working to be very Enm.mmm.ﬂcn. We have strengthened

pattied through these very difficult times te approximarely £2 n i gross turnover by the through the challenges of the pandemic with our relationship with the company and have

nelp us achieve o solid set of finoneial results end of FY26, with d forecust spilt of H0% from undiminisned enthusiasm. The Board are very regular and nn:mn_.‘coczm dialogue with the

on an underlying ERITDA basis. \We afe @ physical soTes and 40% from onling channels. apprecictive of the effoits of our colleagues seniar executive tearn. We have noted press

resilient pusiness but the Covid-1? nu:mma_n . . . . . during these challenging times. speculalion abowt @ uoﬁmvzc_ acquisition of

has resulted in some significant non-cash We will continue to inuest aeross the portfolic ] t Hugo Boss and stoted we had no intentien to

accouniting impEinments ko our asset base. Our wm ocmr retail aomm.sﬂ. n_“_s.cﬁ u_.r__m:.a__ﬁ J_mm o M_mm%om rd is qﬂn_z pleased that ?nﬂ _umn_.”_mamm bid in our RS of 26 May 2071,

i i pundaries an tnking wit out limits, LuJr ghare schems WS ananimously ¥o =4 .

Mummahmﬂ”mmm anmﬁsﬂ.ﬂﬂmﬂuaommhmﬁwmﬂ iwestment in ouT digital capapility. inchading through at the AGM in October 2020 ond s Mm fmﬁ_%ﬂaa_aoaz .uu.w“w wm w._c_wmi )

wa haue to report ot owarall profit before ta¥ of on platforms and people, Wil continue as wil novw up and uAning, The Board s receiving roup pic at the <mch:=.¢ e believe this _mf

5 5m down from 143 5m in FY20. jnvestrnent in automation in aur warehouse reguior updates o progress 1eports and we an iconic British brah and hope thet together
o support HuT pricks and clicks Fulfitenant: are comfortable & is runming os intended. The we can Tl @ mwtually beneficial unﬁ:ma.:_m

we oppreciote the GGovernment support with capabitities. airn of the scheme is o paY out significant going farward.

the furlough scheme ond business rates redief. . L N . bonuses in the form of shares if the share price . .

\We are vqmmoa.in:ﬁz o hricks and mortar The Elevation Na Ligvits steokegy 18 working stays above £a0 for 30 congacutive tradind ﬁﬂ;ﬂﬂﬂﬂ.ﬂ“nﬁ”ﬁﬂ”ﬂmﬂﬂ%ﬁ W%ﬂﬁw

pusiness and this support has enabled us t@ and we are fully supported By oW third-party days. This could see 10 collecgues receiving :

; i Eronds s elevotion s comnphirmenting their OWN . o consideratian of £37m. The ransaction
Kkeep stofes epen thot otherwise might have ghares worth £1mn each i the shore price is o complements the existing g¥ym and fitness club

heen closed, particularly loss poking House strategies. £10 at the vesting dotas, One thousand of ouf portfolic within the Group and s consistent with

of Fraset SLOres, sepving rany jobs. We rust Results Fearlass colleagues who live ond breathe out The Group's levation atrategy. Frasers Group

caution however that the Teturn 1o pre ﬂoﬁuu_@ voalues of thinking weithout firits, not hesitating Jooks forward ta alevating the gy and fitness

pusimess rates il present @ threat to o numbe? \We do not hesitate to rapning cuf stokeholders and owning it will be eligible t© recaive shore qesets ond is aisd plensed to have saved 0

of these stores, There wast be @ change B2 the of aur key accaunting principles: pamely being poruses anging fram £50k right up te £10 i aumper of jois Furthet detil on the trode and

outdated pusiness rotes system for us to justify conservative. ronsistent, and simple. 1t is with the share price:1s at £10 at e yesting dates. assets nnn_::.ﬁ._. can be found in note EX)

the survival of some of these House of Fraser this in Tind thot we present our financiah results There is Glso @ cosh bonus scheme which uns '

stores. top FY21iNG ﬂmzoa of uncertainty. with in ouf concustently with the share scherme which wilt We consider a combpination of both crganic
opinion. the effects of the uo:umB_,n far trom pay out ponuses for those eligible colleagues, and acquisitive mqoin_.. will gssist in the ongeing

‘We are looking o take o0 Q aumber of 4

aver, and a proboble fisk of further restrictions. wha da nat qualify forthe Feacless 1000. delivesy e SUCTess of us Etevation Strategy
ex-Debenhams stores across the country but and we will continue to loak at _uonm«&n._

the excessivé business Tates maoke ve viobility Cur results hightights are: The Frasers Groug Elevation Prograsos Was opportu " ities across a ra nge of categ ories 10
of these irvestments, and the jobs thet could introduced in Septernber 2020 to attract highty

complernent ond enhanee our Group offering,

. Underiying EBITDA increased to £390.5m
i the UK, Burope and beyond it appropriote.

be created, tess likely. Again. we ask for clarity F120: E3p2 ) talented peaple to Frasers Group. The quelity

from the Government and for a new and of the recruits frorn the {mitich intake has been
gppropriote policy on fusifiess TOLES. + Revenue Jecrensed t@ £3,625.3m {FY20- strong and they have impressed people OcIoss
£3957.4m) all levels of the organisation inclading the
Ragrd. We are 1ooking ta it this programme

o
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tal, Social & G

We are proud of the successes we have had
with our sustainability agenda to deate. For .
instance the majority of our waste from our
Shirebrook delivery centre is recycled and

we dre targeting zero waste to landfill from
Shirebrook in the next few years. Excluding
acquisitions during the year, our stores and
gyms are operating on 100% renewable power
and we are targeting a reduction of 10% power
usage in our stores over the next few years.
Sustainabiiity will continue to pkiy a key role in
our future processes and procedures jed by our
Sustainability Steering Group which is executive
sponsored by our Chief Financial Officer.

We are proud to invest in iocal communities
and to support a key facet of British life, the
high street. We provide jobs for over 20,000
people in the UK atone and during the
pandemic we have dane our utmost to retoin
and support as many colleagues as possible
with very few redundancies.

During the yeor we have given approximately -
£25m in discounts to NHS staff as we reopenad
in June 2020 in gratitude to the unbelievable
job they have done during the Covid-19

- pandemic.

Our workers representative Cally Price

is a shining example of good corporate
governance and we thoroughly recommend
the appointment of such o position ocross the
boardrooms of corporate Britain. Cally brings
colleague queries and concerns directly to
the boordroom for action by the Board. Cally
takes o very active part in every Board meeting,
which she attends in fuil, and her vote counts
for as much in a Board vote as mine or the
executive team. Alongside Caolly, the rest of
our Non-executive Directors bring their own
knowledge and experience to their roles in
helping to ensure we do the right thing by our
stakehalders .

The Board

We recently went through an independent
review of the Board which is o mandatory
obligation once every three years. We are very
happy with the findings and will act on the
recommendations.
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We will continue to fook at the construction of
the Board ensuring we have the appropriate
blend of skills and experience, We consider
diversity, and energetic and passionate
individuals to be priorities as we jook to
strengthen the Board in the future.

Due to the success of the Waorker's
Representative Board role we hove decided
to extend the tenure of Cally Price far a
further few years and she will be proposed for
re-election ot the 2021 AGM.

Dividend And Share Buyback

Qur share buy back programme has continued
which is a demonstration of our confidence

in the Company and the strategy for future
growth, Further details can be found in Note 36,

No final dividend will be payeble in relation to
£Y21 as we intend to make further investments
ini the business to support the elevation
strategy. .

Outlock

The Covid-19 pandemic continues o create
uncertainty ond we must be prepared for
more lockdowns in the future, There must be
concerns about the stability of some retailers
as Government support schemes come to
an end, yet there still seems to be very little
tangible long-term action being taken by
the Government to save the high street.
Notwithstanding the probable risk of further
lockdowns, which are considered and de
impoct our property accounting estimates,
Frasers Group is confident in our long-term
strategy which we believe will help us to get
through this difficult period.

We will continue on the path of elevation and
ta invest in our talented and loyal colleagues.
Cur business is built on rock solid foundations
and we believe we are well set for some
promising times in the future,

David Daly
Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021 .

OUR BUSINESS

Business Model

Founded by Mike Ashley as a single Store in
Mgaidenhead in 1982, Frasers Group pic today
operates a diversified pertfolic of sports, fitness,
premium lifestyle and luxury store fascias. The
Group's colleagues work together with our
suppliers and our thed-party brand partners

to serve customers in over 20 countries. The
Group aspires to be an international leader in
sports, lifestyie, and fuxury retail. The Boord

is committed to treating sll people with

dignity ond respect. We value our people,

our customers and our shareholders and we
strive to adopt good practices in our corporate
declings. We aim to deliver sharehotder value
over the medium to long-term, whilst adapting
accounting principles that are conservative,
consistent and simple. OQur strategy is set out in
the “Our Strategy - Elevation No Limits” section
of this report.

Our business model remains consistent in
providing customers with the world's best
brands, This reguires us te have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time
and at the right price. Our vision is to become
the elevoted, multi-channel platform for our
Sports Retail and Prerium Lifestyle foscios. To
this end, we are elevating across all channels to
enhance the customer journey every step of the
way.

The Group's business model is explained in
greater detail' below. This includes an outline of
our fascies ond retoll channels, management
of our property pertfolio, our pecple, our
third-party brand partners, our Group brands
and our centralised support functions.

Business Structure

The Group is structured across five business
segments: UK Sgorts Retall, Premium Lifestyle,
Eurcpean Retait, Rest of World Retail and
Wholesale & Licensing.

fn UK Sports Retail, we offer @ complete ronge
of sporting apparel, footwear and equipment
through our predominant fascia,

SPORTS DIRECT.

e aerong e UK

FRASERS GROUP

This segment inciudes our lifestyle fascia
USC. Cur current forward-locking view is
that the majority of our offering to customers
must include leading third-party brands, The
elevation of our sports retail proposition is
key to ensure we are fully aligned with the
future direction and ambitions of these brand

" partners. UK Sports Retail includes core sports

retail store operations in the UK, plus all the
Group's sports retail online business (excluding
Bob's Stores, Easterss Mountain Sports and
Sports Direct Malaysia), the gyms, the Group's
Shirebrook campus operations, retail store
operations in Northern Ireland, Evans Cycles
and the GAME UK stores and enline business.

In Premiurm Lifestyle, we are developing the
Group's premium and luxury offering, which
consists of the Flannels, Frasers, House of
Fraser, Jack Wills and Sofo.com foscias, along
with Cruise and van mildert. We cim to offer
fashion-conscious consumers a luxurious,
multi-brand retail destingtion with high-end
and on-trend products.

[n European Retail, we are evolving our
customer proposition in line with the elevation
strategy, while alse seeking to increasingly
tailor our proposition to the local markets in
which we operate. These inciude the Republic
of freland and continental Europe.

in Rest of World Retail, we operate 43 stores
trading as Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain
Sports and we also hove 33 stores trading os
SPORTS DIRECT in Malaysia.

In Wholesale & Licensing, the Group retains
a portfolio of world-famous heritage

brands, which we offer via our fascias, and
also wholesale and license to partners
internationally. Our own brands include
Everlast, Lonsdale, Karrimor and Slazenger.
The Group is also proud Yo hove a number of
sperting and entertcinment personalities as
ambassadoers, as well as supporting sporting
events and venues
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Multi-Channe! Elevation Strategy

Our elevation strateqgy continues to work
towards improving our offering to customers
across all our channels, including marketing,
social media, product, digital and in-store. This
aims to enable the Company, along with our
third-party brand partners, to connect with
customners via a consistent voice across multiple
platforms, including online, mobile, and on the
high street. This strategy enables our stores and
our online operaticns to complement

edach other,

The websites for each of our core fascias in
the UK, including SPORTSDIRECT.com, USC. .-
co.uk, Flannels.com, Houseoffraserco.uk and
GAME.co.uk, have undergone significant
enhancements to facilitate optimum appeal to
consumers. Qur preduct offering across these
core fascias, both in-store and online, gims to
create o compelling shopping experience in
key categories that include, amongst others,
football, women's, kids, running,rcycling,
lifestyle, fashion, luxury and gaming.

We offer product across a range of price points,
including good, better end best. This enables
us to offer mare premium product, which is
net-new to the business. This gives consumers a
greater range of choices for those who wish to
shop for premium products, whilst still retaining
our original entry-level and continuity product
offerings.

'Prograssion Of The Elevated Store Model

The elevation of the Group's stores continues
to progress and evolve across fascias and
territories. As reported last year, for Sports
Direct the enhanced concept introducing

an area not just for USC, but also for Game
with a Belong Goming arena and Evans
Cycles was delivered ot the new Portsmouth
store, These combined elements develop the
destination status of our stores catering to

a wider customer base. The Group has also
pushed boundaries with the opening of the
game charging Sports Direct flagship store on
London's Oxford Street shortly after financial
year end, The store features world class
design incorporating new activation spaces,

technology and features including a first in kind
bra fitting studia,

Foliowing the success of the Flannels regional
concept, the Group has developed & new
regional flagship concept. This concept
encompasses a much larger footprint and
incorporates new categories for the fascia
including beauty and food & beverage. The
fiest store to launch in this new concept is at
Meadowhall Shopping Centre with further sites
due to open in the coming financial year such
as Fosse Park in Leicester and Liverpool

city centre.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frosers Wolverhampton. The store
extends to c,34,000 sqft housing beauty,
fashion, iifestyle, kids, home and food &
beverage. This new store is o live example of
the Group's vision for the fascia focusing on
experience, brands and service,

The Group is highly acquisitive across fascias
for new stores and with co-operative landlords
can offer a portfolio of new store deals
providing a variety of retail offerings. The Group
is prepared to sign long term leases for those
landlords willing to co-invest in the elevated
store concepts.

Investment in Freehold properties remains an
option to assist the store elevation strategy as
has been the case in previous financial years.

Further details of the property strategies and
current property portfolio are included within
the Chief Executive’s Report and Business
Review section of this annual report.

"4 Recyeled and Carbon Captured ibrough the Woodland Trost, helping to cre,

Qur Paople

The Group's policy is to treat all our people with
dignity and respect. Frasers Group collecgues
work together across all areas of the business
and we are proud that Frasers Group plc is one
of the first public companies in the UK to make
an elected Workers' Representative a Board
member. We welcome all hew colleagues inte
the Group follawing the acquisitions in the year
and those wha joined us through the Frasers
Group Elevation Progromme.

Remuneration and Rewards

Cur policy is to foster a reward-based culture
that enables our colleagues to share in the
success of the Group. It is Company policy te
pay above the statutory National Minimum
Wage, including rates that are above the
statutery National Living Wage for those
over 25 years of age in the UK. In addition to
this, in current period the Group paid awards
and incentives of approximately £7.0m, from
which both permaonent and casual colleagues
benefited.

We are pleased that the Fearless 1000 share
scheme is now up and running along with

the Fearless Focus performance reviews. One
thousand of our Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking without limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to £1m if the share price is at £10 at the
vesting dates.

Workers' Representative

The Frasers Group Workers' Representative

is Cally Price, @ Manager at our Cardiff Bay
store. The Workers' Representative has a unique
insight in to the Group and will speak on behalf
of the Group's workforce at all scheduled

meetings of the Board in order to facititate a
healthy and constructive diclogue. Due to the
success of the Worker's Representative Board
role we have decided to extend the tenure of
Cally Price for a further few years and thus she
will be proposed for re-election ot the

2021 AGM. .

wl auross the UK

Colleague Engugemeént

In addition to the Workers Representative,

the Company alsa has an ongoing dialogue
with colleagues via an i tive called Your
Company, Your Voice.' This is a system whereby
colleagues are able to raise any issues of their
choosing via a number of different routes, both
physical and digital. This feedback is passed

to senier management and the Workers'
Representative for review and appropriate
action.

QOur Global Third-Party Brand Partners

We work with our leading third-party global
brand partners and provide significant
prominence for them with our customers across
ali our platforms.

QOur third-party and Group brands are
managed by central brand and marketing
teams. This centralised structure significantly
benefits the Group by enabling the individual
brands to participate in Group buying and
sourcing; aggregated supplier relationships
and enhanced supply chain disciplines; Group
inventory monitoring and replenishment;

ond more inspired and harmonious visual
merchandising in-store.
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Our Strotegy - Elevation No Limits

Our purpose is to serve consumers with the world's best brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time and at the right price. Cur strategy is aligned to this
purpose ond is based on three interconnected focus pillars - the bronds we seli, our digital offering
and our physical stores. These are supported by a set of enablers, focused on our people, systems,
automation and data. By continuing to elevate our performance across alf areas of our strotegy, we
will achieve our vision: to become the elevated multi-channet platform for sports, premium and luxury.

Strategy Koy ach in FY1 Prioities fer FY22
Srande Dunng FY21, aur uchievernents included During FY22, our priorties are 1o
Our eustormess wonk ta have the crace of the . lurkher growing our relationships with key ©  continue te bund eur succassfuf third-porty

world's hest brants, whather i sporting goods or

the pramium and luxury segments Beng able Lo
ffex these brands s essential for cur success We
therefore bocus on bulding exceliant relatignships
and truly miegrated keoms with key thed-panty .
brand owneds

This powerful brand atfaring i supperted by gur
complementary range of owh bronds, witere we

ot Lo alfar upevalled cheice and vol
drive growth through influencer bartnerships und
hrand collaborations We will contmue te Lonsicter
strotegic arqusitions thet bring dttractive brands
into tha Graus

wrand awners, such as Nike for Sparts Direcl,
Burberry for Flannels, and Hugo Boss for

House of Fraser. giving us wniroved ocless o~
the preducts our customers demond.

InGreasing our strategic Investment i Hugo
Bogs AG, raflecting our growing reiationship.

our confidance in Its futurs and the potentiol

for synerglas belwnen our businesses; and
Incrensing nur strotegic investment N lusury
huridbag ratalee Mulberry

brand partnerships and further Imprave our
occess 1 Hie best progucts, and

st e guekving oL omn bronds, to ensure
they rernain felevant to consumers by
responding to chonging styles ond trends
and tontinue to comizément the key third-
porty trands wa affer

Raterence to Principol Risks,
see poge 1

Digltal
Both customers and brands want access ta dgital — +
chganels that oifar on excallent expenence
Through aur digital elevation strategy we
are nvesting more than E100m to ¢lavate
our propasbion across our ratal channats
This mvestment wil buld on our core digitck
foundgpons, 1 support hutuie growth
includas contimyrg to improve the onling customet
eKpaence and coehully targstad investmanc

wn plattorms that support custainer service,
2ngogement aid data We ore olsa investing
digtal marketing to drjva sales growth

Dunng FY2Y, our gchigvernents meluded Liunng FY22, our priofties are to

sigruficamtly maroving the fueromer .
experience, customer service ond the
underlying platierm for cur digial busmess,
ratecting the cabical importones of a strong
\web presgnce during Cowd-12 relnied .

tackdawns; and

+ inhaducng our first digital Marketng
Dunng FY22, our prionoes are o

further invest n ur anline retarl capabilbias,
Rarticulurly on the hawry sde of the business,
Including our website, Customer tarvice ang
payment platforms

Brogramme, to SUPPort Brancig and sales

grewth

Reference Lo Puncipal Risks,
see page 3

Physical Dunng FY21, o acruevements includea
The continual elevation of our physicol store estote
15 a fundamental part of aur stigtegy to Mmake

tham deshnobions £ustamars want to corme to and.
whare brand oviars wont ther preducts 1o be

seen, Wa do this by raling out slevated stores and  +
by alevating exsting stores. To dive ef
1N runming our skore etate, we will continue to
davelop aur operating model and introduce new  #
store technology We will alsa consider strategic
arquiskans that wdd grtrociive locabons to the

stofa estals

NG to ppen new concept stores, . roll out new elevated stores, Ncluging Mew
concepts such as foad Gid beverage and
buauty for Flannsls,

devalop the fotest iterations of ow wevcted
stevm concepts,

pragress the angamg elevotion of our exsting
store portfuhe, and

selectively apen elevated stores in Curope.
with a facus on the Sports Drect and USC
fasrins

Dunng FY22. aur phonties are ta

th Portsinowh ohd & new Frasers store in
Walverharmaton .

Drect store on Oxkord Street, London whieh  »
agened to grest prolesm in une 2071, and
acqunng the trode und ossets of OW Spants, *
complementing cur existing gym and fitness
chub portfala

fefurence ta Pancipol Risks.
se¢ puge ¥

Enakiar

We nged to hava talented peapie wha wil
enable us 10 succead, supported by frawng that
empowers theim ko ocheve. To sktract new talent,
we will canlinue ko develop our emplayer brand,
whila lurther improwing internak communicelian to
drive engogement with axistng collenguss,

We will also conbimue o invest i Gur systems ond
autemation to enhance efhciency, and in aur doto

During FY21, our achievenants included

+ maxing significont frogrisss with how we + roll out our new performance reviews acrass.
atiract, anguge ond develop talent g the husiness, 9o |ive with the LMS, and recrut
definng our core values, weltoming 27 the next ntake far the Ehevelion Progearmime,
new pecple « gur commercio} departmant e 16 ICreasd OUtGULIon, 16 suppar
through the Frasers Group Ebvatio ment n sur digital business nnd .
Bragramme, snloduring the Fearless restacking our physical stores us quickly Bnd
WM bonus scherme und Fearless Focus. eflectively as possble,
partormunce raviews, ond developing a new  * continue onboording praducts enko €01 and

capabilities, s we can make doto-diiven decisions Isorning managament system {LMS), © coptyre customer dma and inst
wherever possible, + Huther invasting n nuemak@n, i perticuiar grawh i our digiel business, digiol
ikment for eut digital Buswess, markating ang tha roll-oyt of our toyolty
pragramme
»  enhonaing data shancg witir supphers

through electronic data interehange IEDI, Rularenca to i Risks,

improwing management of stock ond e page 31

streamliming supplier poyment processas
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board manages the Group's performance by reviewing o number of key perfarmance indicators
[KPls}. The KPIs are discussed in this Chief Executive’s Report and Business Review, the Financial
Review, the Environment section ond the "Our People” section. The table below summarises the

Group's KPIs,
53 marks anied 52 wasks anded

15 apal 1071 26 Api 1020 28 ApHl 2018
(3rO UL revemn e £3,6253m [32574m £3,/01 9
Underlying EBITDA £330 Bm €362 im [2687 B
GroUp gross murgen 428% A2 8%
Underlyng biosic 2nmings per snore 1hp 176
Unoerlying free cosh flow £427 Brn £263 Im {2723
Net dept ' E248Ym £3660m 378 5m
NON-FINAHCIAL KPIS
~umber of retod stores 1547 1524 S&g
worklarce turngvet " me% 2B &% F30%
Prckuging recycling L1564 tonnes 12,358 tonnes 12807 tannes

The methed for calc

M) The methed for caiculotug Net debt is ser out us the
L] Extluding assogintes and stores m the Baltic states
tascios Inchudes GAME ond Sof0 com wontessions
Cardponrd and pastic recycling

The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying basic. EPS and underlying free cash
flow provide further useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance

of the business in addition to the reported
nurabers and are consistent with how business
performance has been measured internally.
They are nok recognised profit measures under
iFRS and may not be directly comparable with
“adjusted” performance measures used by other
companies, See Glossary for further information
on the Group’s Alternative Performance
Measures. i

Management will, from FY22, change our
main reperting. KPl fram underlying EBITDA to
adjusted profit befare tax (PBT). Frarm FY22,
the Group will therefore no longer report
underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PET is reported
profit befare tax less the effects of exceptional
items, unhedged foreign exchange (FX), gains
and losses on strategic investments and share
scheme charges.

i Foe coleutabing underlying basic eqemings per share s sat out.
Underlying free cash Hiow s delned ot opereting cosh flow atter working capital and pre IFRS 16, mode up Gf undetlying EBITDA plus reglised
exchange gains and (osses, fess corponation tax pord Frtier dgto) onthis calculution can be found in the Financial Review

ncial Review
trade under fascigs omer thon SPORTLANE or SPORTSDIRECT com and ctlier nu

g underlying EBITUA i set out in Mot 4 and the Glossary -

KNote 15

Management has taken this decision for the
fallowing reasons:

With the continued significant investment
in and rol! out of our elevation strategy
an both the physical and digita) fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amartisation to both the Board and

our stakeholders in terms of asses
performance has grown.

g

Our understanding from o number of
financial sectors, including the ban
sector, is thot IFRS16 is becoming an

increasingly important consideration,

With this new measure, we are trying

to align with the Financial Reporting
Council's thematic standpoint with regard
to ‘alternative performance measures' as
far as possible, whilst retaining o degree
of interpretation given that factors
autside of our contrel, such os FX and
strategic invastments movements which
are exceptionally difficult to forecast,
particularly months in advance.

Adjusted PBT for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021 was a loss of £53.7m. See Glossary for
recanciliation to reported PET.

‘

Frnted un Steinbers 100™ Reeycled and Carbon Cap
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Group revenue

The Board considers that this measurement is a
key indicator of the Group's growth.

Underlying EBITDA -

Underlying EBITDA shows how well the Group is
managing its trading and operational efficiency
and therefore the overall trading performance
of the Graup.

Group gross margin

The Board considers that this measurement is a
key indicctor of the Group's trading profitability.

Underlying basic earnings per share (EPS}

Underlying basic EPS is a measure of adjusted
total sharehotder return and ultimately an
indicotor to our shareholders of the success of
our elevation strategy.

Underlying free cash low

Underlying free cash flow is considered an
important indicator for the Business of the
tash avoiloble for investment in the elevation
strategy.

Net debt

Net debt is an indicator of both the Group's
investment in the elevation strategy and its
covenant headroom which is a key component
of the Group's geing concern considerations.

Number of retail stores

The Board considers that this measure is an
indicator of the Group's growth. The Group's
elevation strategy is replacing older stores and
often this can result in the closure of two or
three stores to be replaced by one larger new
generation store.

‘Workforce turnover

The Board considers that this mecsure is a key
indicator of the contentment of our people. For
more details refer to the retention section of the
"Our People” section of this report.
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Packaging recycling

The Board considers thot this measurement is
a key indicator of our impact and commitmant
to the best environmental practices. For more
details refer to the environment section of

this report.

wough the Woodland Trust. helping to croate new
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Performance Overview

Group revenue decreased by 8.4% to £3,625.3m
in the year. LUK Sports Retail decreased by
10.7% to £1,968 5m, Premium Lifestyle revenue
increased by 1.9% and European Retail
decreased by 11.8% to £615.2m. Rest of World
Retail revenue was £152.7m, down 12.3% and
revenue in the Wholesale & Licensing division
decreased by 4.3%. )

Group gross margin in the year was consistent
with the prior year with a small increase of

20 basis points from 42.0% to 42.2%. UK
Sports Retail margin increased 110 basis points
to 42.1% (FY20: 41.0%) largely due to the
continually improving product mix. Premium
Lifestyle's gross margin decreased by 340 basis
points from 48.3% to 44.9% iargely due to a
reduction in concession sales within House of
Fraser as a percentage of total sales which
have a higher gross margin. European Retail
gross margin increased 60 hasis points from
38.4% to 39.0% largely due to the continually
improving product mix. Rest of World Retail
margin decreased 250 basis points from 44.4%
to 41.9%, fargely due to the lower margin rate
in the US business which makes up a larger
proportion of the segment in FY21. Wholesale
& Licensing gross margin increased 310 basis
points to 44.0% (FY20: 40.9%), largely due to
UK wholesale.

Sronp opereling vosts deceesed 'y 197% %
£1140,0m {FY20: £1,353.0m), largely driven by
savings in store costs during the lockdowns as
¢ result of the Covid-12 pandemic, Government
support schemaes such as CJRS [Coronavirus
Job Retention Scheme) and business rates relief
particularly in House of Fraser. The amount
received by the Group in the period in regard
to the CIRS [or equivalent where received

in non-UK territaries] was approx. £80m.

The amount of business rates relief received

by the Group in the period (or equivalent
where received in non-UK territories) was
approx. £97.5m. See the Financial Review

Eritish woodlind across the UK

for a reconciliation of Group operating costs
to selling, distribution and administrative
expenses,

As a result, Group underlying EBITDA for the
year was up 29.4% to £390.8m (FY20: £302.1m}.
Excluding acquisitions and on a currency
neutral basis, underlying EBITDA increased
16.9%. UK Sports Retail underlying EBITDA
was £279.2m up from £227.4m in FY20, while
Premium Lifestyle underlying EBITDA was
£53.9m, up from E£4.5m in FY20. Eurcpean
Retail underlying EBITDA was £4.1m, down from
£51.8m in FY20. Rest of World Retaii underlying
EBITDA was £25.6m, up from @ loss of £6.8m

in FY20 and Whalesale & Licensing underlying
EBITDA increased to £28.0m from £25.2m.

There were property related impairments in
the period totalling £317.0m (FY20: £122.6m),
including £168.2m in relation to right of use
assets (FY20: £97.8m), £84.4m in relation to
freehold land and buildings (FY20: £nil), £63.8m
of other property, plant and equipment (FY20:
£24.8m) and £0.6m of investment properties
[FY20: £nil). Propesty related impairments have
been recagnised following a re-assessmant of
future expected cash flows largely driven by
anticipated future lockdowns as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic, the change in consumer
behaviour in moving from physical to online
shopping, the impact of Direct-To-Consumer
ond increasing costs as a resuit of Brexit.
Further detuails including sensitivity analysis is
_.._n_cnmai_”:izonmm. .

Depreciation and amortisation charges have

increased by 1.3% to £307.5m (FY20: £276.3m)
largely due to an increase in freehold lond and
buitdings depreciation, follewing the change in

- useful economic life estimate in the period. See

accounting policies for further details.
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Group underlying profit before tax " decreased
to £5.8m (FY20: £117.4m), largely due to the
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic including

the closure of retail stares, the associated
pravisioning and impairment and depreciation
and amortisation charges. Undertying basic EPS
for the yeor decreased by 204.9% to a loss of
17.0p (F¥20: profit of 16.2p}.

Within other comprehensive income, the Group's
hedging contracts decreased by £16.5m (FY20:
decreased by £18.7m) as a result of the fair value
movements in the period. With regard to the
Group's long-term financicl ossets, foir value
movements have resulted in a gain of £77.3m
{FY20: loss of £19.7m)} in the period.

The Group generated free cash flow during
the year of £427.8m, up from £263.1m in the
prior period, Net debt decreased by £117.1m to
£248.9m at period end. Spend en acquit
and capex, including Wigan Robin Retail Park
and warehouse qutomation, was offset by
continued strong cash generation in the core
business. Net debt currently stands at 0.5 times
reported EBITDA (FY20: 0.7 times).

3] Underlying prefit before taxation excludes the effects of IFRS 16,

reahted forein exchange gams / losss in seling and

ndministration casts, exceptianal ileemns, gnd thy profit £ Joss on
dispasal of subsidinfigs, strotegue investments and properties

FRASERS GROUP

REVIEW BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

UK Sports Retail

The UK Sports Retail segment includes all of the Group's sports retail and USC stare operations in the
UK {inciuding Nerthern irelond), ol of the Group's sports online businesses (excluding Bob's Stores,
Eastern Mountain Sports, Baltics and Malaysia), the Group's gyms, Evans Cycles, GAME UK stores and
enline operations and the Group's Shirebrock campus operations, UK Sports Retail is the main driver
of the Group and accounts for 54 3% (FY20: 55.7%) of Group revenue. ’

52 weks snded 22 weake wnded

25 Apal 201 26 Aprik 2020

iCm {Em)

UK Sports Retal Revenug 13685 22083
Cost of Soles 92 AECLL]
Gross Prolit 8293 9032
Grass Muigin % az1 4o

Revenue decregsed 10.7% to £1968 5m. Excluding acquisitions, revenue fell 14.6%. This was largely
due to the temperary store closures in the UK caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, partially offset by
growth in our online business and pent up demand on store reopening.

UK Sports Retail gross margin increased to 42.1% (FY20: 41.0%), largely due to the continually
improving product mix, Excluding acquisitions gross margin increased to 45.0% [FY20: 43.5%).

Operating expenses decreased by 16.8% to £54B.7m largely driven by savings in store costs during
the store closure periods as o result of the Covid-19 pandemic. Excluding acquisitiens, operating
expenses decreased by 20.2% largely driven by savings in store costs and Government support
schemes during lockdowns as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Underlying EBITDA for UK Sports Retail was E279.Zm (FY2Q: £227.4mj, an increase of 22.8% for the
year, lorgely due to the strong reopening of stores after lockdowns, growth in our online business and
improved operating efficiencies,

UK Sports Retail Store Portfolio®”

15 April 2011 2% Aprd 1010

Enghutg 374 387
Scotlan ¥ I
wales Ell FL]
Narthern frafand kil 7
Isle ot wan . 1 i
usC 5 2/
Evons Cycles a8 56
GAME Uk 7 247
TOTAL, 208 i
Opanad, 93 25
Closea 158} 153
Acquired a3 756
Arwalsqit] apprax. 6 5m appros 6 3m

" Tobly excludes the Group's siandione Gyms

2] The GAME UK store numibers include 21 cancessions [F Y20 3) operating within Sports Direct fascwa stores ond does not include BECONG arenas

wl agress tha UK
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FRASERS GROQUP

Premium Lifestyle

Premium Lifestyle consists of Flannels, Cruise, van mildert, House of Fraser, Jack Wills and Sofa.com
Fascia stores and corresponding web sales,

.

32 wueks ended 32 woaks snalnd

25 Apdf 2021 26 Apell 2020

iEm) {Em)

C rass Transaction Yalus {GTV) ! 7BE1 9031

Prgmum Lifestyle Revenue 7356 T30

Cost of salas 1405 3) (37341

Gross Prollt 3303 1486

G oss Margin % 445 483
i} GTV baing gioss snlet net of VAT, discounts and returns and grow sales where the Group acts as agent

Pramium Lifestyle sales increased by 1.9% to £735.6m (FY20: £722.0m), mostly due to new Flannels
stores and increased web sales. Excluding acquititions, sales increased 1.4%. The Premium Lifestyle
gross margin for the year decreased by 340 basis points to 449% {FY20: 48.3%} largely dus a
reduction in concession sates within House of Fraser as a percentage of total sales which have a

higher gross margin.

‘Premium Lifestyle operating costs decreased by 20.1% to £275.1m (FY20: £344.1m) largely driven

by savings in store costs during the store closure periods as o result of the Covid-19 pandemic and
Government support schemes such as business rates relief particularly in House of Fraser. As a result,
underlying EBITDA improved from £4.5m in FY20 to £53.9m in the year, largely due to Flannels store
ogpenings, growth in cur online business, continued operating efficiencies and business rates relief

perticutarly in House of Fraser.

Premium Lifestyle Store Portfolio

5 Apritaca

Flaels

41

Cruse

5

wan rnddet

1

Jacs willy

&0

Hou sa of Fraser / Frosers

Sofacom"

18Montiose

Gorment Quarter

Peyche

™

Opa-ed

10

Acquired

uz

Clos ad

17

142

Aracisq it}

approx 4 2m

approx_4 Sin

m Sola.corm stora numbers iInclude 17 concassions [FY20

15

|

12 coneessior 5] operalpg wilhin Hause ol Fraser lusaia stores

European Retail

The Eurcpean Retail division ineludes the Group's sports retail store management and operations

in Europe, including the Group's European distribution centres in Belgium and Austrig, stores and
corresponding web business in the Baltic regions and GAME S$pain stores and corresponding web
business.

52 waskuonded S wesin spded

8 April i0n 28 Aprll 2020

(Em} (Em)

European Retail Revenua 6152 6377
Cost of Sales (37551 1425 B]
Grass Prght 2397 479
Gross Prafit % 350 ELE)

Revenue decreased 11.8% to £615.2m. On a currency neutral basis and excluding acquisitions,
European Retail revenue decreased by 20.5% largely due to the temporary store closures caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic.

Europecn Retall gross margin increased to 39.0% (FY20: 38.4%) largely due to the continually
improving praduct mix. Excluding dequisitions and on a currency neutral basis, margin is ug 100 basis
points to 46 .3%. .

Operating expenses increased by 10.2% to £238.1m (FY20: £216.1m). Excluding acquisitions and on a
currency neutral basis operating costs increased by 9.3% largely due to property related provisions

including prior year releases as a result of disposals. As a result, underlying EBITDA decreased 92.1%
to £4.1m.

All of the following stores are operated by companies wholly owned by the Group, except Estonia,
Latvia and Lithuania where the Group owns 60.0%.

Printed on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carben Caplured through the Woodland Trust, helping to creale new British woodland across the UK
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European Retail Store Portfolio ™ * Rest Of World Retail
25 apsil 7921 26 April 1070 Rest of World Retail includes sports stores in Malaysia trading under the SPORTS DIRECT fascia,
GAME Spein 236 a6t retail storesin the US trading under Bob's Stores and Eastern Mountain Sports and their online
Repubhc of ireland- S [ businesses. In Malaysia the Group has 33 stores which are 51.0% owned by the Group.
Balgum 34 35 ‘
Estomo’ 2 5 52 waek: d
25 Apeil 2021 28 Apei 020
Ausing 20 22
{Em} Em)
Fortugal 20 El
Rest of wordd Revenue 1527 1742
Latwa' 17 18
B Cast of sales |88 7} 15691
L ithuania” 8 19 -

g - ; . 3ross Praht G401 71
Pk Gross Margin 9% s 244
Slavenia 13 K
Crech Reputiic 2 ] Rest of World Retail sales were £152.7m for the year. Gross margih was 41.9%, down from 44.4%

i Hungary 8 s in the prior year, largely due to the lower margin rate in the US business which makes up o larger
Cyoms 5 ) proportion of the segment in FY21. Underlying EBITDA was £25.6m, from a loss of £6.8m in FY20. This
foland s 5 wos fargely due to operating efficiencies in the US business.

Slovakio 5 5 .

france 4 4 Rest of World Retail Store Portfolio

Germony 2 2

Luxermbiourg 2 2 18 April 2021 36 Apri 1020

Spain 2 1 Mualoysin B 3 kil

lesland . B 1 1 Bobys Stores 7 21

TOTAL £46 m Eustarn Moshtan Sparls M bl m
= L] 13

pened 1 Arsutsq it approx 13m Cpprox 1 3m

Closed . 138)

Acquired Wholesale & Licansing

Area faoq b upprox 36m approx 40 . 3 i . )

- ; The portfolio of Group brands includes a wide varigty of world-fameus sport and lifestyle brands.
m Ineludes snly stares with SPORTSDIREC Trom ond SPQRTLANG fuscigs

{1l Enehiding Mestons lason stores The Group's Sports Retail division sells products under these bronds in its stores, and the Wholesale .
: & Licensing division sells the brands through its wholesale and licensing activities. The Wholesale
& Licensing division continues ta sponsor a variety of prestigious events and retains o variety of

globally recognised celebrities ond sporting professionals as brand ambassadors. -
. 52 wasks ended 52 wewks #hded
25 Aped) 2001 28 April 2020
{Eml (Em)
Wholesale s 134 4
Licensing 28 258
. Tatal Whaolescle £ Licencing Revernuas 153.3 140.3
Cost of Sules (83 B (241
Gross Prott 675 A55
Grass Margin % 441 405

Whoalesale & Licensing total revenue decreased by 4.3% fo E153.3m [FY20; £160.2m).

Wholesale revenues were down 2.2% to £131.5m {FY20: £134.4m), due to reductions in UK wholesale
octivity offset by an increase in the US. Total gross margin increased by 320 basis points to 44.1%
(FY20: 40.9%). Wholesole gross margins increased 430 basis points to 33.6% (FY20: 29.5%), largely
due to UK wholesale.

Licensing revenues in the year were down 15.5% to £21.8m (FY20: £258m).

Operating costs decreased by 2.2% to £39.4m [FY20: £40.3m). As a result, underlying EBITDA
increased by 11.1% to £28.0m (FY20: £25.2m).
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FRASERS GROUP

PROPERTY REVIEW

The store elevation program remains a key
focus point for the Group across all fascias and
tarritories, For Sports Direct, the new stores
continue to push boundaries as demonstrated
ky the opening of the new Portsmouth Sports
Cirect store incorporating o USC, Evans and
Game, as well as a Belong gaming arena.
Further to this, shortly after financial year end
the newly refurbished London, Oxford Streat
flagship opened featuring world ciass design
ircorporating new activation spaces, téchnology
ond features including a first in kind bra fitting
studio, In Europe, the portfolio of six Toys R Us
properties acquired during FY20 in Spain have
now been developed launching as elevated
Sports Direct stores in the sume format as the
UK.

A significant milestone for the Group was
delivering the new Frasers concept with the
opening of Frasers Wolverhampton, another
example of the continued store elevation
programme. The opening of such stores
demonstrates the Group's commitment to

physical retoil and ability to create genuine retaii

destinations.

Flannels remains an important fascia for the
Group. The key focus has been the development
of the Regional Flagship concept intreducing
new categories for the fascia such as beauty,
food & beverage and active. Terms have

been agreed to launch this new cancept at
Meadowhalil Shopping Centre which is set to
open in the coming financial year. Further sites
for this concept are also due to open at Fosse
Pak in Leicester and Liverpool city centre.

Another notable event in FY21 was the
acquisition of 42 DW Stores. The acquisition
enhanced the Group's gym and UK Sports Retail
estate. A refurbishrment and rebranding exercise
commenced shortly after acquisition and will
continue into the coming financial year.

The primary objective for the estate continues
to be the transition to turnover based rents.
The Group is highly acquisitive across foscias
and with co-operative londiords can offer a
portfolio of new store deals providing a variety

17

of retail offerings. The Group is prepared to sign
long term leasas for those landlords willing to
co-invest in the elevated store concepts,

With leasehold activity across the Group
expected to increase over the coming year, the
ely to apply with freehold acquisitions

coupled with the Group's growing requirement
for retail space.

UK RETAIL STORE PORTFOLIO

Sports Stores in the UK (including
Northern Irelond):

*  The Group is currently operating from 394
stores in England, 39 in Scotland, 31 in Wales
and 21in Northern lrelond. There were 14
openings and 20 closures for Sports Direct
fascia stores over the period. 42 stores were
acguired as pad of the acquisition of DW
Sports comprising a number of ‘combined’
sites with retail and leisure. Six of the store
ciosures were sites acquired as part of this
acquisition where agreements could not
be reached with landlords resulting in 33
'combined’ and 3 stand-alone Sports Direct
stores as additions in the period. 13 of the
remaining 14-«closures occurred due to
reloeations into elevated multi-fascia stares,

*  Noteworthy openings include Portsmouth,
Birmingham Fort, Scunthorpe and Wrexham
where existing Sports Direct stores were
closed to relocate into an elevated multi-
format store.

+ Al new store openings include o USC lifestyle
offering as part of the elevated stare model
across alf formats. As mentioned previously,
both « GAME and Evans Cycles concept has
been developed to form part of the elevated
Sports Direct format in selected locations.
Over the coming financial period there will
be a push towards mare multi-fascia store
openings incorporating each of these fascias.

. Evons Cycles

» There are currently 48 Evans Cycle stores
operating, a reduction of two stores over
the period. During FY21 the Evans Cycles
concept was first introduced as a store-in-
store area in our latest Portsmouth multi-
fascia store alongside Sports Direct, USC,
Gume & Belong. This concept will continue
to be developed to roll out intc selected
future store openings,

GAME UK

*  Over the period, the relocation programme
moving Game into selected Sports Direct
stores was accelerated. Coupled with the
new Sports Direct store openings featuring
on area for Gome, the overall number of
stores for the UK estate increased to 247
having closed 67 and opening 72 {net
increase of 5 stores).

*  The Belong gaming arenas ore building
their presence across the UK featuring in a
number of the new Sports Direct openings
such as Portsmouth.

PREMIUM LIFESTYLE STORE
PORTFOLIO

Flannels, Cruise and Van Mildert

»  Across Flannels, Cruise and van mildert
during FY21 there were 6 openings and 2
closures, resulting in a net increase of 4
stores. Combining these fascias, the total
estate amaunts to 47 stores.

*  Key epenings for Flanneis include Rushden
Lakes, Kingston Upon Thomes and
Wolverhampten. The Glasgow Cruise
store was also extensively refurbished end
expanded.

= A major area of development has been
the Flannels Regional Flagship concept,
incorporating new categories such as
beauty, food & beverage ond active. The
first regional ffagship to open will be
Flannels Meadowhall which will extend
to approximately 55,000 sqft with further
locations to follow over the coming financial
year including Fosse Park in Leicester and
Liverpool city centre.

Prmted on Stenbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Batish woodlang across the UK

House of Fraser

« At the end of FY21 there were 43 House of
Fraser steres trading, a net decrease of 5
stores after 6 closures and 1 opening.

* A key highlight was the delivery of the new
'Frasers’ store concept at Wolverhampton,
This new store showcases the elevated
format and what can be provided upon
agreeing appropriate new long term lease
deals.

*  Much of the estate continues to remain
on short term Fflexible leases. Whilst
negotiations are ongeing to tronsition stores
to long term leases it is anticipated that
there will be further closures, particularly
as business rates come back into effect in
FY22,

*  However following the demise of major
high street retail chains we envisage new
location opportunities to come to fruition
over the coming financial period, albeit
again punitive business rates ot many of
these locations put the viability of doing
these lease deals in doubt.

Juck Wills

*  Over FY21there were 7 store closures and no
openings reducing the estate to 60 stores,
We continue to negotiate with landlords te
move to long term leases.

* A new store concept is under development
with the ambition to open in new key
markets across the UK. The new concept is
intended to be finalised over FY22.

Forecast Openings UK FY22

+  Qver FY2, despite the challenges faced
refating to the Covid-19 pandemic the
Group continued the elevated store roll
out programme. For the coming financiol
year the Group's ambition is to increase
the new store activity across foascias, with
a particular focus on Sports Direct and
Flannels. Key new stores include the new
Flannels Regional Flagships along with new
Sports Direct flagships such as Birmingham
city centre. However, it should be noted that
program risk remains relating to factors
linked to the Covid-19 pandemic.
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EUROPEAN RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO

Republic of Ireland (ROI}

.

Over FY21 the remaining Heatons store
conversions to include Sports Direct were
campleted.

There was one opening in the year, with 32
stores at the period end. Shortly ofter the
year end a new store in Galtway opened, a
first for the Group in that market.

The intention for the coming financial year
is to increase the store estate across ROI,
this has been bolstered by the increasing
number of new location opportunities now
being presented. In certain lecations other
Group fascias not currently trading in the
ROI are being considered.

Continental Europe

+ The Group continues to operate sports
stores in 18 couritrigs in continental Europe.

Prnled on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Caplurad throunh the Wao

21 Sports retail stores in Europe, excluding
Republic of Ireland (plus 26 non-core,
speciality and outlets).

Total sq.ft. of approximately 2.7m of

all sports fascias in Europe (including
Sportland, Lillywhites, Sportsworld etc).
Closed 25 GAME stores in Spain during the
period us part of ratignalising the estate
and removing duplication finishing the
period on 236 stores. -

Twelve openings in four different countries,
three of which were refocations,

10 closures in seven different ¢countries with
a mixture of closing non-peifarming stores
and closures linked to relocations. The 1
Awustrian store closure was due to a sale of
our freehald property in Salzburg.

During the period 8 Sports Direct stores
incorporating a USC were opened during
the period totalling 117,165 sq ft of retail
space. § of these were freeholds purchased
in FY20 that have been refurbished and
opened os elevated Sports Direct stores.

A turther freehold store opened in Malaga
shortly after FY21. ’

As is the case in the UK, the Group is firmiy
cormmitted to the rollout of elevated stores
ocross Europe. Due to the accelerated shift
to online experienced across Europe due to
the eHects of the Covid-19 pandemic and a
nurnber of retailers reducing their portfolio
size, The Group believes it can capitalise
on these market conditions to efficiently
expand our physicol estote, focusing on
capital city and flagship opportunities.

REST OF WORLD RETAIL
STORE PORTFOLIO

33 stores in Malaysia with three openings
and one closute in FY21, The closure was a
Tesco based store leaving us with three as
we continue to relocate our stores to higher
performance locations.

The Malaysian elevation and expansion

Frechold / Long L hold Property Purch

Over FY21a total of 14 properties were
acquired across the UK totalling £84.3m.
The mast significant purchase was Robin
Retail Park in Wigan for £41.8m. No
properties were acquired in Europe or RoW.

Disposal of property assets continues to be
standard practice for the Group. During the
period 4 disposals completed in the UK and
3 disposals completed in the EU,

Far the upcoming financicl period it is
anticipated that there will be an increase
in acquisition activity as we capitalise on
favourable market conditions coupled with

_ the groups growing requirament for retail

space. Disposals will continue as has been
the case in previous financial years.

drive continues, with 2 new elevated stores Mike Ashley
opened in the period. We now have a total Chief Executive
of seven elevated stores in the region in line

with UK standards and four stores with a 5 August 2021

USC retail orea,

As a major milestone our flagship ASEAN
HQ opened in FY21 in the Sunwoy Pyrarmid
shopping centre with the adjoining retail
store opening shortly,

43 stores in the USA, following two closures
and one opening in FY21.

sodiand across the UK

FRASERS GROUP
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FRASERS GROUP

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Financial Statements for the Group for the 32 weeks ended 25 April 2021 are presented in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS).

Foreign Exchange And Traasury

The Group reports its results in GBP but trades
internationally and is therefore exposed to
currency fluctuations on currency cash flows
in various ways. These include purchasing

USD inventory purchases. This introduces a
level of certainty into the Group's planning and
forecasting process. Management has reviewed
detailed forecasts and the growth assumptions
within them and is satisfied that the forecasts
meet the criteria as being highly probable

Summory Of Results inventory from cverseas suppliers, making forecast transactions.
sales in currencies other than GBP and holding
2 Hob_ua_!uﬂ.h uuu_..-o“.i.mumn overseas assets in other currencies. The Board As at 25 April 2021 and as detailed in note 29¢
. (el ) mitigate the cosh flow risks associated with the Group had the following forward contracts
Ravenue 24751 19574 these fluctuations with the careful use of that qualified for hedge nccounting under
Reperted EBITDA 5365 5510 currency hedging using forward contracts and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, meaning that
Undertylng EBITDA 1908 3021 other derivative financial instruments. fluctuations in the vaolue of the contracts before
Reported profit befors tax 8% 1438 . maturity are recognised in the Hedging Reserve
Undlerlying profit bafore tax EL] w4 The Group uses mogoﬂ_ no:ﬂonwm that qualify through Other Comprehensive Income. After
Earnings per share [£PS| Pance e shars Pance pr shars for hedge accounting in two main ways - to maturity, the sales and purchases are then
Reported basic EPS 115 5} 185 hedge highly prebable EUR sales income and velued at the hedge rate.
Undariying bosic EPS. (201 %2
. ) ’ ; . . . . Surramsy Hed imet & ahe Tieni Rates
EBITDA is earnings before investment income and investment costs, finance income and finance ping saein iiuidd e
. e . . . . . . Ush / GRP LUSE Inventaty purchoses USD 120m F¥22 - FY23 136 - 141
costs, tax, depreciation, amortisation and impairment. it includes the Group's share of losses from 5D/ EUR T — 50 o pi— Py
associated undertakings and joint ventures. Underiying EBITDA is calculated as EBITDA before the EUR/GER e sates FUR 740 P I

effects of IFRS 16, realised foreign exchange gairs / losses in selling and admiristration costs, profit /

loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic investments and properties.

The Group also uses currency options, swaps and spots for more flexibility against cash flows
that are less than highly probable and therefore do not qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS9
Financial Instruments. The fair value movements before maturity are recognised in the Income

Group Operating Costs
Statement. :
52 waeks snded 52 washt enuded i i
15 April 1021 26 April 2020 The Group has the following currency options and unhedged forwards:
fem iEm
Group oparating costs 11400 12530 Currency Expactad use Cumeney valus Timing ' Rates
Depraaanon and amotisation 22514 145 3 EUR / GBP Eura sales EUR 380m FY23 0.95
Irtangible stpantinant 59 . o L ) . A . .
_Qmﬂ%_“;a.wa._‘ oy e The Group is proactive in managing its currency Given the potential impact of commeodity prices
oS 16 crepaeat ol arn 7 requirements. The Treasury team works closely on raw material costs, the Group may hedge
P ; P o with senior rianagement to understand the certain input costs, including cotton, crude oit
IFRS 16 raversl of oriarous lvase provisin 1661 a5 Group's plans and forecasts, ond discusses and and electricity.
Realissd FX lassfigaln} 263 aw understands appropriate financial products
Operaling meoma 68 5 with various financial institutions, including
SELLING, DISTRIBUTION AND ADMINISTRATION COSTS txise 14013 those within the Group Revolving Credit

Group cperating costs for the purposes of management reporting:

intangible assets and reclised FX gains and losses; and
ii. Includes other operating income.

19

led on Stembeis 100° Recycled and Cartbon Caplued through the Woodland Trust

i. Excludes depreciation, amortisation and impairments of property, plant and equipment,

Facility {RCF). This information is then used to
implement suitable currency products to align
with the Group's strategy.

Regular reviews of the hedging performance
are performed by the Treasury tear alengside
senior management to ensure the continued
appropriateness of the currency hedging in
place, and where suitable, esther implementing
additional strategies and / or restructure
existing approaches in conjunction with our
financial institution partners.

g o create new Brtsh woodland across the UK
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Taxation

The effective tax rate on profit before tax in FY21 was 1017.6% (FY20: 29.6%). This reflects the impact
-of the increase in property impairments and disallowable depreciation,

Earnings
52 wasks anded 52wyake endud
3 apelt 2041 36 4pri 3030 Change (%}
Raported EPS (Basic) (16.5] 185 NR9 21
Underlying EPS [Basic] {170} ¥ 20ay9|
Waighted qvarage number o shares {actual) 501955281 508626850
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by Strategic Investments

dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary
sharehoiders by the weighted average number
of ardinary shares outstanding during the
financial period. Shares held in Treasury and
the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from
this figure.

‘The Underhuing basic EPS reflects the underlying perfarmanca

of the buriness compared with 1he pror perlod ond 15 calculotsd

wsing the wesghted avercga numbar of shares, ! is not ¢ recognised

profit measure under 1FRS and may nat be directly comparable with

*adjusted” parlomaance meusures used by okher Companies. Fi
details con be found in the Glossary

Dividends

The Board has decided not to pay a final
dividend in relation to FY21{FY20 £nit}.

The Board remains of the opinion that it is

in the best interests of the Group and its
shareholders to praserve financial flexibility and
facilitate future investments and other growth
opportunities. The payment of dividends
remains under review,

Cupital Expenditure

During the period, gross capital expenditure
[excluding ¥FRS 16) ameounted to £219.4m (FY20:
£323.5m), which included £84.3m on freehold
properties (FY20; E177.2m) and £4B.5m on
warehouse automation (FY20: £31.1m).

20

, Recycled and Carbon Capturad throtkah the Woodiand Trost

The Group continues to hold various strategic
investments as detalled in Note 20, In addition
the Group dlso holds indirect strategic
investments within contracts for difference and
options.

-The foir values of the contracts for difference

and options are recognised in Derivative
Financial Assets or Liabilities on the Group
Balance Sheet, with the movement in fair value
recorded in the Income Statement.

Acquisitions

On 22 August 2020, the Group ocquired
the trade and assets of DW Sports for cash .

. consideration of £37.0m which is deemed to

be the fair value of the consideration. The
acquisition complements the Group's existing
gym and fitness club portfolio ond is consistent
with the Group's elevation strategy. Goodwill
represents the premium associoted with
advantageous site locations, potentiat growth
oppottunities offered by economies of scale,
and the assembled workforce. The fair value
adjustment to property, plant and equipment
relotes to the management’s assessment of the
price that would be poid for the acquired assets
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the acquisition date. The letses
were ncquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or Jease liability
has been recognised on acquisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited,

the entire share capital of GRMNT Limited,
and the trade and assets of 18 Montrose for
consideration of £2.7m. These acquisitions
will provite increased product offerings in

FRASERS GROUP

the Presrium Lifestyle division. The fajr vatue
adjustment te preperty, plant and equipment
relotes o the recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease fiabil

Reluted Parties

MM Prop Consultoncy Limited, a company
owned and controiled by Michael Murray, who
is 0 member of key management personnel
as per iAS 24, continues ta provide property
consultancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is primarily tasked with
finding and negotiating the acquisition of new
sites in the UK, Europe and Rest of the World
for both our larger format stores and our
combined retail and gym units. i aise provides
advice to the Company's in-house property
team in reiation to existing sites in the UK,
Europe and Rest of the World.

In the year oll properties are assessed. Those
that are considered by the Group's independent
Non-executive Directors to have completed
development and be eligible for review at the
year-end are assessed and if required valued by
an independent valuer who confirms the value
created by MM Prop Consuitancy Limited. The
Group's independent Non-executive Directors
then review and agree the valug created and
have full discretion to approve a payment to
MM Prop Consultancy Limited of up to 25% of
the value created. There is a current pipeline of

properties that may be eligible to be assessed
both positively and negatively by the Group's
Non-executive Directors in future years.

In the current year £2.5m has been geerued
based on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through contract exchange or completion

of sale [F¥20 - £nil provided and f£nil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was last paid
in relation to FY19). This is payable ta MM
Prop Consultancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the pericd the Group entered inte an
agreement with M.P.M Elevation Limited, a
company owned and cantrolled by Michae!
Murray in relation to elevation strategy services.
M.P.M Elevation Limited will be paid an annual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services.

Other refated parties are disclosed in note 34,
Cash Flow And Net Debt

Net debt decreased by £1417.1m from £366.0m
at 26 April 2020 to £248.9m at 25 April

2021. interest on bank Yoans and overdrafts
decreased to £71.2m {FY20: £17.8m] largely due
to reduced usage of the RCF in the period.

The analysis of net debt at 25 April 2021 and at 26 April 2020 wos os follows:

25 apdl 2011 26 Ape 2020

fmi- em}

Cosh and cash equivatents 4570 5340
Boriowings 11058 1900.0}
NET DEBT (2483} 1366.0)

The Group's Working Capital Facibity is £913.5m (FY20: £913.5m|. It is available until November
2021 and is not secured ogainst any of the Group's assets. E847.5m of the facility is due to expire in

November 2022,

The Group ¢ontinues to operate weldl within its banking cavenants and the Board remains
comfortable with the Group's available headroom. Note: due to the timing of payroll and supplier
payments, net debt at calendar period end 30 April 2021 wos opproximately £350.0m {FY20:

approximately £408.0m).

Vevoordiand across the UK
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CASHFLOW
Total movement is as follows:
52 wasks snded 32 woshs anded
15 Aprll 2020 8 Apell 2020
iEm)™ (Cm)
Underlying EBITOA 508 2021
Realisad FX {loss}/ gain 1263) 348
Taxes poid 1553 {4850
Movarmant In inventary 943 1120 8}
Worling caprtol ond other 233 955
UNDERLYING FREE CASH FLOW AFTER WORKING CAFITAL ans 28118
Purchose of own shares 143 143 91
Owidand paid te non-contralling intarssk o9
Purchese of subsidionegs, net of cash acquired (354) (731
Purchase at listed investmants. MIn (24 B}
Purchiaes af infangibias noy -
Puschase of assocates. 56l
Proceeds en disposal of investinants ond denvatives 551 49
Pioceeds on disposol of mtongibles 5
Het capital expand vd 8) hro el
Exchange movemant on cesh balances 153 50
Investmant incorme received 05 o4
Fingnce mcome received less Nnance casks peid a8 [CE]
DECREASE [N NET DERT ma 113
m This table excludes the impact of FRSIE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Significant balance sheet items are shown below.
23 April 2021 16 April 1030
(L] 1Em)
Property, plant and equipment 8.2 10419
Right of use assats 497 3067
Lang-term financial assats 2633 218
Inventary 10966 11582
Trade and other racavables 1 5485 4142
Provisions 136120 133601
Trade and other pryobles 1646 3} {602 5]
Leasa hab 7227 16241]

The majority of the decrease in property, plant and equipment relates to the impairments of freehold
land and bwitding and plant and equipment due t3 the Covid-19 pandemiic and facters such as

changes in consumer behaviour.

IFRS 16 right of use assets have decreosed largely due to impairments. Lease liabi
increased largely due to remeasurements during the period.

es have

Long-term financial assets have increased during -he period due to the odditions of Hugo Boss AG

and Mulberry Group plc.

Inventory has decreased largely due to a reduction in inventories held within the Rest of World

segment,
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Receivables includes o £118.3m reimbursement asset in relation to the Group's ongoing non-UK
tax enquiries {FY20: £118.3m) and £131.0m relating to deposits in respect of derivative financial
instruments (FY20: £71.3m) with the increase mainly relating to Hugo Boss.

Provisions hove increased mainly due to an increase in property provisions as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic.

Payables have increcsed largely due to rent payments under negotiation as a result of the Covid-19
pondemic. '

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
Significant balance sheet items are shown below:
5 apel 2020 26 Apeil 2010
] . Em)
Investments 14943 12158
Debtors 1666 868
Creditors omaunts folling dus within one yaur ) 160%.0] 1501 5

Investments relates to investments in subsidiaries and long-term financial assets. The majority of the
increase relates to additions due to a reorganisation of our US businesses and purchases of physical
shares in Mulberry Group plc and Hugo Boss AG.

The majority of the movement in debtors relates to an increase in collateral to cover margin
requirements for derivative transoctions held with counterparties,

Creditors relotes to amounts owed to Group undertakings, the decrease relates to subsidiary
dividends declared during the period,
Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer

5 August 2021

a to create new Botish woodland across the UK
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The takle below sets out where the information required by sections 474CA and 414CB of the

Companies Act 2006 can be found in this Annual Report.

Raquirement Lesaflen

Relsvant Rolicins

Enviranmuntol Motters ENVIRONMENT - pages 26 Lo 27

Envimnmental policy

HUMAN RESOURCES - page 21

Empoyeses STAFF INYOLYEMENT - page 62

stalf Hondhaok Emplayee baia
Privacy Statement
Aczeptobla Use Policy

Socval Marters® COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT - poge 75

SUPPLY CHAIN - poge 25

Human Rights MODERN SLAVERY ACT 2015 - poge 25

Anti-Slavery and Human Frofticking
Pohcy

ANTIBRIBERY 5 CORRUPTION - page 25

Anti-Bribery & Corrupnian policy WHISTLERLOWING - poge 75

Stotf Mandbook Anti-Bnibery &
Carruption poicy
Winstleblownrg Policy

Cade of Canduct / Supply Poliry

Business Model BUSINESS MOBEL - poge 1D

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES RELATING TO THE
Frneipol Risks and Business Actinty
VIARILITY STATEMENT - page 36

Risks Register ond Principel Risks

GROUFS BUSINESS - pages 30 16 36 Prolie Customer Datg Miwacy Pl y

Data Retentian Policy

Non-Finoncial Key Performonce Indicators KEY PERFORMANCE IN[HCATORS - page 17

* W continually work 1o gnsurs that wa prove Inthis sector Gur pelicy 1s nat farmaksed although evience of what we do can e loratss on puges 230

30

Further information is provided within the Group's ESG Report on page 23.
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FRASERS GROUP

WORKERS' REPRESENTATIVE REPORT

| have now been the Workers' Representative-
and Non-executive Director for over two
years. The role has been challenging given the
pressures of the Covid-19 pandemic. However,
it is immensely rewarding and | remain proud
to be representing my celieagues at Frasers
Group,

With the continucus lockdowns and the
uncertainty the Covid-19 pandemic has brought
during the past year to the Group, protecting
our calleague's wellbeing and maintaining
consistent, transparent communication have
been vital. | continue to have futl control and
ownership of a confidential whistleblowing
hotline for retaii colleagues, as well as the stoff
welfare portal, where every colleague has the
opportunity to anenymously raise any congerns
or queries that they may have. [ operate with
complete transparency and any findings from
these platforms are shared with the rest of
Board.

As part of my role as the Workers
Representative, | have colicboroted with our
Training tearn and the Retail Trust to safeguard
the wellbeing of our colleagues. Using the
most frequently asked questions from the
staff portal, the Retail Trust's psychologists
and counseliors have used their expertise to
answer our celleague queries. We have run
regular webinars and discussed financial
support, emotioncl suppert and coping
mechanisms for all Frasers colleagues during
the Covid-19 pandemic. Each webinar was
recorded and made available across afl of our
communication platforms.

Furthermore, | am pleased te confirm that
despite the evident challenges that the
Covid-19 pandemic has brought, we are
curreritly implementing pay reviews for our
retail teams, demonstrating the value and

faith we place in our people, In addition to this,
we have launched our ‘Fearless 1000° bonus
scheme where some of our colleagues have

the potential to be rewarded with life-changing
bonuses. | am proud to represent my colleagues
and a business thot rewards its people so highly

o across the UK

and places its people at the forefront of any ©
successes. :

This year, despite the shift to working virtuatly,

I remain fully involved in all Board and strategy
mesatings, giving fresh insights and perspectives
an decision making, and my relationship with
the other Board members has gone from
strength to strength. | continue to be invelved
in all decisions and correspondence regarding
safe systems of work to maintain good Covid-19
proctices at our warehouse, offices and stores.

Whitst we navigate the year ahead and the
chalienges it wilt undoubtedly bring, | hope §
can continue to make a positive difference at
Board Jevel to ensure thot our people continue
to be ot the heart of all business decisions, and
to help drive our Elevation No Limits strategy
forward.
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professional coaching and mentoring sessions
to ensure-they are getting the most out of the
programme and supporting them in all areas
of the role. The Early Careers Manager also
supports the entite commercial team to ensure
the programme runs effectively. The Frasers
Team hos been on hand to shift the structure
and scope of the programmie to fit in with the
business’s strategy throughout the Covid-19
pandemic and make sure all the relevant
learning needs are accounted for. A second
cohort of peaple will join us in September 2021
and we will look to recruit for other ports of
the Group in future. We also continue to run
placement years for undergraduotes, primarily
within IT,

Managing performance is essenticl for
identifying key talent and helping our
colleagues to achieve their growth patentiai.
We have therefore intreduced our Fearless
Focus performance reviews which went live
for head office colleagues in March 2021 and
will be rolled out cross the business. We have
identified competencies against which to judge
performance and will also assess behaviours

#  against the values described above. Each
function's objectives will filter down to the
objectives for individuals and provide clear
expectations about perfarmance. We will also
generate development plans, so colleagues
can improve in their current roles or fulfil their
aspirations to progress, in conjunction with our
succession planning.

Learning And Devel

P

Ensuring our teams have the knowledge
they need to perform at the highest level is
paramount te the continued success of the
business. While we have had to adapt our
approuch to learning and development during
the Covid-19 pondemic, we are lodking forward
to resuming regular in-person training when
possible, as part of a blended approach. Qur
Shirebraok training centre is state of the art and
is supported by our brand partners Nike, Fuma
and Adidas who have their own emvironments
in the tampus. The facilities offer an unrivalled
. training environment, which alongside the
Shirebrook store, give colleagues the perfect
mix of classroem and on-the-job training.
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We offer a varied portfolio of training options
for our teams. The training and development
portfolio continues to grow ond includes brand
and product knowledge, customer service,
management training and induction, as well
as our apprenticeship courses and free English
iessans.

in FY21, we started to develop a new learning
management system (LMS) on Netex's Learning
Cloud platform. This went live to selective
groups in early 2021 with the aim to roil out to
all UK employees by the end of the calendar
year. Learning Cloud is industry leading in size
and scope, showing the importance we piace
on the continued learnings of our calleagues.
It contains a blend of interactive e-learning
modules, videos and decuments on specific
skills ond capebilities, as welt as allowing us

to crecte bespoke content and digital events.
The system will give managers the opticn to
recommend further training to their teams
end to report on engagement, which wilt

allow us to understand the uptake of training
and to monitor completion of any mandatory
courses. Learning Cloud is eusily accessible
and is cornpatible with PC's, laptops, tablets
and mobile phenes, giving every employee the
option of how they wish to absorb their training

While the Covid-19 pandemic has reduced
the opportunity for face-to-face training, we
heve stepped up the use of enline platfarms.
This has included our Fearless Fortnights,
where we record a webinar every two weeks
on a specific topic. Examples include webinars
on performance reviews and on improving
communication sk

And R d

B N

We foster o reward-based culture thet enables
our colleagues to share in the Group's success.
In the UK, aur policy is to pay cbove the
National Minimum Wage, including rates that
are above the National Living Wage for people
aged over 25. We offer bonus schemes and
incentives depending an the role and the fascio,
and colleagues receive discaunts across oll
fascias.

=

Frast i

The Fearless 1000 incentive scheme aligns the
interests of our people and our shareholders.
Colleagues can be awarded points for

their performance by leaders ocross the
organisation, inciuding for living our values. The
scheme runs for four years end if a £10 shate
price target is reached for 30 consecutive days,
it will result in an oward of shares or a cash
equivalent for the top 1,000 people, with the top
ten receiving an award equivalent to £1m at o
share price of £10 on vesting. The scheme also
includes a cash reward for alf other colleagues
outside of the top 1,000 people based on their
length of service with the Group.

We have also introduced the Frasers
Champions recognition scheme, which allows
people to nominate colleagues for an award
for demonstrating our values, The strongest
nominations each month are championed
across the business and receive an caditional
menth's pay. As at April 2021, 72 people had
received an cward.

In additian, the introduction of the Fearless
Focus performance reviews described above
will support the move to a mere structured and
yobust performance-related pay review process,

Casucl Workers

We strive to ensure our orrangements for casual
staff are fair and equitable, All ¢asual workers
ore paid the same rates as full-time employees
in the same role. We promote stability in
working hours, while our casual workers also
benefit from the flexibility to decline shifts ot
any time. This flexibility also benefits the Group,
enabling us to adjust staffing levels to cope with
peck times and quieter periods.

Casual workers are also included in the Fearless
1,600 bonus scheme,

Health And Safety

As the Group grows, we have continued to
increase our focus on consistently implementing
health and safety measures and evaluating our
safety performance. We implement our pelices,
in conjunction with legal stondards, to protect
our colleagues and custorners.

Vaoutliand acroas the UK

FRASERS GROUP

During the year, the Group intreduced a
new impravement team, responsible for
enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness
of our operations at Shirebrook. This team
is reviewing ol processes acrass the site and
pulling together contributions from different
teams, including health and safety. This has
the potential to further improve our safety
performance at Shirebrook.

In FY20 we implemented a new accident
and incident reporting system, replacing
paper-based reporting with an online system
accessible from all our stores and businesses.
We are now reviewing the potential to
implement a more integrated system, which
ink to claims and capture the information
required by our insurers. .

Appropriate health and safety training is vital
and we have focused this year on training the
store management teams. This training covers
all aspects of in-store safety, from testing

fire alarms to carrying out evacuations and
reporting incidents. The Covid-19 pandemic has
limited the number of people who have been
abile to take this training in FY21 and we are
looking to intreduce o digitol format to speed
up the roll-out and make the training more
engaging

The majority of in~store heaith and safety
incidents relate to customer trips and falls, The
elevation programme is helping to reduce this,
by providing mare space in store aisles and an
ejevated shopping experience.

Health And Safety Performance

All RIDDOR incidents are recorded and are
reportable to the local authority. The health
and safety team meet the Derbyshire local
authority with responsibility for Shirebrook on
a guarterly basis and work closely with cther
authorities when required, All accidents and
incidents are investigated in a timely manner
and warehouse RIDDOR incidents are reviewed
during these meetings.

Buring FY21 there were no firg, local authority
or environmental enforcement actions or
prasecutions and ho work related fatalities,
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Wellbeing

Colleague wellbeing is always a focus for

us and has become evén more important
during the Covid-1% pandemic, We continue
to partner with Retail Trust, which provides

all Frasers Group celleagues with access

to free and confidential welibeing support.
Retail Trust offers advice, financicl assistance,
face-to-face and telephone counselling,
cognitive behavioural theropy, nen-repayable
grants, career development support, legal
guidance and on-site critical incident support.
The helpline is available 24 hours a day, seven
days o weelk,

To ensure our people know what support is
available through Retail Trust, we have elevated
aur communications during the Covid-19 .
pandemic. This has included webinars and
education sessions for managers, so they are
aware of what is available, as well as social
media messaging and other communications
for colleagues. This has resulted in a noticeable
uplift in use of the Retail Trust service.

Human Rights And Modern Slavery

We are committed to respect and equal
treotment for all people.

We recognise that modern slavery is an
ongoing challenge for organisations, especially
those dealing in consumer goods, and we
remain committed to addressing this risk.
Ultimately, we strive to ensure that no slavery
or human trafficking takes place within cur
business or supply chain, We have policies in
place aimed ot proactively identifying and
mitigating these risks, These policies aim to
send ¢ clear message that we do not tolerate
these practices.

We have a range of tools in place including
videos and Jiterature to educate colleagues
about their rights and a number of
communication channels, including an internal
telephone hotline and comments boxes on site,
tor reporting any feedback or concerns. Anyone
making a report can remain anenymous if they
choose. We also continue to review and develop
our collecgue training, monitoring processes
and evaluation of outcomaes, and work with

our employment agencies and other relevant
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bodies, including the Gangmasters and Labour
Abuse Authority and the police, to support our
training and knowledge.

i we find, or suspect, that any organisations or
individuals are participating in modern slavery
we will take immedicte action. Accerdingly,

we have a policy of reporting any suspicious
activity to the police, which has historically
assisted in successful convictions. Cur s54
Modern Slavery Act statement can be found on
our website www.frasers.group.

Developing Our HR Function And People
Policies

We are investing in the structure and capability
of our HR function, to enable it to effectively
suppart the Group as it continues to grow.

As part of this, we are reviewing our people
policies and the way that they gavern our
people's behaviours, as well as the appropriate
mechanisms we need to have in place to
ensure complionce. This will allow us to take

a more preventative approach to instances of
non-compliance.

Our main focus for policies under review
includes attendance management, maternity/
paternity/parental leave, performance
capability and redundaney. A significant and
positive chunge will be the maternity policy
for our casual workers where they will remain
engaged with us throughout their maternity
leave period. -

Community And Charity

We are committed to engaging with the local
and wider communities around our stores and
cur offices in London and Shirebrook, and we
aim to minimise any detrimental impact on
them.

Cur Sports Directory subsidiary has been a
specialist supplier of sports equipment to the
education sector for over 25 years, and part of
the Frasers Group since 2016. Sports Directory
plays a key rale in giving back to schools in
the UK and helping to keep aur young people
fit and healthy, often giving children their

first experience of team sports. Through its
'My School’ scheme, schools purchase sports
equipment from the business and Sports

Directory gives them the opportunity to claim
a voucher worth 25% of every purchase. To
date, Sports Directory has issued over 42,000
vouchers to UK schools, which equates to
maore than £3.2 million worth of free sports
equipment. Sports Directory has also, via the
Professional Footballer's Association, donated
free equipment to 72 football league clubs.

In addition to Sports Directory, we support the
development of grass rocts talent in tennis via
Slazenger. We have donated over £350,000 of
tennis equipment to schools and tennis ¢lubs
via the Slazenger Academy. The Acodemy is
supported by Tim Henman, as well as the All
England Tennis Ciub.

Closer to the Shirebrook compus, we donated
winter clothing to Nottinghamshire YMCA,
which was distributed to homeless people in
the local community. Store rmanagers also
contribute te their local communities. An
example of this is in Aberdeen, where the store
hos in previous years worked alongside a local
hospital to donate presents to the staff. Due to
the Covid-19 pandemic, this was not possible
this year, so instead the store donated te a local
food bank.

Frasers has also worked on a number of
initiatives to empower women in sport. The
highlights of this include working with Women
in Sport to supply kit for their "Daughters and
Dads" programme, which encourages girls te
play maore sport. The Group also sponsored
the “Driving Force® series on Sky Sports that
highlights the challenges faced by elite
sportswomen.

As discussed in the Chair's statement, on 15
June 2029, in Englond, we offered a 50%
discount to alf NHS staff in our Sports Direct
stores as a gesture of goodwill to these
fantastic individuals os our stores _.myo_uma.mn., it
was an overwhelming success with gross sales
of opproximately £50m before discount and
approximately £25m ofter discount.

ted on Steinbeis 1004 Recyeled and Carben Captured throuah the Woodland Trust, helping (o create new Bratsh woodland across the UK

Anti-Bribery And Corruption

The Group has an Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Palicy in place, which was originally creoted
following the introduction of the UK Bribery
Act. As o result of the Act, oll policies and
procedures were reviewed to ensure compliance
measures were put in place to mitigate staff
being offered and / or accepting bribes. We
have a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and
corruption at Frasers Group, and we encourage
our people to speak-up if they have concerns
that bribery or fraud is taking place. No
instances of bribery, corruption or fraud have
been reported during FY21.

Due to the number of acquisitions into the
Group since 2018, the Group is reviewing policy
to ensure that the policy remains effective.

The revised policy wili be subject to Audit
Committee oversight,

Whistleblowing

The Group has an approved whistleblowing
policy and @ number of processes operate
which suppert our pelicy including Your
Company Your Voice, our Retaif Support Unit
Asset Protection hotline as well as a dedicated
whistleblowing e-mail oddress.

A policy review and revision process is ongoing.
The updated whistleblowing policy and reloted '
processes will be subject to Audit Committee
reporting, opproval ond oversight on an
angoing basis. .
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ENVIRONMENT

We recognise that supporting and protecting
the environment is __iuo;n_._ﬂ to cur
stakeholders and to the future success of our
business. We therefore look to be proactive

in making a positive contribution to the
environment, including through reducing

our energy use and greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions, minimising waste, maximising
recycling and considering how we tan make our
products more sustainable.

Frasers Group welcomes the introduction of
the Taskforce for Climate-related Financiol
Disclosures {TCFD). We understand this is

an impartant step in tacklking global climate
change and we look ferward te sharing our first
full disclosure in next year's Annual Report. As
part of this process we have engaged external
advisers to carry out a gap analysis to ensure
we are in a strong position to rmeet these
requirements. There is more to do and we have
already begun identifying opportunities and
risks around climate change and are using
these findings to inform future strategy.
Embadding Sustainability

During FY21, we formalised ocur approach

to sustainability in a number of ways. This
included creating a dedicated sustainabifity
function, which has been seeking cut and
implermenting projects that are beneficial ta the
Group and the environment.

Towards the end of the 2020 calendar year, we
formed a network of Sustaingbility Champions
under the sponsorship of the CFO. This
reflected our belief that the best way to embed
ty across the Group is to take
everyone on the journey with us. All colleagues
werea given the opportunity to take part and we
received a significant number of applications
from around the business, demonstrating our
colteagues' interest in envirohmental issues.

The Sustainability Champions work within their
own departments, using their unigue knowledge
of their day-to-day roles to help make all

areas of the business more sustainable. They
feed back to the newly formed Steering

Group, which has representatives from senior
management and key departments, including

2% .
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experts in retail, procurement, design, legal,

HR and finance. The Steering Group set the
Group’'s sustainability strategy and monitor our
progress, as part of our wider ESG approach.
This will enable us to take a more strategic
approach to environmeéntal motters in the years
ahead.

Training for our Sustainability Champions has
been delayed due te the Covid-19 pandemic
but will take place as scon as practicable.
We intend to run workshops, bring in external
speakers and provide an appaortunity for our
Champicns to share good practice and learn
from each ather.

Enhancing Energy Efficiency

The sustainability team’s primary focus in the
year was on reducing energy use and GHG
emissions, primarily through behavioural
changes and best practice. The vast majority of
our sites have smart meters, giving us live and
accurate data which is fed into o monitoring
and alerts system. This allows us to take action
when usage issues are identified. -

We continue to comply with the UK
Government's Streamiined Energy and Carbon
Reporting {SECR) and have identified key areas
where we can make further energy reductions,

in particular energy usage in our stores and
efficient tronsport and logistics.

improving the envirenmental performance

of our store portfelio is g significant facus for
us and presents the greatest opportunity for
assacicted costs savings. For example, LED
light replacements resulted in a 52% energy
reduction and rapid payback on their upfront
cost, All new light fittings are now LED andg we
are ralling out & programme of LED lighting
uparades at o rate of two stores o week. We
have also upgraded the external lighting at
Shirebrook to LED.

We have triclled replacing overhead door
heaters in stores with infrared heaters, which
are much more energy efficient. In our
Maonsfield store trial, for example, we replaced
three 12kw blow heaters with g single 3kw
infrared heatér. However, store closures due to
the Covid-19 pandemic halted these trials and
we are awaiting more datc and feedback from

store colleagues on the heaters’ effectiveness,
before planning a full rofl out.

in addition, we carried out desktop studies of
the feasibility of replacing air conditioning units
in our stores with more efficient units, While
these studies showed that retrofitting stores

is nat cost effective, particularly for leasehaold
premises, we are using more efficient units

in new stores, We will continue to review the
practicality of replacing existing units, at least
annually.

In support of the Eransition to  low-carbon
econormy, we have installed 18 electric vehicle
chargers at several points around our head
office which are provided at cost to colleagues.

Excluding acquisitions during the year the
electricity supplied to all of our stores and
gyms is from 100% renewable sources. Gur
Shirebrook distribution centre electricity is from
a local independent power supplier, which
supports the grid during the transition te a
green hetwork and a zero-casbon economy,

Transport

The Group's truck fleet all meet the Euro

6 stondard and we use an engine fuel

additive to further reduce emissions. By using
container optimisation, which maximises the
amount we can get into a cantainer, we sayve
approximately 0.6315 tonnes of corbon per
forty foot containar, Therefore, since 2013, we
have cut our transport impact by approximately
26,473 tonnes of corbon. That is equivalent to
31,478,002 kilometres of lorry travel or 787 times
around the world.

We work with our factories and third-party
brands to optimise our contairner space and
reduce the number of containers shipped, to
avoid fuel waste coused by ‘shipping air'. Qur
freight forwarders continue to work hard to
condense shipping and to compare the impact
of different transport medes, such as rail or
road.

All parceis we send to customers via DPD are
carbon neutral ond we receive o certificcte
each quarter settin-—g out the GHG emission
savings as a result. During the year we sent
56,572 parcels via DPD, saving 24,275kg of COZ,
the equivalent to planting 93 trees.

yraudiand actoss the LK

Waste And Recycling

Reducing waste and maximising recycfing is
another important area of focus for us and we
have a target to send zere waste to landfill from
our UX operations by 2025. We ore planning to
look ot targets for the rest of the world once our
UK waste streams are managed as efficiently as
possible.

Qur approach to managing each of our waste
streams is set out below.

Cardbourd

Sorting our recycling into different streams at
our Shirebrook warehouse allows us to focilitate
the recycling of approximately 95% of our
cardboard.

We are a AAA producer of cardboard waste,
which means that we produce clean, high
density baies of a consistent quality. This
ottracts a high buy-hack price and ensures we
are a preferred supplier when demand is low.
90% of our cardboard is reprocessed in mills in
the UK by our recycling partner who we work
closely with ta constantly improve recycling
rates, On averoge, we recycle cround 900
tonnes of cardboard each manth.

Paper

All office paper is made from Steinbeis recycled
puper in partnership with the Woodland

Trust and recycled ofter use. From Janyery to
December 2024, the partnershig has created
3,363.36m? of new native woodland in the UK to
remove 130,494kg of carbon dioxide.

Plastic

We have a separate baling operation

for plastic, which eliminates end-of-bale
contamination, The plastic we produce on

site is high grade, making it very suitable for
recycling. Office plastics are also separated at
source and recycled,

We aimn to reduce single-use plastic within

the business as far as possible, such as tags,
pailet straps and packaging bags. We are
working hard to identify the ‘hotspots’we need
to address first and actively procure more.
sustainable alternatives.
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Elactrical Woste

AT waste is disposed of by a specialist

contractor who also cleans any hard drives of
sensitive information where required.-

The majority of electrical waste we generate
is light bulbs and tubes which are loaded into
waste containers provided by Electrical Waste
Ltd and exchanged as required.

Fridges and freezars are collected by the
supplier, as required.

Occasional appliance waste is put in the scrap
metal bins for recycling.

Metal

We recycle scrap metal from Shirebrook and
our stores through a partnership with two local
companies. We are now sorting different grades
where possible, to Facilitate a faster and more
efficient process.

General Woste

Every month, around 105 tonnes of dry

mixed recycling {non-sorted recyclables /
general waste} are baled fram our Shirebrock
distribution centre. Once baled, the waste is
sent to a third party for recycling at cost to us.
This has reduced by approximately 45 tonnes
per month from last year, partly due to the

. Covid-19 pandemic and partly due to better

separation of waste which ensures we can sell
more of our own recycling.

Recycling Initiatives In FY21

Woe continue to work on reducing waste and
increasing recycling. During the yeor, we have
communicated to all colleagues that our
expectation is for waste to be recycled. We
have supported this by replacing individual
bins at desks with recycling bins in offices to
sort waste at source. Food waste is also now
recycled. We are trialling waste segregation in
store, to further increase our recycling rates.
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Recycling Performance

In FY21, we recycled B6% of the waste we
generated at our Shirebrook distributisn centre
{FY20: 88%). This included:

+ 6,418 tonnes of cardboard (FY20: 12,358
tonnes) -

» 30 tonnes of waste paper (FY20: 27 tonnes)
« 285 tonnes of plastic (FY20: 623 tonnes)
« 77N tonnes of metol {FY20: 778 tonnes)

¢ 3,227 units of electrical equipment {FY20:
5,051 units)

In FY21, we separated and directly recycled
7,558 tonnes [86%) of materials. A further 1,241
tonnes (14%) of mixed waste was collected by
specialised recyclers.

This compares to FY20 where we separated
and directly recycled 10,200 tonnes (B8%) of
materials and sent away a further 1,517 tonnes
(12%) of mixed waste to specialised recyclers.

The recycling rate has stayed broadly
consistent year on year but the absolute
quantity of waste produced and recycled this
year is down significantly due to store closures
because of the Covid-19 pandemic. There was
therefore much less stock coming into the
warehouse and no waste coming back from
stores during the country-wide lockdowns.

Product Design And Sourcing

We continue to explore ways to enhance the

y of our products. Carrying out

ty check' is now part of the design
und precurement process for all new products
to ensure we use the most sustainable materials
and processes for each line. We raview
continuity products annually and refresh them
with a more sustainable material or process, if a
viable option exists.

For FY22, our biggest sustainability project will
be to improve the sustainability of the products
we offer, looking at water use, chemicals,
<arbon emissions and raw material production.

As part of this, we are g founding signatory
of WRAP's (Waste and Resources Action
Programme) Textiles 2030 initiative, which

carbon, water and circular tex

is designed to accelerate the fashion and
textiles industry's shift towards circularity and
system change. Signatories will collaborate on
targets, and
contribute to national policy discussions. To
help move aur product improvements forward
WRAP provides a scenario planning tool which
cateulates environmental impacts such as water
and energy saving benefits from swapping
materials or processes. We continue to look
for more recycled content in our products and
request a recycled content or reduced impact
optien with every proposal from suppliers,

Improving Our Packaging

We continue to work to reduce the volume of
packaging for our preducts and to increase
the recycled content of the packaging thot
remains, For example, we use an aute-boxing
machine that cuts boxes to the exact size
required, substantially reducing the quantity
of card used. We continue to use 100%
recycied card for all our own-brand shoeboxes
and all our card for packaging or labelling

is non-laminated, for easier recycling and
plostic reduction. This required substantial
research and development to get the desired
quality and appearance, while minimising the
environmental impact.

The Group hos joined the On-Pack Recycling
Lakel [CPRL) scheme, which ensures UK-wide
adoption of a simple recycling symbol system,
to help increase recycling rates. All the
packaging we have produced since April 2020
has an OPRL symbol assigned and printed on it,
to help consumers dispose of it at home within
the correct waste stream.

Qg ook Tporks Diveck bag for i which is
coming in Summer 2021 will have 85% recycled
content, up from 70% recycled content in FY20.
We are also intreducing standard Sports Direct
carrier bags made from 100% recycled material
(80% post-consumer waste and 20% factory
waste] later in the year and all foscias with a
plastic carrier will have at least 30% recycled
content. Cur plans to roll cut these recycled
in-store bags have been delayed, as we use up
old stock due to store closures because of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

, Recycled and Carbon Capturad theough the Woadiand Trust, heiping te create new Batish woodiand across the UK

Frasers stores will have an FSC certified -«
recycled grass paper bag.

Qur in-store hangers are now made from more
than B0% recycled polypropylene, replacing the
wvirgin plastic hangers we previously used.

Reducing Waoter Use

Reducing water usage in our estate is a focus
for us. We have begun installing water-saving

"Hippo blocks in toilets in our stores and at

*the Shirebrook distribution cenitre. These save
around three litres of water per flush. The
installation in stores is taking place in line with
the annual maintenance rota, meaning all
stores will be covered within 12 months.

Other Environmental Initiatives

The Group is involved in a number of other
environmental initiatives,

Group subsidiary Gul Watersports has teamed
up with the Big Blue Ocean Cleanup {BBOC)
to be its official partner for the next 3 years.
The BBOC mission is to drive positive change
towards clean oceons that support all marine
wildlife and sustainable living.

The Eco boat operated by BBOC will be
conducting one of the biggest microplastic
surveys in the world by collecting vital
microplastic data using manta nets. The
open-source data collected will be available to
Governments and groups acrass the world to
use for policy change. The team will also rescue
marine animels that have become trapped in
potlution.

Another huge part of BBOC's work is beach and
river clean ups. It provides equipment to help
volunteers clear beoches and rivers around the
world.

For Earth Day 2021, we portnered with Trees for
Cities to support its work planting trees in urban
communities and promote the health benefits
of spending time outdoors.

Frasers' donation allowed it to plont 3,500 trees
oh our behalf and supported work to improve
air quality in schoo! playgrounds, as well as
teaching chitdren to grow vegetables whilst
learning about where their food comes from.
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND
ENERGY CONSUMPTION

REPORTING PERIOD 1 May 2020 to 30 Aprl 202
BASELINE YEAR™ FY2o
SousaLBAToN Finnncal control
APPRROACH
All entities and Facilities glabally, etner cwned of under financiol control, wiire mcloded Eqvisions rom o centhtiomng and
EOUNDARY SUMMARY  refrigerotion units ore exciuded due to the cast of dota colteetian, Thesa ore expected to be a neghgible percantage of scope 1

emissions,

CONSISTENCY WITH

finaner

‘Organizations ore encowraged to align information to inanoiol years, te wid comparabinty amd Consst@ncy of formalion with
2, SECR reporlng has been prepared on on annual basis to 30 Apn| 2021 which s aligned
year of Frosers Group. The difference in aymissions of these gote ranges is expecied to be neglighile

 finoneral

EMISSION FACTOR DATA

DEFRA GHG amssion factors cavenng the period July 019 - July 2020 have been used far gli emyssions sourcas

SOURCE

ASSELEMENT The footprink s cateulated in 9Ccordance with thu Greenhouse Gas [GHGH Pratacol ond Enwirontriental Reporting Guidetines,

METHODOLOGY including SECR guidanice_Scopé 2 reporting uses the markst-besed colsuiahon ppproa|

EETIMATION 2.8% of the energy dotn (kwh| and 2.3% of the emisaicns dota used Yo prepare these results s bosed on estimatens or
extrapolationg, os coleulated by o third-purty provider

INTENSITY RATIO Ernissions per Em ol rvanue

[y Duato the inpact of Covid-19, the basa year chosan for all future SECR camparsons is FY20 (15t May 2019 to 10th Apr 2020 For the ena af Morch
ang gk of Aprl 2020, thare 15 now onafysis availabile for the envssioms movemeats drives by the odherence to Coronavirus Restrichions gudange

ang predominatety the tlosure of *non-Bss,

The Group has engaged o third-party provider
to assess emissions and energy consumption for
the periods reported in these results.

Scope 1 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with the combustion of fuels and
aperction of any facility by the Group. Scope

2 GHG emissions comprise the emissions
associated with electricity cansumption by

the Group, os well os emissions from any
generated electricity. The non-UK emission
factors are those published by IEA and specific
to each country. Scope 3 GHG emissions are
calculated based on the purchased quantities

ol retail’, remoyng previgus estmates.

of commercial fuels, using published ermnission
factors for the Well to Tank (WTT) impact

and additionally from metered electricity
consurngption and published emission factors for
the Transmission & Distribution {TAD} aspect of
the delivered utilities.

CO2 equivalent factors are used, which ensures
we have reported on al! of the emission sources
required under the Companies Act 2006
Regulations. Con--surmption considers all
Group companies and no adjustments have
been made to comparatives for prior periods
for subsidiaries newly acquired in the period.

The Group's CO2 emissions and supporting metrics are detailed in the following table:

Year Fyn FYa
Stope 1 €02 smissiont [konnes! 18379 20987
Scope § CO2 gmission; [market based] fignnes) 24260 68,161
Scope 3 CO2 emissians ftannes} 5359 1550
Tatal Scape ), 3 and 3 amispons jtonnes) 45,798 96,699
O envissions ftonnes) / Em turnovar 137 244
03 emissions vs Turnever Index (2020 = 100} 561 100

65.4% of Scope 1 and 2 emissions relate to the UK and UK offshore areas,

The table below shows the Group's energy consumption. Scope 1 consumption relates to the
consumption of fuel and consumption from facilities operated by the Group.
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This excludes consumption from refrigerants
due to the cost of deta collection, atthough’
this is expected to be negligible in comparison
te the Group's total consumption. Scope 2

FRASERS GROUP

consumption is bosed on the amounts of
electricity purchased through the period, as well
os heot and steam the Group generates for its
owh use.

Yaar FYan FY10
Scope teonsumphion kvTht 95.479.574 01337897
Scope 2 consurmplian tkwht 105650446 206818984
Total Scope 1 and 2 cangumptions (KW 3010020 37795688

The Covid-19 pandemic has brought about significant emission reductions.

The table below shows energy consumption for the UK and UK offshore oreas only:

Year Ll Frao
Scops 1 cansumgition kWi 79.342,651 8066777
Scope 2 <onsumption {wh) 141.502.628 195475533
Total S¢ape | und 2 consumptions (kwhl 220,645,275 276,143250

Frasers Group is committed to responsible
energy management and sustoinability, which it
practises throughout the organisation where it
is cost effective to do so.

During the reporting year the Group has
implerented the following energy and carben
efficiencies across the organisation to ensure
that energy consumption and associcted
emissions ore reduced:

- Each Retail site in the UK has been set o
weekly target for consumption. The actual
consumption versus the Target has been
reported on a weekly basis using the holf
hourly data from the previous week, in
a league toble format. Any Retail sites
consuming more than target have been
contacted and given guidante on actions to
take to bring consumption down. This has
been part of o wider project to influence
behaviour, by communicating the process
of controlling Retail consurmption, on a
daily basis. When Frasers Group returns to-
"business o5 usual”, there is an indication -
and expectation that consumption will have
reduced by 10% due to the actions taken
during the previous 12 months versus the

- Fy20 baseline;

- We continue to upgrade fluorescent lighting
to LED. For the Retail sites all opportunities
to replace lighting during o refit were taken
and the resulting consumption has reduced
by ¢ 52% for those sites that have had a full

refit of lighting to the latest LED technology.

- The number of face-to-face meetings with
colleagues and suppliers has reduced
through the increased availability of video
conferencing thereby reducing the amount
of trave) and further reducing Frasers Group
carbon footprint, :

- We are Implementing mini Building
Management Systems that are highly
flexible based on common industry
standards and provide excellent energy
savings;

- We are using additional submetering within
sites and properties to improve real time
energy consumption and promote granular
in-depth review of facility energy date;

- Heating ond Ventilations systems are
undergoing triats that include retrofits to
improve energy efficiency; and

- We are implementing voltage optimisation
projects that provide cost effective solutions |
and deliver optimised supply voltage.

A number of other energy efficiency measures

are under consideration for implementation

during the next reporting year.

m
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Environmental Policy

During FY21, we defined an environmental
policy for the Group. This sets out our
commitments to:

+ have robust and transparent reporting and
governance of environmental issues

+ minimise our carbon dioxide emissions

»  reduce waste, so we meet our target of zero
waste to landfilf by 2025

+  consider the environmental impact of our
supply chain, and

* work with partners ta enhance
environmental performance.

The policy will be shared with suppliers along
with our regular terms and previded to new
colleagues upon induction.

Our newly formed Steering Group will ensure
the policy is implemented as part of business
as usudal. This be supported through regular
tracking and reporting of targets and with

the engagement of a third party energy and
carbon reduction specialist.

The policy is further supported by our
commitment to initiatives such as WRAP's
Textiles 2030° which obliges us to measure and
report our progress annually.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that, during FY21 they
consider they have acted in good faith, and in
the way that would be most likely to promote
the success of the Group for the benefit of

its members as a whole having regard to the d
stakeholders and matters set out in $172(7)(a)-(f)

of the Companies Act 2006,

This statement sets out the matters considered
under each subsection of 5172{1) {a}-(F} and
provides cross references to where further
information can be found in the Annual Report.
Details of some key decisions taken have also
been provided,

The Likely C. q Of Any Decision In
The Long Term

The Directors are mindful that any decisions
they moke now can, have possible long-
term consequences. The Directors take into
consideration the strategy, purpose, values
and culture when making decisions. During
the year the Directors have made decisions
based on Board popers, presentations from
senior executives, information decuments,

and discussiens with external advisors,
*,

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Board commissioned a report on the
culture of the Group. The cutcome from
this was three key principles, set out below,
which will enhance the Group's journey

in enabling colleagues to implement the
elevation strategy long term.

= Qwnitand back yourself;

= Don't hesitate and act with purpose.

= Think without limits and take the team
with you;

€. The Interests Of The Company’s Employees
Detoils of initictives and engagement with
our colleagues is sek out in the Our people

report and the Directors' Report,

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
the Group introduced the Fearless 1000

h woodland acress the UK

Bonus scheme which was approved by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM and the
Frasers Group Elevation Programrme to
attract the best talent to the Group.

Tha Need To Foster The Company’s Business
Relationships With Suppliers, Customers
And Others

Details of the Company’s business
relationships with suppliers, customers,
regulators and lenders are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: The Directors have
worked closely with suppliers and banks
during the Covid-19 pandemic to ensure
thot the Group remains in the best possible
financial situation. The Elevation No Limits
strategy targets stronger relationships with
key brand partners, and this continues to
be a priority. Enhancements were made

to the retail websites to enhance customer
experience, due to the higher demand

for online purchases during the Covid-19
pandemic.

Tha Impact Of The Company’s Operation:
OnThe C ity And The Envirc t

The ESG report details of the initiatives we
have undertaken in sustainability and the
community.

Principal Decision/Steps: During the year
discounts worth approximately £25 million
were offerad to NHS stoff working in our
local communities to recognise their
contribution in the Covid-13 pandemic. A
network of sustainability champions has
been set up across the business together
with a steering greup which sets the ESG
strategy and monitors progress. The Board
has also adopted an Envirenmental Policy

" during the yeor.
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The Desirability Of The Company
Muyintaining A Reputation For High
Stundards Of Business Conduct

At cll imes we endeavour to adhere to
strict corporate governance stondards.

An external Board evaluation was carried
out during the year covering all aspects

of Board and committee performance.
Recommendations will be reviewed and
appropriate action pians put in place. The
Non-executive Workforce Director is another
method by which we are implementing
gaod corporate governance, Cally Price
brings colleague queries and concerns
directly to the boardroom for action by the
Board. Further details can be found within
the Workers Representative Report.

Principal Decision/Steps: Although an
external review is only required once every
tihree years, the Board has decided to
undertake yearly external reviews. External
advisors have been appointed to review the
Group's policies and ensure they reflect best
practice. Further details con be found within
the External Board Review.

FRASERS GROUP

g. The Need To Act Faitly As Between Members

Of The Company

All members of the Company hold ordinary
shares which cttach the same rights and
benefits. Shareholders are able to raise

any queties through the Investers Relations
email address, All investor presentations are
made avaikable an the Group website for
shareholders to access, The AGM allows an
apportunity for alt shareholders to attend
and ask questions of the Board. Following
the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions we intend
to revert to an in-person AGM this year. This
will allow shareholders to meet face-to-face
with Directors.

Principal Decision/Steps: The re-
commencement of the share buyback
programme has benefited all shareholders
hy increasing the percentage ownership
held by eoch investor by reducing the total
number of outstarding shares.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Qur Risk Management Fromework

The Board has overall responsiblity for the effectiveness of the Group's systems of risk management
ond internal control. These systems are intended to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failing
to achieve business obiectives, and they provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against the
risk of materiat misstatement or financial Joss.

The Audit Committee supports the Board with discharging its responsibitities, under a delegated
authority. The Chief Executive Officer has overdll accountability for managing risks in the business,
ond his direct reports are accountable to him for effectively managing those risks within their remits.

The Group's risk management framework comprises a top-down and bottom-up approach to risk
identification, evaluation and mitigation. Principal risks are discussed and agreed by executive
management through the Compliance & Risk Group and by the Audit Committee on behalf of the
Board. The Board and/or its sub-committees discuss each principal risk ot least annually and receive
presentations und detailed risk reporting from risk owners on a cyclical basis. Risk owners re-evaluate
principal rigks in advance of each Compliance & Risk Group discussion. Any changes are reported to
the Audit Committee, as part of our Group Risks Profile reparting.

The Compliance & Risk Group provides connectivity between executive management's
responsibilities for risk managernent and internal controls ond the oversight roles of the Audit
Committee and the Board. It facilitates cross-functional discussion and collaboration across principal
risk areas and matters of internal control, It also facilitates horizon scanning and emerging risk
discussions, chaltenges the appropricteness of internal controls and progresses their effectiveness.
The Compliance & Risk Group's activities are reported formaily to the Audit Committee. Our Steering
Groups will dlso report formaily to the Compliance & Risk Group, completing our governance
structure.

wicand across the UK

Priniled on Stembers 100% Recycled and Carbon Captuted through the Woodland Trust, hie crs Bt
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Our approach to risk management:

RISK MANAIEMINT FAAMEWORK

Boord | Audit C¢

e | Sub-col

tews

Compli arce & Risk Group
$teenng Groups

THRBE LINES MOBEL
_ First line Sueand Bne Third line
Management Campharce & Internol Audit

CONTROLE

ather e:surance lunctions

ASSURANCE

RISK
GOVERNANCE

Tirvchades ptracton,
Oppesite & wwalagtion

MONITORING &
ASSURANCE

COMMUNICATION
& TRAINING

PROCEDURES,
STANDARDS
& GUIDANCE

Principal risks are cascaded to operational
teams and central functions for discussion ond
aztien on risk mitigations, as part of operational
risk managernent activity, Operational risk
management focilitates the elevation of risks
te the Compliance & Risk Group, for onward
reporting to the Audit Committee. We continue
tc elevate our operational risk activity as part
of our risk management roadmap for FY22 and
we have put plans in piace to focus on this in
the next period.

31

,

Prnted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captuad through the Woodiand Trust, help

During the period, the Audit Committee, on
behalf of the Board, has:

» undertaken a full review of the Group risk
register;

» received reports on the continued
development of the risk management
framework, including risk appetite
parcmeters and internal controls definitions;
and

= received risk owner presentations, detailed
risk reporting and summary update
reporting on the Group's principal risks
profile, for further discussion and challenge.

The key elements of the Group's internal control
framework are monitored throughout the year
in this way.

Boord Review

The work of the Audit Committee and the
Interncl Audit & Risk team has been presented
to tha Board for discussion. The Board is
satisfied that the Group's systems of risk
management ond internal contrel {including
financial, operational and compliznce controls)
have operated effectively during the financial
period, up to and including the date of this
report, and no significant failings of internal
control were identified during the period.

The Group is committed to continuously
improving its risk management framework and
methodolegy, in line with regulatory standards
and the Group's elevation strategy,

q to creat

Assessmant Of Principal Risks

We have carried out a robust assessment of
our principal and emerging risks in the peried
and our principal risks profile remained largely
unchanged through the period.

We have continued to respond well to

the challenges presented by the Covid-19
pandemic. The effects of the pandemic on
economies and society at large have been more
prominent than expected. Whilst mandated
restrictions are currently easing, travel is
opening up and the vaccination programme

in the UK continues at pace, new variants
continue to emerge. Uncertainty therefore
remains over the period of time needed to bring
the Covid-19 pondemic under control. As a
result, this risk remains a key focus for us.

During the period, we have continued to
respond to the pandemic by:

= prioritising the safety of our people ond
customers;

+ re-aligning our strategic response, to ensure
we are able to serve our customers;

+ evaluating the strength of our business on
all levels; and

*  optimising opportunities for growth and
investment, to ensure we are well ptaced for
the period of economic recovery.

As a result, our operating perfermance has
rermained robust. This risk has therefore been
evaluoted through the normal course of
reporting and in our viability statement, rather
than through separate risk disclosure in this
period,

Brexit has presented some challenges to the
Group in respect of administration, planning
and logistics, but we do not currently consider
these to be material. Accordingly, our
evaluation of Brexit risk hos reduced since

the prior period, though this remains part of
our ongoing monitoring of broader global
macroeconomic tonditions, events or political
factors. We will continue to monitor the full
effect of implementing the UK-EU Trade and

Co-operation Agreement and the development

of the trading relationship with the EU.

new Brvsh woodland across the UK

Environmental, social and governance

(E5G) issues fecture more prominently in

our disclosures. Climate and sustainability
risks have remained an integral port of

our commitment to ESG and our business
operations, but have previously been
incorporated intg our broader disclosures

on corporate and social respons y. With
increasing regulation and in recognition of the
potential significance of this emerging risk to
the Group in the future, we have enhanced our
reporting and have included this as o separate
principal risk for greater transparency.

The foltowing risks and mitigations are an
extract frem our principal risks profile and are
not presented in any order of priority. Principal
risks are those which we consider pose a threat
to our business model, future performance,
prospects or reputation.

Reference To Strutegy

Building excellent
relationships with the world's
best brands

Eilevation in our digital
offering

stores

. Efevation of our physical

Enablers : People, Training,
Brand, Communication, B
Systemns, Automation, Data

Risk Trends

+ Increasing

== Unchanged

« Decreasing
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'PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Group continues to deliver its elevation strateqy, which focuses on the brands we sell. our digitol
offering and our physical stores. Our vision is to become the elevated multi-channel platform for
sports, prermium and kixury brands.

We continue fo deliver well against all aspects of our strateqy, during @ challenging operating period.

RigK CONTROLS i)

- The Board ond seniot monogement s8t ond ogree the Group strategy and undertaks both requior and detailed
onnual 1EvEs,

Qur Group 15 diverse in t&nns of geag

cpportunitres and challengas with o

and product ang execulive manogeinant 1s ably ta respond to Nratesc
. 16 maximise aclievement of ouf Steategic amintins

e fonl ta delrver aur
steategy efficiently,
altectivaly and on o timely
basis, or we adopt the
Wrang strategy. which
\mpugts cur long-term - We monitar tur performance, markets and competition 9n an angaing basis

growth, performance and -

We continua 10 evaluate stratagic brand cequsitions, to prowde preduct ond Choice in ine wih ow brand siotegy
nand oitrostive lazabions Lo the store estate

- Effectwe manggement of our property portfolia supparts our elevated direction

nciah contrals, reporting ond anolysis help ta aptimise resourca aliocations, maximise profiks and cash

ambition. flow and support effioent and effective strateguc detwery
- We parform ungaing research lar insights mto consumer trends.
- Qngoing intérmal and externnl communication of cur SIFATEgIc direchon SUpports undastandm g, engagement ond
eflective delivery.

Third-party Brond Relotionships, Key Suppliers And Supply Chain z..snm.a-:o:n

. \» .l
Key brands, brand suppliers and mojor manufacturers are central to our business and elevation

strategy. Our strategic acquisitions and business model aim to bring attractive brands into the
Group, to support customer demand and choice.

Our supply chain is international and is subject to m:‘_.}m_m_._» management of supply chain logistics
and working capital, to ensure the flow of product in line with our strotegic ambition,

We have continued to strengthen our brand and supplier relationships during the pandemic,
demonstrating the strength of our business model and strategic performance. This also supports new
product availability, in line with our elevation ambitions,

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- The Groyp hos o pohcy of farging close lang-term ©

vships which ora ynd d by our
commitment to product, elevation and custamar excel

nee
The alevation strategy targets forging stranger 1¢lotonshyps with Mey brand partiers and this 1 61 ongaing phonty
Dedicoted relationship partners ond procurement and caimmerciol teams support truly mtegruted supplise
engugement

- The Group utilses two leading supply Chain compomes to proture much of iLs owh-brand PIoducts, & Group-owned
supply Ghum entity further dwersities ngkc

we fail to manage and -
leveruge our supplier R
and brond parter
relotionshs successiully.
ta secure the nght
products for oot business
at te nght price and -
qualiy, and to meet of

exceed our customers’ -
expectavions Foiure to
mitigate these ngks might "
impact our shevoliin - Durown-brond nvestment torgers consumer treands ond complarments third-pany brands, supparing consumer
targets, performance und thore

Iong-term growth -

Our stk fevels SuppoMed ur DDHItY th tiode thiough the Covid-19 pandarme 6nd we hove continued 1o secule
ongaing supplies, dus to the depth end breadth ot eur commerclel relatonships

Supphers sign-up to the Group's Svpplier Manual which enobles us te momtor end benchmark suppler perfamance
- Strong service level ogresments are n slace, which help to support an effective sUPRTy chain network

Influenc ar pq s and brand provide ar awn-brand growth

- Electronic Duto Interfece (EDY capability improvas our pracess efhciency through the commercial Cycle and enhances
supplier engagernent through o dedicated suppler portal
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Brexit or Glohal Macro-economic Conditions, Events (Pandemic) Or Political Factors

The global pandemic and Brexit are core aspects of this risk in the period under review. We also
monitor glebal and national political change on an ongoeing basis, for impacts on our strategy and
supplier networks. These are external events and we respond well to those factors we can control.
“he strength of our business and our performance enables us to absorb the broader indirect
economic impacts associated with this risk, as we have a proven track record of responding with
agility to prioritise trade and performance and maximise epportunity.

"We are committed to escalating our elevation programme ond building on opportunities that
support preduct and brand availebility through our digital offering and physical stores.

AISK ’y TIONS

Pansemic:
- We huve implarnantad effactive response proceduras, with Board oversight and prisntisation

- Cur mandeted safe workig end npe-oting standards prieriise colleague and customer wellbeing

- We deployad new satsty requiremeants guickly, with exterfiol vahtulioh ¢nd ongeing évatugtion, review gnd
) manitering
- Wi rada on agiée swilch 1o lacus on e-commerce dehvery, as a result of mandated penods of lockdown
Zailure to ankicipats, -
waluate of apprapslotely
espond to external events
uch as Brext, or broadar
Flobal/macroscancmic
conditions, evants .
1zandemic] ot political -
rockers, moy risk the
achievement of our

Investimants i

ur an-ling capabiity and customer servica delwery supporl our occelurated grawth in - commarns

.m__ma_..:é2%3:8_«9:533_55.5..28__3__&5;,.&8;5_D_aikama:i,.a:m?...auz
- commarcial retationships

- Ellactive managarmant of cash Alows -ind committed facikties suppons our kquidity, fang-term walsikty and tradhng
portner support

We conduct angoing scenanc analys s, with timaly reportimg to monagatnant
- We levaroge opporturities (f INVestMant, through SI7ONg MUnagatnent overs:

ormance targats, Brexk:
Inpact aur strghegic _ - Wecarry aut an ongoing evaluation cf Brext nsk impacts with reporting to the Boord
diraction or langer-terin - Wemonnar UK-EU Erade and the of the Irode and Co-oparation
Agreement,

wpportunities lor growth.
Cur locus on transpart lagstics, new documentation requiemants and the flow of goods supports product

amle und polkiea) ehange:
- We znsure ongang Finonce and Cormmmercial evaluation of econoimic and palitical change, with senrer manogament
aversight and Boord reporting,

~  The axacutive-lad Comphonce & Risk Sroup holds aimerging risks discussions, with oversight saporting to the Audrt
Commiittea
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Treasury, Liquidity And Credit Risks

Short, medium and long-term funding arrangements support our business operations and our ability
to meet our financial obligations and deliver cur strategic ambitions.

Funding availability remains a principal risk but the overall risk level trended downwards towards the
end of the period, based on our trading performance and strategic delivery through the height of
the pandemic. Whilst revenue has been impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic and prolonged periods
of mandated store closures, we have increased our e-commerce trode, supporting our liquidity
position. We are alse prioritising renewal of our working capital facility which matures in November
2022, through strong funder dialogue and engagement, supported by the Group's robust business
performance,

Interest rate risks arise on net borrowings. Foreign exchange risk arises from international trading,
future sales and purchases in foreign currency, loans to non-UK subsidiaries and unhedged aptions
to buy or sell foreign currency. Credit risk arises primarily through our Wheolesale and Licensing

- customers and there is some level of counter-party risk exposure, clthough we do not consider this to
be material,

o M3k

CONTROLE AND MITIGATIONS

Faituie to opproprl

ely

manage our funding and

Tiquidty gostticns and

secure aceess to funding
markets might impact
our plans lor growth, tha
akility tv monage cur
wading requirernents,
meet longer-term

ities ond the cnoaing
ity of our business,

Our Beard reporting o debl, ovenants, lunding and cash flow positions mcludes strass testing and axtensive
husiness sk scenane analysis, ncluding Brext, Cowd-19, mondated store chosures ond related costs

The Graup Traasury hanction manages hquidity, mterest rate ond foreign exchange nsks.

Tha Graup traasury palicy, with Board avarsight, okl
reporting

< delagqted outhontles for opergtion, mondonng ond

We hove o working capital forilty ovarloble until Novernber 10072, with orgaing early digiague and engagement with
Fundars for renewal

Ongoing manitorng and reparting of gaing concern and vichility are part of cur standard suita of Internal and
external reparting

Our hadging strategy 1§ reviswed gt approved annudlly ds part o pur treasury governance, with hedging actity
reported to Board.

Investments of surplus cash, boirowings ind denvative imsastments are made under pre-gpproved investment criterio

W usa forward

st highly probobsle faran

gn Lurrency contracts ta hadge age

ureaney truding transactans
We have a cradit policy in pluce, with regular momtonng of custormar and counter-party credit nisks.

- See Note 3 to the Finoncial Statements for further detail on financial risk mancagement.

icd on Steibeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Gaptured throuah he Wosdiand Trust, helping to create new Botish woodiand across the UK
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Customer engogement and retention is vital to our Group, whether through our physical stores or
online. Harnessing customer value and layalty across the Group is muiti-faceted but underpinned by
our product offerings, price and service.

We hove enhanced our 6-commerce offering and significantly improved our customer experience
through our elevation strategy, as well as our customer service and the underlying platferm for our
digital business.

We continue to strengthen our elevation through our new concept stores and flagship multi-fascia
offerings.

RISK CONTROLS

- Gngoing momteang of customer isights and feedback, and campstiter and markst trends, enabies us to respend
Failure te cnticipate and and deeve our custamur-led strategy
respond 1o Custamer
needs of chongas in
consymer trends and
spending, or to drive
a0 deliver Customer - We conbinue ta develop and invest in our anhne offering, capacity ond capob

- Comminuad Investment il OUF CUSImAr g8
Imprave Gur custamer experlance, both on
by new n-stora technology

& oMenng, tystems ant cor enobles vs to d anu
@ and through the developnent of our stare sparating made), supported

uding our Butomation

serwce excellence, rmay <apak s and payment platfotms, for an smproved custerner expanence

IMPULT oL GIOWE VOl - Targetud s0ci0F Modia and digital marketung Pragrammes SUPPGR ow custoMer graups and bronding
1eputotion aad strote

rapalion 2 d strotegic - We use mfhenter engagement 16 raise brand tnd product awareness

- Gngoing enhancement of aur ESG ogeadas supparts our strategy. a ine with our gustomer focus

‘Legal And Regulatory Compliance

nt

The legal and requictory landscape in which we operate is constantly changing. Qur commitment to
delivering robustly on our obligations is central to our culture and values.

We have incregsed our assessment of this risk in the period, based on factors which continue
te impact the legal and reguiatory landscape in which we operate. We are conservative in our
assessments and are cenfident in our ability to manage these risks effectively. The trend we
are reporting recognises anticipated changes through our horizen scanning and emerging risks
evaluations, until we have impiemented our response plans.

RISK CONTROLS AND

- Ourezpensnced ood quobbed in-house legal team provides core services ond advice os well 03 aversight of
emergng legisiotive and reguiatory requirermnts

w g

- External adwsers provide additiongl seevces and trainng i Specinlist ureds, os reduired Ly the business and iegal
cident team N
moy occur which resuits - Key legislutive and regulatory compliance risk areas are prostised and include 4l Government-mandated
In a legal or regulatory requirerments in rasponse to the Cowd 19 pandemic, the Group's iIntellectual property nghts, the Liting Rules, data

breach ang which pratection and heatth ond safety
Impacts cur businass

Anaction or

- DurCode of Contuct supparts our ethics, behaviaurs and culture. und sur regulatary pobeies nchude, for sxamale,
&t Bbery & Coruption, Corportts Gifts & Hospitahity and Conflicrs of Interest

- v the approneh and eontent of mundataty inductiet, p

cies and ONGOING traming ACIOSS relevant dreas, bor

prograss
- The Legul teom 15 o key contubutar and adwser (o the Complhiance & fisk Group.
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Technology Capability And Infrastructure Renewal

-
We operate in a competitive and challenging customer-focused market. Our systems need to be
at the forefront of customer service axcelience and support our end-ta-end supply chain legistics.

Available technolegy is constantly evolving and managing changes and transformation in this
environment is a key focus.

We have invested heavily in this period in our automation, piatforms and delivery capabilities, which
support an enhanced online and in-store customer experience, and our business resilience.

Qur roadmap includes improved technalogy and information security capabilities, aligned te our
business continvity and 1T disaster recovery review, which continues to strengthen our controls.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- We hava o Group technology strategy i place, aligried to the business strategy
- Qurfarward programme of ribvasteatiae rerawl @ Tables ot 10 pEYate our Lupnesses efhsntly ond supports our

Falure 10 wamise abilty to compete

the vse of our exisung . Owrs - . JH— ond ety .
tectinology =t 1o rancw - favestments i our oniine krading copatulities, warehause menagement systams ond in-stara technology anhonce the
ut mfrastructure in o

end-to-end customer sxpenence and improve praduct availal

- Growth of our experianced in-house Technelogy team, g
helps us to kaep abreast of emerging technologes ond custame

leading insights

- W¥e have on ongoing cycle of troming progromemes ta suppart effectve use of existing technalogies ond new
sriategic ambition technologies ocruss our businasses, gs they are introduced

- Stren nakion secunty capability has

technalagy delivery and the robustness of our second

hanced aur transiermation pragramee, our strotegic
@ oversight
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Cyber Risks, Data Loss And Data Privacy

I
Attempts to attack or gain uncutherised access to systems and dota are becoming increasingly

sophisticated. Our systems are critical to our operations and trading. We have legal and commercial
chligations to protect the security and privacy of the data we hold and process.

We combine the continued investment in our d gital offering, dutomation and technolegical change
with the strengthening of our people and in-house vapabilities, ko deliver on our risk mitjgations.

RISK CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- We hava strotegios 4nd polises i phice to support our 1T security

savings qre core divers Qur portnars include Micreseft, os well os ofher

strategic partnarships bar cantent de ivery natwork support for our website and cyber mitigations
A cybar-attack may result

in date foss andfsr derial ~ = Protection toals, ncluthing encryplior, and detection toels are in place to support etfective monlonng and reporting,
of service, impacling and are reviewed regularly

our business financially - We have enhonced our mformation security capatiities and gthened cur sacond-hing
through finesond -
panalties or lost trade, ns .
wellos our reputationand _ — Strendl g uur dala rmandate, aur policies and procedures and ongang internal tranning
our abllity to oparata. : help te mitigate data pretaction und prvacy nsks and suppart dehvery of aur change ond translarmulion programme
Feilure to gdequately —  We have an ung

pretectthadatawe hold = g in-howse Layal team supports sezon
and pracess may result in

~7 We tondurt an annuol external raview of our cybar pasture and penelration testing acrass Graup

1g prograrmime of recurity and prwacy

toring uesass our Group and extended enterprise

& ronitoning and Feporting of legrslatve campliance

tegel or regulatory breach, * = Ve make ongomg w ok pr trawning ond ahians tand local legi n
less of trust and financial * bLF averseos operations.

loss _ N - We i ly action and retam Cata Protection npact Assussmants

. —  Ourpolicy framewark i subject to argoing review and rewsion, with axternal support and ith aur govecnance
* ugenda

- denchmark standards form part of sur controds improvement activity
- T " Ineidamnt B

Business Continuity g And nt Resp

Our Head Office and Distribution Centre at Shirebrock and our e-commaerce activity are critical to
our business operations. There is an ongoing and increasing reliance on the availability of technology
across our Group, We need the ability to respond to incidents effectively and on a timely basis, to
ensure continuity of operations and trade.

, sk CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- OurBusiness Continutty and IT Drsost ir Recavery plans ore undargomng reviaw, revision ant testing with axtermol
Failura to respand

suppon

effactivaly or on a bim

basis fo oparatona g+~ U7 dovernance stiucture supports acile mcident sesponse, with clear rolas, respanuibiitias and reporbing lines
IT wn¢iclents o events - Annual external roview und challenga af aur processes SUDPCMts DUF COMMILMENE Lo CONTIuOuS Improvsment
might _J._un"_:z. Graup - Ongoing raning supperts goad practice und knowladgs shanng fer continuity.

hnancially through

Jost _ws:“.» n:_,mns_ - terial anicd axternol 1ons, g and PR capabil; are wregral to our mLident respanse plans

« raputational impact - Hucovery pnontisatian of IT systanis 0 1 processes fonns pudt of aur business impoct anolysis caview
tused on our copability C weh
ond communicobions

ve recavery lime targets for bob catical and notinal sannes functions

- Crticol rgcovery copol as aligh 1o Cur iisurance Lover, oppetite and cantials
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Our Group is complex and extensive and includes oversight of cur third-party and extended
enterprise portners and suppliers. We are committed to ensuring we have the right levels of
transparency, consistency and monitoring across our Group, to enable effective oversight in line with
our values and culture. ’

We have an appetite for aequisitions as part of our strategic growth agenda. Our integration
strategy is being formalised and captures lessons learned to support ongoing efficient and effective
acquisition engagement and monagement.

RISK CONTROLE AND MITIGATIONS

) " Trunsperency ucoss our Group and axtencled enterprsa and its chonges 15 an ongeing prionty It 15 subjeet to regular

Failure ta effectively renizw and drscussion und fenms part of cur sk management framework ond reporing

manlter betivities acrass - Qvemight roles and rasponsib)
assurance

¢ aeraas Gur Graup strecture support risk-based funetional menternng and

. partners and suppliers,
who form port of our
extendad enterprise,

- Wa mantain serangth i our supply chenn

unagerment and supphier and pudner relotionstups

- Risk ond controls raporting across e Gruup Is subject o continuous Improvement, including $#lf-assessment
procasses for conkunohion of complionce with key policies, controls and othar Group requirantents

reputattonal or legal - and

compliance issusas

ara 1n placs ar naw 1 and app

The Group Internal Audit team is develaping third-hna moiitoring to support the braader nternal controls framswork
acress the Group

Paople, Talent M

o t And § i

Qur business benefits from strength and depth of knowledge, talent and experience, which has
long been pivotal to its success. Retaining and protecting this talent, providing for succession and

an ongoing programme of attracting and developing new talent is core to our people plans and
objectives.

We have made significant progress in the period in this area and when new initiatives have time to
embed, we expect to see this risk trend decrease.

RisR CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONS

- Cantinued
pipeline,
- Wan

of strong trainee and appr

supports our futurs takent

, astarneiy v bl Llhtg Qe mm et fon < o, wed Nemel R,

- - Wepnontise nternal developmeant and praimotian whierever passible ohd netively encourage <ross-functional
Failure ta altract, retain or axperiance

develop telent eorass our
buslness ond implewnent  +
effective succersian
planning might impogt - Asixpiltar People Framawork supporting performance and talent recognition is now in place ocrass the Groug.

- Anew apprasal system has been mtroducad with clear sxpectations tor performance, aaportunities for development
and bronder succassion planming

- Annterncl recroitmant mandate aperotas, with improvemants In onboarding and apphcant tackng
business ond stratagic

ebjectives and the

ency of aur growth

tronskarmation, - Anew recogmition and banus structur has besn lounched, recagnising and rewarding peopie who are fearless and
adopt aur core principles

- We have created cora prnciples and a collecgue vulue prapasition that shure the Graup's velues ond ambitians for
wur people, with un wevatsd and re-emurgised website Lo attract talent.

- The Warkers' Rapresentatws « a Bootd Director who supperts communitation chamnels anc gives our psople o voice
@t the highest level in our ess

- We hove g strong strategy for dwersity and wclusion and paoph support

led on Steinbars 100% Recycled and Sarhon Captered throuah the Woodland Trust. heiping o create new Brtish woodland across the UK
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tal, Sociol & G (ESG)

Tackling climate change is a global imperative and the rasulting increase in requiation is a key focus

area for the Group.

Measures which support climate change initiatives and our wider ESG agenda continue to be key
components of our strategic direction, supporting sustainabiiity, the broader social agenda and

consumer choice.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATIONE

Foilure ta mounise

our pasion and value

relating to ESG tactors
1gie iipoct g r abeity

to uchigve our growth,

volue, reputation ond

strateqic ambitions

We have Bonrd-level engngement and an Executve spensor of our ESG agendo

Tha Sustannbility Steenmg Graup broodens our aclions and the conbnued development of our sustaihability strotegy

Dedicoted wperational lenderstup confinues to drve proct and Brogrammie Inbabves ond engagement through cur
supply Chain

‘e have Sustamatnity Champrans in Blace, 1o mobilise cross-Group and coss-functional sugport

e hove appointed @ Graup Carban Reduction Monagsr

We are evaluating our readiness for compliance wilh the Tasklarce for Chmate-related S nanaal Oisclosures |TEFDF
‘W have an ewronmentul pakey in place, which has been reviewsd ond approved by the Bogat

Wa re reviewing o suppier control omework to copture cammitments from suppliers and brands on ESG matters
We heve anergy
We continug ko launch ranges ant produrts that ditve responsible and sustainuble purchasng decisions

Our commurity inltiatives support the provision of lige spertswenr Ly argonisetions and schagls

iency targets, menitoring and meosurament, with external specuabst support

Rewiew and ongoing devalopment of the Group Code of Conduct supparts our volues, colleague engagement ar
colleague ond supplier onboarding

Property

.

This is a new risk added during FY21. The retail landscape continues to see significant changes with
a high volume of retail properties vacant due to the high level of retail insclvencies and retailers
moving away from bricks and mortar to e-commerce due to the shift in consumer behaviour, which
has further been increased due to the Covid-19 pendemic,

As a result of the above, both the value and value in use of retdil properties has declined.

CONTROLS AND

There 18 a finonciel
nisk ta the Group it our
commitment to a leass or
the wive of our reehold
properties dachne where
figh wicancy mtes make
the areq lass aktroctive for
pur comumens and dnva
less footfall to our starey

For new stote lecisas we Gotwely 21000e and work with aur |endiords ta support rents that are Haxdble and [inkea to
stere wrnaver

Wa aim to align rent free packoges ond espital cantributions fram landiords to ratlect the elovoted store It outs

As units becorme mare tffordable we lbek to intve Into more pHme locations with mare footlall and consumer
e

We are actively “eviewing our [euse portfoha and logiung ta fenegoniate with landiords in reletion to underperforniing
slores

The freehold mstate 5 actvely manoged by the propey teaim ond we will look to dispose of utes which ara net
aligned with the Groups strategy

Mike Ashley

Chief Executive on behalf of the board

5 August 2021
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VIABILITY STATEMENT

The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
requires the Board to express its view of the
long-term viakility of the Group and assess the
Compuany's prospects, capital management
and principal risks.

Accordingly, the Board regularly carries out
thorough and robust assessments of the risks,
including stress testing the Group's re
to threats to its business madel, strategy,
future performance and liquidity and the

risks identified in the Principal Risks and
Uncertainties section of this Report, together
with the steps the Group has token to mitigate
them. In addition, the Board regularly reviews
the performance and financing position of the
Group cnd its projected funding position and
requirements.

The Group centinues to face the challenges
presented by the Covid-19 pandemic on

the retail industry and changing consumer
behaviour, in addition to supply chain issues
due to both the Cavid-19 pandemic and Brexit.

The Board chose to review these aver a three
and a half year period to 27 October 2024,

This period is partially covered by the Group's
Revolving Credit Facility [RCF) up to November
2022 plus two years beyond the maturity date.
Management are currently of the opinion that
any negotiations to replace the current facility
will be concluded well in advance of maturity
with the expectation that a new facility will
have a minimum term of three years. This
period also best reflects both the short term
budgeting and planning process of the Group,
the longer term forecasting and the expected
timescales for strategy implemnentation. The
pracess adopted to prepare the mode) for
assessing the viability of the Group involved
input from a number of departments across the
business to model a conservative scenaric.

\

TR il e

In relotion to eoch viability refoted risk the
Board has: .

Covid-19

= reviewed the impact of the pandemic on the
Group's sales and margin in relation to both
stare and ahline revenue;

+  forecast and medelled future temporary
full store closures from potential further
fockdowns (twe months in FY22 and two
menths in FY23), potential Government
support, foreign exchange exposure and
cost saving initiatives.

Market Forces

+  tested the business modaf's resitience to
changes in the retail market and responses
to variability in sales and margins;

= taken into account further consumer shift
from bricks and mortar to online; and

= forecast the impact of key suppliers going
direct to consumer.

Treasury & Financial Risk

« reviewed the RCF and its suitability for

the Group's cash flow cycle and liquidity
requirements;

« considered the maturity dote of the Group’s
RCF and the potential financing options
post Novermber 2022; and

+  reviewed the Group's hedging strateqgy.

Brexit

« forecast and medelled increosed costs
associated with leaving the EU and impact
on margin.

Supply Chain
= reviewed the arrangements with key
suppliers; and .

+ forecast and modelled increased costs
associated with such items as container
shortages.
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Viability has been assessed by performing
sensitivity analysis and stress testing of the
Group's FY22 budget and forecast for the
iability period prepared by manogement.
This comprised a recent review by the Board
of @ number of scenarios in which the Group's
income statement, balance sheet and cash
flow forecasts were stress tested to determine
how much the Group's trade would need to
be affected in order to breach the Group's
covenants (being interest cover and net debt to
EBITDA ratios). These scenarios included:

» a further decrease in sales of 10%, margin
remaining consistent with original budget
and direct costs falling in line with safes;

= a further decrease in sales and margin of
10%, with no change in direct overheads;

«  maximum breakpoint, being breach of
covenants per the Group's RCF (Sales
would need to reduce by a further 20%
than forecast, with no change in direct
overheads)

The Group's working capital focility is ot
E£913.5m (FY20: £913.5m) available until
November 2021 and is not secured against any
of the Group's assets. The Group enacted an
extension option for a further year to November
2022 for £847.5m.

The Group has consistently created a strong
free cash flow from underlying trading and
has an appropriate hedging strategy to meet
currency risks. There have been no past
balance sheet changes to liquidity.

The impact on the projected cash flow as a
result of the conservative model has been
reviewed, if required management have a
number of mitigating actions which could be
taken such as putting on hold discretionary
spend, liquidating certain assets on-the balance
sheet, reduction in labour and marketing costs.
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Based on its assessment, the Board has a
reasonable expectation that the Group will

be able to continue operating and be able to
meet its lia es as they fcll due for a period
of approximately three and a half years, to the
end of the expected minimum maturity of new
Group finance arrangements and facilities {the
period of the assessment).

The Viability Statement was approved by the

" Board on 5 August 2021, and signed on its

behalf by:

Chris Wootton
Chief Financial Officer
5 August 2021

FRASERS GROUP

THE BOARD

DAVID DALY

Noh-Executive Chair, Chair of the Nomination
Committee

Appointed: 2 October 2017

Committees: Nomination and Remuneration
Committees

Pravious roles:

David held a number of pasitions during

a 30-year international career with Nike,
where his primary focus was the business of
football. He started in a sales role in 1986, later
becoming sales director for Nike UK / lreland.
He retired in 2015 us o Senior Director for
Nike's Club and Federation business, where he
was responsible for the global merchandising
business for all of Nike's leading footbalt clubs.

Prasont roles:
David is a Non~executive Director
of Fulham Football Club.

Key skills, experience and contribution:
David's career ot Nike gave him significant
first-hand knowledge of the sporting goods
industry. He has worked in senior roles in
sales, marketing, product development and
general management, giving him a thorough
understanding of consumer trends and
behaviour. He spent 18 years working outside
the UK and this international experience has
proven crucial to the Board. David joined the
Boerd in October 2017, ailowing him to gain a
sound understanding of the business before
being appointed as Chair in October 2018. His
focus hos been on improving best practices,
cerporate governaunce, promoting Q..<2m1_,2
and driving the elevation strategy. He ensures
the Board functions effectively by facilitating
an open and preductive debate and providing
censtructive challenge.
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MIKE ASHLEY
Chief Executive
Appointed: 1982 (founder}

Previous roles:

Mike estoblished the business of the Group
on leaving school in 1982 and was the sole
owner until the Group’s listing in March 2007,
He was Executive Deputy Chuair prior to being
appointed Chief Executive in September 2016,

Key skills, experience and contribution:

Mike was the founder of the Group and has *
the necessary skills for formulating the vision
and commercial strategy of the Group. With
over 40 years in the sports retail business with
Sports Direct he is invaluable to the Group.
Mike's knowledge and experience in all areas
of retailing, buying, warehousing and logistics
ensures that he is crucial to the effective and
efficient running of operations. During the
continuing Covid-19 pandermic his decisive
leadership has meant the Group has managed
to come out of this crisis in goad health and
will be able to take advantage of future
opportunities.
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CHRIS WOOTTON .

Chief Financial Officer

Appointed: 12 September 2019

Previous roles:

Chris worked in the assurance practice at PwC
for much of his accounting career, including
working on large corporotes and listed entities.

Key skills, experience ond contribution:

Chris is a Chartered Accountant. After joining
the Group, he quickly understood the business
and progressed rapidly within the Finance
team. He has helped the Group on its elevation
path and significantly improved the Finance
teom's skills, experience and copabilities.

Chris is a key driver of the Group's accounting
principles, namely being conservative,
consistent and simple.

Chris has had to play o key role as part of the
Leadership team in the Group's response to
the Covid-19 pandemic, including stakeholder
management, and cashflow management and
forecasting.
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CALLY PRICE

Non-Executive Workforce Director and Workers'
Representative :

Appointed: 1 January 2019

Previous roles:

Cally began her career with Frosers Group as
o casual seles assistant in our Sports Direct
Aberdare store in 2007,

Present roles:

the Compony's Workers' Representative and
Manager of the Cordiff St Dovid's Sports Direct
store.

Key skills, experi ond contril 2

With over 12 years' experience with Frasers
Group, starting on the shop floor working under
a zero heurs contract, Cally is ideally placed
to ensure that the voice of the workforce is at
the forefront of the Board's discussions and
decision-making. She has current knowledge
of every aspect of the day-te-doy running

of a retail outlet and applies this to her
directorship. Cally is committed to ensuring
full transparency across the Group and has
controt of the workferce company app and
confidential hotline, taking on the responsi
of answering every colleague personally.
Catly reports to the Board with worker issues
raised and consistently challenges them

from her unique perspective. Alongside our
colleague develepment team, Cally has been
committed to ensuring that the wellbeing of
all Frasers Group colleagues is paramount
during these unprecedented times. Through
our relationship with the Retail Trust, Cally has
presented company-wide webinars with troined
mental health advisors, to offer support and
guidance to cur colleagues. When restrictions
have permitted her to do so, Cally also sits
with Senior Management at our Shirebrook
Head Office twice weekly, ensuring that she is
continuously involved in the running of Frasers
Group. Cally has become both the voice and
face of our people, representing all of our
colleagues and providing a collective voice
forall.

ity

RICHARD BOTTOMLEY OBE

Senior Independ lon: stive Director,

Chair of the Audit Committee

Appointed: 1 Cctober 2018

Committees: Audit and Nomination
Committees

Previous roles:

Richard has over 25 years' experience working
with listed companies during his time as o
senicr partner ot KPMG, and he remains o
member of the Audit Committee Institute.

Prior to joining the Board, Richard was o
Norn-executive Director of Newcastle Building
Society, where he chaired the Audit Committee.

Present roles:

Richard is Chair of Trustees of the Greggs plc
1978 Retirement and Death Benefits Scheme,
He is olso a Non-executive Director of MSL
Property Care Services Ltd, Marsden Packaging
Limited and Jessgrove Limited.

Key skills, experience and contribution:
Richard has strong experience in corporate
governance, corporate finance and strategy.
His experience in the oudit sector has proven
beneficial. Richard has been influential in
the recruitment of a Head of Internat Audit,
ensuring that risks are properly assessed and
mitigated.

across the U

DAVID BRAYSHAW

Independent Non-executive Director, Chair of
the R tion Co itk

Appointed: 8 December 2016

Committees: Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Pravious roles:

Daovid is a very experienced senior investment
and commercial banker. He has over 30 years'
experience with organisations such as Barclays
Capital, RSBC, Citigroup and Pilkington ple.

Key shills, experience and contribution:

David graduated from Oxford in 1975 with o
Masters of Arts in Chemistry. He has spent

a long career in corporate financing for a
number of major financial institutions, and
was the Group Treasurer of Pilkington plc.
David spent 15 years at Barclays Capital,
advising FTSE 350 companies on all aspects
of corporate, syndicated, and capital markets
funding, tegether with interest rate, foreign
exchange and balance sheet hedging. He has
funded countiess public company acquisitions
and remains involved in an edvisory role with
several corporates and banks in a private
capacity. He has o proven track record in the
finance and oacquisitions sector, providing
sound advice in line with the Group's elevation
strategy.
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NICOLA FRAMPTON
Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed: 1October 2018

Committess: Audit and Remuneration
Committees

Previous roles:

Priar to joining Dowming's Pizza Group, Micala
was at William Hill from April 2010, She was
Managing Director of its UK Retail division,
working closely with the Beard, Exce and
operational management. During her time at
William Hill, Nicola led @ number of successful
major innovation and transformation projects.
Before switching to an executive management
career, Nicola spent the previous ten years
working in the professional services industry,
most recently as a Director at Deloitte.

Present roles:

Micola has spent most of her recent career in
senior executive management roles and has
recently been appointed to a new position
with Domino's Pizza Group, where she is Chief
Operations Officer.

Key skills, experience ahd contribution:

Nicola has extensive experience in risk
muonagement, assurance and corporate
governonce across a wide range of industries,
having specialised in these areas of corperate
activity at both William Hill and prior to that
vihilst at Deloitte. The Board benefits from
Micota's current retail experience as the serving
Managing Director of a large non-competing
retail business. Nicola serves as a Trustee
Board member an a numiber of charities and
brings an informed perspective on corporate
responsibility to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Chair’s Introduction

As Chair, | am responsible for leading the Board
to make decisions that will benefit the Group
and ultimately its stakeholders, My role is to
ensure that we adhere to high standards of
corperate governance and allow the Group

to thrive during these particularly challenging
times. From the downturn of the high street

to the current Covid-19 pandemic, we have
remained resilient and robust in cur approach
te corporate governance.

Our Non-executive Directors have a great depth
of experience, remain independent throughout
afl discussions and are rigorous in challenging
the Executives in the best interests of the Group.
QOur Executive Directors understand the Group’s
values and behaviours. They work tirelessly to
retain and grow shareholder vclue, engage our
warkforce and promote the Group's strategy.

The Board and the Audit Committee held
more meetings than usual during the year, to
ensure that matters arising from the Covid-19
pandemic were dealt with effectively and
promptly. | would like to thank Board members
for their additional time and commitment
throughout this period.

With increasing stakeholder focus and incoming
regulation, we have increased our work on
improving our environmental impact and
sustainability. During the year, the Sustainability
Steering Group was formed under the CFO's
leadership. Further details are included,jn our
ESG report.

Further inforrnation regarding our compliance
with the Code can be found in our Corporate
Governance Statement.

David Daly

Non-executive Chair

5 August 2021

_
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

This Corparate Governance Report and
Statement sets out how the Company has
applied the principles in the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code during its financial yeor
ended 25 April 2021. A copy of the Code is
available at www.frc.orguk.

Disclosures in relation to DTR 7.2.6 {share
capital) and DTR 7.2.8 (diversity) ure set out in

Provitlon Requirement

the Directors' Report and in the Nomination
Committee Stotement.

The Board considers thet it complied with the
majority of the principles and provisions of the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code for the
period ended 25 April 2021. The following table

- sets out the provisions which hove not been

fully compfied with during FY21:

ES Rsrmureration scherses should
promote long-term shareheldings
by Executive Divectors that suppnrt
alignment with long-term sharahalder
Interasts Shers awards gronted for
this purpase should be released
for sale on a phased basis ane
be subject 19 a total vesting ahd
felding panod of five yeors or more
The Reruneration Commitiee
should develop & fermal policy for
post-amployment sharehalding
requirements ancompassing both
unvested ond yested shares

The Group doat not have on LTI
shora schame for the Executive
Directors

As noted s tha Directors’
Remuneration Report, on exacutive
share scheme will be put 1o
shareholdars ot the AGM in respect of
Chris Wool

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY
PURPOSE
The Bourd

There were no Board changes during the
year. The Board's stability has encbled the
Company to confidently meet the challenges
of, and novigate successfully through, these
unprecedent times. !

The Board decided to renew the appointment
of our workforce Director, Cally Price, for a
further few years, subject to AGM election

until October 2024. Cally has had & huge
impact on the Board and successfully acts as a
conduit between the workforce and Directars,
She brings new insights and perspective to

the Board and plays a key role in helping
colleagues understand the challenges and
opportunities facing the business. She has
continued to work tirelessly in briefing the
warkforce on developrents during the Covid-19
pandemic. [ am also pleased to be continuing
in my role of Choir for a further term of three
years, following its renewa! by the Board in July
2020.
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w._._um..uuu Model

The Group's business model remains consistent
in providing customers with the worid’s best
brands. This requires us to have the right
product, in the right place, at the right time and
at the right price. In ensuring the sustainability
of this we have applied the multi-channel
elevation strategy in elevating not only our
stores and brands, but also the customer
experience. Further information on the Group
business model and strategy can be found in
the Strategic Report. Governance plays a key
rofe in the business model and the delivery of
strategy as the Board defines expectations and
verifies performance towords the delivery of
strategic aims and objectives.

fom

Culture

During the year, the Board received an
independent report on the employee value
proposition, including the culture of the Group
which is discussed further in the Our People and
External Board Review section of this Annual
Report, Our culture is embedied in a strong
work ethic, ¢reativity and risk, underpinned by
three key principles to guide cur people in an
aspirational and instructive way:

- Ownit and back yourself;
- Don't hesitate and act with purpose.

- Think without fimits and take the team with

you; )
Further information on the Group's culture

1s contained within the “Culture and Values”
section of this report.

Stakeholder Engogement

The Group has a nrumber of stakeholders to
consider and we use a variety of methods to
ensure that we capture their views and use
them to shape our decisions. Stakeholder
engagement is important to our performance,
and we take on board bath commendation and
constructive criticism. However, whilst we are
mindful of each stokeholder group, we have to
balance their views against other competing
factors and recognise that the result may not
be positive for all stakeholder groups. During
the year, the Board has made decisions based
on Board papers, presentations from senior
executives and discussions with end reports
from external consuftants.

Employees

Please see the Directors’ Report for details of
collecgue engagement.

il across the UK

Sharehclders

Our AGM provides an opportunity for all
shareholders to engage with the Beard

and submit questions. Due to the Covid-19
pandemic, the 2020 AGM was ¢ closed
meeting. However, shareholders were invited

to submit questions prior the meeting. All
resolutions were poessed at the meeting end no
resclutions received an "against” vote of 20% or
more.

The views of major shareholders are shared
amongst the Boord when received and we
respond as necessary. The Board ensures that
it is available for questions at the half year
and full year results presentations, to which
majar shareholders are invited. Shareholders’
opinions are closely manitored through analyst
and broker reparting and all correspondence
received from major investors is circulated to
the relevant committee chair or the Board as
appropriate.

Customers

We strive to continually improve customer
engagement and sotisfuction. The Customer
Service function has continued with its
elevation phase, to support customers by B
offering innovative, easy to use technology
and creating a culture of highly engaged
colleagues. A new contact management
solution has been deployed across alf fascias
within the Group, improving customer
communication channels, allowing customers to
seif-service and improving the level and speed
of response provided by the Customer Service
teams. This work continues, as we offer more
contact channels to enable customers to reach
out to one of our customer care team, helping
to resolve enquiries faster than ever before.

We are committed to fistening to our customers
and have recently engaged an independent
external partner to help us understand and act
upon customers' feedback. We have improved
our reporting, resulting in process changes

and helping us increase our external Customer
Satisfaction (CSAT) scare. The Board approved
measures for store reopening following the
Covid-19 pandemic to ensure the safety of
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customers and colleagues, The Board also
approved a 50% discount for customers
employed by the NHS in recognition of their
work during the pandemic.

Through cur digital elevation strategy we

are investing more than £100m to elevate

our proposition across our retail channels.

This investment will build on our core digital
foundations and includes initiatives to improve
the online customer experience by carsfully
targeted investment in platforms that support
customer service, engagement and data. We
are also investing in digital marketing to drive
sales growth,

Suppliers

We aim to forge strong and transparent
relationships with all of our suppliers, to enable
us to provide customers with excellent products
and to meet the standords that our brand
partners set for their products. The Elevation No
Limits strategy targets stronger relationships
with key brand partners (including our Strategic
Investments) and this continues to be o priority.
Having worked with Nike for over 30 years, the
Chair is instrumental in engaging and helping
to maintain our relationship with one of our key
brand partners, Nike.

Dedicated relationship and procurement and
commercial teams support truly integrated
supplier engagement, Electronic Dato Interface
(EDY capability alse improves our process
efficiency through the commercial cycle and
enhances supplier engagement, through a
dedicated supplier portal. :

We have long-standing relationships with twe
key gateway suppliers, which we use to source
Group own-branded products.

Further details in relation to environmentat and
ethical considerations can be found within the
Environment Report.

a1
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Regulators

The Group makes every endeavour to comply
with its legal and regulatory obligations. We
regularly ligise with HMRC, the FRC and the
FCA in an open and transparent manner. The
Finance team and the Board have established
regular cormmunications with tax authorities
internationally,

During the Covid-19 pandemic, Board members
licised with the Government on @ number of
occasions, to clarify the Group's position, for
example, regarding store closures.

Lenders

Alongside attending all Board meetings, the
CFQ is always available to inform the Board
of any updates in relation to financial lenders.
With the assistence of the Finance team, the
CFO ensures that the Group complies with

the terms and conditions in its credit facility
agreements. The CFO regularly ligises with the
Chair of the Remuneration Committee ond the
Chuair of the Audit Committee, to discuss the
Group's financicl performance.

During the Caovid-¥9 pandemic, the Board
discussed cash flow forecasts and the
availability of headroom in the RCF. This
uncertain time also led to Board discussions
regarding other financing methods, including
the Covid Commercial Finance Facility.

Our Finance team has engaged with our
lenders during the year. There was a particular
focus during the early period of the Covid-19
pandemic in the UK, as management held
regular conference calls with Jenders to say
engaged and informed,

Community

Details of our engagement with the community
can be found in our ESG report.

Workforce Concerns

Workforce concerns regarding the business

and its operctions are taken seriously and we
provide a number of ways that colleagues ¢an
voice their issues. When issues arise, colleagues
are encouraged to speak to their line mancgers,
or they can seek advice from the Retail Trust.

If colleagues want to express their concerns
confidentially or anonymously, they can use the

" whistleblowing hotline or 'Your Company, Your

Veice”. Cally Price works with colleagués across
the business to resolve issues and she reparts
issues to the Board during scheduled meetings.
The Company Secretary is made aware of

all whistle blowing reports and has access to
independent advice as appropriate. '

Director Concerns

During the year, no concerns were roised by the
Board regarding the operation of the Board or
the management of the Group,

Conflicts of Interest

Details of procedures regarding Directors’
conflicts of interest, including the Relationship
Agreement with Mike Ashley as the controlling
shareholder, can be found in the Directors’
Report.

Corporate Governance Policy Review

During the year, external advisors were
appointed to review the Group's governance
policies and ensure they are decumented and
reflect best practica. A review of these findings
will take place in FY22 once the external review
is completed.

helpma to create new British woodland across the UK
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Chair

The Chair leads the Beard, ensuring
constructive communications between Board
members and that all Directors are able to play
a full part in the Board's activities. The Chair
sets Board agendas and ensures that Board
meetings are effective and that ofl Directors
receive accurate, timely and clear information.

The Chair communicates with shareholders
effectively and ensures that the Board
understands the views of major snvestors. The
Chair also provides advice and support to

both the Executive and Non-executive Board
members. Upon his appeintment, the Chair met
the independence criteria set out in provision 10
of the Corporate Governance Code.

._._..._ Chief Executive

The Chief Executive has a pivotal role in
formulating and implementing the Group's
strategy. He is responsible for the.day-to-day
running of the business, equipping himself with
o team of executives to ensure that the Board's
decisions are implemented. The Chief Executive
is the main point of communication between
the senior executives and the Non-executive
Directors, and regularly updotes the Boord on
the Group's trading position.

The Senior Independent Director

Richard Bottomley, OBE, is the Senior
Independent Non-executive Director, He
supports the Chair and Non-executive Directors
and is available to assist shareholders if they
have concerns.
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Role Of The Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors have broad
experience frorm a wide range of sectors.

Their role is to understand the Group in

its entirety, to constructively challengs

strotegy ond management performance,

set executive remuneration and ensure
appropriate succession planning is in place.
The Non-executive Directors must also ensure
they are sotisfied with the accuracy of financial
infarmation and that effective risk management
and internal control processes are in place.

Independence

There are currently three independent
Non-executive Directors, as well as a
Nen-axecutive Chair, 0"Non-executive
Workforee Director and Workers'
Representative, and two Executive Directors.

All Non-executive Directors, other than the
Non-executive Workforce Director and Workers'
Representative, were considered independent
upon appointment, The Non-exetutive
Workforce Director and Workers' Representative
is not considered to be independent as she is
employed by the Group.

Delegation of Responsib

The Board has three sub~committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Comrnittee
and Momination Committee. The Committees
are governed by Terms of Reference, which
provide details of matters delegated to

themn. The Terms of Reference are availsble
on the Group's website at frasers.group/
financials/corporate-governance. The roles

of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Senior
Independent Director ore clearly defined

and set out in writing. The role profiles were
reviewed and updated during the vear.

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Remuneration
pelicy

FRASERS GROUP

KEY BOARD '
RESPONSIBILITIES

Approving budgets

Setting «rm Group's é_rmm and standards

' - Approving strategic aims and objectives. -

- . Remuneration
schemes

‘Service
contracts for
senior executives

,>vu._“o<._:m ana...,_._m_go:u and disposals - ..

‘Approving the.appointment or removal of < -

‘Board members. .
. Approving forelgn exchongs-and
comimodities transactions above
a material level-

* . NOMINATION COMMITTEE" -

Composition of the. Board.™ - E

Succession planning -

Mutters Reserved For The Board

- AUDIT
COMMITTEE

 External’
- audit.

»  Financiol
.. reporting . |

,55.59_.,.,
audit

) Risk
|- management
_nogv._dmmwo.
’ and fraud.

There is a formal schedule of matters that require Board approval, as they could have significant
strategic, financial or reputational impact on the Group, These matters were reviewed and updated

by the Board during the year.

i Across i

16 UK
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Board Performance

2n an annual basis the Non-executive
Directors, led by Richard Bottomley, review the
performance of the Chair, taking into aceount
the views of the Executive Directors. The
cutcome of the review is reluyed to the Cheir,
with censtructive comments to improve future
performance. During the period, the Chair
reviewed the performance of all Non-executive
Directors, to ensure their performance remains
effective and that they are committed to and
capable of performing the role. The Chair has
discussed with each Non-executive Director
F.ow they can improve their knowledge,
behaviour and skills, in order to be better
equipped for the role. The performance of the
Executive Directors was aiso reviewed by the
Chair and the Non-executive Directors and
performance objectives set.

An external review by Belinda Hudson Limited
was also carried out during the year ond this is
discussed within the Board Review report.

A number of informal meetings also took
place throughout the year between various
hon-executive Directors and the Chair without
the Executive Directors present.

Director Commitment

Prior to accepting Board positions, prospective
Directors are informed that foliowing induction,
they are required to dedicate between 15

and 20 days per annum to fulfil the role of a
Non-executive Director, Non-executive Directors
are aware that scheduled and unscheduled
meetings may take place, as well as other
events including site visits, shareholder
mestings and strategy meetings. The time
commitment specified in Non-executive
Directors' letters of appointment is regularly
reviewed by the Nomination Committee and
was recently deemed to be appropriate.
Reqular training is offered to all Directors

and this is further considered during Director
evaluations.

Tre Directors are expected to attend ail
scheduled Board meetings and are asked to
use best endeavours to attend unscheduled
meetings. To assist with monaging their
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comunitiments, the Non-executive Directors are
given prospective annual Board calendars early
in the second half of the preceding year. During
the year, there were five scheduled and seven
unscheduled Board meetings.

Anpoi + oti
ppointment D

Details of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and of the Chair's and the Non-executive
Directors’ appointment letters, are contained
within the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Copies of service contracts and appointment
letters are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office during normal
business hours and at the Annual General
Meeting, Neither of the Executive Directors hald
a directorship of another FTSE 350 company.

Meeting Documentation

A detailed agenda is established for each
scheduled meeting and appropriate
documentation is provided to Directors in
advance. Regular Board meeting agenda
items inctude reports from the Chief Financial
Officer, reports on the performance of the
business and current trading, and specific
proposals where the Board's approval is
sought. The Board manitors and questions
performance and reviews anticipated results.
The Board also receives reports from the
Non-executive Workforce Director and
Workers' Representative, who attends ail Board
meetings.

During Board meetings, presentations are
made on business or strategic issues where
appropriate, and the Board considers the
Group's strategy at least annually. Minutes of
Cammittee meetings are circulated to all Boord
members for agreement. Copies of analysts’
reports and brokers' notes are also provided

to Directors. Guest attendees are invited to
present at Board meetings.

Board Meeting Attendance

The Board has a formal schedule of regular meetings, where it approves major decisions and uses its
expertise to advise and influence the business. The Board will meet on other occasions as and when
required. .

The Directors' attendance at Board and Committee meetings during the year, and the total number
of meetings that they could have attended, are set out in the table below. Attendance wos high for
all Directors, who attended all meetings unless prevented from doing so by a prior commitment.
There was ¢ high number of unscheduled meetings during the year, to discuss the Group’s response
to the Covid-19 pandemic and its impact on our colleagues and stores. A number of additional Audit
Committee meetings also took place. A strategy day was held in October.

Boord Weard Audit  Remunseation  Msmination
Mastinga: ki Hte H L
Sehesdulad  Unechsduled Mentingn Mewtingr Hratings
Mike Ashley 6/6 kit
Richard Bottomley 5i6 6/7 88 EZ)
Dovid Brayshow &/6 i B/8 33 3/3
Dovid Duly &/ s 33 33
Micolg Frampten /6 W B/8 33 L]
Chris Wootton 66 il
Cally Price [ i
] Richard was unuble to attend one Board meehing which was scheduled at short nohice, dus ta being on holiday.

Note A number of Audit Committee, Ramunaration Committaa and Neminatian Cammities meetl uttended by Boord mambers who were not
members of the Commiltees The Board members concemed attended thess meel he Committes Chairs. Board membars attended
these meetings tor infarmatian rether than inflyence, and may net hove attendad for the full durotion of the meetings
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Compony Secretoriol Support

All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, and may
take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense, subject to prior notification
to the other Non-executive Directars and the
Company Secretary. The compeny secretarial
team has been strengthened during the year,

to support the Group's expansion and ensure
compliance with increased regulation.

The Compuany Secretary ensures that the
Company maintains appropriate insurance
cover in respect of its Directors and Officers.
He also advises the Board on corporate
governance matters. During FY21, externai
training was provided to the Boord on the
Market Abuse Regulation.

The Groug's Position And Prospects -

The Boord take responsibility for the
preparation of the Annual Report and
Accounts for FY21, and is in agreement that
taken os a whole, they are Fair, halanced and
understandable. We are confident that the
Annual Report and Accounts provide sufficient
detail and that cur shareholders have been
provided with the necessary information an
the Group's position, performance, business
model and strateqy, further details of which
con be found in the Strategic Report. Detailed
information on the Group’s financial position
and performance can also be focated in the
Group Financial Statements.

- The Covid-19 pandemic ond the resulting
closure of non-essential retail stores for rmuch
of the year, has had significant impact on
high-street retailers, including the Group. During
this period the Board has met an a number of
occasions to discuss the impact of the Cavid-19
pandemic on trading and the Group's lonig-term
future. The Covid-19 pandemic is deemed to
be a highly significant issue for the Group. The
Board is confident that the Group has adequate
resautce te remain in pperationol existence for
the foreseeable future and has continued to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial staternents. As a result
of its findings, the Board has adopted a going
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concern statement for FY21, and full details of
this can be found in the Directors’ Report, The
Directors have also assessed the prospects

of the Group over 3.5 years, the Viability
Statement can be found ot pages 36 to 37.

Risk Manugement

The Board's responsibilities and procedures
for managing risk and the supporting systems
of internal control are set out in the Principal
Risks and Uncertainties section of the Strategic
Report and further information s inchuded in
the Audit Cornmittee Report.

Controls in respect of financia! reporting and
the production of the consolidated financial
statements are well established. Group
accounting policies are consistently applied
and review and reconciliaticn controls operate
effectively. Standard reporting packages are
used by afl Group entities to ensure consistent
ond standard information is available for

the production of the consolidated financial
statements. The Group Accounting Manuat is
under a ¢ycle of ongoing review and forms part
of our internal controls continuous improvement
activity during FY22.

The Board has carried out a robust assessment
of the Groups’ emerging and principat risks in
the period and further detail can be found in
the Strategic Report as nated ghave.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Sharehotder

| am plecsed to present the report of the Audit
Commiittee (the Committes) for the 52-week
period ended 25 April 2021. The report sets out
the Committee's work and areas of focus during
this unprecedented year, which has seen the
globol spread of Covid-19 and Government-
mandated lockdowns impacting all
geographies across our Group, The Committee
has therefore focused on and discussed the
Group's performance, and the impacts of, and
response to these external factors.

We monitored the Group's ongoing viability
and going concern positions, incorparating
the impacts of the pandemic dnd including
the review of key accounting judgements and
estimates. We have kept the Group risk profile
and emerging risks under continued review
ond had clear oversight of the activities of
the executive Compliance & Risk Graup. We
have alse monitored the Group's respanse to
opportunities and acquisitions, to ensure we
come through the period stronger and on track
to meet aur strategic targets on the return ta
broader economic recovery.

On behalf of the Board, the Committee
monitars the Group's financial reporting
processes and the integrity of its financial
statements ond ensures high standards of
quality and effectiveness in the external qudit
process, The Committee also reviews and
monitors the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk management and internal
centrol, governance and complionce.

We have built a strong and productive working
relationship with RSM since their appointment
it 2019 s our Externol Auditer ond we value
the integrity, strength and depth of their oudit
and appreach,

The Committee has supparted management
with the Group’s RCF renewal with potential

_new ond existing lenders and is comfartable

with the strength of engagement and financial
support for the business and its strategic intent.

scllzind acrons the UK

We have made strong pragress against our
continuous improvement ossurance agenda
across governance, risk and control and this
was noted in the Group's external Board
evaluation which is discussed in more detail
within the External Board Review report We
alse continue to strengthen relationships with
our Big 4 and Top 10 co-source partners. We
have closely menitored the Government's oudit
and governance reform agenda and considered
our appreoch to readiness as part of our FY21
and FY22 agendas.

The Committee values the ongoing work of the
Group's Retail Support Unit and Digital Risk
teams and continues to seck assurance thot
thewr work remains a strength in our Group. Our
performonce as o business has remained strong
in these extremely chatlenging circumstances.

)t hos been impressive to see the continued
strength and depth of experience aeross

all our business tearms and their ability to
withstand and manage the significant risks that
materialised.

ed that the going concern
basis of accounting is appropriate (see further
detoil ot page 64) and that the Group is viable
over its assessment period (see page 36).

I would like to take the opportunity to thank all
our colleagues for their valuabie commitment,
contributions and support towards our Group
performance,
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Membership

During the year, the Audit Committee
comprised three Non-executive Directors, David
Brayshaw, Nicola Frampton and myself as
Chair. Biographies of each Committee member
are set out in the Directors’ profiles on pages 37
to 39 of this Annual Report.

As Chair of the Audit Committee and Senior
Independent Non-executive Director, | am

-satisfied that the Cormmittee's membership

includes Directors with recent and relevant
financial experience and competence in
accounting, risk management and governanice,
and that the Committee as @ whole has
competence relevant to the retail secter in
which the Group operates.

Meetings

The Committee met eight times during the
year as we have extended our agenda to
accommodate Qur assurance requirements.
Non-Committee members of the Board and
the executive management team attended
Committee meetings at my invitation te
ensure the Committee is kept informed of
important developments in the business and
the risk and centrol environment. Attendance
by members of the executive management
team also helps to reinforce a strong culture

of risk management within the business.
Non-Committee members do not participate in
Audit Committee decision making.

Qur External Auditor attended all Committee
meetings during the year. The Committee
meats privately with the External Auditor ot
least annually. In my capacity as Chair, | have
regular meetings with the External Auditer
prior to each Committee meeting during

the audit planning process and as the audit
progresses, to address issues early and to avoid
any surprises. | am alse in continuocus contact
with the Board Chairman, Chief Executive,
Chief Financial Officer, External Audit Lecd
Partner and our Head of Internal Audit &

Risk Management, who has an independent
reporting line tc me.
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The Main Responsibilities Of The Audit
Committee

The Cemmittee's main responsibilities, as
delegated by the Board, remained unchanged
during the year and are set out in the
Committee's Terms of Reference. These include
oversight, assessment and review of:

Financial Statements And Reporting:

+  The integrity of the Group's financial
reporting as a whole and any formal
announcements relating to the Group's
financial performance, including any
significant judgements contained in them;
and

= The Group's assessment of its going concern
and lenger-term prospects and viability.

External Auditor

¢+ The effectiveness of the external audit
process taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements; and

» Developing and implementing policy on the
supply of non-audit services by the External
Auditor and appraving any such work.

Risk Monagement And Internal Controls

= The effectiveness of the Group's internal
financiol controls, risk managerment and
internal control systems, including the
activities of the Internal Audit function,
and driving an agenda of continuous
improvement;

*  Identifying and cssessing principal and
emerging risks and risk exposures; and

*  The effectiveness of whistleblowing
arrangemenits.
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In addition, the Committee:

« Supports the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for Corporate Governance
Code compliance;

*  Advises the Board on the outcome of the
external audit and whether it considers
the Annual Report and Accounts, when
taken as a whaole, are fair, balanced and
understandable and provide information
necessary to shareholders to assess the
Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy;

*  Makes recommendations to the Board on
the appointment, reappointment or removal
of the External Auditor;

* Approves the External Auditor's fees and
terms of engagement;

*  Maintains strong relationships with the
Board, executive management, the External
Auditor and Internal Audit, in the execution
of their respective responsibilities; ond

* Reports to the Board on how the Committee
has discharged its respensibilities during the
year.

Dwring The Period

The Committee focused on o number of
significant areas of internal cantrol (including
finoncial, operational and compliance controls).
During the period, the Committee:

» Monitored the business response, internal
controls and impact on the Group's financial
performunce and reporting as the Covid-19
pandemic risk materialised;

* Reviewed the Group's financial statements
and assessed whether suitoble accounting
policies have been adopted and whether
management has made appropriate
astimates and judgements;

* Reviewed the detailed scenarios and
assumpticns behind the going concern basis
of accounting and longer-term viability;

» Assessed the effectiveness of the externol
cudit process and considered the
reappointment of RSM as the External
Auditor for FY22;

sh woordland across the UK

Menitored the effectiveness of the Group's
risk mandagement and internal control
systemns and received detailed reports
and presentations on principal risks
management;

Continued to support the Finance
leadership and evaluated the strength and
depth of the Finance team;

Reviewed its Terms of Reference; and

Together with the Board, considered the
Committee’s own effectiveness.
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Risk Management And Int

| Controls

Information on our approach o risk
management and internal control is set out

in the risk section of the Strategic Report and
concluding of our review of these systems is
set out on page 30. Cur plans for continuous
improvement of our risk management and
internal control systems remained in place
during the year and establishing a Group
nterngl Audit & Risk Managemaent funetion has
reinforced our progress. The work of our Retail
Support Unit is central to the Group's system
of internal control. The Unit provides internal
assurance on the efficacy of controls over our
retail aperational procedures and systems

In the year, the Committee focused on a
number of significant areas of internal control,
including:

+  Solvency and liquidity;

+ Business continuity, IT disaster recovery and
incident response;

+  Key legislative and regulatory obligations,
including data protection, pandemic-related
regulation and oversight of Government
plans for audit and governance reform
- strengthening controfs over financial
reporting;

v Cyber risk and data loss prevention,
including strengthening of cur information
security capability;

+ Progress against business and finance
systems transformation; -

» Updates on the governance policies review
and reporting;

+  Reviewing significant accounting
judgements and estimates;

»  The valugtion of assets and stock and the
caleuiation of associated provisions; |

» The effectiveness of hedge accournting
and the managerment of foreign currency
exposures;

* Property and the systems in place ta ensure
impairments ore recognised on a timely
bosis;
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« Climate risk and our environmental, social
and governance agenda, supporting
Taskforce for Climate-related Financial
Disclesures reporting; and

= The Group's banking arrangements,

See further ot poge 39 for the Board's
statement on Corporate Governance.

Audit Quality

The Cammittee received comprehensive
updates from RSM and the business in response
to cutlined reform proposats in the current
Goverpment consultation; restoring trust in
audit and corporate governance.

Building on the three significont reviews in

the last couple of years -the Competition and
Markets Authority {CMA) Market Study, the
Kingman Review and the Brydon Review - the
UK audit sector, the audit profession, audit
reguiation, and the quality of the audit product,
have never been under greater scrutiny.

The Committee will continue to oversee the
development of plans for compliance readiness
in responsé to the current consultation,

External Auditor

The Committee was pleased to recommend the
recppointment of RSM as Exterrial Auditor for
FY21 following a robust external audit review of
FY20. The length of tenure of RSM as external
auditors is 2 years,

RSM has reported to the Committee that, in its
professional judgment, it is independent within
the meaning of regulatory afd professionai
requirements and the objectivity of the audit
engagement partner and audit staff is not
impaired. The Audit Committee has gssessed
the independence if the ouditor, and concurs
with this statement.

The Committee evaluates the effectivenass of
the external audit process on an ongoing bosis
and makes recommendations annually to the
Board on the External Auditor's reappointment.
The External Auditor is then proposed for
reappointment {(as applicable) each year at the
AGM.

FRASERS GROUP

In making its recommendations to the Board,

the Committee considers o number of factors
relating to the level of service provided by the
External Auditor, the quality of its work and its
independence. These inciude:

+  The quality and scepe of the planning of
the external audit, including the External
Auditor's assessment of risks and how it
intends to evolve the audit plan to respond
to changes in the business; .

+  The quality and timeliness of the External
Auditor's reports to the Committee and the
Board during the year;

+  The level of understanding that the External
Auditor has dernonstrated in relation to the
Group's businesses and the retail sector;

+  The cbjectivity of the External Auditor's view
on any deficiencies in internal control which
came to its attention during the course of its
audit work, and the robustness of challenge
and its findings on areas which require
management judgement;

» The contents of any external reports or
regulatory statements published in respect
of the External Auditor; and

= The nature and scope of non-audit services
provided by the External Auditor and the
level of fees charged for these services.

We have a stringent policy and approval
process in place in respect of non-gudit
services and our view is to keep this type of
engagerment minimal unless in exceptional
put reasonable circumstances, and in line with
Group policy.

Opinion On The Annual Report And Accounts

The Board has asked the Committee to advise
it on whether the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, are fair, balenced and
understandable and provide the infarmation
necessary for sharehalders to assess the
Group's position, performance, business model
and strategy.

dactoss the UK

The Committee has reviewed the process
far preparing this Annual Report in order to
assess whether other information contained
in it is consistent with the Group's financial
statements for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021. This process has included the following
key elements:

* Reviewing new regulations and reporting
requirements with external advisers
to identify additional information and
disclosures that may be appropriate;

= Preparing o detailed timetable and
allocation of drafting responsibility to
relevant internal Yeams with review by an
appropriate senicr manager;

»  Providing on explanation of the requirement
for the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, to be fair. balanced and
understandable, to those with drafting
responsibility;

= Monitoring the integrity of the financial
statements and other information provided
to shareholders to ensure they represent
a clear and accurate assessment of the
Group's finoncio) position and performance;

- Reviewing significant financial reporting
issues ond judgements contained in the
financial staternents;

*  Review of all sections of the Annual Report
by relevant external advisers;

+  Raview by the senicr manager working
group responsible for the Annual Report
process; and

+  Overall review of the contents of the Annual
Report and Financial Stetements for the
period under review.

The Committee has advised the Board thet

it considers the Anrual Report and Financial
Statements for the year ended 25 April 2021,
when taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced
and understandable and that they provide the
necessary information to assess the Group's
pasition, performance, business model and

strategy. .
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Significant Financial Reporting lssues

The Committee has considered the following areas of significance during the pericd and held
discussions with management and the External Auditor in reviewing these matters. The Committee is

satisfied with how each of these

matters has been discussed and addressed.

Gomg concern and viabikty

The Audit Committe2 has hald axtensive tolks with inanagermant on gong concern end viabilty, and

Both thase ussessments Fhis ncludes reviewing cash fow farecasts, sensitivty analyss, finance
facdivies and futura Linding plons We lered oreas of ongang in respect of the
pandemic, Brext ond tha broodar econarmic downtue

Whilst the Group's R-F expires i bar 2022, and the Ci (4ae are confident new
financing will be arrenged with the Grouy's syndicate of lenders, replacing the current facility by tha
tima it expiras On Hre basis, the Camimitter i saushed that the geing concern basis of accounting 15
appropricts and the Group 1s iabls over its ussessment pariod Further wkormation 1s sncluded withn
the Vibiity Statement and the Diracrar's Report

Invantary

The Committes has ¢ ansidared the work parformed on invantory viluaton dnd prowsisring ond has
reviewed management’s methodology Tha Commutrea is satisfed the approach s comtistent with the
priar period and fhus apprapnately cansldured the impoct of the Cowd-19 pandemic on tha Group's
inventory posit

IFRS 16 accounting for facses

The Cammitter has considerad oll aspects of IFRS16, accounting for leases including munag
mathadalagy. and ond the p 11 tha Fintncil Statetments
Caminittes s satishe’d thut rmanagement’s approseh is rassonable

imparment of nght-of-use assets; property, plont
& equipment, fraehold proparty and reloted
propecy provisons

The Comimites ravie ved and challenged management’s imponnnant tes
assuinptions and mathodologes usad The projected cosh fows, discount rates und

I used in weie cOons: apprapriate within the context of tha Cowd-19
cansumer behawoyr ond guonomic uncartainties

Forward cutency controcts

The Comimittea reviewed und discussed with manogement tha valuatisn methedelogy used ond
accounbing treatmen” apphad to denvatve controcts The Cornmittee clso review delagated authootws
in placa for the exeewion af such tronsachions nnd 15 satisfied these are appropriots

Accounting for sand

the Corrmittee 's work on pi and sk, in

respact of nvestment shareholdings in sxcess of 20% This wark involves mqnagemart judgement en
i 1as The Comimites has discussad

manogement and reviewsd theu representalions in determining sigmikcant

Asseciales, the Comm ittea also o 's work an pr and risk
16 UssGEDE 3 Iy chscussed with manegemant und reviewed its
FaESEntalions in dets er tha Group has control ovar its assocales

The Cornmttei s sahhed thul monngement judgernents are oppropnate, that the investment in
Mulberry in the pence has been treated and disclosed approprntely and thew 15 otherwise no motenal
changa from tha Brior year posdon impacting Its Lonctusion

The C ttee hos ealuated the of related-party disclasures thraugh discutsions
with management ant review of popers autlining the valuation of the kean te Fowr Holdings Lemted
and the FY21 poymant und apgroach to provisioning wn respect of MM Prop Consultancy Limited The
Committee 15 sabisfied thot the disclosuras, payment ond opprouch to pravisinning ace opproprinte

Government support tlurlough}

The Group has receved Gowerment support in the penod in the torn of the Cerenuwrus Job Ratention
Schame bosed an mar dotad stora elosures and the nead to praseres obs The ¢
scheme and the need o ansure compliance with is legisiative and regulatory hemework hove made
this o kay orea of focyu . dunng the yeor and for external oudit raview The Coir e 5 sotistied, when
cansidanay the work of the interol teams and external adwisers thot managernant has appraptiately
wecounted for and rec-agnised the Gavarnment support recevad and that thera s ha matenal srror in
tha processas supporting thess claims Tha Committee also natas Hie transparency and engagerment
with HMRC throughout this process

Legal and other prowsicns and uceruals

The Commatae hos res iewsd and thscussed with ent s s and d 8 10
respuct of legal pravisoning and accrval for tox-relaled rmatters ot the penod and Given tha inharant
s of uncertainty or 4 eshimation in these areas, the Committae has carafully considerad and
d s and reviewsd 1\ thrd-party reparts whare avarable
ee 15 sabisfied the classthcobion and prasentation of legal und othar provisions

are appaphate
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CMA Crder 2014 Statement Of Compliance

Frasers Group confirms that it was in compliance with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services
for Large Companies Market investigation [Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and
Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014 during the financial period ended 25 April 2021, The
Committee has discussed all the items above in detail with the External Auditor.

Reviaw Of The C ittea’s Effecti

The annual review of the Committee's effectiveness was included in the externally facilitated Board
evaluation during the period. The Committee is pleased to see the positive outcame of that report, as
well os its observations and recommendotions.

The Committee has improved its governance and annual planning cycle in the year ond will continue
to build on this in FY22. | monitor and assess the effectiveness of the Committee regularly as Chair
and invite input from the External Auditor on this.

Key Objectives For FY22 -
The Committee’s key cbjectives for FY22 are:

» Continue to monitor the impacts of the pandemic on our business, its perfarmances, its response
and its financicl position;

+  Oversee the development of plans in response to the Government's reform praposals: restoring
trust in audit and corporate governance;

= Monitor continuous improvemeant of the Group's systems of risk management and internat control;

= Muaintain a strong relationship with our External Auditor and engagement on the delivery of a
robust, efficient and mzmnﬁ:\m external audit; and .

*  Strengthen assurance activity across the Group based on the three lines model, {accountubility,
actions, assurance).
Richard Bottomley

Chair of the Audit Commitiee and
Senior Independent Non-executive Director

5 August 2021

Carben Capturad through Ihe Woodland Trost, heiping fo create new Botish woodland across tha UK
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE wmvoa.

Degr Shareholder

To meet the Group's needs, the Nomingtion
Committee must ensure that the Board
remains competent, diverse, we!l balanced and
equipped to deal with any present ar future
issues which may arise. It is alsc important
that the Nomination Committee both supports
and challenges the decisions of the Executive
Directors, which includes reviewing the Group's
leadership and making recommendations
regarding the appointment of new Directors
and extending the term of office of exjsting
Directors,

Biographical details of each Committee
memmber are shown in the Board of Directors’
profiles on pages 37 to 39,

The Nomination Committee usually meets
formally twice a year, although additional
meetings take place when appropriate. The
Committee formally met three times during
FY21, with ail meetings being held virtually due
to the Covid-19 pandemic. The Committee
members also had a number af informal
discussions during the year. All members of
the Nomination Committee are Non-executive
Directors and, with the exception of the Chair,
are considered to be independent.

The Responsibifities Of The Nomination
Committee Include:

+ Reviewing the [eadership needs of the
Group, looking at both Directors and senior
monogement;

*  Reviewing the composition, structure and
size of the Board, and recommending
adjustments to the Board, having regard to
diversity, skills, knowledge and experience;

*  Reviewing the time the Non-executive
Directors are required to spend discharging
their dutias;

-+ ldentifying and nominating, for the approval

of the Board, candidates o filt Beard
vacancies as and when they arise;

+  Considering succession planning for
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Directors and senior management,

taking inte account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
skills and expertise therefore needed on the
Board,

+ Formally documenting the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors;

+  ldentifying potential candidates for senior
posts, and making recommendations to the
Board; and

= Considering the recommendations to
shareholders for re-electing the Directors,
under the annual re-election provisions of
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.

A full list of the Committee's responsibilities
are set out in its Terms of Reference which are
availubie on the Group Website: www frasers,
groug.

What Has The Committee Done During
The Year?

Board Nominations

+ The Committee considered and
recommended to the Board the
reappointment of Cally Price as Non-
executive Workforce Director. In making
this recommendation, the Committee
recognised the enormous value and
contribution that Caily brings to the Board,
She provides great insight and perspective
on dll important issues that offect the
performance of the workforce across the
organisation.

+  The Committee considered and
recommended the election or re-election
of all Directors at the AGM, following
consideration of their effectiveness and
commitment.

o

frese

Composition of the Board

= The Commuttee has reviewed the Board's
composition and we continue to look to add
talented people to the Board, who will bring
the appropriate skills and experience. The
restrictions as ¢ cansequence of Covid-19
lockdowns have slowed the process but we
rernain committed to strengthening our
Board. We have again spoken to Audeliss
recruitment which speciaiises in recruiting
diverse talent ond we have also had
discussions with a number of candidates
with strong experience and a background in
HR. Audeliss has no other connection with
the Company or any of its Directors.

+ In considering new appointments to
the Board, the Committee will identify
suitabie candidates ta fulfil the skill-sets
required, by taking into account succession
plarning and diversity objectives. Members
of the Committee ond the executive
management tean will then meet with the
candidate before the Committee considers
recommending the appointment to the
Board,

Boord Evoluction

»  Belinda Hudson Ltd was engaged
to conduct the FY20 external Board
evaluation, Due o restrictions caused by
the Covid-19 pandemic this was delayed
until FY21. Neither the Company nar any of
its Directars has any other connection with
Belinda Hudson Ltd. The evaluation was
conducted via one-to-one interviews with
individual Directors and key members of
senior management. This is discussed within
the Board Review report.

a 1 Pau. A = el
Pet pp

All Board members, both Exacutive and
Non-Executive, went through an annual
performance review during FY21and each
Director engaged fully in the process. This
included setting objectives for each individual. |
led these appraisols, as Chair of the Board and
the Nominotion Committee. This process will be
repected annuatly. Richard Bottomley, Chair of
the Audit Committee and Senior Independent
Non-executive Director, led my performance
appraisal and goal setting.

FRASERS GROUP

The Directors will take inte account any
development needs identified in their appraisals
and will be challenged on how they have taken
action against these gools during their next
annul appraisol.

Diversity and Inclusion

The Board reviewed various diversity and
inclusion policies from other comganies, to
enable us to benchmark ourselves-ogainst
industry standaords. As a consequence we have
now updated our Boord Diversity policy, which
can be found on cur website at
httpsi/frasers.group/

The Board has two female Directors,
representing 28% of the Board. There is
currently no representation from ethnic minority
backgrounds on the Board, However, we note
the contents of the Hompton Alexander Report
and the Parker Review for FTSE 250 companies
and we are continually seeking to increose
diversity at Board level, as reflected in our
cbjectives below.

The Group's objectives in relation to Board
diversity and inclusion are:

* To ensure that the Board has an appropricte
rrix of skills, experience and knowledge,
to ensure a variety of perspectives are
represented on the Board and enable the
Board to effectively oversee and support the
Group’s growth and management;

« Tomaintain Board representation from
the workforce, which brings the voice of
colieagues into the boardroom, supports
our strategy of investing in our people and
enables the Board to effectively oversee
and suppott the Group's growth and
mandagement.

+  Toincrease female representation on the
Board to 33%, in line with the Hampton
Alexander target; and

+ To strive to appoint at ieast one Director
of colour to the Board by 2024, as
recommended by the Parker Review.

The Group achieved its Diversity palicy
abjective in respect of gender and age, by
having a strong gender balance in senior
management and their direct reports [see
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gender diversity tuble of page 23, and a varied
representation of ages in middle and senior
management. When reviewing candidates

who may become potential Board members,
the Committee has regard to factors including
professional experience, skills, education,
gender, ethnicity and background to ensure

a variety of perspectives are represented at
Bourd tevel. As discussed above, we have been
working with o recruitment agent specialising in
diverse candidates. The Board is conscicus that
to successfully deliver the strategic goals of

the business cur people, including the Board of
Directors must reflect the diverse cultures and
values of our customer base.

The Committes recognises the advantages

of having a diverse team and has therefore
reviewed the composition of the senior
management team, including their direct
reports. A number of senior management
roles were held by women at period end,
including the Head of Internal Audit ond Risk
Meanagement and UK Financial Controller. Qur
senicr leadership team is 27% female, whilst
the overall UK workforce is approximately 52%
female.

Woe were pleased that our most recent Gender
Pay Gap Report showed a reduction in the
median gender pay gap within our largest
relevant subsidiary (SPORTSDIRECT.com Retail
Limited) to 0%. However, we will continue to
explore ways to address other gender pay gap
differences within our business,

Further details on diversity and inclusion are set
out in the Our People Report.

Frasers Group Elevation Programme

During FY21, we worked with We are Wiser to
launch the Group's new Elevation Programme.
This has resulted in the recruitment of a diverse
mix of talent, with the potential to become the
future leaders of the Group.

David Daly

Chair of the Nomination Committee

5 August 21
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EXTERNAL BOARD REVIEW

We recognise that some of the main driving
forces behind the success of Frasers Group

are our Board, Committees and management
teams. To ensure we are getting the best from
our Boord, we undertook an independent review
of our Board and Committee effectiveness, We
hoped that this review would provide insight
and clarity into how our leadership team is
performing, especially when benchmarked
aguainst other listed companies, as well as
highlight areas of improvement that would
add value to the Group and ensure we become
market leaders in governance and best
practice.

In January 2020, the Board agreed to engage
Belinda Hudson Limited to undertake a review
of ocur Board and Committee effectiveness.
Belinda is o recognised expert in enhancing
board effectiveness and has over 15 years’
experience working with Boards, Committees
and directors of FTSE 350 companies. Belinda
Hudson Limited has ne other connection with
the Group or any of its Directors.

The Board review was originally due to be
completed prior to the Agpril 2620 financial

year end. However, it was deferred when the
first lockdown was initiated as there was a
strong preference for conducting face to face
interviews, As it became clear that foce to face
meetings would not be an option for some
time, it was decided to proceed with remote
meetings early in 2021 to ensure that evaluation
of the Board's performance could be conducted
by the end of the April 2021 financial year,

Mathodology

Belinda undertook confidential one-to-one
discussions with members of the Board and

a selection of senicr monagement who have
regular interaction with, and support the Board
and Committees. She aitended the February
2021 Board meeting for observational purposes,
Belinda was given unfettered access to the
previeus 12 months’ Board and Committee
papers and minutes and governance
documents to inform her review.

sh waoadland across the UK

She compiled a comprehensive report which
covered all aspects of board and committee
performance. It was broken down into the
following categories:

~ Board composition ond dynomics

-~ The Board's role

- The Boord at work

~ Committees

d._m report was presented to and discussed with
the Board at the April 2021 Board meeting.
Outcomes

The report highlighted the many strengths of
the Board and Committees ond contained
several recommendations for further
development. The Board accepts the
recommendations and where necessary, is
taking steps to implement them.

Belinda's findings in each section were as
follows:

Board C ition and Dr
P Y

The report found that “the Board at Frasers
Group has enjoyed o good period of stability
since the CFO was oppointed in September
2019. The Board has strengthened and is
becoming increasingly effective under the
leadership of the current Chair with strong
support from the Senior Independent Director
and others.”

The Beord composition benefits significantly
from the inclusion of a full-time employee

as the Non-executive Workforce Director

and Workers' Representative. It provides the
Board with “full transparency and visibility on
the perspective of the waorkforce without any
filters” and very strong insights into workforce
angagement.

Despite some previous investor opposition to
the Chair, the review presented a positive view
of the Chair. He brings many relevant and
useful strengths and is growing into the role
well. Board members and Senior Management
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were unonimous in their agreement that he wads
an excellent choice far the role. He possesses
“ivaluable knawledae and experience

reldting to the sectol, ecosystem and brond
refctionships’ and his selationship with the
Chief Executive "is based on openness and
transparency os'well as mutual trust and
respect. The relationship appears robust so
that they can challenge each other and handle
disagreement”. The Chairis cornmitted to
developing his skills and addressing the gqups in
his knowledge.

The overcll view of the Seniar Independent
Directorand other Non-executive Directors of
the Board was positive. They are ait diligent
and focused an gcting in the best interests of
the Group. They bring with them a breadth
of knowhedge and experience that they

are witling to share both inside and outside
the boardroom. The Seriof Independent
Director plays 0 very useful role in developing
external relationships through networking and
pramoting the Group in o positive light.

The leadership _v_.osn_mm by the Chief

Executive was described as being inspirational,
honest, transparent and collaborative. The
Chief Exgcutive plays a pivotal role in the
success of the Group. He adopts a posite

oind constructive attitude to the Board and
welcomes input and chollenge from the
Non-executive Directors. The review highlighted
the disparity between internolly held views of
the Chief Executive and the Chief Executive’s
external reputatian, He i taking steps to
(emedy the impact his external reputation

thas on the Group by stepping pack from his
external focing roles - t& enable the next
generation of talent within the Group to elevatg
the external reputation of the Group.

The review hos identified some oreas of
suggested development including the
recruitment of @ Non-executive Director

with strong listed company experience and
achieving a greoter degree of diversity in Board
cormposition. White the Board benefits from
good gender diversity, it kacks age and ethnic
diversity. The Momingtion Committee wilt seeit
to address these issues during the next finoncial
year.
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Despite the challenges identified, the overoll
assessment of the Board's composition, senicr
leadership and dynamics wos overwhelmingly
positive. Members of the Boord and Executive
Committee enjoy positive relationships and
generally enguge in positive Board behaviours.

The Board's Rale

Board members have & good understanding of
the role of the Board, but further developrent
is noeded to ensure thot the Board fulfils ot
aspects of its role and strengthens Certain
aspects of the Group's corporate governance.
These issues are olready being addressed

by the Board following a report produced by
axternal advisars.

Belindo noted that the Board offers a good mix
of support ond challengs and adds value on
oy fronts. The Non-executive Directors make
a good contribution to the Group in ways that
gc beyond the usuah remit of Non-executive
Directors. The introduction of the strategy

day has been very “positive and useful’ and
|aaves scape far further development. The
current aversight that the Board exercises aver
the financiol and operational perfarmance

is sound. Areas where inproverments can be
mede include stakeholder focus and oversight
of health and safety. However, it has beed
highlighted that the Boord took great interest
in the heatth and safety of the workforce during
the pandemic.

It is encouraging that the Board increasingly
focusing on people related raatters, has
employed axperts to review ond develop its
employer value proposition and is actively
pursuing Q strategy of developing @ younger
cadire of management to support the
sustainability of the Group- The intention of
comemunicating a positive culture from the

top appears to be effective; s Non-executive
Directors hove made positive reports that
mhare is 0 sirong sense of appartunity and
trust emjoyed by employees.” The Boord is

also driving the agenda of increasing diversity
and inclusion throughout the Group with the
CFO and Non-Executive Waorkforce Director
and Workers' Representative leading the
initiative. The Roard is robust, has influence and

— \,‘l\...“\\\\\i\ta\k\l\
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communicates o positive cutture whilst leaving positive but alse robust and challenging.
room for further growth and developrment as

the business grews.

The Board at Work

The review has highlighted the "very positive
and extensive role” the Remuneration
Committee has played in the development of
the Fearless 1000 share plan which secured
strong shareholder support ot the October
2020 AGM. The Group 18 currently spearheading
numerous initiatives to overhaul policies and
processes to ensure it offers competitive
packages to employees with strong drive

and suppert from the Comymittee and input
provided by external remunetation consultants.

The current orrangements for the frequency of
formal Board meetings hove been assessed as
appropriate and peneficial as they meet the
needs of the Non-executivé Directors without
placing unnecessary burden on the Executives.
The format of the mestings has aise been
cormended as it gives the members ample
apporturnity ¥ interact outside the meetings

and develop theit relationships.
il P David Daly

The information provided ta the Board is
generally of a good quality and is presented in
a very open and trapsparent manner. However,
_30q0<m3m3ﬂm con be made to the timeliness

in which itis provided. There was concern that
the Campany Secretarial team was sometimes
overwhelmed but this team has recently been
strengthened with the recruitment of twa new
hires and is better placed now to provide strong
support to the Board and Committees.

Chair of tha Nomination Committee

5 August 2021

Committees -

The review of the Gommittees was aqually
encouraging. Athough arecs of ynprovement
have been identified for each of the
Committees, the overa rching conclusion wos
that they are becoming increasingly effective in
carrying out their functiens.

The Audit Committe€ has become maore

affective under the |eadership of the Chair

His background as @ partnerin o Big Four -
accounting firm rmeens e brings useful and

relevant experience. The Chair's management

of meetings hos been commended and

the Committee enjoys good support from

management.

It has also been recognised that the
Committee's oversight of risk governance

has seen significant improvernents with the
recyuitment of the new Heod of internal

Audit who hos mode good prograss inthe
further development of the risk management
tromawork and is “bringing increased rigour e
the work of Internal Audit.”

The Audit Committee anjoys @ relationship with
the External Auditors that is collaborative and .

adinne] aCEss ther LK
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

Following the successful launch of the Fearless
1600 plan in October 2020, the UK entered into
lockdown in December 2020 and o significant

There were no cther exercises of judgement or
discretion by the Committee save gs detailed in
this report.

» although the business has accessed
Government Ucﬂ:mmmimbvvo_& initiatives,
including furlough and business rates
relief, we used these programmes in the
way in which we understood these to
be applied, and the consequence has
been that there have been no major
redundancy rounds within our business
despite extended lockdown periods,

portion of our stores were temporarily closed,
This has the potential to limit our ability to .
hit the share price targets that apply to the
plan. We have therefore decided to extend

the perfermance period for the Fearless 1000
plan, which will now end in QOctober 2025
{being a total performance period of five years).
As a result of this change, the performance
period for the Fearless 000 and the proposed
Executive Share Scheme (explained further
below)] will ke aligned.

Revised Remuneration Policy And Opercation Of
Pay In FY21

At the 2021°'Annual General Meeting (AGM') we
are asking shareholders to renew our 3-year
Director's remuneration policy ("policy”) which
was last approved at cur AGM in 2018 {98.8%
approval).

Dear Shareholder,

As the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
{the *Committee”) | am pleased to present
our Directors' Remuneration Report for the
year ended 25 April 2021. This report is split
into three parts: this Annual Statement, the
Policy Report and the Annucl Report on
Remuneration. + the wider sccietal contribution of the

Actions Taken In FY21 And [mpacts On Pay business was supported:

Where any changes have been made to the
2018 policy, these are highlighted in the policy
report section. In particular, we are making
three changes in the operation of Executive
Director pay.

CFO's Salary

»  we offered our fleet of vehicles to the In terms of senior executive remuneration in
NHS for transporting vital equipment to FY21:
where it was most needed; and

A key context for decisions taken by the
Committee in 2020 was the impact of Covid-19
on our business, Fellowing the onset of the
Covid-19 pandemic in fate Q1 2020, the »  we also offered NHS staff discounts on
Committee supported the actions taken by our bikes and sporting goods equipment in
Board in relation to pay and wider colleague our Evans and Sports Direct stores. On continues to decline any remuneration in his to £250,000 p.a. from 1st May 2021 (FY21:
welfare. These actions were considered 15 June 2020, in England, we offered role of Chief Executive; £150,000 p.a.).

appropriate to align to the experience and a 50% a_mnn::n ta all NHS staff in our » as noted above, our CFO's salary was = Chris joined the Board of Directors in
perspective of our shareholders and other Sports Direct stores as o gesture of reduced to the equivalent of £40,000 p.o. September 2019, with this being his first
stakeholders, including our colleagues. goodwill to these fantastic individuals from May 2020 until October 2020; and smain Board CFO role at a listed PLC. Since

as our stores re-opened. It was an - . :
i . . . that time Chris has grown and developed in
overwhelming success with gross sales no LTIP award operated for senior the role of CFO and his strong performance,

of approximately £50m befare discount executives in FY21, and the CFC ond other Jeadership and contribution to devaloping
and approximately £25m after discount. selected senior executives were specifically the strategic direction of the business is

excluded from participation in the Fearless no:mamqmw to merit an appropriate review
100G plan. of his salary level ct this time, now that he

has been in post for approximately
18 months,

= Mike Ashley has not received any
remuneration from the Company since
before the Public Offering in 2007 and +  Chris Wootton's salary has been increased

The actions taken included the following:

+  from May 2020 due to the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic, our CFO, together
with the Chief Commercial Officer and
the Non-executive Directors agreed, in
order to assist the Company, to make the
personal sacrifice of reducing their salary, or
respective fees, to £40,000 per annum. This
treatment applied until October 2020, at
which time withheld amounts were paid;

Against this background, we were very pleased
to be able to launch the new incentive plan

for our colleagues which we ore calling the
Fearless 1000 and which was approved by over
99.9% of our shareholders voting at the 2020
AGM. The Fearless 1000 couid pay out £100m
in shares if our share price reaches £10 at any .
time during the performance period. The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
trading days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the vesting period which could see
10 colleagues receiving shares worth £1m if the
shore price is at £10 at the vesting dates. One
thousand of our Fearless colleagues, who live
and breathe our values, thinking without limits,
not hesitating and owning it, will be eligible to
receive share bonuses ranging from £50k right
up to E1m if the share price is ot £10 at the
vesting dates.

Against the background of our overall modest
positioning on executive pay and considering
the CFO's exceptional efforts in leading the
company through a period of unprecedented
challenge to produce the resilient performance
that is detailed elsewhera in this report, the
Committee has decided that it is appropriate
to award our CFO a bonus of £100,000 for FY
2020/2021 (67% of base salary]. In awarding
this bonus, the Committee considered a range
of performance factors, including Group
financial performance, progress on strategic

i tives and personal performance. This
award was paid as a cash sum, .

+ As a Committee we are content that even
with this increase the salary level for our
CFO remains amangst the lowest in the

» collengue welfare was prioritised: FTSE 250.

«  from March 202G, we sent home ail
colleagues over the age of 60 or those
with underlying health issues which was
over and above Government guidance
whilst continuing to pay them in full;

« in the UK we paid virtually all of our
controcted colleagues (including “casual
workers" ) in full during March, April, May
and June 2020 even though our stores
were closed for the vast majority of that
time; and

The Committee exercised what it regards as
normal commercial judgement in respect of
Directors’ remuneration throughout the year
{and in all cases in line with the Company's
Director's remuneration pelicy).

51

|

Printed on Steinbers 100 Recycled and ©

v woodland across the LIK

o Captured throughs the Woodland Trust. helpung to create new B




FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Board Succession

As a Remuneration Committee we fully support the prospective changes within our Board and senior
team more fully described in the announcement dated Sth August 2021. Although some of these
changes will not become effective untit later in the three-year period in which our new policy will
operate, we already know seme of the detail around how we want pay crrangements for our new
senior executive team to be aligned to, and support, the growth and elevation strategy which our
Board succession changes will seek to accelerate and delivar.

Accordingly, where we are able to do so, in the new policy we have set out details of proposed
incentive arrangements for our Executive Directors {both current and prospective) and particularly
aur new Executive Share Scheme, as described below. Any Fusther details of pay arrangements for
new Executive Director appeintments will be disclosed at the appropriate time when they join the
Board.-

New LTIP To Align To Principles Of Fearless 1000

At our 2021 AGM, we will be seeking shorehalders’ approval for a new share plan {the “Executive
Share Scheme”) which seeks to apply many of the principles of the Fearless 1000 to an LTIP. Three
awards, each subject to a £12 share price torget, will be initiclly made to Chyis Wootton {CFO), Sean
Nevitt (Chief Commercial Officer) and David Al-Mudailal (CQQO). An award, subject to a £15 share

price target, is also proposed to be made to Michael Murray when, as anticipated, he joins the Board.

The key terms, and how these compare to the key terms of the Fearless 1000, are summarised below:

EXECUTIVE SHARE SCHEME FEARLESS 1000 PLAN
AWARD LEVELS Three witial awsrds ora expected 10 millean ghares in total
10 be made to the CFO, Chief 100,000 shares moumum per person

Commercial Officer ond COO over 18 for tep 10 perfarmers fwerth fimilion

rmillion shares n totol {500,000 shares eoch for those Indiducls ot E10 per

MU per Persan) sharel, urther aliccotions batween
cthers in the top 1000

A single award 15 expected [0 be
made ta Michas| Murray, on s
appointment to the Board, over
6,711,409 shares n Lotal, baing o
number of shares which at o share
1 share (less the 10p
nol value of those
a worth £100milhon
The value of avords can he reduead
by the volue of salanes poid in the
pesod 10 yesting

TIMING OF AWARDS Awards to CFC, Chiet Commarcal Aword penod began lollowing 2020
Officer ond COR to be made a5 kaon  AGM on 7 Grtober 2020
as possibla citer 2021 AGM

fwad to Michael Murray to be made
anjamng the Boarg

TARGET SHAR

'RICE FOR VESTING Either L12 per stave (far awards o £10 per shor
CFO, Ciref Commere it OFf cer and
COO) or E15 per shore [proposed
award to Michasl Muriay

PERFORMANCE PERIOD Up ta 4 years frem AGM 7011 Up te & yéars from AGM 2020
{(extended by | year dus toimpnct of
the Covid 19 pandemic

POTENTIAL VESTING DATES

It the share prica target is echiewd
by October 2025 awards vest in twa
aqual tranches, 50% mitially ond

£45 share price targat 15 ochreved.
Howavar, shares would normally be
delivered in two tranches

If 90 target achieved by Ottober
2025 owords vest n bwo eguar
tranches, 50% inwiaily and 50%

wards to vast early i the
E15 shore pres wrget 1s achiaved
However, shares would normolly te
deinvered in two franches
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The extension of the performance period

for the Fearless 1000 plan is seen to benefit
participants as it provides an additional period
to achieve the £10 share price target given that
the difficulties associated with the Covid-19
pandemic have impacted the business in the
first yeor of the Fearless 1,000 plon.

As a Committee, we consider it very important
to align Executive Directars and senicr
executives to the aspiration of the Fearless
1000, albeit ¢t an enhanced performonce
target of £12 or £15 as appropriate.

Chair And Noh-exacutive Director Fees

Although nat a matter for the Remuneration
Committee (being a matter reserved for the
Board), the Board has delegated responsibility
for setting the remuneration of the Chair to the
Remuneration Committee which has carried
out a review of the Chair's fees and of the
Non-executive Directors’ fees. As a result of that
review the Board has decided to increase fee
levels for the Chair and Non-executive Directors
as detailed on page 58. This is the first increase
in fees to the Chair and Non-executive Directors
since the IPQ in 2007,

Format Of The Report And Matters To Be
Approved At Qur 2021 AGM

At the 2021 AGM, shareholders will be osked to
approve three resolutions related to Directors’
remuneration matters. These resolutions are:

- to approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Policy:

= to approve the Directors' Remuneration
Report; and

» tointroduce the new Executive Share
Scheme described above.

The vote to approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report is the normal annual
advisory vote on such matters.

If approved by our shareholders, the Directors’
Remuneration Policy will apply for a moximum
of three years from the 2021 AGM and will
replace the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
previously approved at the 2018 AGM,

For completeness, a resolution will aiso be
proposed at the 2021 AGM to amend the

055 the UK

Fearless 1000 plon for consistency with the
Executive Share Scheme with regards to
potential acceteration of the vesting and
release of shares if the £15 share price target for
the award to Michael Murray is achieved.

1 hope that our shareholders remain supportive
of our approach ta executive pay at Frasers
and vote in fovour of the resolutions on
remuneration matters to be tabled at the 2021
AGM,

David Brayshaw
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

5 August 2021

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
POLICY

This report contains the material required

to be set out os the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the purposes of Part 4 of The

Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups {Accounts and Reports} (Amendment)
Regulations 2013, which amended The Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
[Accounts and Reports} Regulations 2008 (‘the
DRR Regulations').

This part of the report sets out the Company's
proposed Directors’ Remuneration Palicy
which, subject to shareholder approval, shall
take binding effect from the date of the 2021
AGM and remcin valid until the 2024 AGM.
The proposed Palicy is determined by the
Committee, and key proposed changes to
elements of the current Directors' Remuneration
Palicy, which was approved by shareholders
ot the 2018 AGM and expires at the 2021 AGM
have been highlighted for ease. As explained
in the statement from the Chair of the

‘Remuneration Committee, the Remuneration

Committee has decided to introduce a new
executive share scheme that appropriately
aligns Executive Directors’ interests with

the interests of shareholders by focusing on
ohsolute shareholder vaolue, and intends to
seek shareholder approval for the Executive
Share Scheme at the 2021 AGM. Consequential
changes have been made as to reflect the
changes to the Remuneration Policy.
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FUTURE POLICY TABLE

The table below describes each of the elements of the remuneration package for the

Executive Directors.

"_.h._....__-...q-_.-u“_nz PURPOIE / LINK TO STRATEGY OPERATION TAKIMUM PERFORMANCE MEASURES muuhu-.ﬁ.ao.._nq TO BEAPPROVED Al
BASE SALARY Frxed elament of the remunera 100 package, whare the  Basa sultres ore normally reviewed onyally Although salorias for Exacutive Diractors [athar than Mol appheable, No change
balunce of fixad end vonobls ramynerotion 15 aigned to Mike Ashley, who does nat currently ruceive o solary) are
the commareial strategy of lbng-tern prafitable growth  Mike Ashley does not cutrently racaive o salary for bus set at lavels below the amounts typleally puid by simitar
and teHects the Campany remuneration philosaphy of  rote sized companias, tha Commuittae retuins discretion to .
. geaning reward o parlarmance with a sharing of nisk sat salarias at levuls considered oppropriots for the
between Executivu Directars and shorehaldars businass, considedng its site and complexity. N
With the exception of o 20% colisagus discount on The cuirent Executive [hractors da not recaiva ony Although the Reruneration Committee hos nat selan Not applicable No change
products purehased from the Group's retoll storas, which — bensfits othar than the calleague distount, which is nat  obsolute maxinum leval of benefits Executive Directars .
1 avmlable to Exacutive Directers other than Mike availabbe for Miks Ashley. may recerve, tha Company retains discration to sut
Ashley, no addiional benefits are generally avoiluble benelits at a lavel which tha Remuneration Coinmittey
tg Executive Durectors Tha sam: level af discount i Benelts may be provided i [ine with morket prachice  considers opprapriote against the market and to
- available to all colleagues ta recruit @ new Exgcutive Dirackor toking Lo orcount  suppart the on-going strategy of the Company. .
individual circumstancas Such
: benehts may include ralocation expanses (mare lully
detailed in ¥ hto 3
below] . - .
RETIREMENT Provide post-amploymant baneits ko racrut anct refam  The Executive Directors are entitled to partcipate dva Tha current muximum emplayer cantibution to the Not applicable No change
SENEFITS ndividuals of tha calibre retquired lor the business stokeholder pansion schema on the sume bosis os other  stakehalder pension schama s 3%
smployaas .
The Cammittee may incrense employer contribution
Cn reuast this beneht may be pa:d as o salary 1ates 10 flact changes in the auta enralment ermployer :
supplament in hau of pension contnbution G5 Necessary  cantibutan rotes. )
ANNUAL BONUS Rewarels the Executive Director for parlormance which  Extreutive Direclors, other Lhon Mike Ashley, may ear The maksnum bonus that an Executive Director may Any bonus opportunity shall be ossessed egainst ene or - Ne chonge

supports tha Group's strategy ord partoniiance i take

o banut Any bonus remed In excess of 100% of talary
would e duferred mta shores for a penod of two years,
unless the amaunt to be dalarred amount would ba lass
than £10,000 The Committea alsc ratains a discration
not to cperate daferral mn cn excaptionol case and
where tglary paud In the yaar was £250,000 of less.

Any bonus pad would s subject ta dawback for u
penod of 3 years follawing its delerminahian in the
avant of gross miscenduet, matenal russtatement of the
Cempany's linuncinl statements or corporate falure

ot shull be 200% of salory n respect of any hngn
year

. of the Exacutive Directar in role, with the weighting
batwueen tha instrics detenmninad by the Committes

if refovont, Bonusas will be detarmined between 0%
and 100% cf the maximum appertumty bosed on the
C 's ofthz apgl; metrics.

The annual benus glar is ¢ dscretionary anrongement
and the Comrmittes retains o stundurd power to apply
its judgerment to adjust tha cutcama of the annual bonus
plan for ey performonce measure {from zero te any
cap] should it consider that to be appraprniote:

LONG TERM INCENTIVES

Tor inotivate and incantivse dalivary

ol sustained performance over the long term, and
ta promiote allgnment with sharahalders intarusts,
the Compuny ntends to operate on Exacutive Share
Scheme

Exacutive Diractons, ather than Mike Ashiey, may receive
awards under the Exacutive Share Scheme. Awards

may be granted as nominal cost options or cenditional
shors uwards which vest to the extent Ihe performaonce
conditigns are sotished over o panod of tout yaars

The Commuttes shall hove discranon ta reduce the
naumber of Shoret sulyect to an uward granted under
A TRUCUL e SO U Uy un Dimowd ByudiaYne
aggreyute grass saiory recewed by o porticipant duning
the perlormance perod

Clawback und malus pravisions apply to owtds granted
undat the Exatutive Share Schema, Any amounts
received under the Execulive Shorg Schern@ may ba
subject ta clawback lor o penad of 3 years lollowing

\he 2nd ol the performance penad in the evart of gross
misLendyel, malanal misstaternent of the Company's
finaneisl siatarments, corperate folure o reputational
domage

As 15 normal, the Commttas rtains pour to sttt
awords In cash 10 exceptional casey aaly

For awards with a £15 shore prica targat, the moximum
opportunity for an Executwe Directar will ba an oward
over up to 6711409 shares

Awtrds il vest subject (o on ebsolute shara price Introduction of the Execulive Shara Scherne, which is our
tavge af either E12 or £15. The share prica must be over  naw long term incentive plan that will reward our semor
the target for any period of 30 consecutive dealing days  axecutives for trhieving sustained performance avar the

during the four-year perfrmanca panod. lang turm,

Fat awards with o £12 share price Larget, the moxmum
oppartumty lor an Executve [iregLor will be an oword
over up Lo 600,000 shures

Tha Committee may set additional perfarmance
conditions on awards under the Executive Share
Schame, as it cansidars appropildte,
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The table below sets out an overview of the approach to remuneration for the Chair and

Non-executive Directors.

BURPOSE / LINK TO STRATEQY

APPROACH OF THE £ OMPANY

Chent and Non-executive Director fees

Provide an appropriate rewsrd to attrect and
fetain Gitsctors af the calibre required for tha
husiness

The Commiltea’s Remunaration Policy m respact of tha Nen-exacutive Directors it te poy annuol fess
witick reflack the responsibbties and duties placed upon thern, while also having regard to muorker
practice

Nan-executive Dwactors recarve 7 fxed arnedl fee.
Noni-axecutive Directols jother than tha Non-executive Workinres Diretton do net ond ore acl entitied

Fa ppmieipDte In any bonus o shore schemes. The Non-executive Workiarce Dirgctor s entitled to
parbaipote m smployee banus ond share schemes for mmplayees including ony ofi-amployae schermes

Non-executiva Directors may be eligiole for benefits such as the use of secretorial support, trawel costs

tr ather benafits that may be opproprate

The aggregate fees and cry benehts of the Non-exetutwe Diracters cluding the Nean-txscutive

Workiares Dirgeier]

| now gxceed the
Assotiation for such lees T
shareholdars to inerease t

it trom bime to Lime set aut In tne Compary’'s Artiches of
currently £500.000 pa 1 aggregate. 4 resolution wif be put to
it o £,000000 p o 10 aggregate This s @ fermal cap ond does not

raflect any forn af osprration. .

Explanation Of Perf M

es Chosan

Any bonus opportunity would be subject

to performarice metrics determined by the
Committee and linked to the Company's
strategy ond/or the performance of the
Executive Director in role. The metrics and
performance against them would be disclosed
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report in which
payment of the bonus was disclosed, or if
later when they were no longer considered
commercially sensitive. Any performance
measuse may be varied or substituted by the
Committee i an event occurs which causes
the Committee to determine that it would be
appropriate to do so. The rotionale for any such
variation or substitution would be given in the
next Directors' Remuneration Report.

The proposed Executive Share Scheme will be
subject to a performante meosure determined
by reference to the Company share price os
well as personal performance. This metric has
been chosen as it aligns the interest of the
Executive Director with those of shareholders.
The target share price required for vesting

is considered stretching [being either £2 or

£5 above the target for the Fearless 1000
plan} and will therefore reward sustained
performance over the long-term.
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In oddition to the share price performance
measure, it is intended that awards under the
Executive Share Scheme will be granted subject
to two underpins requiring:

i. satisfactory performance rotings for each
participant; and

il. onticipated delivery of our elevation
strategy.

The purpose of the underpins is to ensure that
a minimurm level of performance is ochieved
befare an award may vest i addition to
achievement of the share price performance
target}. Details of the performance measures
and underpins that apply to each award
gronted under the Executive Share Scheme to
an Executive Director will be disclosed in the
appropriate Directors’ Remuneration Repoert
[subject to consideratiens of cormmercial
sensitivity). .

Explanation Of Diff R i

-FRASERS GROUP

Policy For Other Colleagues

The Company hos a large number of colleagues
with different responsibilities and differing levels
of seniority. Reward policies for colleagues
other than Executive Directors are determined
by reference to grade, role, performance end
other relevant factors. The Committes engages
with the wider workforce on the remuneration
policy through the Non-executive Workdforce
Director, whose feedback and views are sought
by the Committes,

The Committee has reviewed the salaries, other
rernuneration and other employment conditions
of senior ond middle managers throughout

the Group, and has taken them into account in
considering Executive Directors' salaries and the
creation of new incentive schemes in order to
create a sense of common purpose and sharing
of success.

In response to those considerations, the Frasers
Al-Employee Omnibus Plan (known as "Fearless
1000") was launched following approval by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plon is intended to provide a significant
ane-off reward for eligible and gqualifying
colleagues if a stretching share price growth
target is achieved within a five year period
from the 2020 AGM.). There are two related but
distinct parts to the Fearless 1000 as follows:

+ cash benuses to eligible and qualifying
colieagues in the Company's group, to
reward them for their loyaity and hord work;
and

+ share awards to those 1,000 eligible and
qualifying colleagues in the business wheo
most demonstrate outstanding service and
performance consistent with the Company's
vatues.

Further details regarding the Fearless 1000
are provided in the Our People section of this
Annuat Report.

wd noross the UK

m tions Of Application Of
Remuneration Policy

The chort below sets out an ilustration of the
palicy far FY22 in line with the future policy
table above. The chart provides an illustration
of the total remuneration opportunity that
could arise under four different levels of
perfarmance. No chart is included for Mike
‘Ashley, who does not receive any remuneration
from the Compony. If Michael Murray joins
the Boord as anticipated, an updated version
of this disclosure will be provided in the next
Directors’ Remunerction Report following his
appointment.



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021 FRASERS GROUP

Chris Wootton, Chief Financial Officer

Approach To Recrui tR i

When agreeing a remuneration package for the appointment of g new Executive Director, the
Committee will apply the following principles:

000
* the package will be sufficient to attract the calibre of Director required to deliver the Company's
strateqgy;
2,200 *  the Committee will seek to ensure that no mere is paid than is necessary; and
) * inthe next Annual Repert on remuneration, the Committee will explain te.shareholders the
A rationale for the arrangements implemented.
4000 . ) —_— . . . N
R The Committee will ordinarily seek to implement the remuneration package in accordance with the
elements referred to in the policy table on pages 53 to 54. Consistent with the DRR Regulations, the
Committee retains discretion to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside that policy to
2000 meet the individual circumstances of the recruitment, subject to the iimits and parameters of this
recruitment remuneration section of the Directors' Remuneration Policy.
ELEMENT APPROACH
2,000
Base salary ond beoafits Tymically aligned with the policy set out in the palicy table on page 53, in line with the DRR Regulations,
there & ne formal cop on sl s 1n relotion to o racrutment,
Retiremant ber Aligned with tha policy +et Gut in the policy table on poge 53, pension benefits may be provided ot
rotas aligred ko employes laval ithough the Commities may prowide for such amount to ba pard ke a
1000 pension arrangament or pard os @ supplement to basa salery 11 hew of o pension arrangement,
Vanoble remuneration Any varuble mmunerahion gronted 1o o newly cppainted Exacutive Directer would bu subject to the
e - 1% same maximurn levels that generally apply undar the Duectare’ Retnuneration Policy
B 3% S The value of any buy-out arrangements [described below) does not count towards Lhose maximum
. lavais. The Commuties may vary the applicution ol deferral to any anaual bonus opportunity to raflact
Bk Minsmium Pyrformance tn Ling Maalmum Munrhum Remuneralian the crrumstances of the recruitment
Performuance With € xgace 3 Parformancy with 509, Shre

Price Increase Compansation lor forfutad orrangements Tise Cormmullee may make owards on hiring on extarnal candidate to buy-aut be rmunaration
arrangements forfeilad or leawng o pravieus employur In deing 5o, the Committee wi hawe regard to
relavont factors :.H_:n_.:m any parlormonee condity utlached to such arrongetnents iana whether

w form of those arrangements {a g cush or

Shara Price Growth

I fodraer i rowon i eore PR e

For the purposes of the chart, the following assumptions hove been made.

shares) and the timelrume of such armngements

While such owards are excluded from the maximum leval of vaneble retuneration referted 1a above,

Prir

|

Y

SCENARIO

FIXED PAY BONUL

L

Mirmmum remunaratian

Performanca in lina wi
expactabions

Maximum remuneration

. Inthe of

MDXI MU remuneration with 56%
share price Incisase

Mo bonus earned

No vasting of sharu twards

Na banus samed becouse In the
opinion of the Committes, the
perfarmance metncs wi
such thot any bonus sored would
require the achievemant of stretch
performance

Base salary of £250,000.

An emnployer pension contribution af
3% of sclary, capped at first £50.000
of salary. : -

tha share awards w
rasult of stretet) performance

vestas o

No beneits as no benafitsare
currently proposad to be provided to
the Exaeutive Directars In FY22 other ',
than the colloaguy discsunt, which,
on of the Committse,
‘zannot ba raflected In thége chorts
as its value depends upon tha value

A bonus of 200% of salury is sormad

Colculatad based on the walue of
€00,000 shares [maxmurm potential
vusting lar an aword to the CFO
under tha new Exaculive Shure
Schamel ot the end of FY {usng o
3 manth averoge)

of the Executive Director's purchasel.

A banus of J00% of salary 1= eorned

Calculdtad bazed on Lhe value of
600,000 shares ot the and of FY21
lusing @ 3 month avaragel plus 50%
share pncs increase

= Cammittas he value nwarded woikl be no higher than the axpectad valua of the
ited orrangarments

o

Buy-oit awards will be subject to farfeitura or cluwback on sarly depaeture, with 100% being subject to
tarfeiure if the Executive Director departs within 12 months of jaiming, and o sliding scale down Lo 50%
e daparture sccurs wilhin 12 ond 24 manths of jainng, at the Comimitlee’s discration,

Relotaton costs

I necessary, the Company wil aoy opprapnate reiocation costs in the year of oppowntment ond lar o
turther twa financial years, os it considers uppropate Thi Committsa wil Seak to ensuts at no mare
15 paid than & necessory

Any share awards referred te in this section will be granted as far as possible under the Company's
existing share schemes. If necessary and subject, where relevant, to the limits referred to above,
awards may be granted outside existing share plans as permitted under the Listing Rules, which
allow for the grant of awards te facilitate, in unusual circumstances, the recruitment of an Executive

Director.

Where a position is filled internally, any on-going remuneration obligations or outstanding variable
pay elaments shall be allowed to continue according to their subsisting terms or be adjusted to
reflect the new oppointment as appropriate.

The remuneration packoge for a newly appointed Non-executive Director would normally be in line
with the policy set out in the future policy table above for Non-executive Directors.

ted on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Captu-ed through he Woodiand Tiust, helimng 1o create Hew Bntish woodland across the UK



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

Service Contracts And Policy On Payments For Loss Of Office

The Company's _uo__n< is for Executive Directors to be employed on the terms of service contracts
which may be terminated by either the Company or the Executive Director on the giving of not more
than 12 months’ notice. All Birectors are subject to annual re-election.

Executive Directors

Details of each current service contract are set out below:

UNEXPIRED TERM /
CONTRACT DATE NOTICE PFRRIOD GOVERNING LAW
Mike Ashley Ta2/2007 T2 menths* Eaglang & Wales
Chns Wontion 06/03/2017 & months Englund & Wales

+Tha Compuny may terminate Mr Ashley's sarvice contract by giving 6 monlhs' nohce if ke 1s unable to perform his duties lor ouer 120 doys v any
consecutive 13 months

The principles on which the determination of payments for loss of office will be approached are
summatised below:

Payment in fiey of nahce

The Company may tarminate an Executive Dirertor's amployment with mmediote effect by moking a
payrment 0 fiew of notice consisting of bosie saiory (bt excludivg 0ny bunus, cemimssion, benefits uc
haliday entitlament} dunng tre nohce pered

The Company may either (i) puy the payment in ew 6f notice 1n & lUMP sue or 1] 11155 hscretion, pay
the armautit m equal menthly iInstalments dunihg the notice pernod, with such instalinest poyments ta
be reduced in the event that the Exacutive Directar obtains alternative income within the potire penod

Mike Ashley does not receve ony solary or centractugl benetits, and ks serviue contract does not
wravids for o poyment in heu of notice

Annual bonus Whethe: toaward o banus 1n full or i part in the event of @ tarmination of empicyment wauld be
al the discretion of the Committee on on Indwidus| Bosis and dependent ona number of factors,
inciuding the circumstances of the Executive Director's departure and his contnbution to the husiness
chunng the bonus penad in question Typically bonus amaunts would only be paid to “gaad leavers” ond
e pra-ratad for time m service 1 tern and on 2. Any bonus in respect of
the yaor of termination of preceding year which would athanwise be defsrred into shares may be paid
wholly m cosh ol the election of tha Committes

any deferced bonus would typrcally contnue 1n the evant of termnation fother than on dismissol for
causet and be raleased 1o the Executiva Director ar the end of the o anncipated deiera: perad,
although the Committee hos diseretion ta relens= the omaunt sooner @ opproprate circumatonces

1f &an Exgrubive Duector CeOsas empicyment or réagns dunng the perfarmance punod, fis Lnvested
award wil generclly lopse However, if the Dxecutive Chrector dies of tha Comrmittes stetarmames b s o
‘good lenver’ then owords are retdined and may vedt in the normal caurie subject te the p munce
conditions Awards will normally be pro-rated by relerence to the propertian of the perfarmance

penad far whith the patiapant remaned emplayed |or, | earhier, untl the dete of reugnoton| The
Commitree has o standard ubihly to vary kme prorating Yested but unexercised awards Moy normolly
be retaned by o participont, except in coses of misconduet

Exaruiwve Sharg Schama

Other payments The Remunertian Committe reserves the nght to make additional ext poyments where sucn
paymants are made in good falth in discharge of an exsting legal obliguyan lar by way of darmuges tar
breach of ch af by way of ar of any claim onsmg in connecton
with the termmation of a Dwecter's ofiice ar I n app [ puyments
may alse be made in respect of legal feas and outplocement services Were the Company to make
un award on recratment af an Exegutive Director to buy aut remuneration arrangaments forfeited of
I#aving o previous ermployes then the ‘saver provisions for Lthat award would be determned ol the tme
of grant A poyirient moy elsa be imade in respect of bccrued but untaken holiday For the swodunce of
doubt, the pality does nat include on exphiait cop an the cost of terminalon payments
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Non-Executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors enter inte an agreement with the Group for a period of three years,
other than the Chair whose agreement continues until terminated in accordance with its terms. The
appointments of the Non-executive Directors may be terminated by either party on one month’'s
written notice and in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. Termination would
be immediate in certain circumstances (including the bankruptey of the Non-executive Director).

Non-executive Directors {other than the Non-executive Workfarce Director} do not and are not
entitled to participate in any bonus or share scheme, The Non-executive Workforce Director is
entitled to participate in employee bonus and share schemes for employees, including all-employee
schemaes.

The approach to determining Non-executive Directors pay is to benchmark curselves against
other companies/retailers within the FTSE 250. Each year the remuneration of all Directors is put
for shareholder approval at the AGM. Last year, 99.81% of shareholders voted in favour of the
remuneration repart,

Non-executive Directors ase subject to confidentiality undertakings without limitation in time.
Non-executive Directors are not entitied to receive any compensation on the terminotion of their
appointment.

Details of the Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment are set out below:

END bATR OF
Date efbatter sl APPOINTMENT [yubject

on cppsintmemt  te annaial Meaheetion ot

Ve AGH

Dowict Daly Non-axacutive Chw 16 July 2020 15t Ocrobar 2023
David Broyshuw Nor-executive Dicecton 23 Apnl 2020 Tth December 2022
Nicola Fromptan Non-axacutwe Dirgctar 1 Qctober 2018 A0th September 2021
Richard Ecttemley Non-executive Diractar 1 Ockobar 2018 10vh Septamber 2021
Cally Price Non-executive Director 6 Qctober 2020 5th Qctaber 2022

Copies of the service contracts of Executive Directors and of the appointment letters of the Chair
and Nan-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the Company's registered office during
normal business hours and at the AGM,

Payments Qutside The Policy In This Report

The Committee retains discretion to make any remuneration payment or payment for loss of office
outside the policy in this report:

+  where the terms of the payment were agreed hefore the policy come into effect;

- where the terms of the payment were agreed at a time when the relevant individual was not
a Director of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in
consideration of the individucl becoming a Director of the Company; or

«  to satisfy contractual commitments made under legacy remuneration arrangements.

For these purposes, "payments” includes the satisfaction of awards of variable remuneration and,
in relotion to an oword over shares, the terms of the payment are "agreed” at the time the award is
granted.

Printed on Steinbeis 106% Recycled and Carbon Chptured throuah t
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FRASERS GROUP

E: t With Shareholders

The Committee consults major shareholders
and representative groups where appropriate
concerning remuneration matters.

General representations have been received
from investors regarding overall FTSE
ramuneration. The Committee has due regard
to the investment Association principles, and
is always hoppy to receive feedback from
shareholders. There have been no changes

- to the Remuneration Policy as a result of
snoreholder engogement.

Colleague Reward

It is worth reminding shareholders that our UK
colleagues (excluding the Executive Directors)
whe have participated in our share schemes
have received, subsequent to any IPO honus
payments, a total value of £250m of awards
since their introduction.

on to share schemes, the Company
ooerates other bonus and incentive awards for
its workforce. By way of recent example, in FY21
celleagues in our UK retail operations received
a total of £5.4m in bonus and incentive awards.
A significant preportion of these other bonus
and incentive cwards were paid to our casual
retail workers.

During FY21, the Company launched the
Frasers All-Employee Cmnibus Plan (known

as "Fearless 1000" foliowing approval by
shareholders at the 2020 AGM. The Fearless
1000 plan is availoble to all eligible and
qualifying Fraser Group employees (except for
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Commercial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer and is intended to provide a significant
ore-off reward for employees if a stretching
share price growth target is achieved within a
five year period.

There are two related but distinct ports to the
Fearless 1600 plan as follows:

+  Share awards to those 1,000 eligible and
qualifying employees in the business who
most demonstrate outstanding service and
performance consistent with the Company's
values; and
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«  Cash bonuses to eligible and qualifying
employees in the Company's group, to
reward them for their loyalty and hard work.

A similar incentive plan is also available for our
non-employee Group workers,

As explained in the Committee Chair's letter,
we took the decision to extend the original four
year performance period for the Fearless 1000
plan to up to five years due to continuing UK
fockdowns in FY2E. As a result, the performance
periods for the Fearless 100G plan and the
proposed Executive Share Scheme will each
end in October 2025,

The Remuneration Committee remains
committed to transparent and simple
remuneration for Executive Directors based *
upen reward for significant financial and
personat performance only. The Committee
also remains committed to oppropriately
rewarding our large and foyal workforce.

Our Workforce nominated Director, Cally Price
engages with colleagues through regular and
multi-channel communication mechanisms.
This enables colleagues to understand the
strategy of the Company, the vital role all
colleagues play in contributing to the overall
success of the Group and how this is rewarded
and to roise any questions directiy with a Board
member. Cally has been directly involved in

the review of retail colleague pay during FY21.
The Committee has reviewed the salaries, other
remuneration and other employment conditions
of senior and middle managers throughout

the Group, and has taken them into account in
considering Directors’ salaries. The Committee
has censidered pay and empleyment conditions

- of colleagues (other than the Directors) and has

aligned pension contributions and colleague
discounts of the Directors with employees.

Whilst the Company has not directly consulted
with employees on Directors’ remuneration, the
views of colleagues can be expressed by the
Workforce Director,

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

This part of the Directors' Remuneration
Report sets out the actual payments made by
the Company to its Directors with respect to
the period ended 25 April 2021 and how our
Directors’ Remuneration Pelicy will be opplied
in the year commencing 26 April 2021,

Implementation of cur Remuneration policy
for FY22

The members of the Committee have no
personai financial interest, other than as
shareholders, in the matters to be decided, ne
actual or potential conflicts of interest arising
from other Directorships and no doy-to-day
operational responsibility within the Company.

Bose Salary And Foes

Chris Wootton's salory has increased to
£250,000 per annum, with effect from 1 May
2021 (from E£150,000). Whitst the Committee is
oware of sens ies towards salory increases
far executive directors generally, the proposed
salary increase for Chris is considered
appropriate due to his very strong performance
in his role since appointment in September
2019.

Despite this increase, Chris’ base salary will
remain at a level well below the fower quartile
for a CFQ in a business of the size and
complexity of the Group.

Mike Ashley does not receive o salary for his
role.

Fees for the Chair and Non-executive
Directors are normally reviewed annually.

In respect of fees for FY22, David Daly will
receive an increased annual fee of £150,000
{from E£100,000) for his rele as Chair. Richard
Bottomley, David Brayshow and Nicola
Frampton will each receive a fee of £65000
{from E50,000) for their roles as Non-executive
Directors. Cally Price will receive a fee

of £20,060 {from £15,0G0) for her role as
Non-executive Workforce Director.

helping to create new Brtish woodland across the UK

Pension [Audited)

The contribution rate for Chris Wootton will be
3% of salary, copped at first £50,000 of sclary,
being the maximum employer contribution
rate avaitable under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme. No Director participated in o
defined benefit scheme.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to receive employer
contributions under the Company stakeholder
pension scheme,

Annucl Bonus Scheme

Chris Woetton will be eligible to earn a bonus
in respect of FY22. Any amount earned shall

be determined by reference to one or more
performance metrics determined by the
Committee and finked to the Company’s
strategy and/or Chris Wootton's performance

in role, The Committee wiil provide oppropriate
and relevant levels of retrospective disclosure of
the assessed criteria applied to the FY22 bonus.
Any such bonus shall be of up te 200% of
salary, and any bonus earned in excess of 100%
of salary may be subject to deferral.

Mike Ashley shall not be eligible to earn a

bonus in respect of FY22.

Long Term Incentives

Chris Wootton will be eligible to participate
in the new Executive Share Scheme (subject
to sharehoider approval of at the 2021 AGM).
He will receive an award of 600,000 shares.
The award may vest four years after grant,
subject to a stretching absolute share price
performance target.

Mike Ashley is not eligible to be granted awards
under the Executive Share Scheme.
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Single Figure Tuble {Audited) Stat t Of Directors’ Shareholding And Share Interests (Aucdited]
The aggregate remunergtion provided to individuals who have served as Directors in the period The beneficial interests of the Directors who served during the year ond of their connected persons
ended 25 April 2021 is set out below, along with the aggregate remuneration provided to individuals in both cases at the beginning of the financial year, or at the date of appointment if lates, and at the
who have served as Directors during the prior financial year. end of the financial year, or at the date of resignation if earlier, in the share capital of the Company
are shown below:
Leng-terv
$alaries and Oth " Totol fised Total variabd .
Diracter e -t bamalie Bonus  incantve  Pensianid) Tl merian remterdiion Qrdinary Sharus hald ot 38" Ordinary Shares held ot 28
rehamss April 2084 ol il voliarthe AR 3020 of f narierthe
Fran Frz0 Frii FY20 FYIL FY20 FYX Frz0 FYRL FYa0 Fra) FYi0 FY21 FYin FYRl Fyad Natn of resignation date of revignation
LONG E000 £Q0DO £000 EDOD EQQO FOOD_£000 EOOD EOCO EQOD ECOD £000  EGKI FOOC  EOOD DIRECYORE A3 AT 1 APRIL 2021
EXTCUTIVE DIRRCTORS Mike Ashigy 330.000.000 330.000.000
Mike Ashley . - . - - . . . . . . . . ~ ~ R Lhae Wootton . .
Chis Woouan' 50 88 - - 00 - - -1 1 3 8 151 8 100 - Daowd Day 28208 1007
L -
Jon Kempster: NA 63 NA - MM - NA S ONM b MR BA N/ B4 NJA - Nicola Frampton 52
Dawid Brayshaw aLEn at.en
Gevid Daly we_ 0o - - - . - - . 1 go_ 0wt - - Ruchord Botomiay 0o o
David Broyshaw sa S0 - - - .~ 4 s s s s - g Cofly Prce
Hiccln Fromptan LN L R L S S SR N | IS — - There has been no change to the interests reported above between 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021,
Richord Bottomisy IR - O OV S U S O N - | Other than nated on page 62 the Company did not receive any notifications under DTR 5 between
Caly Pace S SR L 25 April 2021 and 5 August 2021, :
TOTAL i M - - 0% - - - k] L] 5T 4y Lo 4T 100 -
M Chris Weottor's remunsration far FY20 as set putin the bable o his rermunesaon for the penoi Ham the date of his apportment on 12 Septernbsr As ot 5 August 2021, neither Chris Wootton nor Mike Ashley participate in any Company share
bl . scheme arrangement. Therefore, there are no outstanding share scheme interests held by any )
{21 lonXernpstars remuneratian for FYZ0 os set out in the obtwa table 15 his tsmuneration for the pencd rem 29 Apnl 2019 until 12 Seatember 2019 Directar of the Compuany.
when he teased to be an Executwe Durector No poyment was made o Jan followng his resignotion
3k Furtnar detgils of the bunus utturn for Chris Wootton for FYZt cun be found on page 55
{41 Pensions are pravided vio o defined  antrbuticn (o tha Company stakelioider pension scheime (see page 571 '

Further Information On The FY21 Annual Bonus
Chris Wootton received a bonus of £106,000 in respect of FY21.

, In awarding this bonus, the Committee considered Chris' strang leadership of the Group through a
very challenging period. While no formal criteria were set at the beginning of the yeor due to the
uncertainties of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Committee considered the impact of Chris' contribution
to the finonciol results detailed in the Financial Review and his personal leadership of the Group's
response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Poyments For Loss OF Office And Puyments To Former Directors [Audited)

I
No payments for loss of office or payments to former Directors were made in FY21,

Prinled on Steinbeis 100°% Recycled wnd Carbon Gaplured through the Wosdland Trust. |

Land across the UK
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Performonce Graph And Table

The following graph shows the Company's perfarmance measured by the Total Shareholder Return
compared with the performance of the FTSE 1€0 and FTSE 250 Index {excluding investrment trusks).

—=—— Frasers Group plc -——a - FT$E W00 ——®#—— FTSE 250 x Investmant Trusts

230

150

o - .-

m . '
2om 2012 2013 2014 018 056 1 2017 2018 2003 020 2021

Yours v
The Committee considered these as appropriate indices against which to compare the Company's

performance. They are widely accepted as naticnal measures and include the companies that
irvestors are likely to consider alternative investments.

5%

Teotal Ceo R ation And Perf Related Pay

The toble below shows details of the total remuneration and performance-related pay for the
Company's Chief Executive over the last ten financial years.

Exweutive Share Schams
Tatul o Yo of
wppertunity
FY21 - Mike Ashley Nil N/
FY20 - Mike Ashley N/
FY15 - Mike Ashley N/A
FY18 -'Mibke Ashley NiA
FY17 - Mike Ashlay! NAA
FY17 - Dava Forsey £62.500 N/
FY16 - Dave Forsay F150,000 N
FY15 - Dave Forsey £150,000° 0%
FY14 - Dava Forsey E150.000 NiA
F¥13 - Dave Forsey £150.000 N
FY12 - Dawve Farsey. £150.000 N/A
m Mika Ashley was uppeinted os Chief Exzculive wath effact from 32 September 2016
@ Dave Forsey resigned with etlact from 22 September 2016 His total remunetation 15 his ramuneratlan ecrmed in the pernad lram 25 Apnt 2006 until
tha date his resignotion took effect
&) The figuies tor FYI5 mflect Dove Farsey's decison on 6 Juné 216 o Jarego an award gver 1 millipn shares which would otherwise have bean due to

vast e 6 Septambur 2617

Chief Executive To Employee Pay Ratio .

In line with reporting requirements, the Company is required to disclose ratios which compare

the total remuneration of the Chief Executive, to the remuneration of the 25th, 50th and 75th
percentile of the Group's UK employees. The Company has not disclosed these ratios and associated
supporting information on the basis that Mike Ashley is not remunerated by the Company. ‘

led on Steinbeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Caplured through the Woodiand Tiust, heiping to create new Briish woodland acioss the UK
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Relative Importonce OF Spend On Pay o

The toble below sets out the Group's distributions to shareholders by way of dividends and share
buybacks, investment [colculoted as set out below) and total Group-wide expenditure on pay fer qll

colleagues {as reported in the audited financio! statements for FY21 and FY20)] ond the Compary's
share price (calculated as ot the clase of business on the lost day of FY21 and FY20).

Fral e vﬂ»ﬁnhhhﬂm

Thstribtions 8 sharehialders by woy of dividend and share buybock - 43,800,000 110U1%
Investment? £231300000 _ £332600,000 (28 31%
jc diture on pay for all employ (A77100,000  £492.800,000 122 51%.

$hore price {pancal*® 5155 266 1

“Campnses of increases in working capital, acauisiions ond capital expanditure n the yeor [sae Cansohdated Cosh Flow Statement ond note 32 Gaws
inflow frorn operting actvtios) as the Board befl=ves these to ba the mest relevant measures of the Graup's mvestment in future growth

*4For these purposes, the share price tor FY24 and the share pnce for FY20 1s calcufoted of the close of business on 23 Apnl 2621 and 24 Aprad 2030
raspectivety, being lost warking daoys grier tn the year ends,

Remuneration Committee

During FY21, the Remuneration Committee consisted of David Brayshow and Nicola Frompton who
are considered independent and the Cheir of the Board, David Daly, The purpose of the Commitiee,
as previously outlined, is to assist the Board to ensure that Executive Directors and senior executives
receive appropriate levels of pay and benefits.

Attendance at the meetings held during the year is detailed on page 43.

The members of the Committee have no persanal financial interest, other than as shareholders, in
the matters to be decided, no actual or potential conflicts of interest arising from other Directorships
and no doy-to-doy operational responsibility within the Company.

Advisers To The Committee

Mike Ashley, the Chief Executive, and Chris Wootton, the Chief Financial Officer, have advised or
materially assisted the Committee throughout FY21 when requested. Executive Directors are not
present during, nor do they take part in, discussions in respect of matters relating directly to their
own remunerdation,

During the year, FIT Remuneraotion Consultants LLP [*FIT") were appointed as adviser to the
Committee. FIT are a founder member of the Remuneration Consultants’ Group and adhere to its
code of conduct. Fees totalling £122184 plus VAT have been paid for its services during the year for
the provision of advice to the Committee on various aspects of remuneration including advice on
the remuneration policy and the drafting of the rules of the Fearless 1,000 scheme. The Committee
has reviewed the quality of the advice provided and whether it properly addressed the issues
under consideration and is satisfied that the advice received during the year was objective and
independent. FiT has no personal connection to the Company or its Directors.

Total Remuneration
The Coemmittee considers that the current remuneration arrangements promote the long-term
success of the Company within an appropriate risk framework and are suitably aligned to the

Company's objective of delivering long term sustainable growth in Total Shareholder Returns given
bonyses are discretionary.

60
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Remuneration Principles

A key priority is to ensure thot our
Remuneration Policy is aligned with strategy

te achieve the long-term success of the Group.
The Committee ensures that it complies with
the reguiremenits of requlatory and governance
bodies including, but not limited to, the UK
Corporate Governance Code (* the Code™,
whilst meeting stakeholder, shareholder and
workforce expectations.

The Remuneration Committee and Board
remain committed to a fully transparent and
simple Remuneration Palicy that is aligned
with the interests of alf its shareholders, In the
operations of the Remuneration Committee we
reiterate our commitment to the following key
principles:

«  Clarity: We provide open and transparent
disclosures regording our executive
remuneration.

+  Simplicity: Our Remuneration Palicy for
our Executive Directors is straightforward
and understoed by both Directors and
shareholders.

= Predictability: Most components of Director
remuneration are either fixed or subject to
individual caps set by reference to base
soiory. Through the use of a share price
measure under the Executive Share Scheme,
performance autcomes are predictable
and highly aligned to the experience of aur
shareholders.

+  Proportionality; Cur Executive Director
salaries are amongst the lowest in the FTSE
250. Varioble pay awards are 'at-risk’ and
linked to delivery of our strateqy and fong-
term performance, to ensure that poor
performonce is not rewarded.

»  Risks and behaviours: We ensure that
in our eperdtions we identify and
mitigate reputational risks arising from
our remuneration arrangements and
behavioural risks related ta incentive
targets.

+  Alignment to culture: Increases to pay
and bonuses are only awarded where the
Executive Directar demonstrates high level
behaviours and performance consistent
with Company purpose, values and strategy.

Andd oross |

FRASERS GROUP

us Of The Committee

Responsi

+  Determining the Company’s policy on
Executive Director's remuneration, including
the design of bonus schemes and targets,
share schemes when appropriate, together
with payments under them;

+ Determining the level of remuneration of the
Chair and each of the Executive Directors;

- Setting the remunerction for the first layer
of management below the Board level,
including the Company Secretary;

* Monitering the remuneration of
senior manogemeant and making
recommendations in that respect;

«  Agreeing any compensation for loss of
office of any Executive Director; and

+  Ensuring that the Company’s Remuneration
Policy remains fit for purpose and takes
note of any new regulatory requirements,

What Has The Committee Done During The
Year?

» Reviewed and upproved amendments to the
Company's Remuneration Policy;

- Reviewed and approved the Directors’
Remuneration Report for FY21;

* Reviewed Executive Directors’ and senjor
executives' pay {including actions token
in response to the impact of the Covid-19
pandernic|;

= Considered shareholder feedback regarding
remuneration palicy and implementation;

*  Considered and approved the appointment
of independent remuneration consultants;

+  Agreed the introduction of the Fearless
1,000 scheme;

+ Reviewed gender pay gap reporting; and

+  Monitared developments in governance
and reporting requirements, reloting to
Termuneration.

The Remuneragtion Committee meets several

times o year, with 3 formal meetings and a
number of ad hac meetings held in FY21.
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Shareholder Voting

DIRECTORS' REPORT

T e fallowing table sets out actual voting in respect of the resclution to approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year ended 26 April 2020 at the 2020 AGM and the resolution to

approve the Directors' Remuneration Policy at the 2018 AGM.

The Directors of Frasers Group pic present their
Annual Report and Accounts for the period
ended 25 April 2021. The Group’s Corporate
Governance Statement forms part of the

Results For The Period And Dividends

Revenue for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021
was £3,625.3m and profit before tax was £8.5m

Vatesfar o tor n-.n._.-.-. wapoen TR e Directors’ Report, compared with h.w.mmuh:.. revenue and £343.5m
profit before tox in the prior period. The trading
Drectors’ Ramunaration Repart far the year ended 26 Apn| 2020 A453,415430 93 81 E9E8R6 019 264312396 11057 “m’ﬂmg— bﬂz‘mﬂmﬂ- b:& wﬂﬂmh.-.ﬂﬂ ’.‘m.‘_ _‘mmc_ﬁm mOﬂ ﬂrm ﬁvm—-EOQ Q—JQ .ﬂ—-_m m:ucu.m ﬂ_‘dﬂuﬁﬁmo_
e _m.”nm__u,.:..: Py 142547085 w4l THa0n 159 450081107 8143 position as at the end of the year are shown
y The Chief Executive's Report and Business : ¥
Dractors’ Remunerabion Policy 164243582 9999 s7814 OOl 46431396 1957 in the attached finoncial stotements and

{vate lo amend at 2020 AGM in raspect of Fearless 1.000)

David Brayshaw
Chair of the Remuneration Committes on Behalf of the Boord

Review provides a detailed review of the
Group’s current activities and potential future
developments together with matters likely to
affect future development, performance and
conditions, Principal risks and uncertainties
likely to affect the Group are set out within the

discussed further in the Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and in the Financial
Review on pages 19 to 21.

The Board hes decided not te propose a final
dividend in relation to FY21 (FY20: nil). The

% August 2021 Principal Risks and Uncertainties section. The Board remains of the opinion that it is in the
financial position of the Group, its cash flow, best interests of the Group and its shareholders
liquidity position and borrowing focil to preserve financiak flexibility, facilitating future
described in the Financial Review. The Strategic investments and other growth opportunities, '
Report covers enviranmental matters, including The current situation in relation to the Covid-19
the impact of the Group's businesses on the pondemic has resulted in a number of retailers
environment, the Group's workforce, customers, finding themselves in extreme financial
suppliers and on community engagement. difficulties. We therefore currently feel that

ey ) paying o final dividend at this uncertain time
._._._m principal activities of the Group during the would be inappropriate when facing such an
period were: unknown futura. The payment of dividends
= retailing of sports and leisure clothing, remains under review.
footwear and equipment, lifestyle and Share Capital And Control
R luxury apparel;
. o As at 5 August 2021, there are 640,602,369
“_m:nu_._n”.”mhw._dcm: deportment stores, shops ordinary shares of 10p in issue and fully paid,
' of which 127,180,137 were held in treasury. As at
«  wholesale distribution and sale of sports the period end there were 121,260,175 ordinary
and leisure clothing, footwear and shares held in treasury.
equipment, lifestyle and luxury appare!
under Group-owned or licensed brands; and Further information regarding the Group's
] . issued share capital can be found in note 24.
* licensing of Group brands. Details of our share schemes are also set out in
Frusers Group plc, through various subsidiaries, note 24,
has established branches in a number of . .
different countries in which the business There are no mﬂmn__“_n restrictions en the transfer
o_um_.o.»mm. of shares, <<:._n.v are uoc.m_.zm.n_ bath by zam.
general provisicns of the Articles of Association
Further information on the Group's principat and prevailing legislation, The Directors are
activities is set out at the front of this document not aware of any agreements between holders
ond in the Chief Executive's Report and of the Company's shares that may result in
Business Review. restrictions on the transfer of securities or on
voting rights.
a1

nled on SteinLers 100% Recycled and Carben Capturcd throuah the Woodland Trust. helping 1o create new British woodiand across the UK
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enables collecgues to raise issues of concern
via suggestion boxes. The contributions cre
rzad by senior monagement and the Workers'
Representative who provides the Boord with
cn overview and replies to colleagues as
cppropriote. A selection of questions received,
and answers given by management ore
displayed in communal oreas for colleagues.
Cally has been key in representing colleague's
v'ews in the Board room and has a dedicated
time slot at every scheduled Board meeting.
Much focus this year has been on the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic on our employees
aad Cally has been involved in Board decisions
a~d communication to staff regording new
safe systems of work approved by the Board
to maintain good Covid-19 practices at our
warehouse, offices and stores and has also
provided feedback to the Board an mental
health webinars run in conjunction with the
Retail Trust, Cally makes weekly visits to Head
office and has worked with management on
initiativas including diversity, pay structures and
staff benefits.

Troining programmes and induction courses
provide the workforce with opportunities to
keep up to dote with the latest developments
of the Group. Prior to the Covid-19 pandemic
our annual retail conference offered attendees
an oppertunity to celebrate their successes,
recejve updates on how the Group's strategy
is progressing, and for them to judge how

the Group is performing via the ‘Confident or
Concerned’ questionnaire.

There are various incentives available tp our
retail colleagues. These incentives include our 5
Star Commission Scheme, Turnover Bonus, PBT
Bonus, Stocktake Bonus and other commission
schemes. These schemes vary between fascias.
Retail colleagues (including casual workers} are
also eligible to participate in the Fearless 1000
bonus scheme.

Further information on engagement with our
people can be found in the Qur People report.

63

Diversity And Equal Opportunities

The Group's recruitment policy is to match the
capabilities and talents of each applicant to
the appropriate job. Factors such as gender,
race, religion or belief, sexual orientation, age,
ty or ethnic origin are ignored, and
decisions are made with regard to candidates
irrespective of these factars, Discrimination in
any form is not tolerated within the Group.

Applications for employment by persons
with any disability are given full and fair
consideration for all vacancies and are
assessed in accordance with their particular
skills and abilities.

The Group endeavours to meet its
responsibilities towards the training and
employment of disabled people, and to
ensure that training, career development and
prometion opportunities are available to afl.

The Group makes every effort to provide
continuity of employment if any of cur
colleagues become disabled. Attempts

are made in every circumstance to provide
emplayment, whether this involves adapting
the current job rele ond remaining in the same
jobs or meving to @ more appropriate role.

Job retraining end job adaptation are just

two examples of how the Group works in the
interests of its workforce to promote equal
opportunities in order that an individual’s
employment within the Group may continue.
The Group values the knowledge and expertise
that our people have gained throughout their
time with us, and therefore does not wish to
lose valued colleagues.

Further information on our approach to
diversity can be found in the Our People report

Business Relationships

Details of relationships with our suppliers,
customers and other stakeholders are set out in
the 5.172 statement within the Strategic Report
and the Corporate Governance Report.

Research And Developmaent
The Group designs some clothing and footwear

for our in-house brands for sale in stores.
External bronds are purchased from third-party

suppliers dlthough we do work with them to
agree on the specific pieces which we sell
in-store.

Charitable And Political Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable
donations of £3k (2020: £13k} in the UK. No
political donations were made (2020; nil).
Further infarmation on our charitable donations
and community initiatives can be found in the
ESG Report.

Directors

Detuails of current Directors, dates of
appointment, their roles, responsibilities and
significant external commitments are set out on
pages 37 to 39. The membership of the Board
of Directors has remained the same throughout
Fy21,

Although the Company's Articles of Association
require retirement by rototion of one third of
Directors each year, the Group complies with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code and
at each AGM all of the Directors will retire and
stand far reappointment.

Infarmation on service contracts and details of
the interests of the Directors and their persons
closely associated (PCAs) in the share capital
of the Company at 25 April 2021, and at the
date of this Report, is shown in the Directors'
Remuneration Report.

Caopies of the service contracts of Executive
Directors and of the appointment letters of the
Chair and Nen-executive Directors are available
for inspection at the Company’s registered
office during normal business hours and at the

“AGM.

No Director has a directorship in common or
other significant links with any other Director.

Director appeintments are governed by The
Companies Act 2006, the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Group's Articles of
Association.

The Directors confirm that:

»  so far as each Director is aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditors are unaware; and

Prnted on Steindeis 100% Recycled and Carben Capturad through the Woodland Trast, heiping 1o creale new Bntish woodland across the UK

»  the Directors have taken all steps that they
ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information ond
to establish that the auditors are aware of
that information.

Directors’' Conflicts Of Interest

The Board has formal procedures to deal with
Directors’ conflicts of interest. The appointment
letters of Non-executive Directors state that
they agree to consult with the Chair prior to
accepting any directorships in publicly quoted
companies or any major external appointments.
Also, if any Nen-executive Director becomes

-aware of any potential conflicts of interest

the Chair and Company Secretary must be
notified as soon as this becomes apparent.
During the period neither the Chair or the
Company Secretary were aware of any

further appointments or potential conflicts of
interest. The independence of Non-executive
Directors is reviewed by the Board annually. All
Directors complete an annual questionnaire

to record any potential conflicts of interest .
The questionnaire for FY21 did not disclose any
conflicts of interest

The Company has entered into a Relationship
Agreement with Chief Executive, Mike Ashley,
whose whaolly-owned companies, MASH
Holdings Limited and MASH Betq Limited,
currently hold approximately 5.10% and 58.44%
respectively of the issued share copital of the
Compuany (excluding treasury shares). This
agreement is described in the Directors' Report.



FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

Directors’ Indemnities

The Group has qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the Directors within the meoning given
to the term by s234 and 5235 of the Compeanies Act 2006. This is in respect of any potential exposure
of lighility in their copacity as a Director of the Company and of any Cormgany within the Group.
Such inderanities were in foree throughout the financial peried and will remain in force,

Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust .

We note that the Trustees of the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust have waived their right to

recejve dividends on the ordinary shares comprised in the trust fund. No dividends were paid by the
Company for the period ended 25 April 2021 (FY20: £nil).

Disclosures Required Under Uk Listing Rule 9.3.4

The information required by Listing Rule 9.8.4 is set out in the table below:

APPLICASLE SUB-PARAGRAPH WITHIN LR %.8.4 _ DISCLOSURE PROVIDED
(1] Irterest copitalised by the Group N/A
12] Pubheation of unaudited financial infarenaton N/A
13] Requirermens deleted from tha Listing Rules -
14) Detanls o) long -term incentive sehumes only . N
mvclving o Direckor
15] Waiver of emalumants by ¢ Diractor N/
|6) Wanver of futura emalumants by & Director N/A
(7) Non pra-rate aflotments for cash lissuer] N
{8] Non pro-raty altatments far cash (oo Ntk
subsiduries]
(%) Parent parteipobion ws a placing by o listed . WA
subsichary -
110} Centracts ot significonce . A
{11} Pravision ol sarvices by o contralling page 5
shargholder
(121 Shareholder wawers of diidends wage &1
hareholdar waivers of fuiyre dredends NrA
(144 with 9 page 67

Green House Gas Emmissons And Energy Consumption
See The Environment report
Annual General Meeting

Further details on the dote, time and format of proceedings will faltow shortly after the finalisation
of these Annual Report and Accounts, taking inte aocount Government guidance surraunding the
Covid-19 pandemic.
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Going Concern

The Group's business activities, tegether

with the factors likely to affect its future
development, performance and position are set
out in the Chief Executive's Report and Business
Review.

The financial position of the Group, its cash
flows, liquidity position ond borrowing facilities
are described in the Financial Review. In
addition, the financial statements include the
Group's objectives, policies and processes

for monaging jts capital, its financial risk
management objectives, detnils of its financial
instruments and hedging activities, and its
exposures to credit risk and fiquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financial
resources, The Group is able to operate within
its banking facilities and covenants, which

runs until November 2022, and is well placed

to take advantage of strategic opportunities

as they arise, As g consequence, the Directors
believe that the Group is able to munage its
business risks successfully despite the continued
uncertain economic outiook,

Management has assessed the level of trading
to date since the impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic and has forecast and projected a
conservative base case and also ¢ humber

of even more conservative scenarios taking
into account o potential further wave and
associcted lockdowns over winter, Government
support, foreigh exchange exposure and

cost saving initiatives. These forecasts and
projections show that the Group wili be able

to operate within the levet of the current
facility and its covenant requirements {being
interest cover and net debt to EBITDA ratios).
Management also has ¢ number of mitigating
actiens which could be token if required such as
putting on hold discretionary spend, liquidating
certain assets on the balance sheet ond poying
down the Reveolving Credit Facility. $ee the
Viability Statement for further details.

Having thoroughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made suitable
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in

!
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operationat existence for the at least 12 menths
from the date of these financial statements.
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants.
On this basis, the Directors continue to odopt
the geing concern basis for the preparation of
the Annual Report and Financial Statements
which is a period of at least twelve months
from the date of approval of these financial
staternents,

Accountability And Audit

A statement by the External Auditor can

be found on page 66 detailing its reporting
responsibilities. The Directors fulfil their
responsibilities, and these are set out in the
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement.

Auditor

RSM UK Audit LLP will be proposed for
reappointment at the AGM. in accordance with
5489(4) of the Companies Act 2006, resolutions
to determine rermuneration are to be agreed at
the AGM.

Post Balonce Sheet Events
See note 36 of the Annual Accounts.
Future Dovelopments

Future developments are discussed throughout
the Strategic Report.

Fi ial Risk M "

Fingncial risk monogement is discussed in note
3 of the financicl statements.

By Order of the Baard.

Torn Piper

" Company Secretary

5 August 2021
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report, the separate
Corporate Governance Statement and the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Corapany law requires the directors to prepare
group and company financial statements for
each financial year. The directors have elected
-under company law to prepare group financial
statementsin accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Componies Act 2006 and
are additionally required under the Listing Rules
of the Financial Conduct Authority to prepare
the group financial statements in accordance

with international financial reparting standards -

adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) Mo
1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.
The directors have elected under company law
to prepare the company financic! statements

in cccordance with United Kingdom Generally-
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdem
Accounting Standards and applicable low).

The group financial statements are required
by law und international accounting standards
in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and international
financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Union to present fairly the
financial position and performance of the
group; the Companies Act 2006 provides in
relation to such financial statements that
references in the relevant part of that Act to
financial statements giving a true and fair
view are references to their achieving a fair
presentation.

Under compaony law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the group and the
company and of the profit or loss of the group
for that period.
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In preparing each of the group and cempany
financiai statements, the dizectors are required
to:

a. select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

b, make judgements and aceounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

c. for the group financial statements, state
whether they have been prepared in
accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and internationatl financial reporting

-standards adopted pursuant to Regulations
[EC} No 1606/2002 as it applies in the
European Union;

d. for the company financial statements,
state whether applicable UK accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the company financicl
statements;

e. prepare the financial statements on
the going cencern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the group
and the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequete accounting recérds that are sufficient
to shew and explain the group’s and the
company's.transactions and disclose with

‘reasonable accuracy at any time the financial

position of the group and the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial
statements and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006

-and, as regards the group financial statements,

Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are ciso
responsible for safequarding the assets of

the group and the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Printed on Stenbeis 100°% Recycled and Carbon Capturzd through the Woodland Trust. helping (o create new B

Directors’ Stotement Pursuant To The Disclosure
dnd Transparency Rules

Each of the directars, whose names and
functions are listed on pages 37 to 3% confirm
that, to the best of each person's knowledge:

a. the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with the applicable set of
accounting standards, give o true and
fair view of the assets, liokilities, financial -
position and profit of the company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whale; and

b. the Strategic Report contained in the
Annual Report includes a fair review of
the development and performance of the .
business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face.

The directors are responsible for the
maintencnce and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the
Company's website.

Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preporation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Chiris Wootton

Chief Financiat Officer

5 August 2021

b woadland across the UK
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_ZUvaZUmZ._. AUDITOR'S REPORT TO -
THE MEMBERS OF FRASERS GROUP PLC

GPINION

We have audited the financigl statements of
Frasers Group PLC {the ‘parent company’) and
its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the period ended
25 April 2021 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Stotement, the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive tncome, the Eonsolidated
Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Cashflow
Statement, the Consolidoted Statement of
Changes in Exquity, the Company Balance
Sheet, the Company Statement of Changes in
Equity and notes ta the financigl stgternents,
including o summary of significant accouriting
policies. The financial reporting framewark

that hos been applied in the preparction of

the Groug financial statements is applicable
law and Internationa| Accounting Standards

in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and intermationa)
financia) reporting standords adopted pursyant
& Regulation {EC} No 1606,/2002 as it applies
in the European Unjon, The financiaf reporting
framewerl that has been applied in the
Preparation of the parent company financial
statements js applicable law and United
Kingdom bnnoc:::m Standards, .._:n_c&bm_
Financial nm_ua;_.:m Standard 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard dpplicable in the UK and
Republic of Iretang’ {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; .

In our apinion;

¢ the financial staterents give a true ang fair
view of the state of the group’s and of the
parent compeny's offairs os ot 25 April 2021
and of the group'’s lass for the period then
ended;

*  the group financial statements have been
Propetly prepared in acecordance with
Interngtionai Accounting Standards it
conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2604 and énternationgl
firancial reporting standards adopted
pursuent to Regulation (EC] No 1606/2002
as it applies in the European Union;
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*  the parent company financiof statements
have been properly prepored in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accapted
Accounting Practice; and

*  the finoncial statements have been
prepared in accordance with tha
fequirements of the Companies Act 2008,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing {UK) ISAs
{UK)) and applicable law. Oyr responsibifities
under those stondords ore further describeg

in the Auditor's responsibilities for the qudit of
the financial statements section of aur teport.
We cre independent of the group and parent
<ompany in accordonce with the ethical
requirements that are refevant 0 aur qudit of
the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public interast entities ang we have fuifited our
other ethicg) esponsibilities in occordance with
these requirements. We believe that the qudit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
IpPpropriate to pravide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the fingncial statements, we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate,
For an explanation of how we evalucted
management’s assessment of the group’s
and parent company’s obility to cantinue to
adopt the going concern basis of accournting
ond our key observations arising in respect to
that evaiuation, please see the Impact of the
Cavid19 pandemic ang Going Concern key
Gudit matter.

Based on the wark we have performed, we

have not ident; ied any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions thot, individually
or collectively, may cost significant doubt on
the group’s or the parent company’s ability to
cantinue os a going concern for a period of at

least twelve months from whan the financial
statements are authorised for issue,

In relation to the entities feporting on how they
have applied the UK Carporate Governance
Code, we have nothing material to add or

draw attention to in relation to the directory’
statement in the financiql statements aboyt
whether the directors considered it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting,

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of
the directors with respect to geing concern are
described in the relevant sections of this repart.

Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters

Group - Recurring risks

¢ Voluotion of inventory

' Impairment of property related assats
* Property, Legal and Gther Pravisions
*  Classification of investmenits

Group - event driven

* Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and going
cancerm

Materiality
Group

* Quverall materiality: £11million

= Performance makeriality: £7.7miltion
Parant Cotnpany

*  Overail material y. Ellmillion

= Performance }unm:o_ y: £7.1 mitlion
Seope

Cur Groupr qudit Pracedures coverad 88% of
revenue, 88% of totel assets and 78% of the
result before tax,

FRASERS GRoUP

Key audit matters

Key audit ratters gre those matters that,

it aur professional judgment, wera of most
significance in our audit of the group and
Parent company finoncjal statements of the
current period and include the mast significant
ossessed risks of materigl misstatement
{whather or not due to fraud) we identified,
including those which had the greatest effact
on the overall oydit strategy, the allocation of
resaurces in the audit and directing the efforts
of the engagement team. These matters, ang
any comments we make on the results of our
Pracedures thernan, were addressed in the
context of our aydit of the group and parent
cofmpany financial statements a5 a whole, and
in forming our opinien thereon, and we do not’
provide a seporate opinion on these matters,
This is not o complete kst of all risks identifieg
by ur audit.

Inventory - valuation and existency
Key audit matter description

At 25 April 201, the Group Consolidatad
Balance Sheet records inventory of £1,095.6m
12020: £1198 3m). This amount is net of an
inventory provision of £219.8m (2020: £223m).

The Cavid-19 pandemic resuited in physical
stores being temporarily closed ot varioug
Points during the period and the resultant
reduction in the leval of demand and a reciuced
ability to sel) through secsongl Jnventory may
increase the risk of inventory obsolescence.

As described in note 2 to the finaneial
statements, mancgement use o forward looking
inventory provisioning model which calcutatas
© provision by cotegory of inventory based on
histaricat experience, pricing and discounting
strategies and management’s assessment of
risk.

Thers is significant estimation involved in the
calculation of inventory Pprovisions to ensure
that inventory is held at the lower of cost gnd
net realisable value, This involves consideration
of expected future |psses on sale of inventory
including assessing the likely impacts of the
Covid 19 pandermnic, inventory absalescence and
the additionai costs to sell which nead to be

‘
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included in calculating the net realisable value
of inventory.

and repricing costs to take account of our

+assessment of the Jikely future costs of these
activities in relation to products that would
have a net realisable value which was below
caost.

Due to the factors exploined above, we have
identified the valuation of inventory as a key
audit matter.

We then formed an assessment, based on
discussions with management and available
market datg, to reflect the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic. This included cansideration
of forecast future sales performance, expected
rmargin decling, the increased risk of inventory
becoming out of season and adjustments

How the matter was addressed in the audit
In respect of inventory valuation we:

« Assessed the appropriateness of
management’s inventory provision
calculations, including testing the accuracy
and completeness of the data used and the considered relevant for specific fascias,
mathematical accuracy of the provisioning where the risk of inventory obselesence was
model considered to be higher. Our altérnative model

aliowed us to develop an estimate of the level

of provision we considered appropriate and
supportable against which we were able to
assess management’s estimates.

»  Critically challenged the assumptions made
in the inventory provision model in respect
of the expected level of discounting and the
expected costs of sale, including:

- The basis on which expected discounts Kay observations
were calculated and whether cakulated
discounts were redlistic based on
historical experience and the current

trading environmant

Our audit work on inventory valuation, and
in particular the deveiopment of our own
alternative provision model, did not identify
any material misstatement in the inventory
- The assumptions regarding the provisions.
expected volume and allocated costs of

redistributing {tunnelling) and repricing

product

- Whether different assumptions and
estimates should be applied for different
fascias given the differentiated product
mix -

+ Considered management's strategic options
for addressing demand in the uncertain

retait economic environment present as a

result of the Covid 19 pondemic, including

discounting levels and further development

of on-line retail channels.

As a result of our findings from challenging
management’s model, we independently
developed an alternative model that applied
historic inventory loss experience to caltulate
a provision against current out of season and
clearance inventory and inventory that would
be expected to remain unsold and fail into
those categories in future periods. In oddition,
we recalculated the expected future tunne
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Impairment of property related assets
Key audit matter dascription

As a result of the Covid 19 pandemic and
changing patterns of retail consumer behaviour,
particularly in relation to physical stores, the
Group identified that there were indications

of impairment in relation to freehold property
interests, right of use assets and related PPE
[“property related assets®). As required by

1AS 36 [Impairment of Assets) the Group has
performed an impairment review of all such
assets.

As o result of this review, impairments in
relation to freehold and long lecsehold property
(£88.4m), right of use assets {£168,2m) and
related PPE {£63.8m)} have been made in these
tinancial statements.

As described in note 2 to the financia!
staternents, the impairment review involves
management judgements and estimates in
relation to the value in use of the property
related assets (being the net present value

of the forecast related cashflows) and, in the
case of freehold property, comparison of
calculated value in use to internal and external
property vaiuations. The values derived are
then compared to the book value of the related
assets to determine whether impairment

is required. [n making this assessment
management determined each property or
store to be a cash generating unit {CGU).

The value in use calculations involve significant
assumptions regarding future cashflows, the
leng term growth rate in like for like scles, an
wssessment of the propensity for customers

to switch to online purchases, pressure on’
margins and-determination of an appropriate
discount rate as well as considering the
possibility of future lockdowns. in the cose of
freehold property, valuations are dependent
on assumptions regarding the ability to

relet property, the tength of void and rent

free periods and future rentals achievable.
Accordingly we determined that the valuotion
of property related assets had a high degree of
estimation uncertainty and this is illustrated by
the sensitivity analysis set out in note 2.

Due to the factors explained above, we have

. . -~ ! s
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identified noivmm"mnmmm_ valuation, presentation
and disclosure of property related cssets as a
key cudit matter.

How the motter was addressed in the audit

We obtained an understanding of how
management performed their impairment
testing of property related assets and their
approach to valuation.

We critically assessed the methodology

applied by management with reference to

the requirements of JAS 36 and tested the
integrity of the value in use caleulations and the
calculated impairments by CGU.

In the case of freehold property, in addition

to assessing the velue in use calculations,

we evaluated the approach to the valuation
of freehold interests with input from an
independent external retail property valuation
expert and critically challenged the underlying
assumptions. -

in particular we chaltenged the significant
assumptions within monagement’s models
through:-

* Evaluating management’s assumptions
through consideraticn of historical and
current trading performance and external
data points

* Sensitised the assumptions in
management's impairment models and
reviewed the financial statement disclosures
documenting assumptions and the impacts
of applied sensitivities

+  Tested the recenciliation between
the cashflows used in the value in use
calculations with those used to assess going
concern and viabitity to ensure they were
consistent

= Critically challenging whether it was
appropriate to exclude properties from the
impairment model and assessing whether
the redasons for exclusion were supportable -
for example where specific properties were
under redevelopment

+ Comparing the discount rate used with that
independently colculaoted by our internal
valuation expert
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We assessed whether the discloslres within the
financial statements are consistent with 1AS 36,

Key observations

Qur audit work in respect of the impairment

of property related assets concluded that the
reloted balonces were not materially misstated
and the disclosures management have made
are appropricte.

Property, Legal and Other Provisions
Key audit matter description

The Group makes provision for liabilities where
it identifies there is o present obligation as a
result of a past event and where it is probable
that there will be a resultant outflow of
resources that con be reliobly measured.

The Group has a significant provision in relation
to legal and regulatory matters ond propesty
related provisions. As detailed in note 28 to

the financial statements, the Consolidated
Balance Sheet includes provisions of £215.8m
[2020: £225.4m) relating to legal and regulatory
matters and £144.1m, (2020; 107.9m) relating to
property provisions which principaily comprises
provisions for dilapidations on leasehold
properties.

The dilapidation provision requires significant
judgements to be made as to future amaunts
payable based on histerical experience,
external advice and evolving conditions within
the property sector.

onally, the Group facas a number of
legal, tax and other commercial cigims and
significant judgement is required in determining
whether a provision should be recorded and for
what amount,

Due to the amounts involved and the
significant Midgements required in quantifying
and assessing provisions we have identified
existence, accuracy, completeness, presentation
and disclosure of property, legal ond other
provisions as a key audit matter.
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How the matter was addressed in the oudit
Our cudit work included the following: -

» Considering management’s assessment
in respect of provisions ong assessing
whether the recagnition criteria of 1AS
37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent assets had been met.

= Challenging the assumptions made in the
dilapidation provision model in respect
of the expected level of dilapidations on
a store by store basis, As @ result of our
findings from challenging management’s
moadel, we independently developed an
alternative model that opplied historic
dilapidation costs and relevant factors
such as geoegraphy and property type as
well as considering the impocts of likely
future chonges in the property market. Qur
clternative model alfowed us to develop
an estimate of the level of provision we
considered appropriate and supportable
against which we ware able to assess
management's estimates.

+ Challenging provisions and related
ossumptiens with key management outside
the finance function, including members of
the progerty and legal teams and obtoining
corroborative evidence from third parties in
relation te material ongoing legal and tax
matters

+ Auditing the mavement in provisions and
checking for completeness through the
review of ongoing cloims for dilap:dations
and through circularisation of legal advisars
in relation to other claims.

Key observations

Qur audit work in respect of Property, legal and
other provisions concluded that the related
bafances were not materially misstated and
the disclosures management have made are
appropriate,

FRASERS GROUP
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Classification of investments
Key audit matter description

The Group has a number of investments in
which it holds more than 20% but less than
50% of the voting share capital of the investee.

IAS 28 ~ Investments in ossociates and Joint
Ventures — requires thaot where an investment
falls within this range it should be accounted
for as an assaciate, unless management can
rebut the presumption that significant influence
exists and can dearly demonstrote that this is
the case,

The Greup sold its investment in French
Connection ple during the year but af the year
end has strategic investments in Studio Retail
Group plc (36.9%) and Mulberry Group plc
(26.1%) and has rebutted the presumption that
significant influence exists. These investments
have beer accounted for at Foir value through
other comprehensive income as explained in
nate 2 to the financial statements.

Since the judgements that the Graup has made,
that it does not have significant influence over
Studic Retail Group ple and Mulberry Group
pic, have a significant impact over the financial
statements we have identified the clas
and disclosure of investments as a key audit
matter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
Our audit work included: -

«  Assessing the accounting for the above
investments under I1AS 28 - Investments in
Assaciates and Joint Ventures and IFRS 9 -
Financial Instrurments.

»  Obtaining and critically chalienging
management’s papers addressing the
occounting for the above investments
against the requirement of the accounting
standards and the judgements made in
addressing the questions of significant
influence

« Discussing management's strategy for
holding the investments and challenging
whether this was consistent with the
accounting treatrment

1o awross tho LIK

«  Assessing the five criteria set cut in [AS 28
as suggesting whether significar®t influence
may exist by exomining both confirming
and disconfirming evidence.

In particulor we: -

+  Obtained and examined certain
agreements and correspondence
between the Group and the investees to
torroborate managements assertion that
no significont influence exists

*  Reviewed investee financial statements,
press announcements, articles of
association, sharehoider agreements and
medis reports to assess whether there
was evidence of significant influence

+  Made enquiries of the Group's Head of
Strategic Investments to understand
the Group's interaction with those
investments, including in particular, the
noture and purpose of the observer role
on the board of Studic Retail Group ple

+  Considered whether transactions
between the Group and the investees
were indicative of significant influence

= Critically chalienging whether the
judgements made are clearly disclosed in
the financial statements,

Key observations

Qur audit work in respect of the ¢lassification
of investments concluded that management's
judgements that they did not have significant
influence over Studic Retaif Group pic and

Mulberry Group pl< to be supportable and the
related classificotion ond disclosures made in
the financial statements to be appropriate.
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Impact of the Covid 19 pandemic and geing
concemn

Key audit matter description

The Covid 19 pandemic and the mandoted
temporory closure of retail stores at various
times during the year, has had ¢ significant
impact on the group's revenue and result
before tax. fn addition to heightened audit
risks relating to the carrying value of property
reloted assets and inventory set out in the
key audit matters above, the pandemic has
implications for;-

» The Group's considerations in relation to
going concern and viability

= Accounting for monies received under the
UK Government's Job Retention Scheme
{CJRS)

Significant judgements are always required
around the assumptions underpinning future
cashflow projections. These judgements are
heightened in the current retail environment
given the uncertainties surrounding the longer
term impact of the pandemic and structural
changes to the UK retail sector. Whilst retail
stores have opened post year end, and web
sales have perfarmed well, the longer term
impacts on shopping habits and the risks of
a gicbal recession are difficult to accurately
predict.

Taking account of these sensitivities, the
Directors have acknowledged there will be
potentially material variations in forecast
financial performance, but concluded that

the Group has sufficient resources available

to meet its licbilities as and when they fall

due and that therefore there are no material
uncertainties that cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern

In undertaking their assessment of going
concern, the Directors have reviewed forecast
future performance and anticipated cashflows
for the Group. These forecasts have also been
applied in determining the need to impair
property related assets as set out in the key
audit matter above, Their assessment has
considered cashflow forecasts and financing
and covenants in place for the period to
November 2022, which is the date at which the
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current Revolving Credit Facility expires.

As part of the assessment and as disclosed in
the viability stotement on page 36, the Directors
have determined appropriate sensitivities to the
farecasts, including a reverse stress test of the
Group's ability to meet its covenants.

We have identified o key oudit matter related
to going concern cs a result of the fudgement
required in undertcking a going concern
assessment in the current uncertain trading
environment, the adequacy and accuracy of
disclosures ond the conclusion that there is not
a material uncertainty related to going concern.

The Group has received furlough [CIRS) income
of approximately £80m in the year and has
recognised this as a reduction in payroll costs in
the income statement. The rules that applied to
furlough ¢lsims in the year were complex and
subject to variation and there are significant
penalties for non-compliance, Consequently

we identified a potential risk of misstatement
relating to the processing and management of
clgims.

How the matter wos addressed in the audit

Qur audit work in relation to going concern
included:

= Obtaining un understanding of
management’s going concern modeds,
discussing key assumptions with
management and assessing whether those
assumptions were consistent with those
applied elsewhere, such as in relation to
inventory valuction and the assessment of
property related provisions

+ Checking the mathematical accuracy
of management's cashflow models, and
agreeing opening balances ta 25 April 2021
actual figures

+ Checking management's covenant
compliance caledations to determine
whether there is a risk of bredach and
assessed whether the assumptions in
management's base model appeared
realistic, achievable and consistent with
other internal and external evidence

+ Comparing forecast sales with recent
historical information to consider the

nd Frust. helping to create new B

accuracy of forecasting

+  Considering post year end soles patterns to,
assess whether they were consistent with
those assumed in the base madel

«  Testing management’s sensitivity analysis
cnd reverse stress test and performing our
-own analysis based on further sensitising of
the models to take account of reasonably
possible scenarios that could arise from the
risks identified

» Challenging management regarding their
identification of discretionary spend that
could be reduced should mitigating actions
become necessary

«  Reviewing agreements and correspondence
relating to the availability of financing
arrangements

»  Evalugting the Group's disclosures on going
concern against the requirements of 1A5 1

In relation to the furlough income received
by the Group under the UK Government's
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS) we:

« Obtained an understanding of how
management communicated and operated
the scheme and the process by which
management calculated and submitted
their claims

* Reviewed correspondence between the
Group and HMRC

+ Agreed cash received for claims made
during the year ta bank statements

* Reperformed the calculation of a sample of
claims including agreeing details to payroll
records

* Reviewed the internal cudit work performed
over CJRS claim procedures

1t woadiand across the UK

Key observations

Qur audit work in respect of the Covid 19
pandemic and going concern concluded that
the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate and we did not
identify any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on

the group's or the parent company's ability

to continue as a going concern and that the
associated disclosures are in accordance with
accounting standards.

However, the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic
on future performance is difficult to predict with
any certainty and no audit can be relied upon
to identify all possible scenarios that may have
future implications for the Group.

Cur work in respect of CJRS claims did not
identify any material misstatement.
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There are no key audit matters relating to the parent company.

Qur application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we set certain thresholds which help us tq determine
the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of
misstatements, both individually and on the financial staternents as a whole, could reasonably
influence the economic decisions of the users we take into account the qualitative nature and the
size of the misstatements. Bused on our professional judgement, we determined moteriality for the

fincncial statements as follows:

Parent Cotrpany

OYERALL MATERIALITY

E11 1

n {2020 £1 9me

10, (7020 £919

nl

BASIS FOR DETERMINING OVERALL MATERIALITY

2 8% of Underhying ERITDA

1% of total assats [cORnEd ot ovetall
Group mates ¥

RATIONALE FOR RENCHMARK APP.IZD

In determining cvera|| mtenality

we gave consideration (o underiying
EBITDA, revanue and the overage result
before tax for the previous theee yeors.

Since the Group tses underlying EBITDA
IS ComMmUAICTticng with shareholders
wa have datermned this ta be the most
approphate matenalty benchenark

We opplied o lower lsvel of matenality
ko tha audit of components and, in
accordonce with 1SA 320, in ralation (e
cartain classes of transachons, account
balances and disciosures,

Underlyng EBITDA 15 defined at nate
4 and in the glossary to the mancial
staterments

Tha Purent Company does nat trade
andl therefore toral assets 1s cons dered
to be the mast approprate benchmark

PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY £7.2million Exmillion
We szt parfarmanes rmat W zet performance mat ut
 tevel Iowar than overall moterality © leval lower than overcll metenality
tor tha finonciol statements at a for the finaneial statements os o
whole te raduce to an apptopriotaly whole t reduce ka an appropnately
low levei the probotulity that, n Waw level the prababitity that, n

uncomected o d  aggregote, . d ond undetected
misstatements excegd overall mistatements excead overail
motermlity morerialky
The lactars we censidarad in
determining perfarmance matenality
included, oLt kicwladge of the group,
Hhe pressures within the retoil sector
- and the level of misstatements in prior

peniods

BASIS FOR MATERIALITY 5% of averall matenahty 65% of ovarall maten

(2020; 75% of overall moterioity]

{2020 75% of overal| matericlity]

REPORTING OF MISSTATEMENTS TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Misstatements in axcess of £0 Smilion
ancl misstatemants below that threstold
that. in our view, worronted reporting on
quolitotive grounds

Misstaiernents 1n excess of £0.6miflion
and pesstotements below thor tieshold
that, in aur view, warranied reporting on
qualitatve grounds

70

J

Priited on Steinbeis 1007 Recycled and Sarbon ©

itod throughy the Woodiand Trast,

An overview of the scope of our audit

Cur audit cpproach was hased on a thorough
understanding of the Group’s business and is
risk based, and in particular included:

«  Evaluation of identified components to
assess the significance of eqch component
and to determine the plannea audit
response bosed on g measure of materiality.
This included significance as o percentage
of the Graup's revenus, total assets and
result before tax;

= For those components that were evaluated
as significant, or likely t¢ include significant
risks, either a full-scape or targeted
approach was taken based on their
relotive materiality to the Group, and our
assessment of the cudit risk. For significant
components requiring a full-scope
approach, we evaluated controls over the
financial reporting systems identified as
part of our risk ossessment and addressed
critical accounting matters. Substantive
testing was performed on significant classes
of transactions and balksnces, ond other
material balances, determined during the
Group scoping exarcise;

+  Full scope audit procedures have been
performed on the financial statements of
Frasers Group ple, and on the finoncial
information of the main trading companies
within the UK Retail compaonent;
Sportsdirect.com Retail Limited, Wareshop 2
Limited, Sports Direct International Holdings
Limited, House of Fraser Limited, The
Flannels Group Limited, Jack Wilis Retail
Limited, Evans Cycles Limited and GAME
Retaif Limited;

« In relation to overseas components we
engaged RSM member firms in Austria,
Ireland and Spain, to perform full scope
component audits ehd RSM in the United
States and Belgium to perform targeted
aqudit procedures. Additionclly, RSM
member firms attended inventory counts in
a number of locations;

V31 ST 0SS e LK

+  The group engagement team reviewed the
work performed by the compaonent auditors.
We determined the level of involvement
we needed to have in their audit work
at those reporting units to be able to
canclude whether sufficient, appropriate
audit evidence hod been obtained as a
basis for our opinien on the Group financial
statements as @ whole.

+ Further specific audit procedures over the
Group consolidation and areas of significant
judgement including impairment of property
related assets, leases, taxation and treasury
were performed by the group engagement
team,

The operations that were subject to full-scope
audit procedures made up 80% of consolidated
revenues, 82% of total assets and 72% of
absolute profit before tax.

The operations that were subject to targeted
audit procedures, including specific significant
judgement areas noted above, made up 8% of
consolidated reverwes, 6% of total assets and
6% of profit before tax; and

The remaining operations of the Group were
subject to analytical procedures over the
balance sheet and income statements of the
relevant entities with a focus on applicable
risks identified above. This made up 12% of
consolidated revenues, 12% of net assets and
22% of profit before tax.




FRASERS GROUP .

FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

The coverage achieved by our audit procedures was:

ﬁ Full Scope .,ﬂnqmaﬁaa oudit . Analytical procedures

Full scope audits were performed for 5 components (some of which included a number of legal
entities which were combined for group reporting purposes), targeted audit procedures for 4
components and analytical procedures at group level for the remaining components.

..z:_n:....._:!".. Rervnus fetalanets Kok
FULL SCOPE AUDIT 5 5% 82% 7%
TARGETED AUDIT PROCEDURES . 4 A 6% i
TOTAL 9 H2% BE% 8%,

The Group team hed planned to visit componen: locations in Austrio, Spain and the USA. However,

these visits were prevented by travel restrictions imposed as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and

instead the group team held video conference calis and performed remote file reviews to assess the
audit risk and the work planned and performed n response.

The parent company was subject to a full scope cudit for the purposes of the Group and Parent
Company financial statements.

Qther information )

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report on pages 1to 65 other than the financial staternents

and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise 2xplicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statzments, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiolly inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtoined in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent matericl misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is & material misstat=ment in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is @ material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

n
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the directars’
remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinien, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit;

+ the information given in the Strategic
Report and the Directors' Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with
the financiol statements and those reports
have been prepared in accordonce with
applicable legal requirements;

+ the information about internal control and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure
Rules and Transparency Rules sourcebook
made by the Financial Canduct Authority
{the FCA Rules), is consistent with the
financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal
requirements; and

= . information about the company’s corporate
governance code and practices and about
its administrative, maonagement and
supervisory bodies and their committees
complies with rules 72.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of
the FCA Rules

my to creake new Bobsh woodiand across lhe LK

Matters on which we are required to report by
axception

In the light of the knowledge and
understanding of the group and the parent
company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified
material misstatements in:

+ the Strategic Report or the Directors' Report;
or

+ the information about internal contrel and
risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about
share capitat structures, given in compliance
with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
yeu if, in our opinion:

+ adequote accounting records have not been
kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

* the parent company financial statements
and the part of the directors' remuneration
report to be audited are not in agreement
with the occounting records and returns; or

«  certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made; or

* we have not received all the information
and expanations we require for our audit.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the
directors’ statement in relation to going
concern, longer-term viability and that part of
the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to the parent company's compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Statement specified for our review.
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Bused on the work undertaken as part of

our audit, we have concluded that each of

the following elements of the Corporate
Gavernance Statement is materially consistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the audit:

+ Directors' statement with regards the
appropriateness of adopting the going
concern basis of accounting and any .
material uncertainties identified (set out on
page 64);

+ Directors’ explanation s to its assessment
of the group's prospects, the period this
assessment covers and why this period is
appropiiate [set out on page 36);

«  Directors' stotement on Fair, balanced and
understandable {set out on page 44);

= Board's confirmation that it has carried out
a robust assessment of the emerging and
principal risks (set out on page 31);

*  The section of the annual report that ’
describes the review of effactiveness of risk
monagermnent and internal control systems
{set out on page 44); and,

+  The section describing the work of the audit
committee (set out on page 44}

Responsibilities of directors

As explained mere fully in the directors’
responsi ies statement {set out on page
65), the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give « true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary G enable the
preparation of financial statements that cre
free from material misstaternent, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financiadl statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the
group's and the parent company’s ability

to continue as a geing concern, disclosing,

as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the group or the parent company
ot o cease operations, or hove no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Auditer's responsibilities for the audit of the
finuncial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from moterial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not @ guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs
{UK) will clways-detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the oggregate, they could
reasonhably be expected to influence the
aconomic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

{rregularities are instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations. The objectives of
our audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding compliance with
lows and regulations that have a direct effect
on the determination of material amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements,

to perform audit procedures to heip identify
instances of non-compliance with other laws
and reguictions that may have a material effect
on the financial statements, and to respond
appropriately to identified or suspected
non-compliaonce with laws and regulations
identified during the audit.

e relation Yo fraud the objectives of our oudit
are to identify and assess the risk of matericl
misstatement of the financial statements

due to fraud, to obtain sufficient appropricte
audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due to fraud through
designing and implementing appropriate
responses and to respond approprictely to
fraud or suspected fraud identified during the
audit.

Howaver, it is the primary respansibility of
management, with the oversight of those
charged with governance, to ensure that
the entity's operations are conducted in
accordonce with the provisions of laws
and requlations and for the prevention and
detection of fraud.

In identifying and assessing risks of material
misstatement in respect of irregularities,
including fraud, the greup audit engagement
team:

= obtained an understonding of the nature
of the industry and sector, including the
legal and reguiatary frameworks that the
group and parent company cperates in and
how the group and parent company are
complying with the legal and ragulatery
framewarks;

= inquired of manogement, and those
charged with governance, about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities, including any known actual,
suspected or alleged instances of fraud;

- applied analyticcl review procedures to
identify unusual or unexpected relationships;

« discussed matters about non-compliance
with laws and regulations and how fraud
might occur including assessment of how
and where the financial statements may be
susceptible to fraud

As the group is regulated, our assessment of
risks involved gaining an understending of
the effectiveness of the control environment
including the controls established to mitigate
the risks of froud and the procedures for
complying with regulatory requirements.

All relevant laws and regulations identified at a
Group level and areas susceptible to fraud that
could have a material effect on the financial
statements were communicated to component
auditors. Any instances of non-compliance

with laws and regulations identified and
communicated by component guditors were
considered in our audit approach. We remained
alert to any indications of fraud throughout the
audit.

As a result of these procedures, we considered
the opportunities and incentives that may
exist within the Group for fraud and identified
the greatest potential for fraud in those areas
in which management is reguired to exer
significant judgement. In common with cll
audits under I5As (UK) we also performed
specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management averride and the risk of fraudulent
revenue recognition. These procedures
included:

- testing the appropriateness of journal
entries ond other adjustments based on rigk
criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentation

+  assessing whether the judgements made
in making occounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias

+  evaluating the business rationale of any
significant transactions thet are unusual or
outside the narmal course of business

* testing the operating effectiveness of
the manual controls in relation to the
completeness, accuracy, and existence of
cash sales

* investigating transactions posted to nominal
ledger codes outside of the normal revenue
cycle identified through the use of data
cnalytics tools.

The Group is subject to lows and regulations
which directly affect the material amounts

and disclosures in the financial stotements.

The most significant iaws and regulations were
detertmined to be as follows:-IFRS and FRS

102, the LK Corripanies Act, Rnarcial Conduct
Authority regulations, including the Listing Rules
and tox legistation.

In addition, the Group is sulkject to ather

Jaws and regulations which do not have a
direct effect on the financial statements but
compliance with which may be fundamental
to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid
material penalties. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an
effect: competition and anti-bribery laws, data
protection, employment, envirenmental and
health and safety regulations,
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In response to the above, audit procedures
performed by the audit engagement team
included:

+  reviewing financial statement disclosures
and testing to supporting documentation
to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described
as having « direct effect on the financial
statements

+ enquiring of management, the Audit
Committee and in-house legal counsel
concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims

»  reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance, reviewing internal
audit reports and correspondence with
HMRC

A further description of our respoensibilities for
the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council's website ot:
hetp: fwww fre.org.uk/ouditorsresponsib,
This description forms part of our guditor's
report.

Other matters which we are required to address

Following the recommendation of the audit
committee, we were appointed by the Audit
Committee and the Board on 18 November
2019 to audit the financial statemaenits for the
year ending 26 April 2020 and subsequent
financial pericds.

The period of total uninterrupted consecutive
oppointments is 2 years covering the years
ending 26 April 2020 to 25 April 202,

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's
Ethical Standard were not provided to the
group or the parent company and we remain
independent of the group ond the parent
company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the
additional report to the qudit committee.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them
in @n auditor's report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by kaw, we do not
accept or assume respensibility to onyone other
than the company and the company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the epinicns we have formed.

Mark Harwood
{Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP,
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
25 Farringdon Street
London

EC4A 4AB

5 August 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

Hote .-H.»ﬁ__uﬂn
Hml
REVENUE 4 36281
Cost of salas 12,094 5¢
. _GROSS PROFIT 15004
Selling, distribution and administrot ve expenses 13,319-0) JLa40 7|
Gtiar operating ncame 5 KT 325
Property reloted Impairants 1637 13175) (12261
Exceptianal rtems 3 g
Prafit on sais of properties - 7 97
OPERATING (LOSSVPROFIT 48 (s0.3
Investment ncome 10 W03
Investment costs n 27
Finance income 2 e
Financa cost 13 1362 .
Share of lass of associated undertokings )
Fair vohue goin on step acquisition. 19
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation 14
{LOS5/PROFT FOR THE PERIOD 4
ATTRIBUTABLE TQ:
Equity holders of the Group [EEE) L]
Non-controling interests 50 73
{LOSS)/PROMT FOR THE PERIDD 4 oy 1010
EARNINGS PER SHARE AT TO THE EQUITY $HARFHOLDERS
Bencs par shore Pance por shore
fiosic entnings per shore 15 {16:5|
Diluted earmngs per shyre 15 {158 "a

i Property felated impaiments of £3170m hove heen separately prasented for the yaar ended 25 Apel 2021, The priar yacr comaarative of £122 m

which wos previously
ta be comparoble

ciuded within Selling, distribution amd cdministratva expenses n the FY20 Annual Report hos been rapoesented

The Consolidoted Income Stotement has been prepared on the bosis that all operations are
continuing. The accompanying accounting pelicies and notes form part of these

financial stoternents.
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Nota 52 wueks snded 51 wasks ended
25 April 1611 4 Aprdl 2620
(Em] {€m)
itassi/prolit for the penad a 17801 1010
DYHER FOMPREHENSIVE INC OME
TEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED Te) PROFIT OR LOSS
Faur value mavernent on long-tern hnoncial assets 20 73 ns 7l
ITEMS THAT WILL RE RECLASIIFIED SUBSEGUENTLY TO PROFIT O LOSS
Cxchange on of farergn op 149 9.8
Foir vahue moveme hedged contracts - recogtvsed i the panod 2539 o4 64
Far voiue moveinent an hedged contracts - mellectiveness 25,29 - 02
Faye venyg movament an hedged roatracts - rsclassifiad ond reported in sates 529 8l na
Far verlys movamant on hedged contioets - reclassihed and reported in cost of soles 1539 071 [37.4)
Foir valua movarment on hedged contracts - toxation taken ta ressrves 2529 L] a8
QTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/LOS$) FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX 1y {28.6]
TOTAL C VEIL FOR TH PERIOD n4
ATTRIBUTABLE T0:
Equity hotdars of the group 1131 652
Non-cantrlling interest 50 72
[85.3) T24

The accompaonying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At 25 April 2021

i Nets 5 Apdl 2021 24 Aprl) 2020
l&m] {Emy
ASSETS - HON CURRENT
Froperty, plant ond equipmant 16 116d g
vestment properties [ 141
Intangible assats % s
Long-term linanciol assets 0 2633
Daferrad tax assets 7 668
16204
ASSETS - CURNENT
Inventories N 10% 6 11583
Irade and other recaivables 2 5465 41a2
Denvatwa firancial ossets 3 554 781
. Cosh and cash equivatents i) 4570 5340
255 3.8
TOTAL ASSETS 175 8802
EQUITY
share capetal ) 641 541
Share premium a3 843
Treusury shares reserve. @557 125571
Pertranent contribubion to capital Py o 01
Cupital redemption fesarve 2% a0
Fareign currency translation reserve e
Revarse combination raserve % 1987 3|
Own shars rssarve ta?dl
Hedging raser 25 289
Share basad poymant reserve -
Retained 2arnings 15649
1BSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TS GWNERS OF THE PARSNT L7
Nan-controling Interests 130
TOTAL EQUITY 12081
LEARILI
Laase liability P 5342 4762
Borrowings 2% 7059 9000
Retrament benafit obligations 19 19
Dasfarrad tax kabilities 7 70 56
Provisions. b 3612 3360
1480.3 117
LIABILITERS = CLRRENY
Derivativa inancial fiability ) 192 4432
Trade and ether payables kL 6463 602 5
Laase llability 2% 1885 479
Cureent tax 459 536
My ETTH
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15441 25078
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIARILITIES 3,785 3,448.2

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these Financial Statements. The'
Financial Statements were approved by the Bocrd on 5 August 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

Chris Wootton

Chief Financial Officer
Compony number: 06035106
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

Nota 53 waeks anded 52 wesks epdad
25 agril 2021 36 Apell 2020
ftm) 1Em)
CASH INFLOWE FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES 32 STLY 425.1
Incoma taxes paid 1593 [48.5)
NET CASH INFLOWS FROM O VITIES 5190 47
Procests on disposal of property, plant ond equipment ond investment property 206 152.6
Proceeds on disgosal of intang bles assets 78 -
Proceats on disposol of Isted nvestments and derrvatves 551 49
Purchase ol i - - 15.6)
Purchase of subsidiares, net of cash acguired 31 {3944 (23}
Purchase of proparty. plant and sguipment 15 (219.4] 132351
Pyrchase of intanghle ossels 18 1o -
Purchasa of listed investimants N i1133] {24 8]
Investment incarma 1ecamed oS 0%
Finance INcoims racelved 9.0 53
NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM [NVEBTING ACTIVITIES (200.4) |
Lwata payinents (78.01 Mmas
F e costs pad (31.6) 18.3)
Borrowings drawn down 26 11281 510D
Burtawings repad 26 11,323.6) 1438 5)
Drvidends pord 1g non-controling interests 09]
Purchase af own shares (4] 419
NET CASH OUTFLOWS FROM FIKANCING ACTIVITIES 3.3} {102.3)
NLT AE FN CASH AND CASH INCL FT3 o no
Exchnnge movement on cash balonces 153 50
CASH AND CATH EQUIVALENTS INCLUDING OVERDRAFTE AT BEGHNN ING OF PERIOD 5340 4480
CAH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS INCLUDING OVERDRAFTS AT THE PERIOR END 23 4510 334.0

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements.

I woodland across the UK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN EQUITY

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

Fareign currency

* Share eapital $hare praméum™ Tredsury shures  Share scheme raserva Womlation,  OWnshorersserve  Relined samings Other™ e of .E!,.“ Interasts Total
(em) £m] {Em} {tm) Em} icm} 1£m) |im) {tm} Em) {em)
AT 23 APRIL 2018 - 841 %) 1213 - L (7.2} 14408 1»32.5) Y1) s 1342
Purchase of wn shares - - (4404 - . 01 - - 1438] - t428)
Reversal of FY19 farr valuation of share buyback contractual obhigotion - - 00 - - - - 300 . 300
TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS IN THEIR CAPACITY AS OWNERS - - - o) - - [¥] . - nay - na
Profit lor tha financiat paricd - - - - - - 918 914 L} S 1010
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -
Cosh low hedges - racognised in the pered - - - - - - - 164 - 164
Caish flow hedges - inaffectveness - - - i - - - - - 0.
Cash How hedges - reclasmiiad ond reported in sales - - - - - - - n#n
Cosh How hedges - raclassihed und reported in cost of salac . - - - - . 174 - 1374
Cash How hadges - taxotion . - ] . B R a8 B a8
Fou valug adjustms in respact of long term fnancial assats - recogmsed - - - - - nen - e - {197)
Translobion differences - Group . - - - L] - - 98 B - 98
TOTAL COMPREHERSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD - - - - p1) - H (L] 72 T4
AT 26 APRIL 2020 {2957} B .y (8t.0) 15608 42013 n.o 1,200
Acquisitions (rote 31 - - - - - 10 10
Share scheme - - - 13 - 0.3 1en - 121 - ()
Dividands paid ta nan-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 05| w3l
TRANIACTIONS WITH CWMERS [N THEIR LAPACITY AS OWNERS - - - 13 - [X] wn - 2] (X3 5.0]
[Losskprofit far the fnoncxal periad - - - - - - 18361 - 18304 50 178,01
OTHER INCOME
Coshilow hedges - racagnised in the penod - - - . - - - - 04 04 - 04
Coshflow hedgas - reclass fied and reportsd in soles - - - - - - - 128 L] - 28
Crathilow hatiges - raclassifiad ond reported in cost of sales - - - - - - - - 174} 17 - [11Al]
CoshHow hedges - tazatlon - - - - - - . ' a0 3o 30
Fair valus adjustment i respect af long-tem hnonaial asssts - recognised - - - - - - 73 - 771 . 773
Transtatian difierances - Group - - - - C) - - - 1481 14911
TOTAL COMPAEHENSIVE {LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD . - - - ) - 157 165) .3 5.0 [46.3)
AT 25 APRIL 2021 i [k 1295.1) 13 ma ()] 15848 is67.1) 1129 4 1.0
I The share premium account 15 used to racord the axcass proceeds over norminal vahie on the ssve of shares
21 Other reserves comprisas parmanent contnbution to copstol, copitol redemplion resarve, taverse cormbination reserve and the hedging rassrve Al

rmeveimants n the peried related to the hedging reserve {note 25]

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Frasers Group plc (Company number: 0603510¢)
is o company incorporated and dormiciled in
the United Kingdom, its shares are listed on the
London Stock Exchange, The registered office

is Unit A, Brook Park East, Shirebrook, NG20
BRY. The principal activities and structure of the
Group can be found in the Directors' Report and
the ‘Our Business' section.

Basis OF Preparation

The consolidated Financidal Statements have
been prepared in accerdance with International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and in
accordance with international financial reporting
standards adopted pursuant to Regulation [EC}
No 1606/2002 as it applies in the Europeon
Unicn. The conselidated Financial Statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as madified to include fair valuation
of certain financial assets and derivative
financial instruments.

The accounting policies set out below have
been applied consistently to all periods in these
Financial Statements and hove been applied
consistently by alf Group entities. Certain
subsidiaries have been consolidated based on @
calendar year-end date of 30 April 2021,

The numbers presented in the Financial
Statements have been rounded to the nearest-
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Going concern

The Group's business acti s, together with the
factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the Chief
Executive's Report end Business Review,

The financial position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and borrowing fac
described in the Financial Review, In addition,
the Financial Statements include the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for managing
its capital, its financial risk management
objectives, details of its financial instruments and
hedging activities, and its exposures to credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group still trades profitably, is highly cash
generative and has considerable financial
resources, The Group is able to operate within

its banking facilities and covenants, which run
until November 2022, and is well placed to take
advantage of strategic opportunities as they
arise. As a consequence, the Directors believe
that the Group is able to manage its business
risks successfully despite the continued uncertain
economic outlook. '

Management have assessed the level of trading
to date since the impaocts of Covid-19 and has
ferecast and projected o conservative base case
ond alse a number of even more conservative
scenarios taking into account a petential further
wave and associated lockdowns over winter,
Government support, foreign exchange exposure
and cost saving initiatives. These farecasts and
projections show that the Group will be able to
operdate within the level of the current facility and
its covenant requirements [being interest cover

.and net debt to EBITDA ratios). Management

also have a number of mitigating actions which
could be taken if required such as putting on
hold discretionary spend, realising certain
assets on the Balance Sheet and paying down
the Revolving Credit Facifity. See the Viability
Statement for further details. -

Having thorcughly reviewed the Group's
performance and having made sujtable
enquiries, the Directors are confident that the
Group has adequate resources to remain in

operational existence for at least 12 months

from the date of these Financial Statements.
Trading would need to fall significantly below
levels observed during the pandemic to require
mitigating actions or a relaxation of covenants.
On this basis, the Directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis for the preparation of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements which is
a peried of at least twelve months from the date
of approval of these Financial $tatements,

Basis Of Consolidation

The consolidated Financial Statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company |its subsidiaries} each year, Contrel is
achieved when the Company:

* has the power over the investee;

= is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its invelvement with the investes; and

« has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it
contrals an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed cbove.

When the Company has less than a majority of
the voting rights of an investee, it considers that
it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in dssessing whether or
not the Company's voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power, including:

* the size of the Company's holding of <on..:m,
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

» potential voting rights held by the Company,
other vote holders or other parties;

= rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

* ony additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need
to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the dote the
Company gains control until the date when the
Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are mode to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
the accounting policies used into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between the members of the Group
are eliminoted on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidicries are
identified separately from the Group's equity
therein. Those interests of non-controlling
shareholders that are present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets upon liquidation may initially be
measured at fair value or at the non-contrelling
interests' proportionate share of the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement is made on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Other non-controlling
interests are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequent to acqguisition, the carrying amount
of non~controlling interests is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to

the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of the subsidiaries is attributed

to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not resuit in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amount of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests

in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the ameount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and ottributed to the owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal recegnised in profit
or loss is calculated as the difference between
{i} the aggregate of the fair valus of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and {ji} the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill},

less lia es of the subsidiary and any
nan-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
refation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary

li.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred |
to another cotegory of equity as required/
permitted by applicable IFRS Standards), The
fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control

is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 when applicable, or the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate o
a joint venture. .

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method, The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated

as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values

of assets transferred to the Group, lig
incusred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interest issued
by the Group in exchange for control of

the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair volue at the acquisition
date, except that:

»  deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets
or liabilities related to employee henefit
arrangements are recegnised and measured
in accordance with 1AS 12 and IAS 19
respectively;

+  liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrongements of the-Group entered
into to reploce share-bosed payment
arrangements of the ocquire are measured
in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition
date {see below); and

+ assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with IFRS 5 are measured in accordance
with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair vatue of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree {if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previcusly held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
Joss as a bargain purchase gain.

neg 1o

For business combinatiens achieved in stages,
the Group remeasures its previously held equity
interest in the acquiree at its acquisition date
fair value and recognises the resulting gain

or loss, if any, in the Income Statement as
cppropriate.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither

a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and eperating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of
associates are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with [FRS 5,

Under the equity method, an investment

in an associate is recagnised initially in the
consolidated statement of financial position ot
cost and adjusted thereafter to recagnise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or
a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any Jong-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the assaciate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

Arn investment in an associate is accounted
fer using the equity method from the dote on
which the investee becomes an associate, On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of

the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
inciuded within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately

aodlamt across the UK

in profit of loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 36 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment 10ss with respect ta the Group's
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
{including goodwill) is tested for impairment

in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount {higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recagnised in accordance
with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate

and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retoined interest

at fair value at that date and the fair

value is regarded as its fair,value on initiad
recognition in accordonce with IFRS 3. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair volue of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing of

< part interest in the associcte is included

in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if
a gain or loss previously recoegnised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss {os a reclassification edjustment) when
the associate is disposed of.
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associated with shares in subsidiaries is

not provided if reversal of these temporary
differences can be contralled by the Group
and it is probable that reversal w I hot occur in
the foreseeable future. In addition, tax fogses
available to be carried forword as well as other
income tax credits to the Group are assessed
for recognition as deferred tax assets. Defarred
o is determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted [or substantively enacted)
by the balance sheet date ond are expected
to apply when the related deferred tox asset is
realised or the defarred tax liahjlity is settled.

Deferred tox liabilities are provided in fufl.

 Deferred tax ossets are recognised to the extent

that it is probable that future taxa ble profits
will be available against which the temperary
differences can be utitised. Deferred tax assets
are offset where there is a fegally enforceable
right te offset current tax assets and liabilities
ond where the deferred tax balances relate to
the same tax authority.

Changes in current and deferred tax assets or
jiabilities are recognised os g component of
tax expense in the Income Statemnent, except
where they reiate to items that are recorded
in other comprehensiva income or charged or
credited directly to equity in which case the
related deferred tax is also chorged to other
comprehensive income oF credited directly o
equity. Deferred tox ossets and liabilities are
not discounted.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation is recognised
as an asset and reviewed for impairrment

at least annually of when o change in
circumnstances or situation indicates that the
goodwill has suffered on impairment loss. The
need for impairment is tested by comparing the
racoverable amaunt of the cash-generating unit
(CGU), which is the higher of fair vaolue less costs
to sell and value in use, to the carrying value,
Any impairment is recognised immediately in
the Income Statement. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and fosses on
the disposal of a business include the amount
of goodwill relating to that business.
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When the non-controlting interest of an existing
subsidiary is acquired the carrying value of the
non-controlling interests in the Balance Sheet is
eliminated. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controliing interest is adjusted
and the fair value of the considerotion paid is
recognised directly in equity.

Other Intangible Assets

Brands, trademarks and licences that are
internally generated are not recorded on the
Balance Sheet. Acquired brands, trademarks
and licences are initially carried on the
Balance Sheet at cost. The fair value of brands.
trademarks and licences thot are acquired by
virtue of a business combination is determined
at the date of aequisition and is subsequently
ossessed oS being the deermed cost to the
Group.

Expenditure on advertising and promational
gctivities is recognised as an expanse as
incurred,

Arnortisation is provided on brands, trademarks
and licences with « definite life on a straight
line basis over their useful economic lives

of between 5 to 15 years and is accounted

for within the selling, distribution and .
administrative expenses category within the
Income Statement.

perty, Plant And Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated

at historical cost less depreciation less any
recognised impairment Josses. Cost inciudes
expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition or construction of these items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount only when itis probable that
future econamic benefits associated with the
item will How to the Group and the costs can be
measured reliably.

Afl other costs, including repairs and
maintenance casts and labour costs are
charged to the Income Statement in the pericd
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided on all property,

plant and equipment other than freehold

land and is caleulated on a straighit-line basis,
whichever is deemed by the directors to be
more oppropricte, to olfocate cost less assessed
residua! vatue, other than assets in the course
of construction, aver the estimated useful lives,
as follows:

. Freehold buildings - between 10 to 15 years
- straight line

+  Leasehold improvements — 5 yeors or over
the term of the lease, whichever is shortest
- straight fine

+  Plant and equipment - between 3 to 5 years
- straight line

Durirg the period the fraehaold buildings
depreciation estimate was changed from
between 10 to 25 years to between 10 to 15
years. This has resulted in approx. £30m of
additional depreciation being recognised in
the period. This was based oh ¢ review of the
freehold property portfolio by management
and it was deemed appropriate 1o reduce the
range to better align with the estimate of the
remaining useful lives of the freehold buildings.
This change in dccounting estimate is expected
to impact the depreciation charge in future
periods but an estimate of the impact has not
heen disclosed due to it being impracticable to
do se given the level of additions ond disposals

" that could be anticipated based an historical

trends.

The assets' useful lives and residual values are
reviewed and, if appropriate, adjusted at each
balance sheet date, The gain or lass arising on
disposal oF SCrapping of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds,
net of selling costs, and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognised in the Income
Statement.

Property, plant and equipment where the
carrying amount is recovered principally
through a sales transoction ancl where a sale is
considered to be highly probable are stated at
the lower of carrying value and feir value less
costs to selt '

{lant] Across the UK
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Investment Properties

Jnvestment properties, which are defined as
property held for rental income or capital
appreciation, are initially measured at cost
heing purchase price and directly attributable
expenditure. Where the intentien is to hold
property as owner occupied, this is recognised
as property, plant and equipment.

Subsequently investment properties are held
at cost less cecumulated depreciation and
impairment Josses. Investment properties ure
depreciated between 10 to 15 years straight
line, cther than the Jand elernent which is et
depreciated.

Fair values of the investrnent properties are
disclosed.

Impairment Of Assets Other Than Geodwill

at each bolance sheet dote, the Directors
review the carrying ameunts of the Group's
rangible and intangible assets, ather than
goodwill, to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered

an impairment loss, If any such indication
exists, the recoverable emount of the asset in
its current condition is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any, Where the asset does not generate cash
flows that are independent from other assets,
the Group estimates the racoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. With
respect to property, plant ond equipment,
each store is considered to be o CGU and
reviewed for impairment whereby changes in
circumstances indicate that the recoverabie
amount is lower than the carrying value.

The recoverable amount is the higher of Fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing the value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using o pre-tox discount rote that reflects
currént market ossessments of the time value
of meney and the risks specific ta the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverabie dmount of an asset (or
TGV} is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
|CGV)) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
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impairment loss is recognised as on expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a re-valued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease to the original histeric cost and then
as an expense.

Impairment losses recognised for CGU's to
which goodwill has been allocated are credited
initiaily to the carrying amount of goodwill, Any
remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata
to the cther assets in the CGU.

Where on impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amaount of the asset
[CGU) excluding goodwill, is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying ameunt does not
exceed the carrying omount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset {CGU) in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the Income Statement immediately.

Assets Held For Sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale
are presented separately and measured at the
lower of their carrying ameunts immedictely
prior to their classification as held for sale and
their fair value less costs to sell. Once classified
as held for sale, the assets are not subject to
depreciation or amortisation,

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost includes the purchose
price of the manufactured products, materials,
direct labaour and transport costs. Cost is
caleulated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling price less all estimated selling
cosis. '

The Group receives trade discounts and rebates
from suppliers based upon the volume of
orders placed in a given time window. Typical
discounts and rebates received by the Group
include early settlement discounts, volume
rebates on inventory purchases, supplier
rebates based on faulty goods, and marketing
support. Where there is sufficient certainty
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that a discount or rebate will be received in

the future that relates to historic purchases this
is reflected in the cost of inventories. Where
the receipt of rebates is uncertain, the cost of
inventories is held at full cost price until the
rebate is received. Recognised rebates are
released to the income Statement to the extent
thot the stock has been sold, ’

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in
hand and deposits held on call, together with

" other short term highly liquid investments that

are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. |

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liab
recognised in the Group's Balance Shest when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
pravisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financiol liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial es [other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are ndded to or deducted from
the fdir value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropricte, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly ottributable to the
acquisition of finoncial assets or financial
liabilities at fair volue through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards are transferred. A financial lia
is derecognised when it is extinguished,
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Finoncial Assets

Classification and initial measurement of
financiol assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain o significant financing component

and are meosured ot the transaction price in
accordance with IFRS 15, all financial assets
are initiatly measured at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs {where applicable).

Financial assets, other than those designated
and effective as hedging instruments, are
classified into the following categeries:

*  amortised cost
+  fair value through profit or loss :n.<ju5

+ fair value through other comprehensive
income (FYOCI}

All income and expenses relating to financial
assets that are recognised in profit or loss
are presented within finance costs or finance
income, except for impairment of trade
receivables and amounts due from related
parties which are presented within selling
distribution and administrative expenses.

Sub t t of fi ial assets

|

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised
cost if the assets meet the following conditions
[and are not designated as FYTPL):

= they are held within a business mode! whose
chjective is to hold the financial assets cnd
collect its contractual cash flows

* the contractual terms of the financial
assets give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

After initial recognition, these are measured

ot amortised cost using the effective interest
method, Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immoterial. The Group's
cash and cash equivalents, trade and most
other receivables fall into this category of
financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTRL)

Financial assets that are held within a different
business modet other than ‘hold to collect’

or 'hold to collect and sell’ are categorised

at fair value through profit and loss. Further,
irrespective of business model financial
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assets whose contractual cash flows are not
solely payments of principal and interest are
accounted for at FYTPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for
those designated and effective as hedging
instruments, for which the hedge accounting
requirements apply (see below}.

Assets in this category are meosured at fair
value with gains or losses recagnised in profit
or loss. The fair values of financial assets in
this cotegory are determined by reference to
active market tronsactions or using @ valuation
technique where no active market exists.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive incorne (FVOCI)

On initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made
the irrevocable election to account far long
term financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) given these are
not held for trading purposes. The election has
been made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, only qualifying dividend income is
recegnised in profit and loss, changes in fair
value are recognised within OCl and never
reclussified to profit and loss, even if the asset is
impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised.

impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9's impairment requirements use more
forward-looking information to recognise
expected credit losses - the ‘expected credit
loss (ECL) model'. Instruments within the
scope of the requirements include loans and
other debt-type financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVOCI, trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, contract assets recognised and
measured under IFRS 15 and loan commitments
and some financial guarantee contracts (for
the issuer] that are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Other receivables and amounts due from
refated parties

Recognition of credit losses is no longer
dependent on the Group first identifying o
credit loss event. Instead the Group considers
a broader range of information when assessing
credit risk and measuring expected credit
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losses, including past events, current conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts that
affect the expected collectability of the future
cash flows of the instrument.

tn applying this forward-locking approach, a
distinction is made between: .

* financiol instruments that have not
deteriorated significantly in credit quality
since initial recognition or that have low
credit risk ("Stage 1"} and

* financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
("Stage 2°).

= “Stage 3" would cover financial assets where
the credit risk has increased to a point ot
which it is considered credit impaired

"12-month expected credit losses' are
recognised for the first category while ‘lifetime
expected credit losses’ are recognised for the
second cotegory.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is
determined by a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

Trade receivables

The Group makes use of a simpilified approach
in accounting for trade receivablies and records
the loss allowance as lifetime expected credit
losses. These are the expected shortfalls

in contractual cash flows, considering the
potential for default at any peint during the life
of the financial instrument, In calculating, the
Group uses its historical experience, external
indicators and forward-looking information to
calculate the expected credit losses using a
provision matrix.

Financial Lial

Clussification and measurement of financial
liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities include

borrowings and lease liabilities, trade and other
payables and derivative financial instruments.
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Financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for
transaction costs unless the Group designated
a financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss. Subsequently, financia
measured at amortised cast using the effective
interest method except for derivatives ond
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL, which
are carried subsequently at fair value with.
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
(other than derivative finoncial instruments
that are designated and effective as hedging
instruments). :

All interest-related charges and, if applicable,
fair vatue changes in currency derivative
instruments that are reported in profit or loss
are included within.finance costs or finance
income. Fair value changes in equity derivative
financial instruments are recoghised in
investment income or investment costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivative financiol instruments are accounted
for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
except for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge relationships,
which require a specific accounting treatment.
To quolify for hedge accounting, the hedging

- relatienship must meet al} of the following

requitermnents:

¢+ there is an economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging
instrurment

+  the effect of credit risk does not dominate
the value changes that result-from that
economic relationship

+ the hedge ratio of the hedging reiationship
is the same as that resulting from the
quantity of the hedged item that the entity
actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the entity actually
uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item

Written option contracts do not qualify for
hedge accounting end fair value movements
are recognised directly in the Income
Statement.

For the reporting periods under review, the
Group has designated certain forword currency
contracts as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedge relationships. These arrangements have
been entered into to mitigate foreign currency
exchange risk arising from certain highly
probable soles and purchases transactions
denominated in foreign currencies

All derivative financial instruments used for
hedge accounting are recognised initially at fair
value and reported subsequently at Fair value in
the Bajance Sheet.

To the extent that the hedge is effective,
changes in the fair value of derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and included within the cash flow
hedge reserve in equity. Any ineffectiveness

in the hedge relationship is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

At the time the hedged itemn affects profit or
loss, any gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and presented
as a reclassification adjustment within

‘'other comprehensive income. However, if a

non-financial asset or liability is recognised as
a result of the hedged transaction, the gains
and losses previously recognised in other
camprehensive income are included in the
initial measurement of the hedged item.

If &1 forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, any related gain or loss recognised

in other comprehensive income is transferred
immediately to profit or ioss. If the hedging
relationship ceases to meet the effectiveness
canditions, hedge accounting is discentinued
and the related gain or loss is held in the equity
reserve until the forecast transoction occurs.

Provisicns

A provision is recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligotion as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The Group provides for its legol responsibility
for dilapidation costs fsllowing advice from
chartered surveyors and previous experience
of exit costs. The estimated cost of fulfilling
the leasehold dilapidations obligations is
discounted to present value and analysed
between non-capital and capital components.
The copital element is deprecicted over the
life of the asset. The non-capital element is
taken to the Income Statement in the first year
of the lease where the cost it represents is of
no lasting benefit to the Group or its landiard.
"Wear and tear’ costs are expensed to the
Income Statement. Provisions for onerous lease
contracts are recognised when the Group
believes the unavoidable costs of meating the
lease obligations exceed the economic benefits
expacted to be received under the lease. Legal
provisions (including settiements and court
fees) are recognised based on advice frem the
Groug's lawyers when it is probable that there
will be an outflow of resources and o reliable
estimate can be made.

Other provisions include monogement's best
estimate of restructuring, employment reloted
costs and other claims.

Any reimbursement thot the Group is virtually
certain to collect from o third party with respect
to the obligation is recognised as a separate
asset, However, this asset may not exceed the
amount of the related provision.

No liability is recognised if an outflow of
economic resources as a result of present
obligations is not probable. Such situations are
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
outflow of resources is remate.

Leases

The Group assesses whether o contract is or
contains a lease, at inception of the contract
Lease liabilities are measured ot the present
value of the contractual payments due to the
tessor over the lease term, with the discount
rate determined by reference to the rate

implicit in the lease unless [as is typically

the case} this is not readily determinable, in
which case the Group's incremental barrowing
rate on commencement of the lease is used.
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Variable lease payments are onlfy included in
the measurement of the lease liability if they
depend on an index or rute. In such cases,

the initial measurement of the lease liability
assumes the variable element will remain
unchanged throughout the lease term. Other
varigble lease payments such as revenue linked
property leases are expensed in the period to
which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the
lease lichility aiso includes:

+ amounts expected to be no<mw_m under any
residual value guarantee;

+ the exercise price of any purchase option
granted in Favour of the Group if it is
reasonably certain that the option will be
exercised;

* any penalties payable for terminating the
lease, if the term of the lease has been
estimated on the basis of the termination
option being exercised.

The lease liability is presented as a seporate
line in the consolidated Balance Sheet.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease
liabilities increase as a result of interest charged
at the effective rate on the balance outstonding
and are reduced for lense payments made.

Right of use assets are initially measured at

the emount of the lease liability, reduced for
any lease incentives {payments made by a
lessor to o lessee associated with a lease, or-
the reimbursement or assumption by a lessor cf
costs of a lessee) received ar impairment, and
increased for.

+ lease payments made at or before
commencement of the lease;

« initicil direct costs incurred; ond

+ the amount of any provision recognised
whera the Group is contractually required
to dismantle, remove or restore the
leased asset, providing it meets the
Groups property, plant and equipment
capitalisation policy.
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When an indication of impairment is identified,
right of use assets are tested for impairment

. in accordance with 1AS 36 by comparing the

recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
Fair value less costs of dispasal) with its carrying
amount. The right of use assets are presented
within property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated Balance Sheet,

Subsequent to initial measurement, right-of-use
assets are amertised on a straight-line basis
over the remaining term of the lease or over the
remaining economic life of the asset if this is
judged ta be shorter than the lease-term.

When the Group revises its estimate of the

term of any lease (because, for example, it
re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension
or termination option being exercised), it adjusts
the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised
term, which are discounted at a revised
discount rate. The carrying value of leqse

es is revised using the original discount
rate when the variable element of future lease
payments dependent on ¢ rote or index is
revised. In both cases an equivalent adjustment
is made to the carrying volue of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying omount being
amortised over the remaining (revised) lease
term.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of o lease with the lessor, the accounting
depends on the nature of the modification:

+ if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an
amount commensurate with the standalone
price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for
as a separate lease in accordance with the
abave policy

+ in all other cases where the renegotiation
increases the scope of the lease {whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or
one of more additional assets being leased),
the lease liability is remecsured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification
date, with the right-of use asset being
adjusted by the same amount

+  if the renegotiation results in o decrease in
the scope of the lease, both the carrying
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of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or lass. The Jease
ligbility is then further adjusted to ensure

its carrying amount reflects the amount

of the renegotiated payments over the
renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification date. The right-of-use
asset is adjusted by the same omount.

Sale and leaseback

On entering into a sale and leaseback
transaction the Group determines whether
the transfer of the assets qualifies as a sale
[satisfying a performance obligation in IFRS
15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers'),
Where the transfer is a sale and providing
the transaction is on market terms then the
previcus carrying amount of the underlying
asset is split between:

« aright-of-use asset arising from the
leaseback (being the proportion of the
previous carrying amount of the asset that
relates to the rights retained), and

« the rights in the underlying asset retained
by the buyer-lessor at the end of the
leaseback.

The Group recognises o portion of the total
gain or loss on the sale. The amount recognised
is calculated by splitting the total goin or loss
into:

* an unrecognised amount relating to the
rights retained by the seller-lessee, and

* arecognised amount relating to the buyer-
lassor's rights in the underlying asset at the
end of the leaseback.

The leaseback itself is then accounted for under
IFRS 16.

Rental income from operating leases where
the Group acts as a lesser is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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Treasury Shares

The purchase price of the Group's own shares
that.it acquires is recognised as Treasury
shares' within equity. When shares are
transferred out of treasury the difference
between the market value and the average
purchase price of shares sold out of treasury is
transferred to retained earnings.

Employee Benefit Trust

An Employee Benefit Trust has been established
for the purposes of satisfying certain
share-based awards. The Group has 'de~facto’
control over the special purpose entity.

This Trust is fully consolidated within the
accounts, The cost of shares acquired by

the Sports Direct Employee Benefit Trust is
recognised within.'Own Share reserve’ in equity.

Share-Based Payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-basad
payments to certain Directors and employees.
These are measured at fair value ot the date of
grant, which is expensed to the consolidated
Income Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting pericd, with the corresponding
credit going to equity.

Non-market vesting conditions are not taken

. into account in determining grant date foir

value. Instead, they are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments to
vest. At the end of each reporting period the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the
non market vesting and service conditions. Any
revisions, if any, are recognised in profit and
loss with an adjustment to equity.
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Fair volue is calcutated using an adjusted form
of the Black-Scholes model which includes a
Mente Carlo simulation madel that takes into
account the exercise price, the term of the
aption, the impact of dilution {where material),
the share price at grant date and the expected
price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yietd, and the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme. The
expected staff numbers used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimote, for the effects of non-transferal
exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerations.

For cash-settled share-based payment
transactions, the Group measures the services
received and the tiability incurred at the fair
value of the liability. Until the liability is settled,
the Group remeasures the fair value of the
liability at the end of each reporting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in
fair value recognised in the Income Statement
for the pericd.

The credit for the share based payment charge
does not equal the charge per the Income
Statement as it excludes amounts recognised
in the Balance Sheet in relation to the expected
national insurance contributions for the shares.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of any direct issue
costs,

Foreign Currencies

The presentational currency of the Group

is sterling. The functional currency of the
Company is also sterling. Foreign currency
transactions are transiated into sterling using
the exchange rates prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. Exchange differences of
‘the Company arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are included in the Income
Staternent for the period.
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Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried

at fair value are included in the Income
Statement for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Fer such non-monetary items, ony exchange
component of that gain or loss is also
recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate of exchange ruling ot
the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of histarical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslaoted.
Non-monetary items that gre held at valuation
dre translated at the foreign exchange rate at
the date of the valuation.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations which have a functional
currency other than sterling are translated
into sterling ot foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The revenues and

. expenses of these subsidiary undertakings are

translated ot averoge rates applicable in the
pericd, All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and documented in a separate component of
equity.

When o foreign operation is sold, the
cumulative exchange differences that have
been recegnised as a separate component
of equity are reclassified from equity to the
Income Statement when the disposal is
recognised.

In arder to mitfgate its expasure to certain
foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into
forward contracts {see Chief Executive's Report
and Business Review and the cash flow hedging
accounting policy).

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liakility in

the Group's Financia! Statements and as a
deduction from equity in the peried in which
the dividends are declared. Where such
dividends are proposed subject to the approval
of shareholders, the dividends are regarded

as declared once shareholder approval has
been obtained and they are no lenger at the
discretion of the Company.

Mauteriality

In preparing the Financial Statements, the
Board considers both quantitative and
qualitative factors in forming its judgements,
and related disclosures, and are mindful of
the need to best serve the interests of its
stakeholders and to avoid unnecessary clutter
borne of the disclosure of immaterial items.

In making this assessment the Board considers
the nature of each item, as well as its size, in
assessing whether any disclosure omissions ar
misstatements could influence the decisions of
users of the Financial Statements.

New A ing Standards, Interp ions And

Amendments Adopted By The Group

The Group has not early adopted any other
standard, interpretation or amendment that
has been issued but is not effective. The Group
applies for the first time the following new
standards:

* Definition of Material - Amendments ta IAS
land IAS 8

- Definition of a Business — Amendments to
IFRS 3

*  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Amendments to IFRS 9, |AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS
4 and IFRS 16

«  Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions -
Amendments to IFRS 16

+  Amendments to References to the
Cenceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

By adopting the cbove, there has been no
material impact on the Financial Statements.

iR rting Standard

Interational Fi p g
{"Standards”) In lssue But Not Yat Effective

At the date of authorisotion of these
consolidated Financial Statements,

there are no standards in issue from the
International Accounting Standards Board
{"IASB") or International Financial Reporting
Intergretations Committee ("IFRIC") which
are effective for annual accounting periods
beginning on or after 26 April 2021 that will
have a significant impact on these Financial
Statements.
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2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical acceunting estimates and
judgements made by the Group regarding

the future or other key sources of estimation,
uncertainty and judgement that may have

a significant risk of giving rise to a material
adjustment to the carrying values of assets anc
ies within the next financial period are;

Key Judgements
Determining Reluted Party Relationships

Marnagement determines whether a related
party relationship exists by ossessing the
nature of the relationship by reference to
the requirements of tAS 24, Related Party
Disclosures. This is in order to determine
whether significant influence exists as a

“result of control, shared directors or parent

companies, or close family relationships. The
level at which one party may be expected

to influence the other is also considered far
transactions invelving ciose family relationships.

Control And Significant Influence Over Certain
Entities

Under IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures if an entity holds 20% or more o
the voting power of the investee, it is presumed
that the entity has significant influence, unless
it can clearly demonstrate that this is not the
case, During the period the Group has held
greater than 20% of the voting rights of Studio
Retail Group Ple, French Connection Greup Ple
{sold during the peried) and Mulberry Group
Plc, whereby management consider that the
Group does not have significant influence over
these entities for combinations of the following
reasons: : -

~ The Group dees rok have ory
representation on the board of directors
of the investee other than a Frasers Group
representative having an observer role
on the board of Studio Retail Group Pic,
Management have reviewed the terms
of the observer arrangement and have
concluded that this does not give them
the right to participate in or influence the
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financial or operating decisions of Studio
Retail Group Ple. Studio Retail Group Ple
can terminate this arrangement at any

time, and can determine which parts of

the Board meetings the representative can
‘be present at and what information they
are given access to. It should be noted the
Frasers Group representative did not attend
any board meetings in full or part during the
reporting period;

» There is no participation in decision
making and strategic processes, including
participation in decisions about dividends
or other distributions;

* There have been no material transactions
between the entity and these investee
companies;

*  There has been no interchange of
managerial personnel;

= No non-public essentiat technical
management information is provided to the
investee.

In assessing the level of control that
management have over certain entities,
management will consider the various aspects
that allow management to influence decision
making. This includes the level of share
ownership, board membership, the level of
investment and funding and the ability of the
Group to influence operational and strategic
decisions and effect its returns through the
exercise of such influence. If management

were ta consider that the Group does have
significant influence over these entities then the
equity method of accounting would be used
and the percentoge shareholding {disclosed in
nate 20) multiplied by the results of the investee
in the period {as disclosed in note 34) would be
recognised in profit or loss.

Tne Broup holds %% of the share capital ot
Four (Holdings) Limited which is aecounted
for using the equity method. The Group does
not have any representation on the board

of directors and no participation in decision
about relevant activities such as establishing
operating and capital decisions, including
budgets, appeinting or remunerating key
management personnel or service providers

and terminating their services or employment.
However, in prior periods the Group has
provided Four [Holdings) Limited with a
significant loan, At the reporting date, the
amount owed by Four (Holdings} Limited for this
joan totalied £60.0m {E21.6m net of amounts
recegnised in respect of loss allowance). The
Group is satisfied that the existence of these
transactions provides evidence that the entity
has significant influence over the investee but in
the absence of any other rights, in isolation it is
insufficient to meet the control criteria of IFRS
10, as the Group does not have power over Four
{Holdings) Limited and therefare Four {Holdings)
Limited is not equity accounted.

Cash Flow Hedging

The Group uses d range of forward and option
contracts that are entered into at the same
time, they are in contemplation with one
another and have the some counterparty.

A judgement is made in determining

whether there is an economic need or
substantive business purpose for structuring
the transactions separately that could not
also have been accomplished in a single
transaction. Management are of the view that
there is @ substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the options and a strategy for
managing the options independently of the
forward contracts. The forward and options
contyacts are therefore not viewed as one
instrument and hedge accounting for the
Forwards is permitted..

Under IFRS 9 in order to achieve cash flow
hedge accaunting, forecast transactions
{primarily Euro denominated sales and USD
denorminated purchases) must be considered
to be highly probable. The hedge must be
expected to be highly effective in achieving
offsetting changes in cash flows attributable
to the hedged risk, The torecast transaction
thot is the subject of the hedge must be highly
probable and must present an exposure to
variations in cash flows that could ultimotely
affect profit or loss. Management have
raviewad the detailed forecosts and growth
gssumptions within them, and are satisfied
that forecasts in which the cash flow hedge
cccounting has been basad meat the criteria
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per IFRS 9 as being highly probable forecast
transactions. Should the forecast levels not pass
the highly probable test, any cumulative fair
value gains and losses in relation to either the
entire or the ineffective portion of the hedged
instrument would be taken to the Income
Statement.

Management censiders various factors when
determining whether a forecost transaction is
highly probable. These factors include detailed
sales ferecasts by channel, geographical area
ond seasonality, conditions in target markets
and the impact of expansion in new areas.
Management alse consider any change in
alternative customer sales charnels that could
impact on the hedged transaction.

If the forecast transactions were determined
te be not highly probable and all hedge
accounting was discontinued, the Hedging
reserve of £11.5m would be shown in Finance
Income.

Key Estimctes

Provision For Obsolete, Slow Moving Or
Defective Inventories

The Directors have applied their knowledge and
experience of the retail industry in determining
the level and rates of provisioning required in
calculating the appropriate inventory carrying
values. Specific estimates and judgements
applied in relation to assessing the level of
inventory provisions required are considered in
relatien to the following areas:

a. Continuity inventory

o

Seasonal inventory lines - specifically
seasons that have now finished

Third party versus own brand inventory
Ageing of inventory
Sports Retail or Premium Lifestyle

-~ s an

Local economic conditions
g. Divisional specific factors
h

Increased cost of inventory and fower
margins with the devaluation of the Pound

i. Over-stock and out of season inventory as o
result of Covid-19



Frinted on

FRASERS GROUP PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 201

FRASERS GROQUP

Provision estimates are forward locking and

are formed using a combination of factors
inciuding historical experience, management's
knowledge of the industry, group discounting,
sales pricing protocols and the overoll
assessment made by management of the

risks in relation to inventory. Management use

a number of internally generated reports to
monitor and continually re-assess the adequacy
and decuracy of the inventory provision. The
additional cost of repricing inventory and
handling charges in relation to relocating
inventory {tunnelling) are considered
at the appropriate percentage pro
assessment involves significant estimation
uncertainty, therefore in order to chack

that the assumptions applied remain valid,
management produces a range of outcomes
and the provision is set within this range.

Key assumptions used to create the estimates
are:

» Discounting - Based on historical
experience and management’s anticipated
future discounting including the impact of
Covid-19

«  Tunnelling - Cost of handling stock for
reworking, repacking and repricing

ing - Labour cost associated with
ng units of stock

» Repr
rep

*  Shrinkage - Stock lost through damage and
theft

Total Group inventory provision at 25 April 2021
is 16.6% (FY20: 15.7%1). A 1% change in the total
provision would impact underlying EBITDA by
approx. £13.2m (FY20: £14.2m}. Management
do not consider it appropriate to disclose
sensitivities for key assumptions in isolation as
in practice changes in one assumption would
lead to an offset in ancther,

Property Related Provisions

Property related estimates and judgements
are continuaily evatuated and are based on
historical experience, external advice and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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Dilapidations

The Group provides for its legal responsibility
for dilopidation costs following advice from
chartered surveyars and previous experience

of exit costs (including strip out costs and
professional fees). Management use a reference
estimate of £100,000 {FY20: £100,000) for large
leasehold stores, £50,000 (FY20: £50,000) for
smaller leasehold stores {£25,000 per store

for Game UK and Game Spain stores) and
$/€50,000 (FY20: $/€50,000) for non-UK stores.
Management do not consider these costs to be
capital in nature and-therefore dilapidations
are not capitalised, except for in relation to

the sale and leaseback of Shirebrook in the
prior period in which a materiol dilapidations
provision was capitalised.

A 10% increase in dilapidation cost per store
would resuit in an approx. £8.0m reduction in
underlying EBITDA,

Other Provisions

Provisions are made for items where the Group
has identified a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it -
is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

Legal and regulatory provisions relate to
management's best estimates of provisions
required for legal and regulatery cloims and
ongeing non-UK tax enquiries. Other provisions
relate to management's best estimates

of provisions required for restructuring,
employment and commercial. Where
applicable these are inclusive of any estimated
penalties, interest and legal costs. See note 28.

In relation to the non-UK tax enquiries
management have made a judgement to
cansider all claims collectively, applying the
following key estimotes to the gross amounts
{excluding re-imbursement assets):

= 10% penalty [FY20: 10%). A 5% increase to
15% would result in approx. £6.5m increase
in the provision [FY20: approx, £7.0ml.

= 3% interest on the liability (FY20: 3%). A
1% increase to 4% would result in approx.
E1.5m increase in the provision (FY20:
approx. £10.0m;.

Management are satisfied that the judgement
to consider ¢ll claims coliectively is the only
reasonable approach because they are oll
dependant on the outcome of a court ruling on
the interpretation of the non-UK tax enquiries.
Management are satisfied that with regard to
timing a reasonabie range of outcomes are all
greater than one year and so are satisfied with
including the provisions as non-current.

Other Receivables And Amounts Owed By
Related Parties

Other receivebles and amounts owed by
reloted parties are stated net of provision for
any impairment. Management have applied
estimates in assessing the recoverability of
working capital and loan advances made to
investee companies. Matters considered include
the relevant financiat strength of the underlying
investee company to repay the loans, the
repayment period and underlying terms of the
monies advanced, ferecast performance of the
underlying borrower, and where relevant, the
Group's intentions for the companies to which
meonies have been advanced.

nedacross th

IFRS 16

The key areas of judgement in relation to
property leases recognised under IFRS 16
are below: .

«  IFRS 16 defines the lease term as the non-
cancellable peried of a lease together
with the options to extend or terminate a
lease, if the lessee were reasonably certain
to exercise that option. The Group will
assess the likelihood of extending lease
contracts beyond the break date by taking
inte account current economic and market
conditions, current trading performance,
forecast profitability and the level of capital
investment in the praperty.

« IFRS 16 states that the lease payments shall
be discounted using the lessee’s incremental
‘borrowing rate where the rate implicit in
the lease connot be readily determined.
Accordingly, all lease payments have been
discounted using the incremental borrowing
rete {|BR). The 18R has been determined
by using a synthetic cradit rating for the
Group which is used to obtain market data
on debt instruments for companies with the
same credit rating, this is split by currency
to represent each of the gecgraphical areas
the Group cperates within and adjusted for
the lease term.
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The weighted average discount rates based on incremental borrowing rates used throughout the
period across the Group's lease portfolio are shown below. The discount rate for each lease is
dependent on lease start date, term and location.

Luase Turm uK Kurcps Rest of World
U 1 5 yatrs 14% - 18% 03% - 08% 15% - 3 3%
Grearar than § years and up o 10 years 20%-22% 05% - 11% 15% -35%
Srtster than 10 years and up to 30 years 2 2% - 2.5% OB% - 1L4% 35% - 37%

Gren! han 20 yaars 25% - 2.8% 11% -17% d5% - 38%

+ The right of use asset will be reviewed for impairment at each reporting period in line with 1AS
36 irmpairment to review whether the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable omount. For
impairment testing purposes the Group has determined that each store is @ separate CGU. The

. recoverable amount is caleulated based on the Group's latest forecast cash flows which are
then extrapolated to cover the periad to the break date of the lease taking into account historic
performance and knowledge of the current market, together with the Group's views on future
profitability of each CGU. The key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates,
gross margin rates, changes in the operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived
from the Group's weighted average cast of capitat using the capital asset-pricing model, the
inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity risk premium and a risk adjustment [Beto). Given
the number of assumptions used the assessment involves significant estimation uncertainty.

The assumptions used are consistent with those disclosed in the Freehold Land and Buildings

and Long-term leasehold section below. Impairments in the period have been recognised for

the amount of £174.9m, being £168.2m against the right-of-use asset (£114,1m UK Sports Retail
segment, £20.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £31.0m European Retail segment, and £2.6m Rest
of the World Retail segment) and £6.7m against plant and equipment {£2.6rm UK Sports Retail
segment, £0.5m Premium Lifestyle segment, £3.6m European Retail segment). The impairments
were due to the cngoing impact of Covid-19 and the challenges in the retail sector on the
forecast cash flows of the CGL,

The key assumptions, which are equolly applicable to each nmc. in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of the right of use asset are consistent with the cashflow projections For
the Freehold land and Buildings impairment assessment.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in yeor 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months
compared to two months: '

monnuh.nn _.:]nnc_a_l:‘-”_.” _i__._u..-aﬂ_-.-”dllv-n-.“
Salas yeor 1 - Na lackdown 15% - rmpeovernent 12191
Solas yaar 1~ 4 months lockdown 15% - reduction 635
Existing Gross Margin year 1 »409% 100Dps - improvemment 1468
Existing Gross Margin year 1 240% 100bps - raduction 53

Freehold Land and Buildings and Long-term leasehold

Freehold Yand and buildings and long-term leasehold assets are assessed at each reporting period
for whether there is any indication of impairment in line with IAS 36 impairment.

An asset is impaired when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. IAS 36 defines
recoverable amount as the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs

of disposal and its value in use, the Group has determined that each store is a separate CGLU.
Impairments in the period have been recognised in the amount of £117.9m [FY20: £nil) due to the
ongoing impact of Covid-12 and the challenges in the retail sector on the forecast cash flows of

the CGU. This is split £84.4m against freehold land and buildings {£68.7m UK Sparts Retoil segment
and £15.7m European Retail segment], £3.9m against long-term leasehold (£2.9m UK Sports Retail
segment and £1.0m European Retail segment), £29.0m plant & equipment {£15.1m UK Sports Retail
segment, £8.8m Premium Lifestyle segment, £5.1m European Retail segment), and £0.6m investment
property [all UK Sports Retail segment).

Value In Use { SQ

The value in use is calculated based on five year cash flow projections. These are formulated by
using the Group's forecast cash flows of each individual CGU excluding any Covid-19 impact, taking
into account historic performance of the CGL, and then adjusting for the Group's current views on
future profitability of each CGU as a result of Covid-19 and knowledge of the current market. The
key assumptions in the calculations are the sales growth rates, gross margin rates, changes in the
operating cost base and the pre-tax discount rate derived from the Group's weighted average cost
of capital using the. capital asset pricing model, the inputs of which include a risk-free rate, equity
risk premium and a risk adjustment (Beta). Given the number of assumptions used the assessment
involves significant estimation uncertainty.

The key assumptions, which are equally opplicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
suppert the carrying amount of the freehold land and buildings were as follows:

Koy Yaar1 Yaar2 Yacrd Yucrd Yaar§
Sales deciine 5% -5% 4% A% 2%
Existing gross margin » 4% . “00bps -175bps 150hps -125bps -1G0bps
Oparating casts 1ncreuse par anaum % 1% % % 1%
Disceunt rate &% &% 6% &% 6%

Terrminal growth rate of 3%

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assurmption below we have
performed a sensitivity for both no lockdawn in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four months
compared to twoe months;
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Fecocant: : Impct of: _.._...._i._u_ﬁ H.-...-n.._—. /
Sales year 1= No lockdewn 15% - improvement 1513
Sales yacr 1= 4 months latkdown 15% - reduction 576

g Gross Morgin year 1 >40% 100bps - itnjrgveinent {74)
Existing Gross Morgin year 1 240% 100ips - redectian 93

Printed on Steinbeis 100° Recycled and Carbon Captured throuah the Waoodland Trust, helping 1o create new Bntish woodland across the UK
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Fair value fess costs of disposal

For those CGUs where the value in use is less than the carrying value of the asset, the fair value less
costs of disposal has been determined using both external and internal market valuations. This fair

value is deemed to fall in to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as per IFRS 13. The property portfolio
consists of vacant, Frasers Group oceupied and third party tenanted units, one property can include
all three types. The following veluation methedology has been adopted for eoch:

Seenarie Valuation methedslogy

Koy oesumptions

Yacont umts Estimated Rental Vialue [ERV] and sutable reversianory yetd Vaid perind and tent free bond - two bonds applied depending

and rent trea Incentive,

appliad to rafiack the market to genurate a net copital value A on crcumstances
deduttion ta the copitel value generated 1s then made bosed
o the void period with applicable rates payable for the vak

1 yeor vaid, 2 yaars rent free, or
= 2 years vend, 3 years rant free,
Yield bands - renging from 7% - 15%

Frasers Group ocfupied Will be assumed Lhe unit s vocant given there s ao legally
place. Therefore a void on Circunstances
and rent free incentive penod assumed, the cast amount then

Vaid pened and rent frae band - tws bands applied depending

1 yaor voud, 2 yaars rant frea, or

daducted #om the copital value generated by the ERV and

raversionary yield Although we consider the commercial reciity = 1 years void, 3 years rent free.

15 thot far value less costs to sell will be hi
Dossession this vy canservative assumption is

Vield bands - ranging from 7% - 1% .

noth Lechnical oceounting rtes and that af our ranvge nant

axperts

Third party tenonted

An ERV is applied using a percantaga band on the prssing renk
An oppropriate raversanary yieid 1S opplied reflecting the nsk

Danos eppied (o pussng Ne - rmnging froim 0% 1o -50%
bands - ranging from § 5% - 15%

of terant ond renewal to generate a capital volue This will also
provide @ net mtial yield bosed off the current possing rent

A 10% increase in the market valuation amounts used in the impairment calculations would result in

a decrease in impairment of £7.5m,

The total recoverabie amount of the assets that were impaired at the period end was £170.0m, with
EB7.0m of this being based on their fair value less costs of disposal and £83.0m being based on their

value inuse.

Key Estimates In Relation To Alternative
Parformance Measures

The Directors believe that underlying EBITDA,
underlying Profit before tax and underlying
basic EPS provide further useful information for
shareholders on the underlying performance

of the Business in addition to the reported
nurnbers ond are consistent with how business
performonce is meosured internally. They are
not recognised profit measures under IFRS and
may not be directly comparable with “adjusted”
profit measures used by other companies.

B8

EBITDA is earnings befare investment income,
finance income and finance costs, tax,
depreciation, amortisation and impairment.

It includes the Group's share of losses from
associgted undertakings ond joint ventures.
Underlying EBITDA excludes the impact of IFRS
16, foreign exchange gains/tosses in selling and
administration costs, exceptional costs, and the
profit / loss on disposal of subsidiaries, strategic
investments and properties. Underlying EBITDA
also excludes fair value adjustments on step

Management will from FY22 change our main
reporting KPI from Underlying EBITDA to
Adjusted PBT. Thus from FY22 the Group will ho
longer report Underlying EBITDA. Adjusted PBT
is Reported Profit Before Tux tess the effects of
unhedged FX, exceptional items, and gains and
losses on strategic investrments. Management
have taken this decision for the following
reasons:

*  With the continued significant investment
in and rol! out of our elevation strategy
an bath the physical and digital fronts,
the importance of depreciation and
amortisation te both the Board and
our stokeholders in terms of assessing
performance has grown,

«  Qur understanding from a number of
financial sectors including the banking
sector is that IFR516 is becoming an
increasingly important consideration,
including on covenants in many new
financing arrangements.

*  With this new measure being introduced
we are trying to align with the Financial
Reporting Coun thematic standpoint
with regard to ‘alternative performance
measuras’ as far as passible whilst retaining
a degree of interpretation given factors
outside of our control, such as FX and
strategic investments movements which
are exceptionally difficuit to forecast,
particularty months in advance The
following are further key estimates used
with regard to the alternative performance
measures used by the group.

A sensitivity analysis has been performed in respect of sales and margin as these are considered to
be the most sensitive of the key assumptions. With regard to the sales assumption below we have ;

FRASERS GROQUP

Onerous lease provision

Provisions for onerous lease contracts are
recognised when the unavaoidable costs of
meeting lease obligations exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received over the term
of the lease. Where an onerous lease has been
identified, the property, plant and equipment
associated to that store are also reviewed for
impairment.

Management use store EBITDA in order to
determine whether an onerous lease exists.
Specific assumptions, which involve the use of
estimates and involve significant estimation
uncertainty, that are used to determine the
appropriate level of provision are consistent
with the cashfiow projections for the Freehaold
land end Buildings assessment except for the
following:

*  Discount rate 2% [FY20: 2% across the
Group

= Operating costs increase 3% (FY20: 3%)
across the Group

= Store profitability includes 100%
contribution towards central overheads

«  Assumed get out cap of 10 years (FY20: 10
years), being the maximum pericd for total
unavoidable costs

+ Planned store closures, relocations and re-
brandings

performed a sensitivity for both no lockdown in year 1 and a lockdown which lasts four menths

compared to two months:

Previslen hveraass /

Foracast: Impaet of: (dwcranua) Em
Sulws yewr 1 - Nolockdewn 15% - wnprovament 1104 4]
Salas yaar 1~ & months lockdown 15% - reurtion 1510
Existing Gross Margwn yeor 1740% 100bps - improvement {12.64
Exsling Gross Morgin year 1740% 100kps « reducbon ns

Further information on the basis of the estimation of provisioning for dilapidations and onerous lease

centracts is det

ed in the pravisions accounting policy and note 28,

Impairments of plant and equipment and short-term leasehald improvements of £24.2m have also
been recognised as a result of identified onerous lease contracts (£6.4m UK Sports Retail segment,
£2.7m Premium Lifestyle segment, £15.1m European Retall segment).

Lroas the UR
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3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's current activities result in the
follewing findncial risks and set out below are
managemant's responses to those risks in order
to minimise any resulting adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
principally via:

a. Transactional exposure from the cost of
future purchases of goods for resale, where
those purchases are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency
of the purchasing company. Transactional
exposures that could significantly impact
the income statement are hedged. These
exposures are hedged vic forward foreign
currency cortracts which are designated
as cash flow hedges. The notional and fair
value of these contracts is shown in note 29;

b. Transactional exposure from the sale of
goods, where those sales cre denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the selling company.
Transactional exposures that could
significantly impact the income statement
are hedged. These exposures are hedged
via forward foreign currency contracts
which are designated as cash flow hedges.
The noticnal and fair value of these
contracts is shown in note 29;

c. Loans to non-UK subsidiaries. These are
hedged via foreign currency transactions
and borrowings in matching currencies,
which are not formally designated as
hedges, as gains and osses on hedges and
hedged loans will naturally offset; and

d. The Group uses currency options, swaps
and spots for more Hexibility against cash
flows that are less than highly probable
ond therefore do not qualify for hedge
accounting under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. Exposures in respect of
written options to sell Eurcs or buy USD are
explained in the Financicl Review. These
are not hedged and movements in fair
value could significantly impact the Income
Statement in future periods, See note 29,
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Interast Rote Risk

The Group has net berrowings, which are
principally at floating interest rates linked to
bank base rates or LIBOR. The Group uses
interest rate financial instruments to hedge

its exposure to interest rate movements using
interest rote swaps although hedge accounting
is not applied. The Group regularly menitors
and reacts accordingly to any exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and the impact on
its monetary assets and liahilities.

Credit Risk

The Directers have a credit policy in place
and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an engoing basis. Credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit
over d certain amount. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of financial assets.

At each balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset
in the baiance sheet.

Investments of cash surpluses, borrowings and
derivative instruments are made through banks
and companies which must fulfil credit rating
and investrent criteria approved by the Board.

Liquidity Risk

The Group has sufficient liquid resources to
manage the operating requirements of the
business and it does this through utilisation

of its revolving credit facilities together with
equity and retained profits thereby achieving
continuity of funding and short-term flexibility,
while keeping interest to a minimum.

Management regularly review forecasts to
ensure there is adequate headroom on the

s and to ensure the Group is operating
its financial covenants.

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to price risk in respect
of its long term financiol ossets (in relation to
listed company shares).

The price risk relates to volatility in the market,
and how other comprehensive incorme and
equity would have been affected by changes
in market risk thot were reasonably possible at
the reporting date. If the quoted stock price for
these securities increased or decreased, other
comprehensive income and equity would have
changed. The listed securities are classified as
Long term investrments at fair value through
other comprehensive income so there would be
no effect on profit or loss.

The investments in listed equity securities
{long-term financial assets) are considered
medium to long-term strategic investments.
In accordance with the Group's policies, no
specific hedging activities are undertaken in
relation to these investments.

Capita] Management

A description of the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for managing capital are
included in note 29.

Stenbels 100°% Becycled and Carbon Captured through the Woodland Trust, helping 19 create new Britsh: woodland across the UK
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4. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Management has determined to present

its segmental disclosures consistently with
the presentation in the 2020 Annual Repaort.
Management considers operationally that
the UK Retail divisions {UK Sports Retail and
Premium Lifestyle} are run as one business
unit in terms of allocating resources; inventory
management ond assessing performance.
Under IFRS 8 we have not at this reporting
date met the required criteria with enough
certainty to aggregate these operating
segments. We will continually keep this under
review at subsequent reporting dates, We
continue to monitor the impacts of Covid-19,
Brexit, and the continued uncertainties this
has brought relating te the political and
economic environments, ond market ond
currency volatility in the countries we operate
in. European countries have been identified os
operating segments and have been aggregated
into « single operating segment as permitted
under IFRS 8. The decision to aggregate these
segments was based on the fact that they each
have similar economic characteristics, similer
loeng-term financial performance expectations,
and are similar in each of the following
respects:

+  The nature of the products;

= The type or class of customer for the
products; and

»  The methods used to distribute the
products,

90

In accordance with paragraph 12 of IFRS 8
the Group's operating segments have been
aggregated into the following reportable
segments:

1. UK Refai

i. UK Sports Retail - includes core sports
retail store operations in the UK, plus alf
the Group's sports retail online business
{excluding Bob's Stores, Eastern .
Mountain Sports, Malaysia ond Baltics),
the gyms, the Groug's Shirebrook
campus operations, GAME UK stores
and online operatians, and retail store
aperations in Northern Irefand.

ii. Premium Lifestyle - includes the
results of the premium retail businesses
Flannels, Cruise, Van Mildert, Jock Wiils,
House of Fraser and Sofa.com olong
with related websites,

2. European Retail - includes all the Group’s
sparts retail stores, management and
aperations in Europe including the Group's
Europecn Distribution Centres in Belgium
and Austria, as well as GAME Spain stores
and Baltics online.

3. Rest of World Retail - includes the results of
US based retail octivities, Asic based retail
activities, along with their e-commerce
offerings.

4. Wholesale & Licensing — includes the results
of the Group's portfolio of internotionally
recognised brands such as Everlast,
Karrimor, Lonsdale and Slazenger.

It is management's current intention to run the
Group as four operating segments being UK
Retail {including UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifastyle), European Retail, Rest of World Retail
and Wholesale & Licensing. Management is
satisfied that the UK Sports Retail and Premium
Lifestyle will meet the criteria permitted under
IFRS B to aggregate as one segment in due
course,

ted on Steinbers 100°: Recycled and Catbon Captunad throagh the Woodland Trast, helprig o creato

Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended

FRASERS GROUP

25 April 2021:
UK Premiuw UKRelsll  Eceopesn  Ruitel Torch  Whaleshe L Geoup.
Spets  Lifwstyla Total Rotail World Rutail Retail & Lieansing Total
{Emi 1em) {tm {em) lem) lim) {Em) l£ml [
Sgles to axtemal customers 19685 7356 23044 152 1527 dne 1533 - 25232
Syles ba other segmants - - - - 954 1954) -
REVENUE 13605 54 27041 154 527 54110 (oA {54 26253
Grass graht 292 3303 11596 2297 640 Hna 575 - 13304
OPERATING PRORIT/
(Lo$S} BEFORE FOREIGN
EXCHANGE, EXCEPTIONAL 7 20 nr |6n8) 9.6 T 02 - 29
ITEMs, DISPOSAL OF
PROPERTIES AND IFRS 16
Exceptional tems (ea) {18 (6.00 (31} - (LA
Prafit on disposed of 75 ) 15 . . 2 . 75
intungible assets
Frofit on saie of properties 10 - 10 L1 o1 a7 - [ X3
Fareign axchange reglised 120.21 102 (204} oH e} {1100 153 - 343}
IERS 16 adjustment ne 7 7o) 87 13.5) {88.0) - - (n5.0)
QPERATING (LOSH/PROFIT 583} nsy {3s4) (83.4) us nsa 148 - {ho.1)
Iwastment income 1037
Investmenl costs an
Fmance incomne 0
Finance costs {382}
PROFIT BEFORE TANATION RS
Taxcton #63)
L ss FOR THE PERIOD 8.0
Other segment items included in the Income
Statement for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
..
bk Pramium UK Ratail Eurspean Roxt of Tatal  Whalesola Greup
Speriy Litustyte Tetal Warld Retail Retall & Liconsing Tetal
(Em} 1Em} £m) (e} 1Em) {Em) (L]
Property plont & equipment depreciotion 1838 204 e 383 57 Pz 12 216l
Property, plant & egupment Impainment 954 120 1074 an s - an2
1FRS % ROU deprecu ER G4 519 7y 23 - 121
IFR5 16 ROY impnirment 141 05 -8 a1 26 - 168.2
Investaent propecy depracioton 19 13 - - - 13
Investment property Impairment 0& - 0.6 - - - 04
s 6t o e oo v ww 4 on  wa - wn
gible arortisatian - 05 - 0.5 hé kAl
Intangible mpairment 37 23 66 3 - * 2]

ritand acress the UK
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Information regarding segment assets and liobilities as ot 25 April 2021 and capital expenditure for
the 52 weeks then ended:

Information regarding segment assets and liab
the 52 weeks then ended:

ies as at 26 April 2020 and capital expenditure for

vK Framive UKRemail  Surapeon Rest OF Totel  Wholssole Himinathen Greup UK Pramium UK Ratad Eurepean Rmtof Total  Whelurale Hliminatiens Greup
Speris  Liwaiyle Total Hatail Werld Retail Retoll & Licamsing " Tatal Sperts  Lifeatyle Tetal Retell World Retell Retall GUcoming 7 PTM Total
el (Em} fem) ftm) itm b} L] lEm tem) o temt fem) [Em) (Em) lem) lem) ] tem)
Totol assets 3535 % 4382 33788 &£7048 1584 48083 47 11,3629 31,7481 Total ossets 13149 4747 1,789, 455.5 1286 4,841 3443 (880 2 134882
Totol liakiities [2.3578] (439 &) {2054 85700 (357) {3,809.5} {127 &1 11629 1,504.9) Total habilities 1,986 8} (5567] 2,549 [%270] {195.1] {3,285.0] {821 B60 & (z.397.91
Tangible assat additians 1746 ng LS 174 10 ey 25 - 1194 Tangible asset oddibions 2368 254 433 4B.7 125 s - - 3215
Raght of use assat additions 778 1 e 741 34 1103 0.5 1148 Right ol use asset addtions 506 9 ns 55 22 1012 - - 1012
Intangible assats acquited 27 89 1. 31 - ur - - I
iutangible assats acquired ER) 23 +0 - 5o 6 10
Geographic Information
Segmentai information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020: . :
Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
UK Prwium  UKNelil  European Rest OF Tetel  Whelasle L L Grwup
Sport kst Ratell i wtal
ports yia Total Retoll Werld Retoil atell & Licansing T uk Kurepe usa Asla Elisinations Tatal
[ E '

i {tm) (] {em (L] (2] {Em) {tm) i£m) () 4 [ i [ i (]
Soles to external custmners 22033 7220 29253 6377 1742 17972 1602 13574 Satjmental revere rom axtermnal custamars 277 o162 a7 a7 e
Sutes to ather segments - - - - - 178 (78) - Tolol copitol expenditure 1965 e 32 FE - 234
AEVENUE 1,201.1 120 19253 Ll 2 Ll bl ] 13574 Non-current segment assels® 1,052.3 sy 1277 46 - 115
Groigs prolit 90337 348 6 11518 %49 74 15979 554 1e4le Tatul segmuntal assets 2,2647 5892 2562 e 1,362 9} 3,751
CPERATING PROFIT/ -

(LOSS) NEFORE FOREION *Excludes deferrad tax and finanaial instrumaeits
EXCHANGH, SXCEPTIONAL ke {.0) e w3 e 1205 "4 iy
[TEME AND IFRS 16 Segmental information for the 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020: :
| llems. 27] 169 19.8) (3.5} (1.9 [\L51] .
Proht on sale of properbes 331 - w2 00 . 543 2 UK Menu v Tobal
Forelgn exchangs realisad 295 14 109 41 04 354 105) e {&m {m) ] il
IFRS 16 ad]uttmants 2.3 i) {14} (46,5 7y 48.0) - {de.0} Segmentol revenue fiom external customers 2950 23 4832 4B% - 19574
OPERATING PROFIT / (O3S} 2079 1.3 T (104 ey wi.o 0 - 1 Totdil copiial axpendituce 2625 568 AL 23 s
Inwastment iIncoma w1 Naon-Current seqmental assets* 11726 LKD) 04 138 - 13099
tvastment costs ] Total seqmental assets 38611 4733 3545 95 (860.2} 38632
Finance income o “Exctuctes dularred tux and binuacsal instruments :
Finonce cost 9.3 .
Shara of loss of associutad ' . Material non-current segmental assets — by o non-UK country:
undertakings i
Mwmunﬁcn_mg: on step . 04 WA Melglum Aushin  Estenin trutand Spain
[ I £ L i
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1418 L] fem} l£m) I (em) (g}
[ati) 1297 468 24 - 127 359
Taxation 1428)
FT10 17238 412 303 4.2 539 167
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 1010
: . Material segmental revenue from external customers - by a non-UK country:
Sales to other segments are priced at cost plus o 10% mark-up. 9 by
. . ! o usa Buighom’  Autrl
Other segment items included in the Income Statzment for the 52 weeks anded 26 April 2020: . @ Ftenls dreland $poin
fem) (&m) {£m () tem leml
UK. Weuwhe  UNBabill  Gusapeas Wt Total  Wralaala Ay Fra 2z LEL au 962 %4 08l
fparty Lifostyle Tetal Retall Word Retai] Rutall & Liconsing Tatal I . 7352 955 557 1031 1473 1841
ferm) il feml (L] LLd Ll L) tem) Note the Groug has no mdwidual custamer which accounts far mare thun 10% of ravanuz in the current or par perad
0 98.5 207 .2 ELE) - 48 HIA - 14 1d.A
1FRS 18 ROU s N1 181 19.2 110 13z nes 3
IS 16 disposal of leas lio gl w02 129) 54 1044 ) . L]
Exceptional Imprrmant 27 69 s 3% - 14 1
).:D-:m.n—.n.:\_q:1_51:5:" 21 i0 a1 39 [ -] 124 wd

91

Printed on Steinbers 100% Recycled and Carbon Capturad through the Woodland Trusl, helping to create new British woodland across the UK



FRASERS GROUP PFLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FRASERS GROUP

The following table reconciles the reported operating profit to the underlying EBITDA as it hos been
one of the main measures used by the Chief Operating Decision Maker when reviewing performance

during the period:
Reconciliotion of operating (foss}/profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week pericd
ended 25 April 2021;
UK Sperts Pramivm UK Rxtall  Eurcpson Rust of Whalssale
Retall  Lifestyls Jotal Ratwil World Retail  RTH Total O ming oo Totot
(Em) Em} Lm) (Em} 1£m) £m) tem) (Lo}
QPERATING (LIBSS!/ FRAFIT L %) 219 ) 1824 e as.2 uy 1603}
|ERS 16 disposat and madiication/ ) R
remensirement of lecse ligtnlitres 160} &6 a5 i 7 L) [C:2]
IFRS 16 ROU deprerintion 5t5 64 t oy e 23 - aa
IFRS 16 ROU impaurrent N4t 205 18 30 26 - 10,2
PPE deprecstion fincluding investment
aroparty] 1557 204 ne1 353 57 it 17 ma
PPL impainnant {including investment .
v:uvwmev 562 120 1081 e - RLIY |
Intargible amortisetian - - - o5 - 03 &6 71
REPGATED ENTEA ma 54 aua s us 1 27 $ks
(Prabit)loss on sule of properties nal - 10| (LY ] o 9.9 L3
Excaptional itams {31 16 ns) it - 16 1%
IFRS 46 adjustments {7611 235 9.8 team 04 1163.9) s3]
Realised FX Ioss { tgan] 202 07 04 wa 14 no 53 263
UNDERLYING EBATBA me 5318 1331 41 286 1824 .0 3108
(b Relotes tu the reversol of IFRS 16 rent and cnersus lease provisions

Reconciliation of operating profit to underlying EBITDA for the 52 week period ended 26 April 2020:

UK Bremium UK Ratall Lurspean Rast OF Total  Whaelezals Group
Sporis Lifestyl Tetal Retyll World Rutall Gstal & Licepting Tetul
. {Em) lem] £m} (Lm) 1Em) Lmi ftm) {Een)
OPERATING FROFIT / (LOSS) 2078 03.2) ey {10.4) 3 1.0 0 i
IFRS 16 Disposnt af lagse liability 2n o a0l 16 4] |04 1) (9.5
}¥RS 16 ROV depreciabion/impasrment 13t 16,1 8.2 7 1.3 ms 185
IFRS 16 PPE Impaimment 32 - 3.3 6 - .2 - 9.2
Deprecighon 95.3 206 15y 335 45 154.2 14 1556
Amertisation/mpaiment Hi 20 1 33 - 2.0 1] 208
Shore of lass of asses ted undertalangs 1159) - [LA)) - - 159} - 134)
REPORTED EBITOA 4038 32 4082 101§ ua 328.2 ua 3510
Prohit on sals of propertes 133.7) - 152.2) 1210 - ($4.1 (542
Exzepbonal tems 27 69 4 3% - A - a
IFRS 16 adjustmanty - 11591 () (LY} 300 120 8 inas) L)
Relized FX (gainl / toss R9 2 Ins) (10 {é 2 (©4) ps3) 04 (343
UNDERLYING EBITOA 2274 48 1318 e (6.8} 76y 3.1 3024
It Relates tothe reversal of IFRS 16 rent ahd Gnerous hedte prowisions
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5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

57 wepks snded %2 waeks endad

25 April 2021 16 Apiil 2020

{Em) -’ 0]

Rent reremanls 8] 163
Othwr 207 %62
4 125

{ther operating income ralukes by charges for oircraft, leose surrender precuins, od hac incoma and sundey tharges ta thid gorties

6. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

52 waeks
25 April 1021 16 Apid M50
iEm) iLm)
Iinpairments 131
Profit on dispasal of intengible ossets 75
i) nn

lows do ot support the full
ness

The ympgirment in both the current and prioy year retnies to goodwill, whereby tihe discountad present value of future cos
value of the assets The profit on tisposal of intangible assers relates to he sole of certain 1P relabng ta the BELONG

PROFIT ON SALE OF PROPERTIES

51 waeks ondad 53 wasks andad

25 Apeil 2029 6 April 2020

L] {Em)

Praftt on sale of properties 97 542

v sole of properties in the current penod includes gans on the sals of Ewropenn propeties The prior penod largely refates ta the gun on
ution centra funits &, 8, C, D and F Braok Pork East, Shuebrask NG20 8RY)

The profit or
the sale and [suseback of tha Shiratirook drs|

8. OPERATING (LOSS)}/PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
Operating {loss)/profit for the period is stated after charging/icrediting):

51 waaky ended 32 weslsendnd

25 April 2021 26 April 2020

{Em) (&m}

Forelgn exchangs 1ass £ lgomd ™3 {389

AND AMORT ASSETS:

-Depreciation of aroparty, plant & egulpment tincl. trght-of-use asset! 2985 2584

-wnpawment of propery, plant & equipment baet nght-of-use ossat} ELLE} 122 6

-Depreciahon of investment properties 19 33

-Imparment of investment property 06 -

-Amortisatioh of mtangible asets 71 145

-imponment of mtangible assets 31 0o
IERS 16 LRASES:

Protit on disposal and maditication/rerneasurernent of leose [abiibies 1217 k]

Vonoble ledse payrment . 55 58

Short rertn ang low volua lzase exponses 3 60

2 UK

whaorong

LEgeTh]
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SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S AUDITOR

The remuneration of the auditors, RSM UK Audit LLP, and associated firms, was as detoiled below:

. 52 wasks sndad 33 manks wndud
20 Apri 2021 4 Apell 2020
Km) (tm}

AUDIT SERVICES
Audit of the Group and campuny - fecuinng 15 16
Auist of the Group and company - Non-racurmig o1 G4
Audit of subsidiary companiss - o8 LE]
Audit related assuranee senaces 3 - o1
24 13

There were no non-gudit services provided in eiter the current or prior period.

9. PAYROLL COSTS

The average monthly number of employees, including Executive Directors, employed by the Group
during the period was: :

51 wenhs mnind 52 wenks endnd-

25 Apsil 2021 26 April 2020

Retall storay 22,22 25,505
Dustribution, i and other 4,374 4.5M
WA W

The decrease in employees is mainly due to natural attrition, including in part, the integration of new
acquisitions.

The aggregate payroll costs of the employees, intluding Executive Directors, net of amounts received
from Government grants, were as follows:

52 waeks sndad 52 wanks onded
25 Apeil 2001 3 3¢ Aprit 2020
‘Waoges and salarres 3422 456 4
Socral secunty costs 293 305
PFension costs ) ) §6 59
m a0

Aggregate emolurents of tha Directors of the Ccmpany are summarised below:
52 weaku endad 52 woaki ended
. 13 April 701 4 Aprl 2020
’ &) {Em)
Aggragate emolumants ['E o4

Further detuails of Directors’ resnuneration are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report. Details of
key management remuneration are given in note 34,
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10. INVESTMENT INCOME

52 wouks nndid 31 wovks snded

25 April 2021 24 Aprl 2020

{Em) . l&ml

Prolt on disposol ot inancial assets and equity denvative fnoncial nstriments 374 74
Premium recaivad on denvative financial mstrumenits 06 R
Falr volue gam on eauity denvatwve financial instruments 552 t3
Dondend income 0.5 0.5
103.7 8.2

The profit an disposal of financial assets mainly relates to Hugo Boss contracts for difference. The
fair value gain on equity derivative financial instruments mainly relates to Hugo Boss options and
controcts for differenca. The premiurn received on derivative financial instruments mainly relates to
Hugo Boss options.

11, INVESTMENT COSTS

51 wuwkt ended 53 wasks ended

28 kprd 2011 26 ApHI 2030

E£ml [Em)

Lass oh disposal o 10l ossets und equily denvative bnuncial instrurments R 140
Fair valua loss on eQuity dervotive finanznl instruments 77 3h8
.7 e

The fair value loss on equity derivatives in the current period mainly relates to movements in
contracts for difference.

The loss on disposal recognised in the prior period mainly relates to the sale of equity derivatives.
The Fir value loss on equity derivatives in the pricr pericd mainly relates to Hugo Boss options and
commodities.

12. FINANCE INCOME

52 wanks undad 52 wasks anded

25 April 2021 26 April 03¢

L] (Em]

Boak nterest iacewoble 385 15
Other fimance income 55 a1
Far valus odjustment to denvative hranciol instruments - M3
2.0 .8

The fair value adjustment to derivative financial instruments relates to differences between the fair
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge
accoanting from ane period end to the next. Cther finance income largely relates to premiums
received on option contracts.

w new Briish woodiand across the UK
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13. FINANCE COSTS ) 15. EARNINGS PER SHARE FROM TOTAL AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS
R et ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS _
25 Apeil 2021 26 April 2020 . . ) - . . P ;
em) Basic earnings per share is coleulated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders
Iotarest on o 1oams and verdrafts e of the parent by the weighted overoge number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Other interes! — Ll For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares, 501,955,281 (FY20:
_,_HMHM__% "2rement bene/lt oblgarions oc_ 505,826,890), is odjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shores under the
p— aau _.,..23.: ” - , - ® Group's shore schemes, being 88,605 (FY20: 1,239,075}, ta give the diluted weighted averoge number
’ acjustemnnt to defvative hinancitl mstrumants - . . .
S e i o PP of shares of 502,043,886 (FY20: 507,065,965). However, as there is g loss for the period ended 25 April
- - 2021, the effect of patentially dilutive ordinary shares is anti-dilutive, and therefore the weighted
The fair value adjustment to derivative finarcial instrurnents relates to differences between the fair average number of shares for the Diluted EPS calculation has been kept the same as for the Basic
value of forward foreign currency contracts and written options that were not designated for hedge EPS calculation for the current peried.
accounting from one period end to the next. . .
9 P Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share
14. TAXATION — ——
wapdl  28Aprl  deApdl 26 Apnl
31 wasks ended 52 weaks endnd 021 2011 W01 1020
25 apeil 1621 26 April 2020 Yasie Dikted Bark  Dikied
tew ] em n am tem)
Currant tax i 832 512 {Loss)/proit for the panad 1830} [830) 938 534
AdustmEnt in respect 10 phor perods " ues a9 Number in Hhawsands Huml
TOTAL CURRENT TAX RL3) 611 Wa ghted overage number of shares 501,955 501.555 505.827 502066
Deterrad tox [0 12581 Punee par shan - Pence pref share
Adpustrnant in respect of prior perods wn 12 Earings per share 116.5) (165 185 85
TOTAL DEFERRED TAX (SEE NOTE 7) t16.3) (158}
8463 425
Profit before taxation a5 135 ’ .
Taxation at the staidand rte of tak in the UK of 19% [2020, 19%) 16 273
Non-taxabla income 113 w4
Expanses not deductible For tax purposes 770 190
Other tax adpstments 18] G6
Adjustments in respect of Priar periods - current tax T - 34
Adjustmants i respect of pnar pariods - dalerrad tax (0.2} 77
Changes i deferred tox rate ) - 120 .
85 415

Non-taxable income largely relates to profits on property disposal due to differences between capital
allowances and depreciction. Expenses not deductible for tax purposes relate to non-qualifying
depreciation, impairments, and fair valuction of investments.
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Underlying Earnings Per Share 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The underlying earnings per share reflects the underlying performance of the business compared ightof TR Shertm
with the prior period and is calculated by dividing underlying earnings by the weighted average wronst G Lemsheld | b e ™
number of shares for the period. Underlying earn ngs is used by management as a measure (emi & e e " e tm)
of profitability within the Group. Underlying earnings is defined as (loss)/profit for the period o5t
attributable to equity holders of the parent for each findncial period but excluding the post-tax AT L APIL 2079 N Py e I YTy ey
effect of certain nan-trading items. Tax hos been calculated with reference to the effective rate of tax Recognased on adoption of 2n . o ‘ ‘ 328
for the Group. . Acquisitians e 254 as - a1 500
The Directors believe that the underlying earnings before exceptional items and underlying earnings Addtions Y12 2 22 154 ey add
per shara rmeasures provide additional useful infarmation for shareholders on the underlying Ehminated on disposals 1209) (s vy nen 28 [CX]
performance of the business and are consistent with how business performance is measured Reclossilications / Remeasurerments 78 - . . 0 54
internally. Underlying earnings is not a recognised profit measure under IFRS and may not be directly Exchange diferences N 25 02 o8 28 2
g " . . .
comparable with “adjusted” profit measures used by other companies. AT 15 APRIL 2020 ) yos 08 e 26 zaud
52 weskn sndvd 52 weuks anded Acquisitions jsee note 3] i 05 . - 20 ne
25 April 3 april 26 Aprll 2 April Additibrs ) 188 443 43 20 1288 1.2
2021 01 2010 2020 -
Busle Cihsted Batke Dlbated Fliminatad on disposals 1487} {16 5t [0F]) &q 187.4] nasn
(£m] 1Em) {Em) Reclassiticotions / Remegsumments 764 179.4} 5.2 01 a7 3o
(LO35)/PROFIT FOR THE FERIGD 830 [l ”e Exchanga diflarences (2 4 o 03 129 %]
Past tax ndjustment ta {lossl/profit for the petad fer the Folowing iterms- AT 15 APRIL 2021 2084 =33 P P 13540
Reaiised loss/lgain] on forward loreign axchange contracts 197 97 1261 12611 -
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND |MPAIRMI
Fair wailue audjustment ko forward forengn exchanga contructs 14 34 (16 0] 160
Fir valus gu on step gcquisition . . 1204) fan 4y AT 33 AFRIL 2979 - (1328} 4.2 ann 4849} 748.8)
Fair volue adjuttmant ta derivatve hnancal instruments. 147 51 69 %9 Recagnisad an adoption of 1FRS 16 - - . - e [6-3)
Dwidend incomea and prolit op disposal of inancral assets ond wguity denvotive 148 51 77 IS Chaotge for the penad - M98l (478 2% o o4 [e1iR)]
grurments .
d I - 78 ]
rsposl ol properies 7 57 (542) ol Ehminoted on drsposals 2 ”m w0 M8 (1%
af gandll 91 91 11 31 Exchange diHarencas 09 [CE] °L] 5 1y
Profit on dispesal ol ntangible ussats (58] 58] - - AT 26 AFRIL 2010 lwn (158.3} ims) IS&T.8 0.0710.5)
IFRS 16 adjystments %8 ] 56 % 569 Chasge lor the paned 18211 {7a 5] {11 5) naa [ ]
UNDERLYING ILOSSKPROFIT FOR THE FIRIOD 1%.3) w33 nr L [rmpairment 16832 [84.41 (o1 [s98) (164
Humbssrin thousasss  Wumker in theusands -
Elirminntad on disposals 475 "2 03 - 671 544 120
Shores i isst at tha perod end 501955 501985 505827 57,086
Reclussilications / Remeasuremants © - 81 - 148 (0.6)
Puncs por shore Pance per thars
Earrings per share K .08 |mo; 162 ) Exchange ahfferances Xl 02 a1 1 23 Frs
AT 25 APRIL 1028 ) {10 (2] o] [T
NET ROONK VALUE
AT 25 APRIL X0 H 47 s317 14 » o1 1154
AT 26 APRIL 2020 w37 " ns 2 war 6
AT 16 ABRIL 2% - aus 54 ms (T2
n The £33 0m wos reciassified due to Shirebroak warehouse plant ond sguiprnent nat larming pact of the final sale and leoseback complated during
the prior year
] In the prer penad thers 1s 1o separate tisclosure of IMpaIFMent HGM dapraciation I respect of the property, plant und equipment Total
impairment in FY20 was £122.6m of which £978m relatad to the Right-of-use assats
1% Inthe curant pariod o number of prapartias ware antified that ware previously classified within Freahold Land and Budings but manogenunt
' Sorhirri h Yo U TN MR ol Yo DTS W g e sl S P O TR T v T R O i sy Th s,

Note 2 provides further detail on the property related impairments (relating to ROU assets, freehold
ngs and onerous lease provisions).
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Leases

The Group adopted (FRS 16 on 29 April 2G19. The Group only has property leases within the scope of
IFRS 16, including retail stores, offices and warehouses. Leases are largely for a peried between 1- 15
years typically with breck clauses. It is management’s intention to continue to enter into turnover

linked leases in the future.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, piant and equipment’, the same line item as it presents underlying assets of the same
nature that it owns. The carrying amount and movements in the period con be seen in the toble

ahove.

Lease liabilities are presented separately within the Consolidated Bolonce Sheet. The maturity
analysis of lease liabilities is show in note 29e. Interest expense on the lease liability is presented os a
component of finance costs as per nate 13. Cash payments for the principal portion and the interest
portion of the lease liability are presented in the Consalidated Cash Flow Statement with further

details given in note 26.

The Group is party to a number of leases that are classed as short term leases and with variable
lease payments, These are typically property leases on turnover based rents. Note 8 discloses
variable lease payments and short term and low volue lease expenses incurred in the period. Cash
flows in the period relating to variable lease payments, short term lease payments, and leases for low
vajue assets were approx. £24m (FY20: approx. £72mi, It is expected that future cash flows will not be
materially different to the FY20 cash flows. Leases to which the Group is committed but have not yet

commenced at period end are not considered to be material.

17.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Fraehold lasd and
Buildingt

(Eml

<OsT

AT 15 APRIL 3013 AND 8 APRIL 2020

433

£liminatad on disposals

78]

AT 25 APRIL 7021

ACCUMUL

AT 33 APRIL 2013

(13.6)

Charge for the period

(R

AT 16 APRIL 2010

[cI%]

Charge for the penod

14

impowmant

106)

Elirminated on dispesals

AT 25 APRIL 2021

141

HET BOOK VALUE

141

AT 26 APRIL 2020

149

AT 28 APRIL 2019

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 25 April 2021 were estimated as being
matericlly in line with carrying values. The valuations were calculated by the Groug's internal
property team who are approprictely qualified chartered surveyors and follow the applicabie
valuation methodology of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors. Note 2 provides further detail

on the property related impairments.
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Saadwill .“.._.uﬂ...-h«.w.. Brands Tatal
&ml 1em) [C] tem)
gosT
AT 28 AFRIL 201% 158 M 064 M3
Aty 17 20 - 1wy
Drsposols - inay - lo4)
Fachange cdjustments a6 05 40 LE]
AT 26 APRIL 2020 a4 .0 0.4 asta
Acquisitions [see note 31 aD B - P
Additions 10 - 1o
ODrsposols - a3 - ny
Eschange odjustments 187) 10} 198} (11.8)
AT 25 APRIL 021 .y 07 ”we U
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
AT 24 APRIL 1013 (95.5) Lk
Amortization charge n3 1721 |60l [LTE ]
impairment 19 0) - - (1.0
Disposct - 04 - ol
Exchaonge uu 2| 032 - -
AT 26 APRIL 2010 .y (LA (6.0} (114.4)
Amartisotian charge 03 13} 1551 nn
Imparment 191) - - LA
Dispasat a3 - 33
Exchange adjustments 47 04 o7 58
AT 25 APRIL 1021 {124.0) (587} (10} (az1d)
AT 25 APAIL 201t £6.7 4.0 LLx 1103
AT 26 APRIL 2020 51 49 B wra
AT 20 APRIL 2019 513 LX] 264 mo

Amortisation is charged to selling, distribution and administrative expenses in the consolidated

Income Statement.

The majority of the net book value of intang ible ossets relates to the £86.5m purchose of Everlast in
2007,

s tha
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T e carrying value of goodwill and brands that are considered to have an indefinite life are allocated
to the Group's operating segments before aggregation. With the exception of Everlast, none of

the individual cash-genercting units [CGUs) are zonsidered matericl to good

or indefintte life

irtangibles. The carrying value of goodwill and brands allocated to the Group's CGUs {as aggregated

except in the case of Everlast] is shown below:

25 Aprdl 2021 34 Apei 2020
Goedwill Brands Qwadwill Brunds
|Em) {Em) (Em) {Em)

Evrapsan Retail - 15
wholesale & Licansing laxcl Evecdast| 143 143 -
Everlost 324 658 163 842
Asr " 541 B4

The Group tests the carrying amount of
goodwill and assets with an indefinite life
annually for impairment or more frequently if
there are indications that their carrying value
might be impaired. The carrying amounts

of other intangible assets are reviewed

for impairment if there is an indication of
impairment.

Impairment is calculeted by comparing the
carrying amounts to the value in use derived
frem discounted cash flow projections for
each CGU to which the intangible assets are
allocated. A CGU is deemed to be an individual
fascia or brand and these have been grouped
together into similar classes for the purpose of
formulating operating segments as reported
in note 4. The total recoveroble amount of

al CGUs in relotion to the above intangibie
assets was £262.3m of which £136.8m related
to Everlast. Due to the ongoing impact of
Covid-19, the European Retail gocdwill was
impaired to £nil with an impairment charge of
£3.1m (FY20: £nil} being recognised where the
discounted present value of future cash flows
did not support the full value of the asset,

Vclue in use caleulations ere based on five-year
munagement forecasts with a terminal

growth rate applied thereafter, representing
manogement’s estimate of the long-term
growth rate of the sector served by the CGUs,

Tetal impairments of £9.1m [FY20: £19.0m}
have been recognised in relation to goodwill
on loss making companies and are individually
immaterial to each CGU that has heen

written down. These impairments include the
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European Retail goedwill and the goodwill frem
acquisitions in the period.

The Everlast brand is omortised over a 15
year period within the selling, distribution and
administrative expenses category within the
income statement. The amount charged to
the income statement in the period is £5.5m
(FY20: £6.0m), the future amortisation charge
is expected to be approximately £6.0m per
annum for the remaining 13 year omortisation
period (FY20: 14 vear).

The key assumgptions, which are equally applicable to each CGU, in the cash flow projections used to
support the carrying amount of goodwill were os follows:

A at 25 Ageil 2021 Surspaon Retall i.i_:a_-.-.u_._.ﬁu......._.-..u_ Erarian

Terminal scles grawth ) 2.00% 2.0% 20%

& year lorecast growth ' (35%) 15 3%) 11 A%

Sross murge 10%-40%

Diseount rate 6 3% - €.3% 121%:

s ot 26 April 1030 [ F—— !r._:iﬁ_..hr_.hﬂﬂn_u..u Everlast

Tarrminal sales grawth 0% 10% 20%
0% 20% 0.9%

Gross margin 30%-40%

Discount rote 6 3% . & 2% 121%

[} Tha 5 year growth rates are bosed on tha average growth ovar 5 yaurs

The same pre-tax discount rote is used in European Retail and Wholesale & Licensing {excl. Everlast)
as these CGU's are considered to have similar risk profiles. A specific discount rate is used for Everlast
as this business operates in a different market ond has different characteristics,

The key assumptions are based on market data and management’s historical experience and future
plans for each CGLU.

Sensitivity Analysis

A reasonably possible change in any key assumption would not cause the carrying value of the
Everlast or Wholesale & Licensing (excluding Everlast) CGU to exceed its recoverable amount,
the table below shows the amount of headreom and the revised assumption required in order to
eliminate the headroom in full.

The European Retail goodwill has been impaired in the period as a result of the ongoing impact of
Covid-19. '

Bverdast
Wecaverakle amaunt of CGU ((m) 1368
Current headmonm [Emf 346
Ravisad 5-yeor forecast growth rata % 17 7%) 125%)
Revisod tarmmal grawth rate % < {1000%] 05%
Revised discount rute % 526% 14 D%

Vg to create new Brtsh woodiand aeross the UK
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED cz_vmx.;_n_z.mm

The Group uses the equity method of accounting for associates and joint ventures in accordonce
with IAS 28, The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's investment in
associates and joint ventures:

20. LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group is not focking to make gains through increases in market prices of its long-term financial
assets, therefore on initial application of IFRS 9 the Group made the irrevocable election to account
for lang term financia) assets at fair value through other comprebensive income [FVOCH). The
election has been made on an instrument-by-instrument basts, only qualifying dividend income is

nnted on Stentbers 1007 Becycled and Carbon Coptsiod throuuh the WO

Avigciates recognised in profit and loss, changes in fair volue are recognised within OC| and never reclassified
fem) to profit and loss, even if the asset is impaired, sold or otherwise derecognised. The majority of
AT 28 APt 201 ne long-term financial assets are recognised in the UK Sports segment.
Addihgny . e
Shure of loss for the pened 59 The fair value of the long-term financial assets is based on bid quoted market prices at the balance
Fonr vaheg adjustrment P sheat date or where market prices are not available, at management's estimate of fair value.
Dispasals Gk) The following table shows the aggregate movement in the Group's financial assets during the period:
AT I APRIL 2070 AND 38 APRIL 1021 -
28 Apil B 16 ApHi 2020
The share of foss in the prior period relates to Game Digital plc prior to obtaining a controlling oy (Em)
interest in July 2019, At beginning of perod 838 a6
. . Additions 133 248
The fair value adjustment in the prior year relates to the increase in the fair value of the previously - p— oy oo
held 38.1% equity interest in Game Digita) plc at the acquisition date on 8 July 2019, Amounts recognused thraugh othet Comprehensie ncome 73 1971
The dispasals in the prior period mainly relates to the de-recognition of Gome Digital ple as an Exhange dHerencas R.:_ v

associate due to obtaining a controlling interest.

The Group currently holds a 49.0% share of Four {Hoidings) Limited (FY20: 49.0%), the carrying
amount of this investment is £nil. Detailed disclosures have not been presented as the results are
immaterial. The Group is owed £64.9m from the group of companies headed by Four {Haldings)
‘Limited (£26.5m net of amounts recognised in respect of loss allowance) (FY20: £67.5m, £33.8m net
of loss allowance), see note 22 for further detaiis. The group of companies headed by Four {Holdings)
Limited made a profit of £8.1m in the period (FY20: loss of £19.8m).
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Included within long-term financial assets at the period ended 25 April 2021 are the foliowing direct

interests held by thé group
- 36.8% (FY20: 12.5%] interest in Mulberry
Group plc

- 35.6% {FY20: 36.9%) interest in Studic Retail
Group plc

+ 53% [FY20: 0.2%)] interest in Hugo Boss AG

= Various other interests, none of which
represent more than 5.0% of the voting
power of the investee

During the period the Group sold its 26.1% interest in French Connection Greup ple due to it no
longer being considered part of the Group's iong-term strategy. The fair value ot the date of
derecognition was £2.6m with the £1.7m gain on dispasal being recognised in investment income,

The following table shows the fair value of each of the Group's long-term financial assets (ol listed),

28 April 2011 28 ApHI 2010

(Em) (E£m)
Mulherry Groun plc 519 L]
Stucho Retail Group ple B3 7 612
Huga Boss AG 187 24
Franch Carnection Group ple 16
Other 29 40
AT END OF PERIOD 2633 213

These holdings have been assessed under
IFRS 9 Financiol Instruments and categorised
as long-term financial assets, as the Groyp
does not consider them to be associates and
therefore, they are not accounted for on an
equity basis, see note 2.

Qur strategic investments are intended to allow
us to develop relationships and commercial
partnerships with the relevant retailers and

Gactons e UK

assist in building relotionships with key suppliers
and brands.
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21. INVENTORIES

5 Apil 2011 6 Aprit 3030
) eml
Goods lor rasale 10966 3198 3

As at 25 April 2021, goods for resale include a right of return asset totalling £4.5m =n.4mo £2.4m).
Amounts written off in the period relating to stock was £24.3m {(FY20 E39.0m).

The following inventory costs have been recognised in cost of sales:

13 April 20 T8 Apsil 2020
{em) femp
Cost of inventories racogrisad as an expense 20945 22948

The Directors have reviewed the opening and closing provisions against inventory and have
concluded that these are foirly stated. The Group hos reviewed its estimates and assumptians for
calculating inventory provisions at 25 April 2021. Cverall provisions have decreased from £223.0m in
F'Y20 to £219.8m as at 25 April 2021, chonges in the provision are recognised in cost of sales.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

5 Aprl 2071 T4 April 2030

\Em] wm
Trade 572 575
D sposlts in respect of denvative finoncial mstruments 1310 n3
Amoints cwed by related parties see note 31 268 342
Oher racavables 2469 67
Prepayments T 545

5485 aily

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to
their fair value. The maximum exposure to credit risk ot the reporting date is the carrying value of
each class of asset above, plus any cash balances. Other receivables also inchude unremitted sales
receipts,

Deposits in respect of derivative financial instruments are collateral to cover margin requirements for
derivative transactions held with counterparties. The collateral requirement changes with the market
{which is dependent on share price, interest rates and volatility) ond further purchases / sales of
underlying investments held.

Included within other receivables is the reimbursement asset totalling £118.3m {(FY20: £118.3m) in
relation to the Group's ongoing non-UK tax enquiries, for further information see note 28.

The majority of the Group's trode receivables are held within the Wholesale & Licensing businesses,
each customer's creditworthiness is assessed before payment terms are agreed.

Under IFRS 9, the Group has applied the simplified approoch to providing for expected credit losses
for trade receivables, using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on a very low credit risk
characteristic, representing management's view of the risk, end the days past due. The credit quality
of assets neither past due rior impaired is considered to be good. The Group considers o debt to be
defaulted at the point when no further amounts are expected to be recovered. Financial assets are
wr tten off when there is no reasenable expectation of recovery. If recoveries are subsequeritly made
after receivables have been written off, they are recagnised in profit or loss.
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The amounts owed by related parties mostly relates to the group headed by Four {Holdings) Limited,
for further detuils see note 34.

Exposure to credit risk of trade receivables:

23 Al 2021 28 april 2020

lEm) Lm}
Currant .8 30
0-30 days past dug 120 110
30-50 doys past due 40 az
60-56 days post due 24 20
Over 50 doys post due 70 . 73

7.2 515

The credit quality of assets neither past due nor impaired is considered to be good.

The movement in loss allowance relating to trade receivables and amounts owed to related parties
can be analysed as follows: ’

52 washs snded 52 weahs undud

23 April 2021 26 April 2020

fEm} {Em)

Opening pasition 462 338
Amourits ehorgeu to the ncome staternant 203 196
Amounts wittah off at uncollectabsle i 16.6]
Amouits fecowered durmg the periad o1 108)
CLOSING POSITION 3 Ab.2

Included in the below table is the loss allowance movement in amounts due from related parties as
follows:

52 waeka epded 52 wuaki endad

25 Agril 2020 26 Apsil 2420

‘ [Lm} {em)

Qpemng position EEL] 208
Amounts charged to the mcorme staternent £5 130
CLOSING POSITION d 33

The gross carrying amount of the balence due is £65.2m (FY20: £67.5m). The charge in the period has
been recorded in Selling, distribution and administrative expenses. £12.4m of the gross amounts due
from reloted parties balance is due in less than one year with the remaining being due in more than
a one year (FY20; £7.9m due less than one year).

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number
of customers. The loss allowance / charges have been determined by reference to past defoult
experience, current / forecasted trading performance and future economic cenditions.

Deposits in respect of derivative finoncial instruments and prepayments are not considered to be
impaired.
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FRASERS GROUP

15 Aprd 1921 26 April 2920
tem tem)
Cash n bank ond in hand - Sterhing 1441 2528
Cash inbonk and i hand - US Doltors gre 75
Cash in fenk ond in hand - Euros 1525 552
Cash in bank ond v hend - Oher 2310 BS
457.0 514.0
2% April 2011 2% Apeil 2020
(Em) ml
399,500,010 ordinary shares of 10p each 1000 100 0
ALLOTTED, CALLED UF AND FULLY PAID
540,602,369 12020 §40,602,369) ordnory shares of 10p &dch fal &40
SHARE CAPITAL
AL 25 Aprd 2021 aad 26 Aprit 2020 &4 1 as1 7
The Group holds 121,260,775 shares in Treasury as Contingent Share Awards

at peried end (FY2Q: 121,260,175).

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per ordinary share
at general meetings of the Company.

We are aware of unsponsared American
Depository Receipt (ADR) programmes
established from time to time in respect of our
shares. We have not sponsored or cuthorised
their creation and any guestions should be
directed to the relevant depositary.

Frasers hos not and does not intend to offer or
sell its Ordinary Shares or other securities (in
the form of ADR or otherwise] to the general
public in the United States nor has it listed

or intends to list its Ordinary Shares or other
secunities on any nationaf securities exchange
in the United States or to encourage the trading
of its Ordinary Sharas on any over the counter
market located in the United States. Frasers does
not make arrangements to permit the voting of
Ordinary Shares held in the form of ADRs and
its publication of periodic financial and other
information is not intended to focilitate the
operation of any unsponsered ADR pragramme
under Rule 12g93-2(b} of U.S. Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended or otherwise,

100
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The Executive Share Scheme

Under the terms of the Executive Share Scherme,
which was approved by Shareholders ¢n 10
September 2010 and is a HMRC approved
scheme, the Board may make share awards in
respect of the ordinary shares in the Company.
Awards may be made to Executives and Persens
Discharging Managerial Responsibilifies over a
fixed number of shares subject to performance
conditions. Further details are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report.

An award of 8,073,036 shares was granted on
10 September 2010 at o share price of 1255
pence. Between 27 April 2020 and 25 April 2027,
1,000,000 shares sold by participants following
exercise of awards were acquired by Estera
Trust {Jersey) Limited, as Trustee of the Sports
Direct Employee Benefit Trust {Trustee), with
the acquisition funded by a loan advanced

by the Company. The shares were acquired at
374.8 pence per share. At the period end ém

of the shares in the scheme have since vested
(FY20: 5m) and 2m have since lapsed meaning
all shares granted by the scheme hove now
exercised or lapsed,

15t he

Share Schemes

The 2011 Share Scheme was a four year scheme
based upon achieving underlying EB(TDA
(pefore the costs of the scheme) of £215m

in FY12, F250m in FY13, £260m in FY14 and
£300m in FY15 coupled with the individual
participoting employee’s satisfactory personal
performance and continued employment.

All of the above targets have now been met
meaning that approx. 1.6m shares vested in
September 2017 and approx, 4m shores vested
in September 2015.

Between 27 Aprii 2020 and 25 April 2023,
150,470 shares sold by participonts following
exercise of awards under the Group 2011 °
Share Scherne were acquired by Estera Trust
{Jersey} Limited, as Trustee of the Sports Direct
Employee Benefit Trust {Trustee), with the
acquisition being funded by a loan advanced
by the Company. The shares were acquired at
prices of between 251.8 and 460.8 pence per
share in off-market transactions. The weighted
average purchose price was 365 pence per
share {FY20: 257 pence per share).

A share-based payment charge of Enil (FY20;
nil] was recagnised in respect of this equity
settled award for the 52 weeks ended 25 April
2021, based on the Director's best estimate of
the number of awards that will be made. The
charge is caleulated based on the fair value on
the grant date, which is deemed to be the date
an which the entity and counterparty reached a
shared understanding of the scheme.,

The Group holds 17,386,913 shores in the
Own Share Reserve as at period end (FY20:
17,386,913).

woudland across the UK

Fearless 1000 Bonus Scheme

At the annual general meeting in October
2020, our shareholders gave approval for

the Feorless 1000 bonus scheme. Under this
scheme shares may be issued by the Group to
employees for ne cash consideration. All Group
employees jexcluding executive directors, their
family ossociates, and the Chief Commercial
Officer) are eligible to participate in the
scheme. Under the scheme, 10 million shares
arg aworded to eligibie employees if certain
market conditions are achieved. This would
equate to £100m worth of fully paid ordinary
shares in Frasers Group pic that could be paid
to eligible employees if our share price reaches
£10 any time over the next four years. The share
price must stay above £10 for 30 consecutive
trading days to trigger the vesting of shares at
the end of the four year vesting period. 50%
of the shares are gronted after 4 years and the
remaining 50% after 5 years. One thousand
eligible employees will receive the shores with
a potential value ranging from £50k to £ if
the share price is at £10 at the vesting dates. In .
all other respects the shares rank equally with
other fully paid ordinary shares on issue.

The share element of the scheme is deemed

to be an equity-settled scheme as defined by
IFRS 2 Share-based payment. In line with the
accounting policy in note 1, the fair value at the
date of grant is expensed to the Consolidated
Income Statement on a straight-line basis over
the vesting peried, with the correspending
credit going to equity.

The oassessed fair value ot grant date of the
shares granted during the period ended 25
April 2021 was 165.69p per share for the 4 yeor
vesting period and 165.95p per share for the 5
year vesting period. The fair value ot grant date
is independently determined using an adjusted
form of the Black-Scholes maodel which includes
a Monte Carlo simulation model thot tokes

into account the exercise price, the term of the
option, the impact of dilution (where material),
the share price at grant date and expected
price volotility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield, ond the risk-free
interest rate for the term of the scheme.
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The model inputs for shares granted ,n_:::m the period ended 25 April 2021 included: 25, OTHER RESERVES

- exercise price: £nil Parmarant  Cophtal Ravaris e Totalether
- grant date: 10 February 2021, being the date the Deed of Grant was executed : tocopital  merva e M Rosn
. . femd €m) [hm} [Lm} {Em)
- expiry date: 7 October 2024 and 7 October 2025 PETpE— o1 iy veral ot Y
- share price at gront date: 450p Cash flow hecdges
- expected price volatility of the company's shares: 38.8% _recognissd in the penad : . . - 64 164
1n the penod - - . - ¢
- expected dividend yield; 0% = = :
- reclassified in the pariod and raported in the sales - - - na nn
- risk-free interest rate: 0.1% + rectasuified and reported in cost of sales - - - 374 13741
The expected price volatility is based an the historic volatility {based on the remaining life of the - 1oagtion - . - 1a 28
scheme), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information. AT 26 APRIL 2020 01 a0 [sar3) w0 {951.2)
A charge in the Consolidated Income Statement of £0.8m has been recognised in the period in Cosh low hedges -
relation to the equity-settled element of the scheme resulting in £0.8m now baing held in equity. _recogneed i the pened - i o o
- mclossified i the pariod and reported m soles - - iz| [FE-
The scheme also has a cash-settled bonus for cll 4ther eligible employees who do not qualify for reclossihed and reportad 1 cost of sales - . . i wa
the Fearless 1000 shave scheme. The cash borus at the end of the 4 year period is based on the oxtion N N N 0 10
employee tenure and has been accourted as an other long-term employee benefit as defined by
AT I8 APRIL 20H LAl 1.0 ey 7" (L1 N

I1A5 19 Empioyee Benefits. A chorge in the Consolidation Income Staternent of £0.5m has been
recognised in the period along with o corresponding liability. The permanent contribution to copital relates to a cash payment of £50,000 to the Company on 8
February 2007 under a deed of capital ¢ontribution,

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of the Company's redeemable preference
shares of 10p each at par on 2 March 2007.

The reverse acquisition reserve exists as a result of the adoption of the principles of reverse .
acquisition accounting in accounting for the Group restructuring which eccurred on 2 March

2007 and 29 March 2007 between the Company and Sports Werld International Limited, Brands
Heldings Limited, International Brond Management Limited and CDS Holdings SA with Sports World
International Limited os the acquirer.

) The hedging reserve represents the cumulative amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments
' deemed effective in cash flow hedges. The curnulative deferred gain ar loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised in the income statement only when the hedged transaction impacts the
income stotement.

101 ' ) '
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Other Balance Sheet Reserves

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the Financial Statements of foreign subsidiaries and associates.

The own shares and treasury shares reserve represent the cost of shares in Frasers Group ple
purchased in the market and held by Frasers Group Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under
the Group's share options scheme.

The Group holds 17,386,913 shares in the Employee Benefit Trust as ot period end {FY20: 17,388,755).

The fion-controlling interests of the Group mostly relates to Sportland International Group AS and
its subsidiaries, This company is incorporated in Estonia with the principal places of business being a
number of Boltic countries in Europe. The non-contrelling interests hold 409 of the share capital of
Sportland Internationel Group AS. During the period £3.0m profit (FY20: £2.8m) has been adllocoted
to the non-controlling interests of Sportland International Group AS, resulting in an accumuiated
nan-contralling interests at the end of the period of £12.4m (FY20; £9.4m}. A dividend of £0.9m was
paid to the non-controlling interest in the period [FY20: Enill. The group of companies headed by

Sportland International Group AS has total assets of £67.8m and total licbilities of £14.6m.

162 .
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26. BORROWINGS

15 Apeil 2031 14 April 2030
[ [
CURRENT )
Lease lahiites 1885 1475
NON-CURRENT:
Bunk ang cther loons 059 500.0
Legse latlties 53427 4762
TOTAL 14246 13244

An analysis of the Group's total borrowings other than bank overdrafts is as follows:

25 April 2621 60 Aptll 2020
Ewy tem)
Bortowings - stering 1059 00 ¢

As ot period end, loans are at @ rate of interest of 1.3% {FY20: 1.3%) over the interbank rote of the
country within which the borrowing entity resides.

Reconciliation Of Liabilities Arising From Financing Activities
The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:

Nan-current Cutiént  $horwbuy

berwwings  berrawinge ke Total
Em} 1&m) (m) lem)
AT 28 APRIL 2019 Qs - 0.0 363
CASH-FLOWS:
- Barrowngs drawn, down 5100 - - 50.0
- Bottawings repaid (436,54 - - W358
- Share buy buck - - 19 1429}
LEASE LIABILITY:
- IFRS 16 Leose Liokihtes 4598 4363 . LAIR
- VRS 16 Lease Liabilities - Acqu 164 LERE - w0
NON-CASH MOVEMENTS:
- Share buy buck . . - 139 ny
1,376.2 1513
CASH-FLOWS:
- Batrowngs drawn down 11281 - -
- Borrewings repord wary - - pang
LEASE LIABIUTY:
- {FRS 16 Lease Liol cash-flaws - e al 8.0
a..ﬁdwq_mn,.mﬁwﬂrﬂmm- e s atians/femeasurerments, transters trom non-cursent to current, tany s R o
- 1585 16 Lacse Ligbilities - new lgnses 983 08 T
AT 25 APRIL 011 N 12409 1543 - 14208

The acquired borrawings (note 31) of £1.4m were repaid in full during the period.

The Group's Working Capital Facility is ot £913.5m {FY26: £913.5m) available until November 2021
and is not secured against ony of the Group's assets. During FY19 the Group enacted an extension
option for ¢ further year to November 2022 for £847.5m.

codiand auress tha UK
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The Group continues to operate comfortably within its banking facilities and covenants. The carrying
amounts and fair value of the borrowings are not materially different.

Reconciliation of Net Debt:
25 April 2021 26 Apri 1010
ol {imy

Barrowings 478 &) 15241
ADDBACK:

- Lease liabilities - iz 6241
Cash and cash squwolents 4570 5340
WET DEBT e (4601

27. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IFRS 18 rcieion n.ah....-“ Frat a.i.u.h“ Yatal
-H.h“.n.ﬂ rehomt ottt ™ difernces
{&ml Em} (Em) (Em) {Ewm} (m} (tm}
AT 25 APRIL 201% - the s 13 20.0) 1.0} 15.3)

Cradited/icharged) to the Income statemant M3 10 13.8) K] 24 28 e
Chaigad ta resarves 7 . - - . - - 72
Credhted ta hedging reserve - - - - 38 . - 28
AT 26 APRIL 2020 ns "we - . o) .y 11 ua
Credited/icharged] lo the incame statemant 146 41 - - 2.0 10 i74] 0.3
Charged to resarves - . - 0.3 . 5 22
Credited to hadging reservas - . - - a0 - - e
AT 38 APRIL 362 4 nr - 1.0 ) ) (8.4 14

25 Apeil 2021 26 April 2020
Em) (]

DGelerred tax ossets . b6 H 439
Delerred tax liabilitias 12701 125 61
NAT DRFERRED TAX NALANCE 4 7o)

The tax rotes used to measure the deferred tax assets and liabilities was 19%, on the basis that this
was the tax rote that was substontively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable
on the basis of the Group's current expectations of future taxable profits. The Group has approx.
£134m of taxable losses not recognised as a deferred tax asset {approx. £25m deferred tax osset).

Included within ather temporary differences is a deferred tax asset in relation to the Share Scheme
and a deferred tax liability recognised on other intangible assets upon acquisition.

The deferred tax effects of the acquisitions made in the year were considered and it was determined
that there was no material impact on the Group, or the fair value of net assets acquired.

103 )

28. PROVISIONS

.”......_5.._.“ Prepeny Other Total

(2] 1em) rm} ]

AT 29 APRIL 2019 134.0 i3 20 4.3
Amounts provided 130 758 - Bag
121 6] 70.8] 153 €]

106 . 106

AT 26 APRIL 2020 084 o7 17 1688
Amounts provided 71 415 - 188
Arngunts utiised / reversad 169 153) n4 123 6)
AT 2 aPRILZON n3a udn 15 1812

Legal and regulatory provisions relate to management's bect astimate of the potential impact of
claims including legal, commercial, regulatory and engoing non-UK tax enquiries. The timing of

the outcome of non-UK tax inguiries and legal claims made against the Group is dependent on
factors outside the Group's control and therefore the timing of settlement is uncertain. After taking
appropricte legal advice, the outcomes of these claims are not expected to give rise to material loss
in excess of the amounts provided.

A reimbursement asset of £118.3m (FY20: £118.3m) has been recognised separately within debtors
relating to ongoing non-UK tax enquiries.

Included within preperty related provisions are provisions for dilapidations in respect of the Group's
retail stores and warehouses. Further details of managements estimates are included in note 2.

Other provisions relate to provisions for restructuring and employment [non-retirement related).

During the period, onerous lease provisions (pre-tFRS 16) were recognised due to an ongoing
management review of the Group's store profile and strategy including current and anticipated
freeheold acquisitions, resulting in overall increased provisions of £719m (FY20: £26.9m), with reference
to the Group's alternative performance measures. See Glossary for more details,

and Carbon Captured lhrough the Woodland 1 rust. heiping to cieate new Bribsh woodland across the UK
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

o. Financial Assets And Liabilities By Category And Fa r Value Hierarchy

The fair value hierdrchy of financial assets and lich
Sterling or US Dollars, were as follows:

es, which are principally denominated in

FINANCIAL ASSETS - 23 APRIL 2021 Level 9 Lovel2 Levell Othar Tetal
{Hom) |Ew) (Em) em) {Em)
frada and other recervables® - - - 431 4381
Cosh and cash equivalents. . . - 4570 4570
Amourts owed by reloted purties - - - - 268 268
Fyoct;
Long Tarm Financial Assets [Equity Instrumants) - desgnated 2633 260.3
PERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (FV):
Fereign forward purthase and sules controcrs 83 - - A
Dervative financial assets - cantracts for difference & sauity options 204 - - 204
N - 554 - 534
=25 APRIL 2031 -
AMORTISED COST:
Non-current borrowings - - - {705 9) {50
Trade and other payobles* - - - (8201 8204
IFRS 16 Lease habilties - - 172271 mazn
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITILS (F¥):
Foreign forward ond written options purchase and so'es contracts - Unhedged T [{F] {1.5}
Denvative finareal hal s - contracts for difference & equity options - (i8] - n
- [LLE - - .3}
“Prapayrments ol £84 6m are net mcluded as a hnancial asset
+$Other taxes including social security costs of £26 2m are net included o8 a financial hatility
104
Frnted on Steinbeis 100% Recveled and Carbon Cantuied throuah the W

FINANCIAL ASSETS - 26 APRIL 1038 Lewal | Livel 2 Gther Totul
femi femi ixmf {em]

AMORTISED CO$T:

Trade and other recewables - - - 3755 s

Cosh ond cush equvslents . . - 5340

Amount owed by related parties - - - 342

Fvoct:

Loty Tern Finonciol Assets [Equity nstruments} - designated B8 - - na

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Fv}

Fareign forward purchose and sales controcts - 704 - - 104

Denvative financiol assets - cantracts for difference - 27 - - 7
R A - - ™4

FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES - 26 APRIL 2030

AMORTISED COIT:

Non-current borrowirgs - - 15000t 300.0)

Trade and gther payobles* - - 1584.7H 1584.2)

IFRS 16 Lease - t624 14 (823}

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABIITIES (FYE

Foreign torward and wetten option purchase ond sales cantroct - Unhedged 198 - - (.8}

Genvatwve financiof fiabrities - contracts for diffarsnce & squity aptions - t34.4) - - 24}
- 4.2 - - a2

*Prepuyments of £54,5m gre nat Included os o knancial osset -

*Other taxds including social secunty costs of (17 &m ore nat mcluded as a financial hablity

b. Finuncial Assets And Liabilities Sensitivities By Currency

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars and Euros. The table below
Hiustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to a 5% increase

and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Eure / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,
assuming all other variables remain unchanged. The figures have been calculated by comparing the
fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts, assets and lichilities at the current exchange
rate to those if exchange rates moved as illustrated. The income staternent figures include the profit
effect of any relevant derivatives which are not in a designated cash flow hedge. The impact on US
Dollar and Eure related hedaing instruments is included in equity.

The analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions:

1. Existing assets and liabilities cre held as at the peried end;
2. No additional hedge contracts are taken out.

new Brtish woodiand dacross the UK
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ENITIVITY
usp R

GEPL

Othar uso R Tetal - 5% % %
FYan:
Teada and Other Racewobles 701 252 398 2351 (&) 13 (2.0} 20
Cath ond cash equivabents 514 A34 542 4510 125 a3 an 27

T n

Trada and Othar Payables (4890 (2451 1106 6) 1620.9) 1 [ 51 L8]
FT20:
Trade and Other Recaivables 571 %8 n2 0Ly any . [FE] 11
Cosh and cash squivalents 4613 175 552 540 0.0} o {281 1y
Trade und Other Fayobles - 14516 1259 11072} L% 12 141 51

There is no difference between fair value and carr ying value of the above financial instruments

{FY20: £nil).
Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for
determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technique:

» Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

+ Level 2: other techniques for which cll
inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either
directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3: techniques which use inputs which
have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value that are not based on observable
market data.

Contracts for difference are classified as Level
2 as the fair volue is calculated using quoted
prices for listed shares and commodities at
contract inception and the period end.

Fareign forward purchase and sales contracts
and options are classified as Level 2, the

Group enters into these derivative financial
instruments with various counterparties,
principally financial institutions with investment
grade credit ratings. Foreign exchange

fannard, contracks and options ore vwalued

using valuation techniques, which employ the
use of market observable inputs, The most
frequently applied valuation techniques include
forward pricing and swap models using present
value calculations. The models incorporate
various inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
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forward rates, and vyield curves of the respective
currencies.

Long-term financia! assets such as equity
instruments are classified as Level 1 as the fair
value is colculated using quoted prices.

The fair value of equity derivative agreements
are included within the derivative financial
assets balance of £20.1m and derivative
financiat liabilities balance of £1.7m. The
derivative financial assets and derivative
financial liabilities as at 25 April 2021 relate to
strategic investments held of between 0,04%
-and 8.41% of investee share capital.

Sold options are classified as Level 2 as the
fair value is caleulated using other techniques,
where inputs are observable.

Trade receivables / payables, amounts owed
from related parties, other receivables /
payables, cash and cosh equivalents, current /
non-current borrowings, and lease liaby
held at amortised cost,

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 25
April 2021 is the carrying value of each class of
asset in the Balance Sheet, except for omounts
owresd from relaked porties which s the gross
corrying amount of £65.2m.

«. Derivatives: Foreign Currency Forward
Contructs

(i) HEDGING

The maost significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations relates ta purchases
made in foreign currencies, principally the US
Dollar and online sales in Euros. The Group's
policy is to reduce substantially the risk
associated with foreign currency spot rates

by using forword fixed rate currency purchase
contracts, taking into account any foreign
currency cash flows. The Group does not

hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes, however if derivatives,
including both forwards and written options,
do not qualify for hedge accounting they are
accounted for as such and accordingly any gain
or Joss is recognised immediately in the income
statement. Management are of the view that
there is a substantive distinct business purpose
for entering into the optiens and a strategy for
managing the aptions independently of the’
forward contracts. The forward and options
contracts are therefore not viewed as cne
contract end hedge accounting for the forwards
is permitted.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at inception
of the hedge relationship and ot every reporting
period end through the assessment of the
hedged items and hedging instrument to
determine whether there is still an economic
relationship between the two.

The critical terms of the foreign currency
forwards entered into exactly match the terms
of the hedged item. As such the economic
relationship and hedge effectiveness are based
on the qualitative factors and the use of a
hypothetical dedivative where apprepricte.
Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the
critical terms of the forecast transaction no
ionger meet those of the hedging instrument, for
example if there was a change in the timing of
the forecast sales transactions from what was
initiclly estimated or if the volume of currency

in the hedged item was below expectations !
leoading te over-hedging. Differences can arise
when the initial value on the Hedging instrument
is not zero.

Prinled on Stenbeis 100° Recyched and Carbon Capluned throush the Woodland Trust. helping (0 create new Botish woodland acioss the UK

The hedged items and the hedging instrument
are denominated in the same currency and as a
result the hedging ratio is always one to one.

All derivative financial instruments used for
hedge accounting ore recognised y at fair
value ‘and reported subsequently at fair value

in the statement of financial position. To the
extent that the hedge is effective, changes in the
fair value of derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges are recognised
in other comprehensive income and included
within the cash flow hedge reserve in equity,
Any ineffectiveness in the hedge relationship is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

At the time the hedged item affects profit or
loss, any gain or loss previcusly recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and presented

as a reclassification odjustment within other
comprehensive income. If a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, any relcted

gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income is transferred immediately to profit

or loss. IF the hedging relaticnship ceases to
meet the effectiveness conditions then hedge
accounting is discontinued and the related gain
or loss is held in the equity reserve until the
farecost transaction occurs, ’
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The fair value of hedged contracts os ot 25 April 2021 was:

28 April 2021 8 April 2020
£m) {Em}

ASSETE
US Dallar puichases - GBR N 34
US Dollor purchases - EUR ) B 23 7
Eura scles w7 “s
TOTAL 14 LY
UASILITIES
us Dollar purchases - GBP 73
US Dollar purchases - EUR o1
TOTAL 14 -

The details of hedged forward foreign currency purchase contracts and cantracted forward rates
were as follows:

2% Apel 2011 M April 2020
(Em £m)
Cuerency (1.1 Currency - aay
uUS Dollar purchases 700 LYER]
Cantracted rotes USD / GBP 13618
US Dollar purchases 1200 839 1200 904
Controcted rates USD / EUR 11-13 132
ELre sales . {2400} 1242.80 (32001 4515 81
Contracted rates EUR / GBP 097 09%-109
The timing of the contracts is as follows:
Cueraney Hudging agninst Curmncy valus Timing Rates
USD/GBR USD inventory purchoses USD 720 bm FY2- F¥23 136141
USOYEUR USD nventory purchases YIS0 120 0m FY22,Fvid 120-t3
EUR/GBP Euro soles EUR 240 Orn . Fr23 099

Hedge ineffectiveness may arise where the critical terms of the forecast transaction no longer meet
those of the hedging instrument, for example if there was o change in the timing of the forecast sales
transactions from what was initially estimated or if the volume of currency in the hedged item was
below expectations leading to over-hedging.

35 Apeil 3021 26 april 2020

{Em) |Em]

Changa in discounted spat valus of outstending hedgrmg instrumants tince nception af the hedge 1145 (356}
Change in value of hedged stem used ta detarming hedge ineflectiveness 1283 159 9]
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2% Aprif 2021 16 April 2020
(Em) leml

Choage Change .o i Change
| ngeinthe
inthalaie  indhefale T L L e thefale

Us Oollors purchases - GBP 148 last B -
US Bellors purchoses - £UR 21 2t 47 6t
i n 9B 5

Euig stileg

At 25 April 2021 £242.4m of forward sales contracts and £607.0m of purchase contracts gualified
for hedae accounting and the gain on fair valuation of these contracts of £0.4m has therefore been
recognised in other comprehensive income. .

At 25 April 2021, £210.5m hedged purchase contracts had a maturity of grester than 12 months [FY20:
£nil of purchase controcts) and £242.4m of hedged sdies had u maturity of greater than 12 months
(FY20: £242 4m of sales contracts).

The movements through the Hedging reserve are:

vso/o8r  EUR/GEP  AUD/GRP  Usp/eus T0i0iHedge  Defured

moyemant Tax-
A3 AT 28 APRIL 201% 345 2.0 0.3 LA 56.3 (L]
Reragrised 98 - b6 154 - "4
Ineffectveness - o2 . - 02 - 02
Retlossilied in soles - |14l [LE] - )
Reclassihed 1 mventory £ rost of sales |345) - 25 - w14
Datorred lax - - - - - a8 s
AS AT 26 APRIL 2010 - 166 . ™ ns [ F ) mo
Recogmised (48] a2 - 21 od - od
Reclnssifiad in sales - 28) - - 28] -
Reclassified i invectory / cost of saley - - N 17 “ri - (12
Detarred Tax - - - - - ia e
A5 AT 25 APRIL 2031 169 o - 2 Lk L] ns
{ii} The sterling principal amounts of unhedged forward contracts and written currency option
contracts and contracted rates were as follows:
15 Apit 2021 16 apr 2010
iEm) : (em)
US Dollar purchases 403
Contracted rates USD/ EUR . 131
- Eurs sales. 1383 8} 163004
Controrted rates EUR/ GBF 0%y 0y%-109
Ewo purchases 1720
Coniractad rates EUR / GBP R . 16

The loss on fair value of the written options and swaps of £4.6m has been included within finance
income (FY20: gain £21.3m).

Joruss W UK
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At 25 April 2021, £nit of unhedged purchase contracts had a maturity at inception of greater than 12
months (FY20: £nil purchase contracts} and £335.4m of unhedged sales had o maturity ot inception
of greater than 12 months [FY20: £240.0m of sales contracts).

These contracts form part of the Treasury manogement octivities, which incorporates the risk
management strategy for areas that are not reliable encugh in timing and amount to qualify for
hedge accounting. This includes acquisitions, disposals of overseas subsidiaries, related working
capital requirements, dividends and loan repayments from overseas subsidiaries and purchase and
sale of overseas property. Written options carry additional risk as the exercise of the option lies with
the purchaser. The options involve the Group receiving a premium on inception in exchange for
accepting that risk and the outcome is that the bank may require the Group to sell Eures. However,
the Group is satisfied that the use of options as a Treasury monagement tool is apprepriate.

In FY21 there are nil short term swaps ot period end. FY20 value excludes short term swaps of USD/
GBP of USD 190.0m and EUR/GBP of EUR 75.0 and EUR/USD of EUR 80.0m which were required for
cash management purposes only,

d. Sensitivity Analysis

The Group's principal foreign currency exposures are to US Dollars and Euros. The toble below
illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group's reported profit and equity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the US Dollar / Sterling and Euro / Sterling exchange rates at the year-end date,
assuming ail ather variables remain unchanged. The figures have been calculated by comparing
the fair values of outstanding foreign currency contracts at the current exchange rate to those if
exchange rates moved ds illustrated. The income staternent figures inciude the profit effect of any
relevant derivatives which are not in @ designated cash flow hedge, The impact on US Dollar and
Eure related hedging instruments is included in equity.

Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity:

Positive figures represent an increase in profit or equity:

Income Equity
28 Apdil 26 Apdil 25 Apdl 4 Apd)
00 2020 2011 2020
{Em) (] (]
Interest rate increase of 0 5% 304 n (k1))
Interest rale decrease of D 5% . 30 41 10 a1

Long-term Investments Sensitivity Analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of price risk in relation to long term investments held by
the Group:

28 Apcil 2021

Equity

Kml

Share pice increase of 10% 258
Share pnce decrease ol 0% 125 8]

e. Liquidity Risk

The table below shows the maturity analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of
the Group's non derivative liabilities and foreign currency derivative financiol instruments:

nszime Stotament Bquity
5 Apel 2¢ Apeil 23 apsil 26 Apeil
nn 2039 o 2020
(Zm} I£ml I&m) iem)
Staring strengthens by 10%
s Daiar 81 146 74 134
Eurn 214 151 109 ar
5 watikens by 10% ’
US Daliar 99 13400 3
Euro 190 8) (134 N34}

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

The fallowing table illustrates the sensitivity of tha Group's reperted profit and equity to @ 0.5%
increase or decrease in interest rates, assuming all other variables were unchanged.

The analysis has been prepared using the following assumptions:

*  For floating rate assets and liobilities, the amount of asset or liabifity outstanding at the balance
sheet date is assumed to have been outstanding for the whole vear.

+  Fixed rate financial instruments that are carried at armortised cost are not subject to interest rate
risk for the purpose of this analysis. -
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Prinled on Stembeis 100% Raecycled and Carbon Caplured throuah the Woodland Hast, beipimnyg to cred

LesthanTysar  Ttalysars 2105 ywum OvarS yecn Total
. {em) {£m) &m) &mi {Em)
021 )
NON DERIVATIVE FINARCIAL LIAMUITIES
Bank Ipans and cverdralts - 059 - - 7059
Bunk Ingas ond overdrafts intarest - 99 - - »
Tratde and cther payables 6463 - - - (71
IFRS 16 Lease 966 my 1968 £709 11710
DERIVATIVE FINANCHAL IS TRUMENTS 't
Cash inflows 1396 51 (766.9] 180 s - o)
Cosh outflows s 8.5 8.5 - 12695
nss $50.5 wr LIT) 25646
1010
HON DERIVATIVE FINANGIAL LIABILITIES
Bonk leans and pverdrafts 9000 - - 1000
Bank foans and overdrafts nterast 32 B - 132
Trads and other payables 5025 - - - 4013
" IFRS 16 Laass habilies 1467 021 1987 3571 Tod 1
T
Cash inflows 11186 5) 14628] - - s
Cush outtions 12251 agag - - 1760.9
T8 14,0374 "l w1 2,2804

*Excludes contingent cosh Hows

nevw Botish woodland across the UK
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Capital Management

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
parent company, comprising issued share capital
{less treasury shares), share premium, retained
earnings and cash and borrowings.

It is the Grougp's policy to maintain a strong
capital bose so as to maintain investor, craditor
and market confidence and to sustain the
development of the business.

In respect of equity, the Board has decided that,
in order to maximise flexibility in the near term
with regards to a number of inorganic growth
opportunities under review, not to return any
cash by way of ¢ final dividend at this time.

The Board is committed to keeping this palicy
under review and ta looking to evaluate
methods of returning cash to sharebolders when
appropriate.

The objective of the Shore Scheme is to

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

encourage employee share ownership and to link
employee’s remuneration to the performance of
the Company. It is not designed as a means of
managing capital,

In vespect of cash and borrowings, the Board
regularly monitors the ratio of net debt to
Reported EBITDA (Pre-IFRS 16), the warking
capital requirements and forecasted cash flows,
however no minimum or maximum ratios are set.
The rotio for net debt to Reported EBITDA [pre
IFRS 16} is 0.5 {FY20: 0.7). The objective is to keep
this figure below 3.0 (FY20: 3.0).

Based on this analysis, the Board determines
the appropriate return to equity holders whilst
ensuring sufficient capital is retained within the
Group to meet its strategic objectives, including
but not limited to, acquisition oppartunities.

These capital management policies have
remained unchanged from the pricr year.

52 waeks snded 52 wasl dud

28 Apsil 102V 26 April 2020

itm) em

Trade poyables 2793 3028
Amounts owad ta reloted undertokings 25 a4
Other toxes including social secunty gosts 62 8
Other payobles 710 0813,
Accruats 2452 w2
sisy 5023

Included within other payables are amounts outstanding in respect of gift cards and vouchers of

£28.8m (FY20: £40.6m). .

The Directors censider that the carrying amount of trode and other payables approximates to their

fair value.
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31.  ACQUISITIONS

i.  On 22 August 2020, the Group acquired
the trade and assets of DW Sports for cash
consigerotion of £37.0m which is deemed
to be the fair value of the consideration,
The acquisition complements the Group’s
existing gym and fitness club portfolio and is

consistent with the Group's elevation strategy.

Goodwill represents the premium associated
with advantageous site locations, potential
growth epportunities offered by economies
of scale, and the assembled workforce. The
fair value adjustment to property, plant

and equipmaent relates to management's
assessment of the price that would be

paid for the acquired gssets in on orderly

transaction between market porticipants
at the acquisition date, The leases were
acquired under short-term licences and
therefore no right-of-use asset or lease
liability has been recognised on acguisition.

During the year the Group acquired the entire
share capital of Psyche Holdings Limited, the
entire share capital of GRMNT Limited, and
the trade ond assets of 18 Montrose {51%
owned] for consideration of £2.7m. These
acquisitions will provide increased product
offerings in the 'Premium Lifestyle’ division.
The fair value adjustment to property, plant
and equipment relates to the recognition of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

The asset ond liability values at acquisition are detailed below. We have reviewed the fair value of

the assets and Jiab
consideration pa

ies acquired. The following table summarises the fair values of

DW Sperts Othar

e Emi

Cush consideration 240} 7
OW Sparts Other

Book Value >uw._...=..._._.:..“ FarValua  Book Value -unrﬂ..-....... Fair Value

el it [ f&ml im £

Broperty, plont and squipment 11 (421l 30 n 15 14

Intangitle assets 29 29} . . - -

Inventories ) 05 w 52 07 5

Cuosh and rash eguivatents - o3 - a3

Borrowngs .o (141 - {14

Working capital ax - 03 oa - (0.8)

L ease oty - . i a1

Geodwd 17 37 23 13

Bargen purchuse - - - - i o

4 interests - - ¢ f1.0)

Net assets acyuved I (A0 4) No 44 nr ir

The bargain purchase of £3.1m from the Other acquisitions has been recognised within cost of sales

within the pericd. The Goodwill arising on all acqu

ns of £6.0m has been impaired to £nil as at

period end with the impairment being recognised in Exceptional [kems, see note 6.

N avtons
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Since the date of control, the following amounts have been included within the Group's Financial 33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Stat ts for th iod:
arements for the pert The Group had capital commitments of £87.1m as at 25 April 2021 (26 April 2020: £31.8m) relating to

Asquisitions DW Sperts Other Tetol warehouse development.
L] Iem) {Em) :
Revenus 129 3s 184 34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Operating [LassWprofit 5.3t 02 149
ILOSSH/PROFIT REFORE TAX ey 03 e The Group has taken advantage of the exemptions contained within |AS 24 - "Related Party

Disclosures” from the requirement to disclose transoctions between Group companies as these have

Had the acquisitions been included from the start of the period the following amounts would have been eliminated on consolidation.

been included within the Group's Financial Statements for the period:
The Group entered into the following matericl tronsactions with related parties:

Asqehitions OV Sperts Tther Tetel
£ {Em) £ 52 weeks ended 25 April 2021:
Revenus 0 a3 243
Oparating loss 42 [P {146} Trada Trade
Ratationship Solas  Purchates  undother  cnd ether
Lo33 REFORE TAX t {05 (ua) rcaivalibes 4
5 . : 3 : [Em] ) L m|
There were no contingent liabilities acquired as c result of the above transaction. femd fem}
RELATED PARTY
“ Four iHoldings) Limitad & subsicharies Assouiate 22 a1 %5 o1
32. CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES —
- Mash Haldings Limited . . 02 .
tompany
52 waske snded ST wasks anded
28 Apsil 2031 26 Aprid 2010 Mike Azhley Plc Diractor 11 - - -
€
e em) N M Design London Limitad Connactad . ai .
Frolit before taxation 85 1435 parsons
Net hnance cast/rcomal _ w2 Lk} MM Prop Consultoney Limited nSHMH“ - 25 - 5
Nel muestrment fincomalfcost 13601 156 L
Share of lossas of associuted undertakings - By Newcastle United Footbal Club Limited & St Jamas Haldmngs Lmiad{3) nnwﬂ“ﬂ o2 nsl a1 -
Fau value gain on step acquistion - (2041 -
OPERATING (LOSSUPROFIT o e Ranyers Retul Limiterd Associate - - - [
Deprecotion of proparty, plant and equiprmant 2965 o
Depreciotion op investmant propertiss 15 33 52 weeks ended 26 April 2020:
Gain on dispasal and modihcation/remeasurement of lzase liabilities e 57 :
Amortisation of intangibls asssts 7 ' Trade Trade
- —— Relatienibip Sales  Purchases  andothar  and sther
Irmpairment of tangible and intangible assets und MTvastment propuerives 3261 190 Fovemtont or
Profit on dispasal of property, plant and egqupment 157 {542 - em itm) (il
Profit on dispasal af intongible assets [75] z . RELATED PaRTY
Saw an bargain purchote EA) Four [Heldings) Limited & subsianes Associate 2 a5 18 24
CASH INFLEW N CAMITAL 5153 5155 -
arent
Unereqse) { daryense in recamahles. . [LLI¥3) ns Mash Holdings Lirmited nnacﬂy . B nz
Pecrease / increaset in inventaries 593 nao8) Mike Ashiey " Ple Diractor 20 - -
increaze in poyobles ) 818
3 115 1 Mewcastia United Foatboll Club Limited & St Jarmes H Cannected 07 10 01 20
Increass / tdecrease) in provisions 254 t pesans . |
CASH INFLOWS FROM TIVIRES L) 53 Rangers Retoll Limuted Associate - - - 03

[0} The outstanding halance with Four [Holdings] Limited reflacts the 1g related to Agenl Pravocuteur Monugement consider that the undarlying
results of Four [Holdnost Limited supports the recoverabihty of the racsivables Luluncu The resuits of Fuur (Holdings) Limited are nat matenal on
the basis of net ossets and profit belose tox, subsequently detated disclosares huva not basn presanted under [FRS 12

{2 wse ol the Company et and hulcoptar ara ghurged ak commaerciol rotes

i3 The soles relote tg inventory ond purchases include the reversal of the FY20 advertising charge
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An agreement has been entered into with
Double Take Limited, a company owned by
Mash Holdings Limited in which Matilda Ashley,
Mike Ashley’s daughter, is a director. Under

the agreement, Double Take Limited licenses
the Group the exclusive rights to the cosmetic
brand SPORT FX. During the pericd a review
has been undertaken and no royalties or other
fees are expected to be payable to Double Take
Limited for these rights until at least Septembear
2021, the fee arrangement will continue to be
reviewed on an ongoing basis, no provision is
required in the financial statements, It should
be noted that the Group [rather than Double
Take Limited) owns the rights to SPORT FX for
clothing, footwear and sports equipment.

N M Design Londen Limited a company in
which Nicolas Murray, Michael Murray's mother,
is a director, perform design work for the Group
in relation to some of the Group's sites.

A provision was made in FY20 for £2.0m
payable to Newcastle United Football Club, this
was reversed in FY21.

The trade and other receivables belance with
Four {Holdings) Limited includes an unsecured
loan balance of £60.0m {gross of amounts

recognised in respect of loss aflowance)

which attracts interest ot a rate of 3% within
current assets, This has been accounted for
at amertised cost in accordance with IFRS 9.
The carrying value has been determined by
assessing the recoverability of the receivable
balance, discounted at an appropriate market
rate of interest. £4.7m was recognised in the
year in respect of doubtful debts. Further
disclosure can be found in note 22

The soles amount in relation to Four {Holdings}
Limited relates to the interest charge on the
lean and the purchases relate to the purchase
of clothing products.

At the period end the Group does not have
significant influence over but holds greater than
20% of the voting rights of Studio Retail Group
plc and Mulberry Group ple. Studio Retail Group
plc hove disclosed transactions with the Group
as a related party within their most recent
Financicl Statements. Transactions between
Studio Retail Group plc and the Group related
to normal commercial trading arrangements
and are not considered material te the results
of the Greup. The latest equity amounts and
results are shown below:

Mulberty Group ple  Studie Retail Group ple

Poriod snded 27 March Perind anded 16 March

202 01
Share Capital 30 487
Share Preoium 122
Other Reserves 0?7 oy
etnined earnings 790 353
Total eguity 24 49
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 46 190

The Group does not consider it hos the power to poricipote in the finoncicl ond operating policy
decisions of the entities and so management do not consider the Group to be dble to exert

significant influence over these en
and IAS 24 Reloted Party Disclosures.
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fod on Stembefs T00% Recyoien ang Sarbon St e

s as per IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Key Manngement, Executive And Non-executive Director Compensation

25 Apail 2021 24 AR 3D

(em) ttm}

sebanes ang shori-term benefits 13 is
Shors-scheme payments . T
Otner poyments . 43
13 54

TOTAL

Key management personnel are considered to
be the directors and members of management
wha play a key part in the leng term strategy
and operations of the Group.

MM Prop Consultancy Limited, o company
owned and controfle by Michae! Murray, whe
is @ member of key management persennel
as per IAS 24, continues to provide property
consuitancy services to the Group. MM Prop
Consultancy Limited is prirnarily tasked with

. finding and negetiating the acquisition of new

sites i the UK, Europe and Rest of the World for
both our larger format stores and our combined
retail and gym units but it also provides advice
to the Company's in-house property team in
relation to existing sites in the UK, Europe and
Rest of the World.

In the year all properties are assessed and
those that are considered by the Group's
independent non-executive directors to have
completed development and be eligible for
review at the year-end ore assessed and if
required valued by an independent valuer
who confirms the value created by MM Prop
Consultancy Limited. The Group's independent
non-executive directors then review and agree
the value created and have full discretion to
approve & payment to MM Prop Consultancy
Limited of up to 25% of the value creoted.
There is a current pipefine of properties that
may be eligible to be assessed both positively
and negatively by the Group's Non-executive
directors in future years.

crarhined ceorosg e L

In the current year £2.5m has been accrued
based on 25% of the value created on two
properties where the gain has crystallised
through contract exchange or completion

of sale (FY20 - £nil provided and £nil paid,
MM Prop Consultancy Limited was last paid
in relation to FY19). This is payable to MM
Prop Consuitancy Limited and agreed by the
independent Non-Executive Directors.

During the periad the Group entered into on
agreement with M.P.M Elevation Limited, a
company owned and controlled by Michoel
Murray in relotion to elevation strateqy services.
M.PM Elevation Limited will be paid an annual
fee of £0.1m in relation to the provision of the
elevation strategy services [FY20: Enil).
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35. ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

The Group is controlled by Mike Ashley through
his 100% shareholding in Mash Beta Limited anc
Mash Heldings Limited, which own 303,507,460
{58.44% of the issued ordinary share capital

of the Company} and 26,492,540 (5.10% of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company)
ordinary shares respectively at the period

end. MASH Holdings Limited is the smallest

and largest company to consclidate these
accounts. MASH Holdings Limited is registered in
England and Wales and a copy of their financicl
statements can be obtained from Companies
House, Crown Way, Cardiff, CF14 3UZ.

36. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 4 May 2021 the Group commenced a share
buyback programme with the aggregate
purchase price of all shares acquired under the
programme to be no greater than £60m and the
maximum number of shares to be purchased
of t10m ordinary shares with a nominal value of
10p each. The purpose of the programme was
to reduce the share capital of the Company.
3,895,835 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £22,429,985 were acquired

" through this programme. |

On 21 June 2021 the Group commenced an:
irrevocable non-discretionary share buyback
programme to purchase the Group's shares
during the closed period which commenced 21
June 2021 and ends on the day of reporting full
year FY21 results. The aggregate purchase price
of all shares acquired under the programme
were no greater than E60m and the maximum
number of shares to be purchased were 10m
ordinary shares with a nominal value of 10p
each. The purpose of the programme was to
reduce the share capital of the Cornpany. In total
to date 2,024,127 ordinary shares of 10p each for
consideration of £11,937,385 have been acquired
through this pregramme.

m

The Board is now in discussions with regards

to trensitioning the CEO role from Mike Ashley
to Michael Murray over the course of FY22.

It is currently proposed that Michael Murray

witl assume the role of CEQ on 1 May 2022,

A reward and remuneration package is now
urler consideration on the assumption Michael
Murray will assume the CEO role. Any reward
and remuneration package will be subject to any
requisite shareholder approval.

The Group's elevation strategy is transforming
the business and receiving positive feedback
from consumers and our brand partners,
especially on projacts such as the new Oxford
Street Sports Direct which opened in June 2021.

The Board consider it oppropriate that Michael
leads us forward on this increasingly successful
elevation journey,

Should Michael Murray assume the CEO role,
Mike Ashtey would step down from the CEQ role
gt the same time but would remaén on the Board
as an executive director,

Printed on Stembeis 100% Recycled and Carbon Capturad through the Woodland Trust. helping to create new Botish woadland across the UK
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37.  SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

NAME REGISTERED OFFICE COMPANY PERCENTAGE OF 1S5UED SHARE
ADDRE3S NUMBER CAMTAL HELD
18 Montrose Retail Limned Shirabroax” 1577636 15
Fourth Floar Toranto Square
5 Paintz Limited {in hauid! Torenta Strest Lesds LS12HJ on 950214 ne
23 Apnil 2020
Activator Bronas Limited Shirebrack ' 5344658 100
Actwatar Products Limited Shirabrack 4204611 100
Cogency Global Ing, B50 New
Active Apporal New Corp Burton Road Suite 201 Daver 327018 100
Delaware 19904; USA
Alpha Develapments Stockpart Ltd Shirebrock” 12667564 0o
2th Flacr, Menoro Synahony
o 5, Jolon Semangat (Jalen
Professor Khan Kay Kim] .
2971,
AP Brands Hoidings Lid elcoyen U5, 46300 86200 971-A w00
Petolmg Joya. Setongor Durul
ER=an, Malaysid
Cinch's House, Lord Street, ’
Baitatix Associates Limitad Douglas. Isle af Man, IM39 1RZ, menc 00
Ishe of Mon
inchis Heuse, Lard Street,
Bellatrix Civerseas Limited Daughas, isle of Man, IM39 1RZ, 128827C 00
Isle of Man
Ciinch's House, Lord Street,
Bellatrx Unlimited Dovalas, Iste of Man, M5 1RZ, Mer0C wo
Ishe of Man
Blua Square Sal Shuebroai 1852892 00
B Tha Corporohian Trust Company,
Corparahian Trust Center, 1209
Bob's Stores USA LLC Grungs Sireet, Wilminigton, New: £38085 0
Castle County DE 19601,
United States
] Leopalostraat, nr 76, 2600 995,
Brands & Fashion NV Mechelen, Belgum 0477-995-212 994
Brands 001 Limuted Shirabrook: 5347540 100
Brands Afnco Linited Shirebrook™ 6816765 o
Brands Holdings Limutad” Shirebrook 1 4087435 100
Brands Holdings Sponsorship Limiced Shurghraok - 0758 0o
Brands Inc Limead Shiretrack 35850y 00
Brasher Leisure Lirted Shirebrodi’ 999421 00
BSL Internabional Limited Shirebrook! 2800425 . 100
via Centrol da Miheiras no 121,
. 4475-334, Frguasiu de Mithenios,
Cafice - de Art SA 5037 00
afice - Comercio de Atigos de Desportos oncelho b Maig, Porte, 51804
Portugal
Carmpn Linutad Shirebrool 5358627 00
CCPuerto Veneein, lacak 84,
Cardingt investments 5| Traw Jardines Reales, 7, 50021 BBBS&2766 00
Zorageza, Span
Carlton Shuttfacacks Shirebrook " 450582 100
Carlton Sports Company Limited Shirsbrook " AEI6EE 0o
" €CPuene Veneca, tocal Be.
Catnnong investments S L Trav Jordines Reales, 7. 50021 8542681 00

Zaragora, Spoin

m2

Prnted on Steinbeis 100%% Recycled and £

-

sarbon Caplurad throunn the Woodland Trast, nelpin

Farc Industrie), Avenue Ernest,

4 1
CPs IPsA Solway 29 MED Saintes, Belglen 06461077 00
Cira Cittero Bronds Limited Shirebrook N630676 100
Cormmunity Bug Limited . Shirahrook £260240 100
Crimwnal Clothing Linwtad Shirsbrook' 4184750 100
Martin Housa, 184 Ingram Street,
Cruise Clotning Limited Glasgow, 5cotiond, G1 1DN 5C387991 1o
C CPuerto Veneca, locat 84,
Curling Investments 5 | Traw Jorciines Raclas, 7. 50021 BAK415365 100
Zarageza, Spain )
Dawid Geoflrey & Assaciates (UK) Limiter Shirgbrgok B70530 100
Design Source Supply Limited Shirebrook 9636568 100
Eunk Digital Haldings Limited Shirebrook ' Ma3G L]
Dink Irgitol Limited Shirebrogk ' 1072685 30
Dirert Fishirg Lymeted Shirebrack” B201469 100
Direct Gelf IP Limted SHirebrook ' 91086 0o
Direct Golf Retall Limited Shirebrook SB25883 100
Leopaldstraat nr 79, 2800
el N 43 0
Bonnay Internataval Ny Mechelen, Balgim 38392220
Unit 19038 & 1905. Exchonge
Tower, 33 Wang Chia Road,
Emstehunce Limited Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, 174348 100
N Hong Kong
Fust Flogs La Chinsse Chambers
Epoch Froperlies Litrted St Hehier JE2 AUE Jerssy 14283 10
Etail Services Lirmited Shirabrook ' 5446997 100
Evars Cyeles Brands Lunited Shirebroak’ 634915 an
Evons Cycles Limited Shirebrock” 577650 00
Evans Cycles Propeny bimited Shirehrook!™ 11834935 w0
Cuurlost Australia Litad Shirebiook’ 6103912 100
. Everiost 42 West 35th 5t Jrd
Everlost Sports International Ine Corp Flaor New York, New York, 10018, 132811380 100
United States
Corporatian Service Company
B0 State Streer, Albany,
Evesiosl Sports Mig Camp New York, 122207-2543, 1311804772 100
United Stotes
Corporation Serace Company
Evatlost Werld Being Headquorters Cotporation O State Street, Albary, New 13B047/3 0o
York, 122207-2543, Unatad Stataes
The Corporation Trust Compony
Corporetion Trust Center, 1209
Evarlast Worldwide nc Orange Street, Wilmingtan, New 13367206 wan
. Castle County DE 19801
United States
Exsports Lmited Shirabrook™ JTIF040 100
Femger And Blockbum Limed Shirebiook™ 633594 160
FG IAF Holdings) Lirmited Shirebrook” 13281982 100
FG USA Trode Group Limited Shirebrock, 13216390 Wb
C/0 Dulf & Prelps Ltd
tha Chancery 58 Sprng
Fueld & Trek [UK] Lid iin liquidatian] Gardens, Monchsster, Greater 5627577 00
#anchester, M2 1EW
. Unired Kingdom
Fuatreip Lmited Shwabrook £8I6684 00

gt ilard across the UK
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Forever Medio Limited

Shrebrook" 8247185 100

Forever Sports Litnited Shwebrook: 948581 100

Frasers Group (European Haldings) Limited Shrebrogk’ 12903845 100

Frasers Group Financiol Services Limited Shrabrock 191369 100

Frasers Group Layalty Serecey Lirmited Shirebiraci' 13340837 100

Frasshigld Limited Sturabrook: 6330786 00

Game AR Limited HBosingstoke - 10142852 0o

Game Belang Limited Shirabrook 12794471 100

Garma Digital Holdings Linited Hasingstoka 7853832 100

Garae Digital Limited Basingstoke 9040213 100

Gunna Digital Solutions Lmitad Bosngstoke © 9476209 00

Gama Esports and Events Limited Bas agstoke 9454730 00

Game Ratail Lirmitad Bas ngstoke - 837246 100

Game Spain Haldings Limited Bos ngstoke * 10R46702 00

Gamae Spain Invastmants Limited Bas ngstoks 10B63B8) 160
L/ Vagio 7 - 9, Parcebas 12 - 13,

Game Stores tbena 5LU Fozuelo da Alorcon, Madnd, 8209751 0o
Spain

Getert IP Lirited Shrebrook: 8575185 00

Galert Limitad S rebrook - 8576204 00
) Unt 19038 & 1905, Exchange
Tower, 13 Wang Cuu Rood,

" 1l

Glabol Apporal [HK) Limited Kowloon By, Kerktoon 1330162 00
Hong Kong

Golddigga Brands Limited Shirebrook™ 4636173 100
C.C.Puerto Yenecia, local 84,

Gotay nvestmants S L Trov, Jardines Reales. 7 50071 888542709 100
Zarngorn, Spam

Groduate Clothing Limited Shirehrook' 2511038 91

GRMNT Ltd Shrebraok!" 44039 00
Bert Haanstrakade 2, 1087DN,

GT-Linas BY Amsterdam, Netherlads 17eze 100

Gul IP Limitad shreprack' BoizaTy 100

Gul Watarsports Limited Shirebrook 7589716 00
PO Box BTISEX, Sth Finor Lusluy

Heatans [N 1] Limited Buldings, B1-65 Founta n Streat, NiC35599 100
Belfost, Norther 1 Iraland
Heaton House, 104 Busingss

Hentons Stores Limitad Park, Whitestown, Taflaght, 509575 100
Dublin, Imland, D24E932,
Heaton House, IDA Jusiness

Heatons Unlimited Corpany Park, Wihitestown, Tatioght, N9 100
Db, Ireland, D24E932,

Haoven or Hell Limited Shirehrook” 5899262 100
Eskaolstorpsvagen 7. 266 96,

556510-818 L

HK Sports & Golf Akuebolag Bostad, Sweden £ (]
Heaton House, 1A Businass

HOF Iraland Staras Lunited Park, Whitestown, “allaght, 626384 100
Dublin, Ireland, D24E932

Hok Tuna JP Limited Shir sbrook' 6536792 00

Housa of Frasar Brands Limtad Shirabrook! 10687367 w00

House of Frasar Linuted . Shirabraok:” 10686481 00

13
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Int#rnatonal Brand Monagement Limitad™ Shirebroak' 5142123 160
towesting Business Limited Shirsbroak™ 1760314 100
Jarh VAL (1P} Linntsd Shirabrook™ N775495 100
Jach Waite Property Luvited Shirabraok! 1775643 100
Heaton Housa, IDA Business
Jork Wibly Reterl {Irelond | Limited Park, Whitastown. Tallaght, £56208 100
Dublin, treland, DIAES3Z,
Jack Wills Ruted Limitac Shirebrook" 11634810 00
James Lillywhites Limited Shirebrook! 118840 00
Kongol Holdings Limied shirebrook” 2317736 00
Kangol Lited Shirabrook! 3343793 100
Kangol Trustees Limted Shirebrack” 1505512 100
Amunaka Kudan Building 6/F,
Karnmor internatinul Limited 11417 Kudankite, Chiyodo-ku HOU-1-013128 95
Tokyo, 102-0023, Japon
Karrimor Limitad Shirebrook” 5715974 100
Wensingtan Heolth Cluhs Limited Shiretoo) 6021489 100
KeoGa 1P Limted Surabrock” 12402087 00
La Joll {UK) Limibed Sturebrooks 5737550 100
Laneshift Limitad Shirebrogk" 6146743 10
ywhites Limited . Shirebrack " 290973 100
Litesorna Spartswear Limited . Stirebrook! 207867 100
Lonvdals Australia Limited Sturebrozk® 7665885 00
Lomdale Boxng Limited Sturebrack" 3912303 100
Lonsdule Sports Limitad Sturebrook 4430781 100
Lovell Sports {Holckngs] Limited Sturabrank” 9604995 100
Lowell Sports Limited Shirsbrook® 4184358 100
Lowells 5P Limitsd Shirahraok™ 07509 00
Mastars Holders Lintsd " 8781718 160
adtown Ltd " 9467997 160
The Carpuration Trust Company,
Corparabian Trust Center, 1209
$31s5rpp1 Manufocturing LLC Orange Street, Wilmmngtan, New 3470413 160
Castle County DE 19801
Urited Stotes
The Carporation Trust Company,
Carparation Trust Center, 1209 .
Mountain Sports LLE Cronge Streat, Witmington, New 6286224 100
Costle Caunty DE 19807,
Unriad States
The Carparation Trust Company,
Corparption Trust Genler, 1209
Mountain $parls USA LLC Crange Straet, Wilrmngton, New zazsy wo
Castle Caunty DE 19HO1,
"omitiet Sk
Muddylox IF Limstad Shirabrook' 10746764 w00
Muddytox Limited Shirehrook 4187350 0o
Nervsca (P Lirm Shirebrook" 4836778 0o
o Fear frand Limitad Shirebrook! 5568043 00
Na Feor ntermotional Limited Shirehrook ! 532482 0o
o Fear LISA Limited Shirgbrook - 7712470 00
OFI-NI Limited Shirebrook! 11635034 wo

and across the UK
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Otyrnpus Ventures Limited Shirebrook" 3945752 00 Sth Fleoy, Lesley Buldings,
0! [Baltymenn) Lited 6465 Fountoin Street, Balfost, NI£53829 100
P W P Sperthasa Limited Shirebiook: 1932891 100 Northern iretand, BT SEX
Padila Sport Limited Shiebronk! 6336690 100 ST tBoigor) Lirmited Shi-ebraok 5529705 100
Acaderty Heuse, 36 Poland SO {Bareaw m Farriess) Lmitad Shirebrack' 7E8Ns74 100
POL Callection Sernces Limited Streat, London, WIF 7LU, 9918495 wo
Unued Kingdom sDI [Balfost] Linited Slurebrook PE724N 100
Propeller [UK.] Limitad Shicebraok 2770207 00 SDI [Berwickl Uimited Shirebronk ™ 2139957 . 100 .
Psyche Holdings Limited Shurebrogk: 03438465 100 SO (Babws-y-Coed] Limited Shrebiook’ 6816673 00
Psyche iimted Slursbraak” CZB44071 100 50! {Birkenhead) Limited Shiebrook’ 7845198 s
Puffa 1P Limited Shirubaok o9wnza 00 501 [Bishop Aucklurd) Lmted . Shirabrook 3004246 100
Gueensherry Bonng 1P Limitad Shiebrook: 7979363 100 SO (Brands 1} Lirmted Shurebrack * 1795958 100
Gueensharry Rules Limited Shirebronk” £723660 a0 S0 tBrands 7] Limvted Shwebeaok ! 12295564 100
. C.C Pukrta Vensria, local 84 ] 5D {Brands 3 Limied Shrebraok' 12999467 100
Guantin Investments s | Tiav Jatdines Reales, 7. 50021 858542711 100
Zarogom, Spoin SO (Brands 4 Limited Shirebrosk™! 12299515 100
Guickreply Lirmted Shirebragk” . 5804737 100 E14] “.m:nmga:i Lirbed e Shirebrook’! 7852061 00
Republic I Limited Shirebraak™ 5635015 00 501 {Brghtcn} Limtad Shirebrook’ 12579780 199 .
Republic <om Retall Limited Shirobrank: apeags7 100 S0 [Brocton] Lirmitad Shirebroak © 9127300 100
Rhapsody Investments {Ewropa) SA I Cote a_,fmﬂw._ﬂmwm ) a7 60x woa SU1 (Brook LA Limited Shirebradk 9126830 190
SD1 (Brook ROW) Limied 7136808 100
Rofinsons Cauntry Leisure Linited Shirabrook® 1204722 wo S0 {Brok UK] L raok: 93407179 100
568 Brands Limned Shrretwaol ' 5635585 100 <D Burtont Limated sharebraoh 249551 0o
: 5C Sponts {SG) PTE LTD REPLIILE PLAIA SNGAPORE 196203096M 04 SDI(Carddf Flannzk) Linuied Shrebreok” 1o7iss 0
- d4se9 501{Corelff QS) Lirwted Shirebtcole 12578045 100 B -
5D [Retan] Co10) Lirted Shirebrak’ 11689119 0o 01{Corlisle} Limitad Shirebrook’ 7851959 100
5D IRetall Co 1| Limited Sinrebraak: 12258852 100 5D Chatham) Lintet: Shirebroak © 8836670 100
SO {Retail €5 12) Linyted Shuehroak' 12298757 100 SDE(Cheshunt 2) Lim Shirebraoke” ntIsHT 00
SDIRetal Co 13 Linted Shirebrank: Ja298767 e SDUCheshunth Lnniced Shrebraolc’ 1775599 100
5D {Retal Co o} Limirert Shirebroc 11635011 0o 501 (Chma) Srikne Lmited! Ghnrabrook 10246762 100
SD {Ratarl Co 7} Limitad Shiabrook ! NEA778 100 SO [Clgeton) Limited Shrebronk 2452078 100
SD (Retall Co 8] Limited Shirebrook: 168736 100 Sth Flaor, Lustey Suithigs,
S0 {Ratal Ca % Limted Sturshrook 1685077 00 SOUClonmut] Limited e o Nigs3359 e
$D Equestrion Limited Shirebrook BAITBD 100 SO 1Catehastert Lmted P [o— 0
5D Quidoar IP Limited - Shiebrook: 8560252 100 0 (Corby) Lo Sharabrook [ 0
SD Qutdoor Limited Shirebrook 8560260 100 D1 {Crork] Liled Shorebrook w5763 0o
SDB2SA muﬂ.ﬂ ﬁ%"mwmnwhﬁun__mﬁnﬂ | 0848964358 ) S {Covantey) Limited Shiebrook! 9680124 100
SO {Propea 1351 Lnited Shirebtook 1227937 100 50! 1Darhngrant emter Shrelwraok’ 10318193 0
S 15P peldings] Limited Shuebrosk 10682050 00 SO (Derbyt Lented Sturabrook” oo 100
SOt iaterdean 2 Lirmted Shirebrack 1257931 0o SOI{0ary] Lumted m..%wﬂﬂ”.ﬂw“:”um.,w.hcm_ﬁ_‘“m_,.. NI6S3340 0
SDI {Aberdeent Limited Shirebrogk 8512597 100 Nerthern ireland. BT 5EX
S0 | Abarwystwyth] Limied Shwabroak 1789996 10y 5D [Doncaster) Limiked Shirebraok 9HBR67O0 100 ' :
SDI[Acgeo S Lrmted Shirebrook ' 10162904 00 8D [Dundee) Limited Shirebrook ' 9212004 100 .
SO (Aintree} Lavitad Shirehrank: 3357462 100 SO {Dunterminef Lirmited Shirebrook * 2483679 160 ,
SD1{aghierd) Limited Shirebrook” TB4BAE0 . 00 SO (East Homj Lrhited Shirebrook 9EI70 100 |
SDIlAshingten) Limited Shirabrack” 784523 100 SO {East Kilbrida) Limved Shwebrook ! £E56388 100
501{ayr) Limited Shirebraak " 5528267 10g S0 [Ednburgh) Limited Shirghroak 10100990 00
SDI (Enfreld} Lrmatud Shirebrook 10CES709 00
14

| ‘ .

Printed on Steinbais 100% Recycled and Carbon Capt throues the Heny Byt veoodiand noross tha UK
Y B




Prir

,

1

FRASERS GROUF PLC - ANNUAL REPORT - 2021

FR

ASERS GROULP

SDI (Fulhami Limited Shirabrooki! 7852007 100 50! [Newton Abbot] Limited Shirebrook 616656 100
SD4 (Gainsboraugh] Limited Shirebrook'" 6338907 00 S0 NFSK] Luntad ° Shirebroak! 10919102 190
SD (Galershlets) Limited Shicabrook” 7852091 100 SOI fNortharmpton] Lirmited Shirabrook 7852272 100
501 {Glasgow Fort) Limited Shicebronk 9661504 W0 DI Northwich] Limitag Shirebrogk't 5656295 100
50| (Glasgow Frasars] Limiled Shlrebrook N5N596 00 501 {Nottingham) Limired Shirebrogk” 10100609 100
SDI (Glasgow Ingram Streat) Limited Shirebrook'! 9975519 100 SDI {Nunsatan] Limvted Shirsbroak" 1857245 100
S0 (Gloucester) Limted Shirebrook! 7852067 100 50! {Qswestry] Limited Shirebrogk™ ¥852363 100
SDI [Great Yarmaouth] Limited Shirabraok! 11732687 100 SDI {Oxlard-Strast HOF) Limited Shirebroak™ 7978784 100
S0 {Hanley) Limited Shirwbiroak: 1320017 100 SO {Chlard Street) Lrmted Shrebrook™ 0046080 , 100
S0 (Hostings) Limited Shirebraok 8875893 100 SDI {Penrance] Limited rebroak” 7852297 100
SO [Hereford) Limitad Shirebiooke* 9888642 100 SDI {Pataries] Limitad rebrock 7852401 100
SDI [Hofco) Limited Shire braok BHIFEO 100 SDI {Plymouth Flanneds) Lirmited Shirabrock' 9127387 . 100
501 (HoH Holdings) |imited Shirebrack 10161592 100 S0 Plymouth) Limuted Shirebraok” 9470468 100
501 iHounslow] Limited Shirebraok: 10086218 1o SUI {Portsmauth) Limited Shirebrach” 12579254 100
SO {Hull) Linitad Shirebrank F6I8564 100 50! (Praston] Limited Shirebrack’ 10915193 100
SD fipswach 2) Limited Shirebrook 12578544 100 5DI [Propea 100) Limuted Shirabrock 1732700 100
5Dl {ipswich] Linted Shirebraok’ 978841 100 S0 (Propea 101) Limited Shirebrack’ 1773466 00
SDI fist of Man) Lumiked Shirebrook ™ 9901745 o0 5Dt [Propen 107) Limted Shirabrack" 175629 00
SDI{Jersey Holding] Limited $hirabraok " 10172028 100 5D [Propea 105] Linited Shirebrooi” MT75597 100
SB1 K Lynnl Limitad Shirebrcok’ 10073076 00 SDI (Propea 102) Lirmted Sturebiool! nHsI06 100
S0HKeighlay] Limitad slursbrook ™ 760239 100 SDI [Prapca 11 Lirmted Shirebrack' 1775722 100
SDI {Kendal] Lirited Shirebrook" 6338918 100 5D Propeo 121 Limitad Shirebrook’ 2121160 0o
$D1 fKentish Town) Limited Shirebrask 9901702 00 DI [Propco 4] Lirwted Sturebiach’ 12298708 W00
$Di IKidderrminster) Limited - Shitebrook™ 3203731 100 SDI [Propco 15) Limited Shirehiaok” 2100052 100
SO {Kimarnack) Limited Shuehrook™ 7853431 00 SDI [Propea 116] Lumited Shirebrank” 12332460 00
5Dl {Kingstoa) Limited Shirearack 10515209 00 50| [Propeo N7 Limited rebrook’ 12332456 00
501 {Krkealdy) Limited Shire ook 7852097 100 501 [Propco 18) Limitad Shirshrook” 12332859 00
SDI {Laads) Limitsd Shire ook’ 92935!5 100 $01 {Propsa ng) Limited Shirehrook! 12332862 Wi
5DI {Lercester} Limited Shire srock' 5127170 00 SD| {Propco 125] Limited Shirzbrook™ 12577378 0o
Sl {Liverpool] Limitad Shiraorock SEBATI4 100 SDI {Prapca 131} Lanited Shurebrook 137266 100
SO! {Lowastah} Limited 7857165 100 SO {Propco 133] Limited Shirabrook™ 8972499 00
5D (L5I. Holdings) Limibesj 61824 100 SO {Propoo 134) Limited Shirabrook™ 9625637 fuli}
SDI [Manchaster Chaatluam Hill] Limited Shirslrack™ 10100869 100 SD1 Progco 137) Limited Shirabrook ' 122730 100
SDI [Manhchaster Denton) Limited Sturabrock 5127295 WY 5Dt {Propco 351 Limited Shirabrook™ - 1500282 100
SDI [Mutkat Road} Litvted Siwrubrogk 10799247 100G S0t {Prapco 36] Limited Shirebrogk" 1523336 00
SO (Middlesbrough) Limited Shirabrook! 0B 100 SP (Propcg 371 Lrmited Shirabrook™ 11573143 100
501 {Nassau Straat) Limited Shurebrook 1227984 100 SO {Propco 34) Limvked Shirabroak' 1523424 1090
S0I {Neatht Limitad Shirabrook! ! 7857548 00 SDI {Propco 39] Lrrmited Shirebroak! 115323440 T 100
SDI {Newark] Limited Shirabrook™ 7853470 00 5D (Propeo 40) Limvted Shirebrook” 11523489 150
50| (Newcastla Limutad Shirabrook" 9127286 00 SDI {Propeo A1) Limited Shirabrook:* 423621 160
" 50! (Newport 10W) Lid Shirabrook" 12578544 100 SO {Propco 42) Limited Shirebroak” LLETAELY 109
$DI (Newport} Limited Shirebrook: 8679118 we 5D {Prapeo 43) Limited Shirebrook" 11523609 109
SDI [Newquay] Limited Shirabroak 10DA9B00 100 5D4 (Propco 44) Limitad Shirbroak” 11523608 100
5th Floar. Lesley Bur dings, St (Propeo 48] Limited Shirabreak: 11523654 100

SDHNewry) Limited £1-65 Fauntuin Strest, Selfast, NI651158 00
Northern ireland, 871 SEX DI (Prapeo 46+ Limited Shirabrook' 11523748 100

15
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5D {Propac 47] Liruted Shirepronk [EELEr) 00 5D (Ramsgate] Limited Shuraiaak * 7852250 100
" - 4th Flaar Tarento Square, S01iReadn gt Limited Shwrebrock! 10422164 100
mU:_ [Fropco 48] Lrmited [in hquidation) Toronta Straet, Leeds, LS4 2H. . 1523759 w00
SOl {Redearl Lirvted Shicabraok’ 2731352 100
501 {Propcto 45) Lmited Shretirack ' 1526115 100
SDI [Ralle S5 Limted Shirebrog 1852669 100
$DI {Propto 501 Limited Shrebrook 526182 100
SO [Romford Lirted Shirsbrook™ 07547 wo
501 [Progco 51 Limited Shirabrook! 1827237 Ly
SDI [Salisburyl L1 Shirabrook" 10107572 - %0
501 {Prapta 52j Lirmited Shirebrook" 11526972 06
5DF (Scarboroughl Limited Shirshroou' 5328463 100
S5 {Prapeo 54) Limited Shirebrook” 1527189 100
g SOl {Scunfhorpr Potishes Centre) Limiteg’ Shwebvook” 1730442 100
SDI {frapee 55 Limited Shiretirack " 11527303 100
SO1{Seuntharpe)] Limited Shirabrook! 7852055 100
SDI [Propeo 561 Limited Strretcaak 11527382 w00
S01 8D {Propes 136} Limited Shirabrock’ 9888635 100
501 [Propea 57) Limited Shirebraok " 1527500 wa N
501 [Southampton 2] Limited: ' Shirebronk! 3665889 100
SDH [Propea 581 Limited Shirebrook 1527596 100 .
SOt ($outhampton) Limitad Shireiook' 512400 0o
4th Figar Toranto Square; :
5Dt [Praaco 59) Limited Taranta Street, Leeds, L1 2HJ nS27584 10 SOI (Southport) Limited Shirehrook " 9BBABOG 00 f
501 [Propeo 60 Limitad Shirebragk 11531386 100 . Shirebrook" 7852264 1090
S0 [Prapao 61} Limited Shirebrack” 1531382 00 S0115t Hetens! Limted Shugbrook” 7852281 100 .
SDI(Propco 62 Limited Shirabrook 1531444 100 SDi{StaMard) Lmited Shirbrook’! B56BAAT wo
SBI{Prapco 63t Lmited Shirebronk' nsAN503 - 100 SDI (Stoines] Limited Shirebrogk™ 1646482 100
5D [Propea 64] bimvitad Sturebrosk TS3IS04 e S{H (Staekport] Limitad ) Shirehrook™ 6372181 a0
SDI {Propse 65) Lmited Shiretrack n5MEI7 100 SO {take Longton} Lmited Shrebrock! ) 7853877 100
SO {Propea &7) Limitad Shirebrook 11572676 100 _SDI{Stcke Newmngton) Limiter . Shwebrook’ 184207 100
SDI [Propeo 68] Limited Shirgbrosk ' ns72EN 100 SDI [Strabane! Limuted Shucebrogk” 9850243 100
S (Propea 65} Limited Shirebronk" 11572830 00 D! (Streat hom| Limited Shirebrook ' 10066335 100 |
SDI(Propra 0] Limited Shirabrook™ 1572931 100 S [Stood} Limited Shireprook 7852251 0o
SDI {Propes 71| Lrmited Shyralrook 574887 00 SDA(Sunderlond] Limitad Shirebeack’ 8755347 100
SDI{Propro 73) Limited Shirebracl . 